
Democratic Services Contact Officer: Ian Senior 03450 450 500 

 
 
 
 
 
 

22 February 2010 

 
To: Councillors David Bard and Nick Wright, Portfolio Holders 
 
 Val Barrett Scrutiny Monitor, Planning 
 Trisha Bear Opposition Spokesman, Planning Portfolio 
 Anthony Berent Opposition Spokesman, New Communities 
 Roger Hall Scrutiny Monitor, New Communities 
 Bridget Smith Scrutiny Monitor and Opposition Spokesman, New 

Communities 
 Jim Stewart Opposition Spokesman, New Communities 
 John Williams Opposition Spokesman, Planning Portfolio 
 
Dear Sir / Madam 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of PLANNING AND NEW COMMUNITIES JOINT 
PORTFOLIO HOLDERS' MEETING, which will be held in MONKFIELD ROOM, FIRST FLOOR 
at South Cambridgeshire Hall on TUESDAY, 2 MARCH 2010 at 9.00 a.m. 
 
Yours faithfully 
GJ HARLOCK 
Chief Executive 
 
Requests for a large print agenda must be received at least 48 hours before the meeting. 
 

 
AGENDA 

PAGES 
 PROCEDURAL ITEMS   
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 
2. Minutes of Previous Meeting   1 - 6 
 The Portfolio Holders are asked to sign the minutes of the meeting held 

on 26 January 2010 as a correct record. 
 

   
 DECISION ITEMS   
 
3. Procurement Strategy 2010   7 - 32 
 Appendices A-E are attached to the electronic version of the agenda on 

the Council’s website.  Appendix F is attached to both the paper and 
electronic versions. 

 

   
4. Final Service Plans 2010/11: Corporate Services (Procurement and 

Efficiency)  
 33 - 64 

 For approval, subject to comments made by Senior Management Team 
at its meeting on 24 February 2010.  

 

   
5. Final Service Plans 2010/11: Planning   65 - 146 

 South Cambridgeshire Hall 
Cambourne Business Park 
Cambourne 
Cambridge 
CB23 6EA 

t: 08450 450 500 
f: 01954 713149 
dx: DX 729500 Cambridge 15 
minicom: 01480 376743 
www.scambs.gov.uk 



 For approval, subject to comments made by Senior Management Team 
at its meeting on 24 February 2010.  

 

   
6. Local Development Scheme   147 - 

150 
 Appendix 1 is attached to the electronic version of the agenda on the 

Council’s website. 
 

   
7. Final Service Plans 2010/11: New Communities   151 - 

176 
 For approval, subject to comments made by Senior Management Team 

at its meeting on 24 February 2010.  
 

   
8. Cambridgeshire Green Infrastructure Strategy   177 - 

188 
 To respond to consultation by Cambridgeshire Horizons.  
   
9. Supplementary Planning Document:Affordable Housing, Design 

Guide and Landscape  
 189 - 

196 
 Appendices 1 to 7 are attached to the electronic version of the agenda on 

the Council’s website. 
 

   
10. Local Transport Plan   197 - 

204 
 Cambridgeshire County Council’s leaflet called Consultation on 

Cambridgeshire’s Local Transport Plan is attached to the electronic 
version of the agenda on the Council’s website.  

 

   
11. Supplementary Planning Document: Waste Management   205 - 

212 
 To respond to consultation by Cambridgeshire County Council and 

Peterborough City Council on the two draft supplementary planning 
documents relating to waste management.  The Appendices are attached 
to the electronic version of the agenda on the Council’s website. 

 

   
12. Minerals and Waste Development Plan - proposed submission 

version  
 213 - 

246 
 To respond to consultation by Cambridgeshire County Council and 

Peterborough City Council.  The Appendices are attached to the 
electronic version of the agenda on the Council’s website. 

 

   
13. Community Capital Grants Programme 2009/10   247 - 

268 
 
14. Planning Portfolio: Carry Forward of Uncommitted Grant Balances 

as at 31 March 2010  
 269 - 

272 
 
 ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION   
 
15. Financial Monitoring Report: Planning Portfolio   273 - 

282 
 
16. Financial Monitoring Report: New Communities Portfolio   283 - 

292 
 



17. Performance update - Planning portfolio   To 
Follow 

 
 STANDING ITEMS   
 
18. Forward Plans   293 - 

296 
 The Portfolio Holders will maintain, for agreement at each meeting, a 

Forward Plan identifying all matters relevant to the Portfolios which it is 
believed are likely to be the subject of consideration and / or decision by 
the Portfolio Holders, or recommendation to, or referral by, the Portfolio 
Holders to Cabinet, Council, or any other constituent part of the Council.   
The plans will be updated as necessary.  The Portfolio Holders will be 
responsible for the content and accuracy of the forward plans. 

 

   
19. Date of Next Meeting    
 The next Planning and New Communities Portfolio Holders' meeting will 

take place on Thursday 20 May 2010, starting at 10.00am in the Council 
Chamber.  Please note that the meeting scheduled for 11 May 2010 has 
been cancelled.  

 

   



 GUIDANCE NOTES FOR VISITORS TO SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE HALL 
 While the District Council endeavours to ensure that visitors come to no harm when visiting South 
Cambridgeshire Hall, those visitors also have a responsibility to make sure that they do not risk their own 
or others’ safety. 
 
Increased hygiene at South Cambridgeshire Hall 
In light of the swine flu pandemic, we have intensified our usual cleaning routines in council buildings. We 
have also introduced hand gel dispensers throughout the offices, including public areas. When visiting 
South Cambridgeshire Hall you are encouraged to use these facilities if and when required to help limit the 
spread of flu. 
 
Security 
Members of the public attending meetings in non-public areas of the Council offices must report to 
Reception, sign in, and at all times wear the Visitor badges issued.  Before leaving the building, such 
visitors must sign out and return their Visitor badges to Reception. 
 
Emergency and Evacuation 
In the event of a fire, a continuous alarm will sound.  Evacuate the building using the nearest escape 
route; from the Council Chamber or Mezzanine viewing gallery this would be via the staircase just outside 
the door.  Go to the assembly point at the far side of the staff car park. 
• Do not use the lifts to exit the building.  If you are unable to negotiate stairs by yourself, the 

emergency staircase landings are provided with fire refuge areas, which afford protection for a 
minimum of 1.5 hours.  Press the alarm button and wait for assistance from the Council fire 
wardens or the fire brigade. 

• Do not re-enter the building until the officer in charge or the fire brigade confirms that it is safe to 
do so. 

 
First Aid 
If someone feels unwell or needs first aid, please alert a member of staff. 
 
Access for People with Disabilities 
The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to its agendas and 
minutes. We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, please let us 
know, and we will do what we can to help you.  All meeting rooms are accessible to wheelchair users.  
There are disabled toilet facilities on each floor of the building.  Hearing loops and earphones are available 
from reception and can be used in all meeting rooms. 
 
Toilets 
Public toilets are available on each floor of the building next to the lifts. 
 
Recording of Business 
Unless specifically authorised by resolution, no audio and / or visual or photographic recording in any 
format is allowed at any meeting of the Council, the executive (Cabinet), or any committee, sub-committee 
or other sub-group of the Council or the executive. 
 
Banners, Placards and similar items 
No member of the public shall be allowed to bring into or display at any Council meeting any banner, 
placard, poster or other similar item. The Chairman may require any such item to be removed. 
 
Disturbance by Public 
If a member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Chairman will warn the person concerned.  If they 
continue to interrupt, the Chairman will order their removal from the meeting room.  If there is a general 
disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the public, the Chairman may call for that part to be 
cleared. 
 
Smoking 
Since 1 July 2008, the Council has operated a new Smoke Free Policy. Visitors are not allowed to smoke 
at any time within the Council offices, or in the car park or other grounds forming part of those offices. 
 
Food and Drink 
Vending machines and a water dispenser are available on the ground floor near the lifts at the front of the 
building.  Visitors are not allowed to bring food or drink into the meeting room. 
 
Mobile Phones 
Visitors are asked to make sure that their phones and other mobile devices are set on silent / vibrate 
mode during meetings or are switched off altogether. 
   



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Planning and New Communities Joint Portfolio Holders' Meeting held 
on 

Tuesday, 26 January 2010 at 10.00 a.m. 
 
Portfolio Holders: Simon Edwards and Nick Wright 
 
Councillors in attendance: 
Scrutiny and Overview Committee monitors: Val Barrett and Roger Hall 
Opposition spokesmen: Trisha Bear, Anthony Berent and Bridget Smith 
 
Officers: 
James Fisher S106 Officer 
David Grimster Accountant 
Richard Hales Strategic Sustainability Officer 
Peter Harris Principal Accountant (General Fund and Costing) 
Gareth Jones Corporate Manager, Planning & Sustainable 

Communities 
Keith Miles Planning Policy Manager 
Jo Mills Corporate Manager, New Communities 
Ian Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Claire Spencer Senior Planning Officer (Transport Policy) 
 
48. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Councillor Dr David Bard (New Communities Portfolio Holder) was unable to be present.   

 
Part 4 of the Constitution, relating to delegation rules) states that “… The Leader, and in 
his / her absence, the Deputy Leader, shall have all the delegated powers, functions and 
responsibilities of any portfolio holder in their absence. The Deputy Leader shall assume 
the full powers of the Leader in any circumstances in which the Leader is unable to act, 
and shall act as Leader if the post of Leader is vacant (Article 7.03…refers.” 
 
Councillor Ray Manning (Leader of the Council) was unable to act.   
 
Accordingly, Councillor Simon Edwards (Deputy Leader) assumed the full powers of the 
Leader, and attended the meeting in place of the New Communities Portfolio Holder. 

  
49. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 There were no declarations of interest.  
  
50. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
 The Deputy Leader and Planning Portfolio Holder agreed that the minutes of the meeting 

held on 10 December 2009 were a correct record, and signed them accordingly.  
  
51. REVENUE AND CAPITAL ESTIMATES: PLANNING 
 
 The Planning Portfolio Holder considered the Revenue Estimates up to the year 2010-11 

and the Capital Programme up to the year 2014-15. 
 
Those present received a revised Appendix A and discussed a number of issues raised in 
the report. 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



Planning and New Communities Joint Portfolio Holders' Meeting Tuesday, 26 January 2010 

 
The Corporate Manager (Planning and Sustainable Communities) highlighted the benefits 
the Council had enjoyed by being able to obtain Housing and Planning Delivery Grant 
monies, but cautioned against ongoing reliance on this as a funding stream. 
 
Concern was expressed at imminent redundancies within the Planning Service, and the 
implications for the Council when the local economy recovered, resulting in a likely 
increase in the number of planning applications received. 
 
Concern was also expressed at apparently budgeting for an overspend. 
 
The Planning Portfolio Holder endorsed the Revenue Estimates at Appendix A (as 
revised) to the report; the Capital Programme at Appendix B, and associated proposal 
forms at Appendices C1 to C4, and recommend them for consideration by the Cabinet. 

  
52. REVENUE AND CAPITAL ESTIMATES: NEW COMMUNITIES 
 
 The Deputy Leader considered the Revenue Estimates up to the year 2010-11 and the 

Capital Programme up to the year 2014-15. 
 
In response to a question about whether the Council could claim extra government funding 
should Northstowe now be classed as an Eco-town, the Corporate Manager (New 
Communities) referred to a ‘Gap Analysis’ being undertaken to determine the chances of 
successfully bidding for funds enabling the further studies needed in assessing Eco-town 
status.   
 
Concern was expressed about redundancies in the short term potentially leaving the 
Council without sufficient capacity later on in terms of the number and experience of staff 
available.  
 
The Deputy Leader  
(a) endorsed the Revenue Estimates and the Capital Programme at Appendices A and 

B to the report, and recommend them for consideration by the Cabinet; and 
(b) confirmed the proposals for capital expenditure shown at Appendix C (1-3), for 

inclusion in the Council’s draft capital programme. 
  
53. REVENUE AND CAPITAL ESTIMATES: SUSTAINABILITY 
 
 The Deputy Leader considered the Revenue Estimates up to the year 2010-11 and the 

Capital Programme up to the year 2014-15. 
 
It was noted that the PPS1 grant from central government went straight into the Council’s 
General Fund summary.  The Corporate Manager (Planning and Sustainable 
Communities) undertook to investigate whether this could be reflected in the accounts as 
income to the New Communities Portfolio. 
 
The Deputy Leader  
(a) endorsed the Sustainability Revenue Estimates and Capital Programme shown at 

Appendices A and B to the report and recommended them for consideration by the 
Cabinet; and  

(b) confirmed the proposals for capital expenditure shown at Appendix C2.  
  
54. SECTION 106 ADMINISTRATION FEES 
 
 The Planning Portfolio Holder and Deputy Leader considered a report outlining the 

Page 2



Planning and New Communities Joint Portfolio Holders' Meeting Tuesday, 26 January 2010 

proposal for South Cambridgeshire District Council to apply an administration fee for 
handling planning obligations entered into under Section 106 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990.  
 
The Section 106 Officer explained that, while the scheme would not in itself fund officer 
costs, it would at least help cover the additional costs, pro rata, of additional time 
commitments required on an Agreement-by-Agreement basis. 
 
Concern was expressed about future staffing levels within the Planning and New 
Communities Service currently being created.   
 
Responding to a call for a significant increase in fees, the Planning Portfolio Holder said 
that the level should be set relatively low at the outset and increased gradually.  He 
agreed in principle with the idea of seeking alternative ways of funding the Council, but 
said these had to be realistic  
 
The Planning Portfolio Holder and Deputy Leader agreed that South Cambridgeshire 
District Council should, with effect from 1 January 2010, increase the level of legal fees 
charged in association with the additional administration work necessitated by the 
completion of a Section 106 agreement. Such fee would be applied at a level appropriate 
to the degree of complexity involved (subject to a maximum charge of £250 for each 
Agreement and review on an annual basis). 

  
55. ADOPTION OF STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 
 
 The Deputy Leader considered a report outlining the results of a public consultation 

exercise carried out in relation to the Statement of Community Involvement (SCI). 
 
The Planning Policy Manager highlighted the fourth bullet point in paragraph 12 of the 
report.  He also outlined the rationale behind the 21-day period during which parish 
councils could ask that the full Planning Committee considered planning applications.  
Following the disbandment of the Chairman’s Delegation process, a shorter timescale was 
needed to make sure that South Cambridgeshire District Council met the requirement of 
delegating at least 90% of applications received.  In response to the Deputy Leader, the 
Planning Policy Manager made it clear that the 21-day period would run from the day on 
which parish councils were notified. 
 
The Deputy Leader suggested adding into the SCI details about consultation with parish 
councils. 
 
The Planning Portfolio Holder and Deputy Leader agreed that South Cambridgeshire 
District Council should adopt the Statement of Community Involvement, as contained in 
Appendix 1, subject to the addition to that document of an Appendix clarifying the process 
for consultation with parish councils. 

  
56. DRAFT ADVISORY HEAVY COMMERCIAL VEHICLES ROUTE MAP 
 
 The Planning Portfolio Holder considered a report on Cambridgeshire County Council’s 

consultation on a draft advisory Heavy Commercial Vehicle (HCV) route map as the first 
stage in the process of reviewing its HCV policy.   
 
Concern was expressed that nothing should be done that might increase the incidence of 
HCVs taking alternative routes along minor roads and residential streets. 
 
The Deputy Leader called for South Cambridgeshire District Council to support strongly 

Page 3



Planning and New Communities Joint Portfolio Holders' Meeting Tuesday, 26 January 2010 

the downgrading of the A1123, but added that Cambridgeshire County Council should 
make sure that adequate funds were made available for ongoing maintenance of this 
route, in the event that downgrading it meant there was less money available from 
elsewhere for such maintenance.  
  
The Planning Portfolio Holder agreed that, in response to consultation from 
Cambridgeshire County Council about the draft advisory HCV route map, South 
Cambridgeshire District Council: 
  

1. supported the strategic routes identified as being the most appropriate through 
routes for HCV traffic, and strongly supported the downgrading of the A1123 from 
a strategic to local route;  

2. supported strongly the downgrading of the A1123, while urging Cambridgeshire 
County Council to make sure that adequate funds were made available for ongoing 
maintenance of this route, in the event that downgrading it meant there was less 
money available from elsewhere for such maintenance; and  

3. requested continued involvement, together with local communities, in addressing 
local concerns particularly in areas close to where new development is proposed to 
ensure appropriate measures are put in place to mitigate any impact from HCV 
traffic on local communities. 

  
57. JOINING THE NATIONAL "10:10" CARBON EMISSIONS REDUCTION CAMPAIGN 
 
 The Deputy Leader considered a report on the national “10:10” carbon emissions 

reduction campaign.  
 
Concern was expressed at future staff capacity. 
 
The Deputy Leader agreed that South Cambridgeshire District Council should formally 
join the national “10:10” carbon emissions reduction campaign. 

  
58. NEW COMMUNITIES PERFORMANCE UPDATE 
 
 The Deputy Leader received and noted a report outlining progress made by the New 

Communities Service, up to 31 December 2009, in meeting its targets set in the published 
2009-10 Service Plan.  The report, taken together with the financial report provided a 
comprehensive overview of the state of the service, both financially and in terms of its 
delivery.  
 
Concern was expressed at the decision to cease publication of the Arts Guide as part of 
the South Cambs Magazine.  The Corporate Manager (New Communities) said that this 
was as a result of a lack of resources. 

  

Page 4



Planning and New Communities Joint Portfolio Holders' Meeting Tuesday, 26 January 2010 

 
59. FORWARD PLANS 
 
 The Deputy Leader and Planning Portfolio Holder noted the Forward Plans for the New 

Communities and Planning portfolios. 
 
The Forward Plans were updated as follows: 
 
Planning 
§ 2 March 2010 – add Performance update 
§ Unscheduled items – delete Cambridgeshire Horizons Integrated Development Plan 
 
New Communities 
§ 2 March 2010 – add Climate Change Action Plan 
§ 2 March 2010 – add Local Transport Plan 
§ 2 March 2010 – delete Statement of Community Involvement (duplicate entry) 
§ May 2010 (date to be re-arranged) – Gypsy and Traveller DPD  

  
60. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 The next Planning and New Communities Portfolio Holders' meeting had been scheduled 

for Tuesday 2 March 2010, starting at 10.00am. 
  
  

The Meeting ended at 12.18 p.m. 
 

 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is left blank intentionally.



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Planning Portfolio Holder  2 March 2010 
AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Corporate Services) 

 
 

PROCUREMENT STRATEGY 
 

Purpose 
 
1. The purpose of this report is for the Planning Portfolio Holder to agree an updated 

Procurement Strategy. 
 

2. This not a key decision but it has been brought to the Planning Portfolio Holder as 
procurement and efficiency are included in the services covered by the portfolio 
holder.  It was first published in the February 2010 Forward Plan 

 
Background 

 
3. Cabinet approved a Strategy for the Procurement of Goods and Services in January 

2004.  The strategy was revised and updated in March 2009 to take account of 
events since it was approved and increased expectations of the outcomes from 
procurement activities, and renamed the Procurement Strategy. 

 
4. It is recognised good practice to review strategies, annually where possible.   
 

Considerations 
 
5. The Procurement Strategy has been subject of the following independent reviews: 

(a) a Quality Assurance Meeting considered an Equalities Impact Assessment 
(EQIA) of the strategy; 

(b) the Audit Commission commented on the strategy in the Use of Resources 
assessment; 

(c) the Council’s internal auditors, RSM Tenon, made recommendations following 
a review of procurement. 

 
6. Consequent to paragraph 5. (c), the following procurement performance indicators 

(PIs) have been considered for inclusion in the Procurement Strategy: 
(a) the National Audit Office’s procurement VFM (Value For Money) measures; 
(b) procurement PI’s included in: 

(i) the Finance & Support Services’ service plan for 2009/10; 
(ii) the proposed Corporate Services’ service plan for 2010/11. 

 
7. These factors have been taken into account as outlined in the following Appendices:   

(a) the Quality Assurance Meeting’s comments on the EQIA (Appendix A); 
(b) the Audit Commission’s comments in the Use of Resources assessment 

(Appendix B); 
(c) RSM Tenon’s recommendations from the procurement review (Appendix C); 
(d) the National Audit Office’s procurement VFM measures (Appendix D); 
(e) procurement PI’s included in service plans (Appendix E). 

 
8. The resulting proposed updated Procurement Strategy is attached as Appendix F. 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 7



Options 
 
9. The Planning Portfolio Holder could agree to adopt the proposed updated 

Procurement Strategy.  This is the recommended option. 
 

10. Alternatively, the Planning Portfolio Holder could suggest changes to the proposed 
updated Procurement Strategy. 

 
Implications 
 
Financial There are no direct financial implications resulting from this 

report.   
Legal There are no legal implications resulting from this report.   

EU and UK procurement legislation has been taken into account 
in preparing the proposed updated Procurement Strategy. 

Staffing There are no staffing implications resulting from this report. 
Risk Management There are no direct risk management implications resulting from 

this report.   
The Procurement Strategy, together with the Council’s Contract 
Regulations, should ensure that the Council obtains the goods 
and services it requires at best value for money, in compliance 
with procurement legislation. 

11.  

Equal Opportunities An Equality Impact Assessment (EQIA) was conducted in 
January 2009 on the then draft Procurement Strategy.  The 
impact was assessed as positive as the strategy not only does 
not disadvantage any equality groups, but also actively 
promotes equality and diversity by encouraging suppliers and 
contractors to consider their equality policies and practices and 
expecting them to meet the Council’s own standards and 
policies. 
Comments from the Quality Assurance Meeting have been 
taken into account in preparing this proposed updated 
Procurement Strategy (and see paragraph 12 below). 
Both the Procurement Strategy and Contract Regulations 
incorporate equality and diversity considerations, together with a 
checklist for contracting officers to follow. 

 
Consultations 

 
12. A response was made to the Council’s Equality & Diversity Officer regarding the 

comments made by the Quality Assurance Meeting on the Equalities Impact 
Assessment (EQIA).  This response and the Equality & Diversity Officer’s feedback 
on it are included in Appendix A.  In providing his feedback, the Equality & Diversity 
Officer said, “I was particularly impressed with the EQIA that has been produced, 
especially as it was completed before I joined the Council and at a time when EQIAs 
were not imbedded in the policy-making process.”  
 

13. The draft Procurement Strategy was provided to the Audit Commission’s performance 
specialist on Use of Resources.  His comments and the Council’s responses have 
been added to Appendix B and the Procurement Strategy has been updated to take 
the comments into account where appropriate. 

 
14. The draft Procurement Strategy was considered by Senior Management Team at its 

meeting on 17 February 2010 and endorsed subject to some comments: 

Page 8



(a) more Customer Service and Safeguarding Children references in the body of 
the strategy – all service areas have been asked to include actions to address 
these matters in their 2010/11 improvement plans; accordingly, actions have 
been included in the Finance Project Team’s improvement plan; addenda to 
the strategy will be produced as these actions are implemented; 

(b) include more Aims, Approaches and/or Actions (AAA’s) as having 
procurement implications/applications – the AAA’s included in the strategy 
have direct procurement implications/applications; however, wording has been 
added about procurement supporting service managers who lead delivery of 
other AAA’s;   

(c) more specific actions that will enable the authority to use procurement as a 
tool to achieve corporate objectives – actions have been included regarding 
procurement aspects of the refuse and recycling service review (new Council 
Action 3) and the housing service review and restructure (new Council Action 
11); paragraph 3.1.2 states that the authority will look for opportunities to 
conduct procurement exercises in strategic ways to meet the Council’s Aims. 

  
Effect on Strategic Aims 
 
Commitment to being a listening council, providing first class services accessible to all. 
Effective procurement enables the Council to deliver high quality services by: 
• Achieving value for money to maximise resources available for Council objectives 

and service priorities; 
• Supporting policy objectives, for example through sustainable purchasing and 

local purchasing; 
• Engaging quality suppliers of goods and services; 
• Implementing efficient procurement processes that release officers for other tasks 

related to service delivery and improvement. 
Commitment to ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and healthy place 
for all. 
 
Commitment to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
 
Commitment to assisting provision for local jobs for all. 
 
Commitment to providing a voice for rural life. 

15. 

 
 

Conclusions/Summary 
 
16. The Council’s Procurement Strategy has been reviewed in accordance with 

recognised good practice.  The resulting proposed updated Procurement Strategy 
incorporates comments from independent reviews and advice and guidance from 
consultees, as appropriate. 

 
Recommendations 

 
17. The portfolio holder is recommended to adopt the proposed updated Procurement 

Strategy. 
 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report: None unpublished 
Contact Officer:  John Garnham – Finance Project Officer - Telephone: (01954) 713101 
and Sean Missin – Procurement Officer - Telephone: (01954) 713378 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is left blank intentionally.



Appendix F  
 
Proposed updated Procurement Strategy 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Procurement Strategy 
2010/11 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 2010 
 
 
 

Page 11



Table of contents 
 
 
 
Ref Subject 

 
Page 

1 Introduction  
 

1 

2 Guiding principles  
 

3 

3 Corporate aims and objectives 
 

4 

4 Procurement process  
 

5 

5 Providing leadership and building capacity 
 

11 

6 Partnering and collaboration 
 

14 

7 Risk management in procurement 
 

15 

8 Intelligent procurement 
 

15 

9 Performance management of the procurement strategy and function 
 

16 

  
 

 

 Annex 
 

 

A Procurement performance indicators and other measures 18 

Page 12



1 

 1           Introduction 
 

 1.1  Procurement is the process of acquiring goods and services, covering both 
acquisitions from third parties and in-house providers.  The process must 
incorporate a ‘lifetime’ view: from recognised requirement, through options 
appraisal, selection of procurement route, procurement brief, tender/quotation, bid 
evaluation, acceptance, contract, delivery, invoice handling, consumption, contract 
management, waste management and disposal/recycling/termination of the item or 
service, until the requirement has been satisfied. 
 

 1.2  Purpose  
 

 1.2.1  The purpose of the procurement strategy is to provide the Council with a framework 
that will enable its procurement of goods and services to contribute to the 
achievement of its strategic objectives. 
 

 1.3  Context  
 

 1.3.1  This strategy works with the Council’s Contract Regulations and Financial 
Regulations, European Union (EU) and UK legislation or other relevant 
requirements and with consideration of political, economic, social, technological, 
legislative and environmental (PESTLE) drivers: 
 

Aims,
Approaches &
Actions/

Objectives &
Plans

Contract
Regulations/
EU/UK legal
compliance

Government
Policies,
Targets &
Strategies

National
Procurement
Strategy

MTFS &
efficiency
savings

Environmental
Sustainability:
Climate Change
Ecology & Green

issues

S106/
Community
needs/

Social & Local
Businesses

Partnerships,
collaborative
contracts &

shared services

Systems,
e-procurement
& processes

Equality and
Diversity

South Cambridgeshire District Council Procurement Strategy

The ongoing programme of Council procurement projects. Improved procurement performance through
development of Council staff, processes and procedures.

 
 1.3.2  Excluding salary related costs, in 2008/09 the Council spent over £19 million with 

third party suppliers and contractors, of which nearly £10 million related to 
‘construction’, i.e. repairs and maintenance etc to housing property and other 
buildings.  Procurement therefore has a significant role in ensuring that the Council 
obtains best value for money from its expenditure. 
 

 1.4  The Government’s efficiency agenda 
 

 1.4.1  The Government has underlined the need for value for money procurement with its 
efficiency programme.  Councils need to find continuous savings each year. 
 

Page 13



2 

 1.5  Strategy Statement 
 

 1.5.1  The Council wishes to provide high performing quality services that deliver excellent 
customer service, while demonstrating efficiency, sustainability and value for money. 
The Council believes that the most effective overall approach to achieve this is a 
“mixed economy” of services with some being provided directly by the Council and 
others by partnership or other arrangements with external contractors or suppliers.  
Procurement decisions must focus on obtaining the best outcomes for the services 
that the Council provides; however, different procurement models and approaches 
may be needed to facilitate this - the strategy is designed to allow this flexibility. 
 

 1.5.2  This strategy aims:  
• To provide effective procurement support in a way that meets the objectives of 

the Council and the priorities of the Government; 
• To achieve value for money from Council expenditure; 
• To ensure that the Council incorporates, as far as is reasonably possible, the 

full lifetime costs within all its decision-making relating to the procurement of 
goods and services; 

• To enable service managers to have access to clear policies, guidelines and 
advice regarding procurement; 

• To enable procurement of goods and services to be simple and un-
bureaucratic; 

• To comply with all legal requirements, be consistent with the highest standards 
of integrity and ensure fairness when contracting; 

• To consider equality, third sector commissioning and sustainable criteria as part 
of the procurement decision-making process.  

 
 1.5.3  Activities that support the delivery of the procurement strategy include: 

• Analysis of Council expenditure to identify and investigate opportunities to 
make savings, rationalise suppliers, increase competition, contract jointly with 
other public bodies, make use of collaborative contracts or otherwise contract 
more effectively 

• Review of the Central Contracts Archive to identify contracts due for renewal; 
• Forward planning and earlier involvement of the Procurement Officer in 

procurement projects, by managers/officers; 
• Continuous training and development of Council staff in relevant procurement 

concepts, Contract Regulations and EU / UK law relating to procurement; 
• Making sure that templates and standardised contract information are available 

for managers/officers to use; 
• Ensuring that managers/officers complete contract award / exemption forms 

and forward these to the Procurement Officer so that the Central Contracts 
Archive is maintained and up to date. 
 

 1.5.4  A range of supporting information is available in the Procurement area on In-Site, 
the Council’s intranet, including: 
• Contract Regulations Quick Guide (a quick guide to procurement, including 

flowcharts and table); 
• Contract Reference Guide (a simple table showing contract values and 

procedures); 
• Contract Regulations Checklist (a checklist to ensure compliance with Contract 

Regulations); 
• Procurement System (an automated system that provides advice and guidance 

on a procurement process); 

Page 14



3 

• EU procurement procedures (guides to the EU Consolidated Procurement 
Regulations 2006); 

• A guide to the EU Remedies Directive, which came into effect on 20th 
December 2009. 

 
 1.5.5  The procurement strategy is important in supporting the Council’s corporate aims. 

The strategy will do this by focussing on: 
• Guiding principles; 
• Corporate aims and objectives; 
• Procurement process; 
• Providing leadership and building capacity; 
• Partnering and collaboration; 
• Risk management in procurement; 
• Intelligent procurement; 
• Procurement performance measurement 

 
 2           Guiding principles 
 
 2.1  Apply the principles of fairness, openness and transparency to procurement 

activities, ensuring that the procurement activity itself is pursued efficiently and 
consistently.   
 

 2.2  Operate within the framework determined by EU and UK law and those outlined 
within the Council’s own Financial Regulations and Contract Regulations. 
 

 2.3  Consider the potential for innovation, the management and balance of risk, and the 
opportunity for new or alternative methods of service delivery.  
 

 2.4  Ensure that procurement activity is service driven, including internal consultation 
and involvement to support service objectives and external consultation with service 
users (e.g. residents, customers, etc) to understand their needs and design the 
services to be procured to meet them. 
 

 2.5  Use the Central Contracts Archive (contracts database) to publish a list of the 
Council’s existing contracts that can be utilised for procuring goods and services.  
 

 2.6  Actively work together on joint contracts both within the organisation and with other 
Councils and organisations, exploring partnership working or joint commissioning in 
procuring goods and services wherever possible. 
 

 2.7  Work with others including strategic partners, public sector agencies and consortia 
to maximise purchasing power and harness knowledge and the economies of scale.  
 

 2.8  Use procurement to deliver economic, effective, efficient and environmentally 
sustainable services and to improve the quality of services at a reasonable cost. 
 

 2.9  Incorporate sustainability and the climate change agenda, equality and diversity, 
quality, social responsibility and safety as important criteria in the provision of goods 
and services procured.  
 

 2.10  Utilise competition as a means of achieving economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
wherever appropriate and seek to ensure that this contributes to the 
competitiveness of suppliers, contractors and service providers.   

 

Page 15



4 

 2.11  Improve procurement systems, procedures and processing throughout the supply 
chain in order to reduce costs, resources and waste, by applying appropriate 
technology and best practice (including e-technology and e-procurement). 
 

 2.12  Adopt value for money by assessing quality, suitability, fitness for purpose, 
equalities, environmental impact and lifetime costs. 
 

 3           Corporate aims and objectives 
 
 3.1  The Council’s Aims, Approaches and Actions 

 
 3.1.1  The Council has approved Aims, Approaches and Actions, which form the 

framework for service planning, service priorities and budget setting from 2009/10 
onwards, together with new Council Actions for 2010/11. 

  
 3.1.2  The Council will look for opportunities to conduct procurement exercises in strategic 

ways to meet its Aims.   
 
 3.1.3  Managers responsible for leading procurement exercises will consider at the outset 

of the process, the Aims to which the procurement exercises will contribute (see 
paragraphs 3.1.8 and 4.2.2 below). 

 
 3.1.4  Particular Aims, Approaches and Actions that relate to procurement are: 

• Being a listening council, providing first class services accessible to all: 
o Listening to and engaging with our local community; 
o Working with voluntary organisations, Cambridgeshire County Council and 

parish councils to improve services through partnership; 
o Making SCDC more open and accessible; 
o Ensuring SCDC demonstrates value for money in the way it works.  

• Making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live:  
o Taking account of climate change in all the services that we deliver. 

• Assisting provision for local jobs for you and your family: 
o Working closely with local businesses. 

 
 3.1.5  In keeping with the Council’s service planning arrangements, procurement actions to 

support these Aims, Approaches and Actions are included in the Finance Project 
Team section of the Corporate Services service plan rather than within this strategy, 
although indicative actions include:   

o attending ‘Meet the Buyer’ events; 
o participating in the Cambridgeshire Procurement Group, framework 

contracts, joint procurement projects, etc; 
o making information regarding procurement available on the Council’s 

website; 
o incorporating equalities and sustainability in procurement procedures;  
o reporting procurement savings. 

 
 3.1.6  Other Aims, Approaches and/or Actions may have procurement implications/ 

applications.  The service managers leading on those will involve the Procurement 
Officer as necessary in procurement exercises to support their delivery. 

 
 3.1.7  Council cross-cutting themes, such as value for money, equalities and sustainability, 

are covered later in this strategy (sections 4.5, 4.6, and 4.7 and 4.8, respectively). 
 

Page 16



5 

 3.1.8  Contract Regulations and procurement processes also support the Council’s aims 
and objectives regarding procurement.  Procurement documentation will require 
procuring officers to state which Council Aims, Approaches and/or Actions a 
particular procurement exercise will support. 

 
 4           Procurement process 
 
 4.1  Organisation and positioning of procurement 

 
 4.1.1  The Planning Portfolio Holder is the lead Member for procurement and efficiency. 

 
 4.1.2  The Executive Director - Corporate Services is the senior manager responsible for 

procurement.   
 
 4.1.3  The Procurement Officer reports to the Finance Project Officer, who in turn reports 

to the Executive Director - Corporate Services.  The Procurement Officer is involved 
in identifying areas where procurement savings may be obtained and in providing 
general procurement support and advice.  

 
 4.1.4  Service managers and officers across the authority will lead on or be involved in 

procuring goods and services (including day-to-day purchases, quotations and 
tenders), with the advice, assistance and support of the Procurement Officer. 

 
 4.2  Initiation of the procurement process 
 
 4.2.1  The procurement strategy will apply whenever the means of providing a Council 

function is considered, including: 
• In anticipation of the expiry of an existing contract or service agreement for the 

provision of a Council function; 
• As part of, or following, a service review; 
• From identification of new opportunities for service provision or development; 
• As a matter of urgency if a service or contract is failing. 

 
 4.2.2  The first step in any procurement process is for the responsible manager to provide 

an outline specification that clearly details the Council’s requirements from the 
procurement exercise.  The outline specification will include objectives to be covered 
by the procurement arrangements: 
• The Council’s Aims, Approaches and Actions and/or the service objectives to 

which the procurement exercise will contribute, together with expectations 
about how it will achieve this; 

• Standards of excellent customer service, together with arrangements for the 
collection and use of customer satisfaction information; 

• National and local performance indicators;  
• Efficiency and value for money; 
• Expectations of and arrangements for continuous service development and 

improvement, and cost reduction 
• Relevant factors likely to affect development or demand - such as legislation; 

technology; environmental issues; changes in user demand, etc; 
 

 4.2.3  The responsible manager will prepare these objectives in consultation with service 
users, other stakeholders, the relevant portfolio holder/s and staff, as appropriate. 

 
 4.3  Procurement options appraisal 

 

Page 17



6 

 4.3.1  In evaluating the full range of possible alternatives for the procurement, the Council 
will consider the following options: 
• An assessment of whether there is still a requirement for all or part of the 

provision to continue; 
• In house provision.  If this was the selected option, there would also need to be: 

continuous improvement targets; an action plan; and possibly consideration of 
the location within the Council; 

• The market testing of all or part of the requirement (possibly with an in-house 
bid); 

• Joint commissioning or joint delivery.  This involves joining with other public 
bodies to provide or purchase goods or services jointly in order to take 
advantage of economies of scale, provide a better service to customers, or gain 
access to skills and support that would not be possible for the council operating 
alone; 

• Partnership contract with external suppliers in a way which places greater 
emphasis on shared objectives; 

• Possible sharing of the service with another local authority or public body; 
• Considering the use of EU compliant framework contracts; 
• Traditional contract with external suppliers with a specification and conditions; 
• Investigate options to change the provision to another provider such as a third 

sector or not for profit organisation; 
• Renegotiation of existing contracts.  

   
 4.3.2  Options appraisal will also include consideration of the most appropriate length of 

contract for the goods or services to be procured.  This may result in inviting 
tenders/ quotations for a specific contract period (with or without possible 
extensions), or for a range of potential contract periods whereby the Council can 
choose the option that best meets service needs and/or is the most economically 
advantageous. 
 

 4.3.3  The Council may choose to develop more than one option for the delivery of a 
service or for different parts of a service. 
 

 4.3.4  The manager responsible for the procurement project will carry out the options 
appraisal in consultation with service users, other stakeholders, the relevant portfolio 
holder/s and staff, as appropriate, together with advice from procurement and legal 
colleagues. 

 
 4.4  Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 
 4.4.1  The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) sets out the Council’s 

financial position over the period to 2014/15: 
• The Council’s financial position is dependent on low inflation, the period and 

severity of the economic downturn and the achievement of savings; 
• The medium term position of an estimated £1.3 million deficit on the General 

Fund in 2014/15 onwards indicates the ongoing need to search for savings and 
press for fairer funding. 

 
 4.4.2  Effective procurement has an obvious role in delivering savings and efficiencies.  

The Council’s procurement function needs to continue to identify areas in which 
savings can be achieved and to advise the most appropriate routes for the 
procurement of goods and services, in particular: 
• Identify contracts coming up for renewal; 
• Be advised of new contracts that need to be developed; 

Page 18



7 

• Be aware of market conditions and take advantage of optimum times to place 
or renew contracts; 

• Investigate opportunities to benefit from collaborative contracts (such as EU 
compliant framework contracts) and e-auctions. 

 
 4.5  Value for money 

 
 4.5.1  The Council will analyse its expenditure (“spend analysis”) and review its Central 

Contracts Archive, to identify opportunities to rationalise suppliers, save money, 
increase competition, contract jointly with other public bodies, make use of 
collaborative contracts or otherwise contract more effectively.  

 
 4.5.2  The procurement of goods and services is about making choices and obtaining 

value for money.  The value will include running costs, maintenance and eventual 
costs of termination or disposal.  It spans the ‘whole life cycle’ from the inception of 
the project to the end of the contract or useful life of the asset.  In order to obtain 
value for money there needs to be a balance between whole life costs and meeting 
customer requirements.  In most cases, the Council will seek the ‘most economically 
advantageous contract’ and make a balanced judgment between price and quality. 
 

 4.5.3  In assessing value for money in procurement, the Council will take into account the 
following criteria of sound management (balancing immediate need against whole 
life costs and quality), environmental responsibility and the promotion of sustainable 
communities.  A summary of considerations will be: 
• Economy – providing value for money, balancing cost and quality – through 

minimising waste and maximising shared opportunities for joint working; 
• Efficiency – maximising the resources available to the Council by using them in 

the best possible way; 
• Effectiveness – delivering responsive customer services that achieve their 

objectives; 
• Customer-centric – understanding who the service users are, learning their 

needs and incorporating these into service specifications;  
• Equality and diversity – allowing access for the whole business community and 

making appropriate provision for special needs (see section 4.6 below); 
• Environment – integrating sustainable procurement into all aspects of the 

purchasing process wherever possible, including the use of renewable 
resources and recyclable products; seeking to promote the transition to a ‘low 
carbon’ economy (see sections 4.7 and 4.8 below); 

• Health and safety – promoting safer, healthier communities; ensuring that 
appropriate health and safety procedures are incorporated in the contract 
(Contract Regulations provide for this); 

• E-procurement – incorporating electronic systems wherever applicable and 
appropriate, as a means of reducing costs and modernising services (see 
section 8.2 below); 

• Social – including efforts to stimulate local economic activity and engage with 
local businesses and the third sector (see sections 4.10 and 4.11 below). 

 
 4.5.4  The Council’s drive for value for money is also linked to the Government’s efficiency 

agenda and the Council’s MTFS.  These call for on-going cashable savings that are 
achieved in part through better procurement decisions leading to total cost savings. 

 
 4.6  Equality and diversity 

 

Page 19



8 

 4.6.1  In 2001, the Race Relations Act was amended to give public authorities a new 
statutory duty to promote race equality.  As part of this duty, the Council will issue an 
equalities questionnaire as part of the pre-qualification process for all contracts 
above Level 1 and will monitor contractors’ and suppliers’ equality and diversity 
practices on an ongoing basis when appointing them to contracts above Level 2 
where equality and diversity are particularly relevant.  Such organisations must be 
able to prove that they have effective equality and diversity practices.  
 

 4.6.2  The Council is committed to promoting equality of access.  The Council will treat all 
people equally including those contracting to supply goods and services.  It will not 
discriminate on the grounds of age, race, disability, offending past, religious belief, 
gender, transgender and transsexual people and sexual orientation or on any other 
unjustifiable grounds.  Contractors or suppliers appointed for the provision of goods 
and services will have to comply with these criteria themselves, as well as applying 
these requirements to all sub-contractors employed by the contractor/supplier. 

 
 4.6.3  The Council expects contractors and suppliers to meet the Council’s standards and 

requirements on equality. This will be tested by questions in tender and quotation 
documents about the elimination of unlawful discrimination and harassment and 
promotion of equality of opportunity on the grounds of gender, race, disability, age, 
sexual orientation, religion or faith. The questions will cover policies, practices, 
treatment, pay and conditions. 
 

 4.6.4  The responsible manager will complete an assessment of the impact on equality 
when undertaking a procurement exercise.  Where relevant, terms and conditions 
relating to equality and diversity will be inserted into pre-qualification questionnaires 
and contracts.  Suppliers for all procurement activities over Level 1 will be expected 
to complete an equality questionnaire. 
 

 4.7  Environmentally sustainable procurement 
 

 4.7.1  Responsible and sustainable sourcing of materials, products and services should be 
based on the fundamental principle of life-cycle stewardship.  This principle lies at 
the heart of the Brundtland1 definition of sustainable development as “development 
which meets the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs”.  Delivering this depends upon economic, 
social and political drivers preventing us, globally and locally, from undermining the 
environment in which we live.  This means not overexploiting natural resources nor 
despoiling ecological systems to the point where future well-being is threatened.  
 

 4.7.2  Sustainable procurement means considering the purchase of goods or services from 
their extraction, through manufacture, processing, provision, consumption and re-
use, to recycling and disposal. 
 

 4.7.3  The Council will therefore seek to embrace responsible sourcing of goods and 
services by taking all reasonable and practical steps to minimise life-cycle impacts. 
 

 4.7.4  An assessment of life-cycle impacts and consequences should incorporate the 
following criteria: 
• Fitness for purpose and value for money; 
• Efficiency of energy and resource utilisation in its production; 
• Minimise greenhouse gas emissions; 

                                                
1  Brundtland G.H., 1987, Our Common Future: The United Nations Commission on 
Environment and Development 

Page 20



9 

• Adaptation to climate change; 
• Ethical considerations; 
• Consumption; 
• Pollution arising from production and use; 
• Durability and capacity for repair and upgrading; 
• Amount and type of packaging materials; 
• Reuse and recycling potential; 
• Waste disposal implications and biodegradability; 
• Location of production; 
• Type, sustainability and source of raw materials; 
• Transport of product and raw materials; 
• Environmental credentials, policies and performance of supplier and producer; 
• Awards or certificates that demonstrate compliance to an environmental 

standard.  
 

 4.7.5  The responsible manager will complete an assessment of sustainable procurement 
when undertaking a procurement exercise.  (Guidance is available from 
sustainability and procurement colleagues and in the Procurement area on In-Site.) 
Where relevant, terms and conditions relating to sustainable procurement will be 
inserted into pre-qualification questionnaires and contracts.  
 

 4.8  Climate change 
 

 4.8.1  The Council recognises that environmental sustainability is dominated by the issue 
of climate change.  
 

 4.8.2  The Council’s life-cycle assessments of goods and services must take specific 
account of the need to reduce greenhouse gas emissions (increasingly expressed 
as carbon emissions) and adapt to the level of climate change that is already 
inevitable. 
 

 4.8.3  This position responds to the needs of the Sustainable Community Strategy and the 
forthcoming Climate Change Action Plan by: 
• Taking account of climate change in all the services that we deliver; 
• Promoting low carbon living and delivering low carbon growth. 

 
 4.8.4  As a signatory to the Nottingham Declaration, the Council is also committed to 

reducing carbon emissions and adapting to climate change. 
 

 4.8.5  Additionally the new performance framework for local authorities has introduced 
three new key national indicators which should be actively supported by the 
Council’s procurement activity: 
• NI 185 CO2 reduction from Local Authority operations; 
• NI 186 Per capita reduction in CO2 emissions in the LA area; 
• NI 188 Adapting to climate change. 

 
 4.8.6  The Council will therefore place significant weight upon seeking to ensure that the 

level of life-cycle carbon emissions associated with the materials, products, services 
and utilities that it procures are in line with its carbon reduction commitments. 
 

 4.8.7  Similarly, all procurement activity should seek to ensure that an appropriate level of 
adaptation to climate change is reflected within life cycle assessments. 
 

Page 21



10 

 4.8.8  Assessing the procurement of goods and services against full life-cycle costs 
(especially in the specific context of climate change) is an important new component 
of the Council’s Procurement Strategy.  The Council has, however, already taken 
significant environmentally sustainable steps for example recycling printing 
cartridges/toners, using recycled copier paper and making use of multi-functional 
devices that reduce the consumption of these materials. 

 
 4.8.9  The strategy is concerned with adopting a consistent approach for assessing the 

environmental impact of procurement activity within all the Council’s service areas.  
To this end technical guidance, support documents and training sessions will be 
made available to all relevant staff. 

 
 4.9  Agreements under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (Section 

106 agreements) 
 

 4.9.1  The European Union (EU) has underlined that any procurement carried out for the 
public good is subject to the EU Procurement Regulations.  This includes Section 
106 agreements. 
 

 4.9.2  The Council needs to have a robust mechanism in place to ensure that all contracts 
let in relation to Section 106 agreements are compliant with the EU Regulations.  
This includes undertaking a full EU Procurement Procedure where required. 
 

 4.9.3  This will involve project management of the Section 106 process, training and 
development of staff involved, creation of terms and conditions to limit the risk and 
liability to the Council and liaison with developers.  

 
 4.10  The local economy 

 
 4.10.1  The Council’s portfolio of contracts for goods and services covers a wide range of 

requirements.  The Council recognises its responsibilities to local communities and 
the opportunities afforded through procurement to help deliver corporate objectives, 
including the economic, social and environmental objectives set out in the Council’s 
Aims, Approaches and Actions.   
 

 4.10.2  Local business should be able to compete for work alongside contractors from 
outside the area and the Council will encourage them to do this by: 
• Ensuring procurement documentation and the procurement process, including 

electronic, do not disadvantage local businesses;   
• Publishing details of forthcoming bidding opportunities and contact details for 

each contract on the Council’s website; 
• Advertising contracts on the DTI’s Supply2Gov web site or Official Journal of 

the European Union website; 
• Publishing on the Council’s website a ‘Selling to the Council’ guide to 

communicate how the Council lets contracts; 
• Providing advice and guidance for suppliers on where tender opportunities 

exist, responding to tenders, completing tender documentation, key policies 
that the Council looks for when evaluating (e.g. equalities, health and safety); 

• Increasing the level of contact with local business by participating in ‘meet the 
buyer’ events; 

• Encouraging suppliers to consider forming partnerships or co-operate with 
other companies to jointly bid for Council contracts. 
 

 4.10.3  These actions are included in the Finance and Support Services service plan. 

Page 22



11 

 
 4.11  Third Sector Commissioning 

 
 4.11.1  Procuring with the voluntary sector is often referred to as Third Sector 

Commissioning. 
 

 4.11.2  Working with the Third Sector can benefit both organisations by providing income to 
the Third Sector whilst providing potential cost savings to the Council as well as the 
benefits of dealing with an organisation that is focussed at providing some social 
benefit rather than just profitability. 
 

 4.11.3  The Council will ensure that it advertises contracts on either the Official Journal of 
the European Union or the DTI’s Supply2Gov website as well as its own web site as 
a minimum, thus allowing the Third Sector to be made aware of any contracts that it 
may bid for.  
 

 4.12  Contract Regulations and Financial Regulations. 
 

 4.12.1  The Council has Financial Regulations and Contract Regulations, including 
procurement practices such as equalities, health & safety, consultants, collaborative 
contracts and exemptions.  Staff have been trained and guides produced using 
diagrams to demonstrate the procurement procedures of the Council. 
  

 4.12.2  These regulations will be maintained to ensure that they are up to date, easy to 
follow and understandable by staff ensuring compliance. 
 

 4.12.3  Contracts above Level 1 will be advertised on the DTI’s Supply2Gov web site or 
Official Journal of the European Union website as well as its own website ensuring 
openness and transparency. 

 
 5           Providing leadership and building capacity 
 
 5.1  While procurement is seen as a set of procedures with specific guidance, it is crucial 

that all Council staff play an active role in maintaining, adhering to and 
disseminating procurement policies.  Staff actions will be fully supported by 
procurement training and development. 
 

 5.2  The role of the Executive Member responsible for procurement: 
• Approval of the procurement strategy; 
• Consider and comment on the annual procurement priorities. 

 
 5.3  Executive Members’ role generally: 

• Monitor progress on major procurement exercises within their portfolios; 
• Set priorities for the Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

 
 5.4  Overview and Scrutiny Committee role: 

• Monitor and review the Council’s approach to procurement. 
 

 5.5  Managers’ role: 
• Understand where to find information about the Council’s procurement priorities 

and procedures, in particular Contract Regulations; 
• Contribute to the strategic planning of procurement as part of the annual 

strategic planning cycles by undertaking an assessment of what contracts will 
be let; 

Page 23



12 

• Know what to do about routine purchasing and when to invoke other 
procedures; 

• Investigate opportunities to co-ordinate contracts with other teams or other 
Councils to eliminate duplication and reduce costs; 

• Plan and manage major procurement exercises using project management 
methodology where appropriate; 

• Provide details to the Procurement Officer of ‘live’ and forthcoming contracts; 
• Notify the Procurement Officer of all procurement exercises where expenditure 

is likely to exceed Level 1, the purchasing threshold to obtain at least three 
quotations; 

• Complete the award and exemption documentation for purchases over Level 1; 
• Seek procurement and purchasing advice or guidance where necessary, from 

the Council’s Procurement Officer; 
• Ensure that they and their staff comply with procurement procedures contained 

within Contract Regulations, Financial Regulations, advice or guidance 
provided by the Procurement Officer. 
 

 5.6  Officers’ role: 
• Know what to do about routine purchasing and when to invoke other 

procedures; 
• Know where to find guidance on all procurement issues; 
• Know where they can find specialist advice and expertise on procurement 

issues; 
• Know where to find information about the Council’s spending plans; 
• Deal with all routine procurement; 
• Reduce time spent sourcing goods and services; 
• Plan and manage all non-routine procurements effectively; 
• Notify the Procurement Team at the start of all procurement exercises where 

expenditure is likely to exceed Level 1; the purchasing threshold to obtain at 
least three quotations; 

• Complete the award and exemption documentation for purchases over Level 1; 
• Comply with Contract Regulations, Financial Regulations, advice and guidance 

provided by the Procurement Officer. 
 

 5.7  Procurement’s role: 
• Investigate, research, evaluate and report on areas for potential cost or 

efficiency savings; 
• Support colleagues by providing advice, training and guidance on procurement, 

EU Law and Contract Regulations; 
• Design, create and implement the procurement strategy; 
• Report statistics to the Government on EU purchases; 
• Investigate procurement options; 
• Assist in procurement projects; 
• Recommend procurement actions. 

 
 5.8  Valuing the workforce 

 
 5.8.1  The Council recognises that a well-motivated and skilled workforce is essential to 

deliver quality services.  This applies equally whether services are provided 
internally, externally or in partnership.  The Council will: 
• Consult with employees and recognised trade unions throughout reviews and 

any subsequent procurement process;   
• Abide by legislation, regulation and codified guidance including currently: 

Page 24



13 

o Local Government Act 2003; 
o Cabinet Office Statement of Practice on staff transfers in the Public 

Sector; 
o The Code of Practice on workforce matters in Local Government Service 

Contracts; 
• Abide by current internal policies and guidance: 

o Equalities and diversity; 
o Sustainability; 
o Code of Conduct; 
o Anti-theft, Fraud and Corruption Policy; 
o CRB Disclosure Policy and Procedure; 
o Disciplinary policy and procedure; 
o Health and Safety Policy; 
o Redundancy and Re-organisation Policy & Procedure; 
o Safeguarding Children Policy; 
o Whistleblowing policy; 
o Contract Regulations and Financial Regulations; 

• Examine as appropriate potential partners’ past records in respect of the 
treatment of transferred staff such as:  
o Employment practices; 
o Equalities and social inclusion issues; 
o Health and safety; 
o Training and development of staff; 
o Request any recognised trade unions to provide any evidence they have 

in relation to these and any other relevant workforce matters. 
 

 5.9  Competencies and development  
 

 5.9.1  The Council is committed to the training and development of all staff involved in 
procurement.  A training programme will be prepared and delivered to support the 
modernisation and development of procurement methods.  Training delivery will be 
via internal or external providers, as appropriate, either as identified by the 
Procurement Officer or as requested by an individual or their line manager. 
 

 5.10  Integrity 
 

 5.10.1  Controls within the procurement and financial processes exist to promote good 
practice and not only help the prevention of fraud but also protect the individuals 
concerned against allegations of fraud.  Compliance with appropriate legal 
requirements and the internal controls set out in the Financial Regulations and 
Contract Regulations is essential.  Involvement in procurement requires 
consideration of the following:  
• There is a duty on every employee of the Council to behave honestly and in a 

trustworthy manner maintaining standards that the public is entitled to expect;   
• All staff have a fiduciary responsibility which means they are individually and 

collectively responsible for safe and proper arrangements relating to public 
spending, including fairness in public contracting;   

• All managers have a responsibility to ensure that systems and training are in 
place to prevent fraud.   
 

 5.11  Capacity building 
 

 5.11.1  The Cambridgeshire Procurement Group is a countywide procurement group that 
looks at shared knowledge, contracts and efficiency savings.  This expertise is a 

Page 25



14 

valuable resource and can add capacity without additional costs. 
 

 6           Partnering and collaboration 
 

 6.1.1  Partnering may be identified through a service review to provide opportunities for 
improved delivery of a major project or service.  This would necessitate the creation 
of a sustainable relationship with suppliers in the public, private, social enterprise or 
voluntary sectors to deliver services, carry out major projects or acquire supplies 
and equipment.  Benefits could include: 
• Better designed solutions;  
• Integration of services for customers; 
• Access to new and scarce skills; 
• Economies of scale and scope; 
• Investment; 
• Community benefits (including jobs and local economic effects); 
• The sharing of risk and reward. 

 
 6.1.2  The Council acknowledges the importance and relevance of partnerships in 

delivering value for money and would seek to test this option by: 
• Carrying out a challenging option appraisal;  
• Examining partnering models, including:  

o Public Sector consortium; 
o Non-profit distributing organisation; 
o Voluntary and Community sector provision;  
o Partnering contract; 
o Local Authority Company (Local Government Act 2003); 
o Joint Venture Company; 
o Framework Agreement; 
(The preferred model should be identified through a business case before 
procurement commences.) 

• Investigate opportunities to collaboratively procure partnerships with public 
bodies; 

• Establishing high standards when procuring services through partnership: 
o Build continuous improvement into contracts;  
o Ensure the project has clear leadership and top down commitment; 
o Plan communications and consultation; 
o Complete a formal service assessment and development process; 
o Development of skills of staff involved; 
o Undertake a formal review process of each stage of the project; 
o Consider obtaining additional resources to stimulate effective partnership 

working; 
o Construct suitable governance and scrutiny arrangements; 
o Collect market intelligence and gather experience; 
o Use formal project management and risk management methodology; 
o Not underestimating the challenges of working across multiple partners;  
o Test if incremental strategic partnering is possible rather than complete 

delivery;  
o Remove any internal/external barriers and restrictions in order to minimise 

bidding or process costs and streamline processes to make partnership 
projects easier; 

o Consider using the skills of the voluntary, community and social enterprise 
sectors. 
 

Page 26



15 

 6.2  Collaboration, networks and links with other Local Authorities 
 

 6.2.1  These contacts can provide benefits to the Council.  Collaboration between the 
Council, other councils and public bodies to combine buying power, to procure or 
commission goods and services jointly or to create shared services is seen as 
advantageous.  This form of public-public partnership should, in appropriate 
circumstances, be regarded as an option capable of delivering economies of scale 
and accelerated learning.  The Council will seek, for example, to extend existing 
activities, including: 
• The use of ‘open’ framework agreements to enable use within the local or 

regional public sector community;   
• Contractual arrangements available via the Office of Government Commerce, 

where there is a potential to increase usage;   
• Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation (ESPO), now merged with four other 

purchasing organisations and called Pro5, has been an historic source of 
purchasing; 

• Ensuring that all tender documentation/contracts carry a statement allowing 
other public bodies to take advantage of the contracted goods and services; 

• Work with the Cambridgeshire Procurement Group to create joint contracts and 
opportunities for savings. 
 

 7           Risk management in procurement 
 

 7.1  It is essential that risks associated with a procurement exercise are properly 
identified, recorded, assessed and managed.  This is particularly important when 
changing suppliers or service providers and needs to be considered in respect of 
both initial and ongoing costs and service provision and levels. 
 

 7.2  The Council’s overall risk management principles and processes are set out in its 
Risk Management Strategy.  The Council’s Project Management Toolkit includes a 
section on risk management.  Officers should use the Council’s Project 
Management Toolkit to manage high value or high profile procurement projects, 
including risk logs to identify and mitigate risks.   
   

 7.3  A key way of minimising risk with regard to procurement exercises and contracts is 
to follow the requirements of Contract Regulations. 

 
 8           Intelligent procurement 

 
 8.1  Intelligent procurement is the combined systems, procedures, strategy and 

operational plans that generate improvements in procurement across the Council.  
 

 8.2  Electronic procurement (e-procurement) 
 

 8.2.1  Electronic procurement relates to the electronic systems, procedures and processes 
for electronic trading between the Council and its suppliers.  The Council will 
consider an e-procurement strategy for sourcing, tendering and purchase to pay 
activities.    
 

 8.2.2  Primary responsibility for the Council’s procure to pay system strategy (including the 
extension and growth of electronic payment to suppliers) is with Accountancy based 
upon the Council’s Financial Management System (FMS). 
 

Page 27



16 

 8.2.3  Other development considerations for the Council’s e-procurement strategy may 
contain: 
• Software modules or web based system(s) designed to facilitate innovative 

sourcing options such as e-tendering, e-Auctions, e-Marketplaces with online 
catalogues, and requests for quotations;   

• Card systems for ordering and payment; 
• New technologies that may provide alternative process improvements in any 

aspect of procurement; 
• Other information and communication technology that could reduce the cost, 

and improve the efficiency and effectiveness, of all aspects of the procurement 
process for the Council and its suppliers and contractors.   

 
 8.2.4  All electronic procurement will comply with existing Council Contract Regulations, 

Financial Regulations and EU law. 
 

 8.3  Central Contracts Archive 
 

 8.3.1  The Council has created and populated an electronic contracts database (the 
Central Contracts Archive) using the Council’s document management system 
(Anite).  The Central Contracts Archive will store all relevant details of each contract 
above Level 1 and will enable the Council to consolidate contracts, pursue 
opportunities for cost savings and reduce risks by capturing contracts created by 
employees and carrying out checks to ensure they are compliant. 
 

 8.3.2  The Central Contracts Archive will also store electronic copies of contracts against 
each record, creating an accurate journal of the Council’s contractual agreements. 
 

 8.4  Contract Regulations have been designed to build in quality into the procurement 
process: 
• Diagrams and flowcharts are used extensively to clearly demonstrate 

procedures to ensure compliance and avoid confusion; 
• Rather than catch all exemptions there are limited options for exemptions and a 

procedure to record these decisions; 
• Templates are used to ensure consistency and to standardise on terms, 

conditions and special considerations such as environmental and equality 
criteria.  There are also checklists and guidance on procuring consultancy;  

• Extensive training has taken place to underpin the new regulations and to 
eliminate misunderstanding and non-compliance. 

 
 9           Performance management of the procurement strategy and function  

 
 9.1  Performance management is key to understanding progress against objectives.  The 

achievements and effectiveness of the Council’s Procurement Strategy and the 
procurement function will be measured and monitored through the use of 
performance indicators, reporting arrangements and review. 

 
 9.2  The performance indicators and other measures of success that the Council will use 

regarding the Procurement Strategy and the procurement function are given in 
Annex A.  They will be incorporated in the Corporate Services service plan and thus 
in the Council’s performance management system, CorVu.  CorVu will be 
periodically updated with performance data, which the portfolio holder responsible 
for procurement will be able to monitor.  

 

Page 28



17 

 9.3  Reporting arrangements will also include an annual report to the responsible 
portfolio holder regarding procurement activity, savings achieved and other 
performance indicators, and incorporating a review of the Procurement Strategy. 

   

Page 29



18 

Annex A 
 
Procurement performance indicators and other measures 
 
 
 
CorVu 
reference 

Performance indicator/ SMART measure Target Review 
period 

FP4 Savings target achieved. £tba Quarterly 
N/a Award/Exemption Notices exist for contracts over 

Level 2. 
All Annually 

N/a Breaches of procurement legislation. None Annually 
FP5 Attend “Meet the Buyer” events. 2 Quarterly 
FP7 Assist relevant service managers to  

(a) implement appropriate Cambridgeshire 
Procurement Group initiatives; 
(b) join appropriate framework contracts; 
(c) engage in appropriate joint procurement projects. 

N/a Annually 

FP10 Report procurement savings to Planning Portfolio 
holder. 

July 2010 Annually 

tbd Implement projects to deliver the procurement 
team’s £20,000 contribution towards the Council’s 
£1.6m savings target. 

December 
2010 

Quarterly 

tbd 
 
- - - - - - - 
 

(a) Review the Procurement Strategy, Contract 
Regulations and procurement processes annually. 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
(b) Implement new procedures resulting, including 
templates, guidance notes and training. 

March 
2011 
- - - - - - - - 
April 2010* 
and 
ongoing 

Annually 
 
- - - - - - - 
Quarterly 

tbd 
 
- - - - - - - 
 
 
 
 
- - - - - - - 
 

(a) Ascertain ways in which procurement can assist 
reduction of CO2 emissions.  (Climate change) 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
(b) Produce addenda to add appropriate wording to 
the Council’s Procurement Strategy, Contract 
Regulations and procurement processes, as 
necessary.   
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
(c) Incorporate fully at next formal review.  

August 
2010 
- - - - - - - - 
September 
2010 
 
 
- - - - - - - - 
March 
2011 

Quarterly 
 
- - - - - - - 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
- - - - - - - 
Annually 

tbd 
 

Assist with procurement aspects arising from the 
refuse and recycling service review.  (CA3)  

September 
2010 

Quarterly 
 

tbd Assist as necessary with procurement aspects 
arising from the housing service review and 
restructure.  (CA11) 

tba Quarterly 

tbd 
 
- - - - - - - 
 

(a) Review the contracts register to identify contracts 
due for renewal in year; prioritise these. 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
(b) Work proactively with relevant service managers 
to procure new contracts as necessary.   

April 2010 
 
- - - - - - - - 
Throughout 
the year, 
as 
necessary 

Quarterly 
 
- - - - - - - 
Quarterly 

Page 30



19 

CorVu 
reference 

Performance indicator/ SMART measure Target Review 
period 

tbd 
 
 
 
 
 
- - - - - - - 
 

(a) Produce addenda to the Council’s Procurement 
Strategy, Contract Regulations and procurement 
processes, as necessary, so that appropriate 
Customer service and Values considerations are 
taken into account in relevant procurement 
exercises.   
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
(b) Incorporate fully at next formal review. 

December 
2010 
 
 
 
 
- - - - - - - - 
March 
2011 

Quarterly 
 
 
 
 
 
- - - - - - - 
Annually 

tbd 
 
 
 
 
- - - - - - - 
 

(a) Produce addenda to the Council’s Procurement 
Strategy, Contract Regulations and procurement 
processes, as necessary, so that appropriate 
Safeguarding Children considerations are taken 
into account in relevant procurement exercises.   
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
(b) Incorporate fully at next formal review 

June 2010 
 
 
 
 
- - - - - - - - 
March 
2011 

Quarterly 
 
 
 
 
- - - - - - - 
Annually 

 
SMART = Specific, measurable, achievable, relevant and timed. 
 
*  Note: This date relates to the March 2010 review of the Procurement Strategy. 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is left blank intentionally.



 1 

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
DRAFT SERVICE PLAN FOR CORPORATE SERVICES  
2010/11 TO 2012/13 
 
Corporate Manager: N/a 
 
Executive Director: Alex Colyer (Corporate Services) 
  
Portfolio Holder/s: Cllr S Edwards (Finance & Staffing)  
   Cllr T Bygott (Policy & Performance, re ICT) 
   Cllr N Wright (Planning, re Procurement & Efficiency)  
   Cllr T Wotherspoon (Northstowe, re Risk Management) 
 
 
 
CONTENTS 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Introduction 
The Council’s Objectives 
Cross Cutting Themes 
Workforce Overview 
Performance Targets 
Key Issues for Corporate Services in 2010/11 
 
SERVICE PLAN OVERVIEW 
About our services 
The context for our plan 
The Council’s Objectives 
Our service objectives 
Our customers 
Are we meeting the needs of all our community ? 
Our performance and plans to improve 
Our resources 
Do we provide value for money ? 
Workforce overview 
Risk overview 
 
IMPROVEMENT PLANS 
Accountancy Service 
Finance Project Team 
Human Resources (HR) / Payroll 
Information & Communications Technology (ICT) Service 
Legal & Democratic Services 
Revenues & Benefits 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 33



 2 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 
Introduction 
 
The Corporate Services directorate was established in September 2008, following Cabinet’s 
decision to revise the Council’s senior management structure.  For the remainder of 2008/09 
and for 2009/10, the services that make up Corporate Services have followed the previously 
prepared Finance & Support Services, HR/Payroll and Legal Services service plans. 
 
This first Corporate Services service plan sets out the arrangements for the delivery and 
improvement of Corporate Services in 2010/11. 
 
Corporate Services comprises eight distinct service areas:   
• Accountancy Service 
• Finance Project Team  
• Human Resources (HR) / Payroll 
• Internal Audit (provided by RSM Tenon, a private sector company) 
• Information and Communications Technology (ICT) Service 
• Legal & Democratic Services 
• Revenues Services  
 
The range of services is diverse in terms of functionality and customers, which presents 
challenges in developing one integrated improvement plan.  The improvement plans are 
therefore categorised by service area.  However, the service plan overview takes account of 
key cross-cutting priorities for the Council such as Values, Equalities, Climate Change and 
Customer Service Excellence. 
 
 
The Council’s Objectives 
 
The actions set out in this plan underpin the achievement of the Council’s objectives with 
each specific action linked to one or more Aims. 
 
 
Cross Cutting Themes 
 
During 2010/11 Corporate Services will work on: 
• Customer Service Excellence (CSE, successor to CharterMark) 
• Values (strong link to CSE) 
 
 
Workforce Overview 
 
Corporate Services employs 130 people (117.5 FTE).  The key workforce issues for the 
service in 2010/11 will be working towards the higher level Investors in People accreditation 
and the roll out of the management competencies development programme. 
 
Maintaining performance during periods of maternity leave will again be a challenge for the 
service.  Reducing time lost due to sickness through effective sickness absence 
management will be important in maximising resources. 
 
 

Page 34



 3 

Performance Targets 
 
Performance targets are set out in the operation plan for each service area.  The targets will 
be reviewed once the final outturn for 2009/10 is known and where appropriate revised 
targets will be considered. 
 
 
Key Issues for Corporate Services in 2010/11 
 
• Accountancy Service 

o Managing increasing demands for financial advice and information to be met from 
reduced staffing resources arising from the £1.6 million budget cuts for 2010/11 
onwards 

o Consolidating, in conjunction with other services, on the improvements in asset 
information and data quality arising from the audit of the 2008/09 accounts by 
monitoring the action plan arising from the Annual Governance Report 

o Prepare for full implementation of IFRS 
o Payment of invoices <10 days (target 80%, to date 60%) 
o Opportunity to speed up payments by investing in electronic purchase order 

system at start of process, i.e. further roll out of eBis (but, resource implications ?) 
o Explore opportunities for joint working, e.g. co-terminate and jointly procure 

contracts for banking, insurance, or internal audit 
o Possible impact of requests for information in support of exploring opportunities for 

joint working 
o Respond to areas for improvement identified in the Annual Audit Letter 
 

• Finance Project Team 
o Procurement projects in 2010/11: reviewing contracts list; prioritise known 

renewals; target specific areas/methods to obtain savings (note £20k from 
procurement included against the £1.6m) 

o Procurement will be a key area in contributing to the authority’s climate change 
aspirations, e.g. consider appointing local suppliers/ contractors to reduce travel 

o Possible joint procurement projects across Cambridgeshire authorities (including 
re Accountancy projects as required) in support of exploring opportunities for joint 
working 

o Work with HR on recruitment advertising and temp & agency staff contracts and 
with ICT on printing and stationery projects 

 
• HR / Payroll  

o Managing increasing demands for employment-related advice and information to 
be met from reduced staffing resources arising from the £1.6 million budget cuts 
for 2010/11 onwards 

o Will be impacted by Safeguarding Children agenda, including implementation of 
the new legislative framework for Vetting and Barring 

o Will be impacted by housing, planning and new communities restructures 
o Will be impacted by the implementation of the Job Evaluation project, including 

any single status provisions (new pay structure (Payroll and potentially ICT), 
contractual change letters, appeals etc) 

o Capacity to deliver organisational development initiatives such as Management 
Development, IiP and  e-learning initiatives 

o Make ResourceLink available (impact on ICT) so staff access own data 
o Development of new and reviews of existing policies / strategies, including Equality 

Impact Assessments 
o Flexible retirement policies 

Page 35



 4 

o Centralise recruitment process 
o Possible input resource requirement re automated transfer of HR data à phone 

list  
o Champion homeworking (technology will be available from the end of this financial 

year) 
o Will support services in the TUPE transfer of Recycling and Responsive Repairs 

services 
o Impact of wider organisational restructurings 
 

• ICT Service  
o Impact of Housing ICT procurement 
o Discussion of ICT arrangements, including jointly commissioned disaster recovery, 

in support of exploring opportunities for joint working 
o Records management ? (but SCDC is ahead of the game) 
o 2 teams – service improvements, efficiencies 
o Increase use of MFD’s; auto-direct large print jobs to the Print Room 
o Automated transfer of data (e.g. HR à phone list)  
o Move from PC’s to “dumb” terminals à facilitates homeworking 
o Impact of making ResourceLink available (see HR above) 
o Stationery savings e.g. not hoarding supplies; not buying off-contract; sending 

docs as non-printable pdf 
 

• Internal Audit 
o Improved timetabling and communication of forthcoming audits 
o Improved sharing of information between auditors 
o Possible co-termination and joint procurement of internal audit contract, in support 

of exploring opportunities for joint working 
 
• Legal & Democratic Services 

o Members’ expectations about speed of advice need to be realistic 
o Need to persuade Members to reject planning advice less often and thus reduce 

costs of appeals 
o Change of Government may abolish Standards for England – will SCDC still have 

a local ethical framework to administer ? 
o Improve turnround times for refresher searches to provide the service at no cost to 

the Council 
o Exploring potential for shared legal services with other Cambridgeshire authorities 
o Confirm the aims, objectives and frequency of meetings of SMT and EMT 
o Change of Government may allow return to former committee system and further 

changes to the Councillors’ standards regime 
o Lack of capacity in Democratic Services to deliver Member training 
o Threat to the team’s capability to be proactive in bringing forward proposals for 

structural and Constitutional changes 
o New Member induction following local elections 
o Member development programme may drop off ? - but, one of the most important 
o Possible impact of formulating new joint committees etc, including implications of 

project governance, in support of exploring opportunities for joint working 
o Ensuring the Council meets its Duty to Promote Democracy as required by the 

Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Bill 
 

• Revenues Services 
o Safeguarding Children  }   while maintaining 
o Customer Service Excellence }   customer focus 
o Housing ICT impact  }   and service 

Page 36



 5 

o Maintain performance while delivering efficiencies in the service by exploring 
shared service opportunities 

o Implement new procedures and working practices to achieve savings targets 
o Concessionary bus pass – possible move to Cambridgeshire County Council 
o Possible move of Rents Team into Housing 
o Resilience of NNDR Team especially with business property revaluation with effect 

from 1 April 2010 
o Continuing economic downtown leading to increased workloads – more benefit 

claimants and impact on collection rates 
o Proposed Housing Benefit reform 
o Possible legislative changes if new government elected 
 

 
 

Page 37



 6 

SERVICE PLAN OVERVIEW 
 
 
1. About Our Service 
 
Corporate Services supports the Council’s overall delivery of corporate objectives and 
services to the taxpayers of South Cambridgeshire District Council in an accessible, effective 
and efficient manner.  Corporate Services covers a wide range of disciplines and ensures 
that elected Members and staff are able to deliver their responsibilities and members of the 
public receive their services. 
 
The service covers the following areas delivering statutory and non-statutory functions. 
 
Accountancy Service 

 
• Statement of accounts 
 
• Budget planning 
 
• Financial monitoring 
 
• Treasury management 
 

• Training to council staff 
on finance 

 
• Payment of invoices 
 
• Financial advice to 
budget holders, 
management, Portfolio 
holders, Cabinet, etc 

• Tax returns 
 
• Council tax and housing 
rent recommendation 

 
• Insurance 
 

 
Finance Project Team 

 
• Co-ordinate and advise 
on risk management 

 
• Co-ordinate Use of 
Resources assessment 

• Promote efficiencies and 
savings 

 
• Undertake ad hoc 
financial projects 

• Provide procurement 
advice and support 

 

 
HR / Payroll 

 
• Recruitment and 
retention of employees – 
ensuring policies, 
practices and processes 
conform to relevant 
employment and 
equalities legislation and 
follow best practice 

 
• Management of sickness 
absence and capability 
issues 

 
• Performance 
Management including 
performance & 
development reviews 
and probation 

• Policies and practices to 
support organisational 
development – in 
particular, workforce 
planning, succession 
planning 

 
• Corporate training and 
development 
programmes identifying 
corporate learning 
opportunities and 
effective training 
provision so that 
employees can perform 
to their full potential 

 

• Employee relations 
including liaison with 
Trade Unions and staff 

 
• Payment of salary and 
allowances to 
employees and 
Members 

 
• Provision of pay and 
allowance information in 
accordance with HMRC 
and statutory 
requirements 

 
 

 

Page 38



 7 

ICT Service 
 

• Support the effective use 
of ICT systems 

 
• Development, 
implementation and 
management of 
technologies 

 
• Manages voice 
communication 
technology 

• Provide operational 
computing service to 
staff and Members 

 
• Geographic Information 
Systems 

 
• Street Naming and 
Numbering 

 
• Local Land Property 
Gazetteer 

• Systems Support 
 
• Application Support 
 
• Contact Centre contract 
management 

 
• Office Services 
o Printing / Stationery 
o Graphics 

 

 
Internal Audit 

 
• Independent, objective 
assurance and 
consultancy activity to 
improve organisation’s 
operations 

• Evaluate and improve 
effectiveness of risk 
management, control 
and governance 
processes 

• Annual reviews of key 
systems and controls 

 
 
 

 
Legal & Democratic Services (including Land Charges and Property Surveyor) 

 
• Legal advice to the whole 
authority and legal 
support for the Council’s 
regulatory committees 
and Full Council 

 
• Expert support in all 
aspects of service 
delivery and ensures that 
all Council decisions are 
lawful 

 
• To provide full legal 
support and advice on 
Freedom of Information 
Act and Data Protection 
Act responses 

 
• To manage the Council’s 
Information Governance 
Work (jointly with ICT) 
including the Council’s 
Publication Scheme, 
Records Survey and 
updating the FoI policy 

 
• Legal Services now 
actively working with 
procurement teams on all 

• Act as Deputy 
Monitoring Officers 
provide advice and 
training to Members and 
Parish Councillors and 
support the Standards 
Committee and liaise 
with the Standards 
Board for England on the 
Code of Conduct and 
ethical governance 

 
• To protect and 
safeguard the interests 
of Land and property 
within the District 

 
• Work commenced on 
Information Governance 
Policy Handbook 
incorporating: 
o Data Quality Handling 
o Information Sharing 
Protocol 

o Records Management 
Policy 

o Information Risk 
Management 

o Policy Information 

• Represent the Council at 
all levels before courts 
and tribunals and 
negotiate on behalf of 
the Council when 
necessary 

 
• Undertake property 
survey work for all 
corporate areas, 
manage the Council’s 
Terrier and land and 
property asset register 

 
• Provide efficient Local 
Land Charges Service 
within improving 
timescales in response 
to applications to 
searches and CON29 
enquiries 

 
• Help maintain high 
standards of Corporate 
Governance through 
support for the 
Standards Committee, 
Corporate Governance 
Committee and Member 

Page 39



 8 

major procurement 
projects 

 
• Facilitate Council’s 
decision making process 

 
• Support scrutiny 
processes 

 
• Lead on new legislation 
relating to decision 
making structures 

Charter 
 
• Support and develop 
Members of the Council 

 
• Support political 
management structure 
and lead reviews of the 
Constitution 

 

Toolkit 
 
• Communications 
between Members and 
Officers as first points of 
contact for enquiries 

 
• Administer Members’ 
allowance scheme 

 

 
Revenues Services 

 
• Collects  
o Council tax 
o Non-domestic rates 
o Housing rents 
o Sundry debts 
o Overpayments  of 

housing benefit 

• Administers  
o Housing benefit 
o Council tax benefit 
o Concessionary travel 

passes 

• Investigates  
o Fraudulent claims 

for benefit 
 

  
 
2. The Context for Our Plan 
 
a) External Drivers 
 
The following external factors will influence the services: 
• Poor three year government grant settlement, current economic climate and capping of 

council tax and rent increases resulting in the need to find substantial efficiencies and 
cuts in services 

• Statutory requirements to set the Council’s budget and Council Tax and Housing Rent 
levels 

• Statutory requirement to produce a statement of accounts 
• Unpredictable grants, e.g. supporting people 
• New LABGI scheme 
• Growth within the District impacting on service delivery and supporting other services 

within the Council 
• Local Area Agreement changing the way the Council receives funding and prioritises 

expenditure 
• New Comprehensive Area Assessment from April 2009 
• New Use of Resources assessment 
• National Indicators (especially NI14, NI179, N180 and N181) 
• Expected efficiencies 
• Local Government and Public Health Act 2007 
• Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Bill – specifically the duty 

to promote local democracy 
• ‘Communities in Control’ government white papers 
• Increased access to and use of technology by residents of South Cambridgeshire 
• Audit Commission Key Lines of Enquiry for Benefit Services 
• Change in external audit service provider 

Page 40



 9 

• Changes to employment legislation – statutory dispute procedures, extension to flexible 
working rights, new immigration system 

• Extension to the Equalities duty placed on Local Authorities 
• Outcomes of stayed ET cases – Age discrimination challenges 
• Equal Pay – outcomes of cases 
• New employment vetting and barring system and overhaul of CRB checks 
• Downturn in private industry  
• Issues with the housing market – making it more difficult for individuals to relocate 
• Changes to lifestyle trends 
• Changes to demographics 
• Housing costs and availability 
• Transport issues 
• Changes in the use of technology in advertising 
• New legislation and changes to existing legislation particularly around: 

o the ethical framework in local government and the link into the Annual Governance 
Statement; and 

o information and knowledge management, data protection and freedom of 
information 

• The need to ensure timely responses to legal challenges against the Council from 
external sources   

• Ordnance Survey data, some of which is inaccurate 
• Opening up of the local land charge market to competition.   
• The introduction of Home Information Packs (HIPS) - opportunities to local land 

charges and further competition from personal search agents.  
• Possible implications of a change in national government e.g. Standards framework, 

political systems 
• Government Connect project (and acceptance of technology and associated training 

needs) 
 
In addition, the services have a number of internal drivers.  The Council continues to 
undergo substantial change.  A number of corporate initiatives will have a significant bearing 
on the way the services are delivered.  These will include: 
• The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy and Housing Revenue Account 

Business Plan both indicate the need for substantial efficiency savings and cuts (being 
£1.6 million on the General Fund) which will impact on both front line and corporate 
services 

• The Corporate Governance Improvement Plan 
• Customer Service Excellence project 
• Investors in People Accreditation 
• The Comprehensive Equalities Policy 
• New performance reporting and management arrangements 
• The Communication Strategy 
• The service review programme 
• Recommendations from the Scrutiny Committee Finance Task and Finish Group 
• Need to improve financial management across the Council 
• Travel for Work 
• Member Development Strategy 2008-2011 
• Skills shortages 
• Ageing workforce 
• Systems development to enable roll out of further Resourcelink modules 
• Move to on-line recruitment processes  
• Fluctuating levels of instructions to the legal team and property surveyor  

Page 41



 10 

• Need to respond appropriately, balancing legal constraints against the political 
ambitions of the authority 

• Need to respond quickly to give clear and unambiguous legal advice to SMT, Cabinet 
and other Members 

• Improve corporate awareness of legal implications of decisions by giving early warnings 
• Absences in other departments may impact turnaround times for producing searches 
• Departments dealing with third party access to answer property enquiries means less 

time overall to deal with land charges enquiries  
• Land Charges is reliant on ICT support for the systems which collate and produce the 

final reports 
• The Northgate system has not delivered any improvement in the turnaround time for 

searches 
• Possible political instability; changes in Cabinet make-up  
• Growing political ‘maturity’ in terms of administration and opposition 
• Seek more effective, while still cost-efficient, methods of engagement with electorate 
• Address the culture of taking items to meetings (objectives, outcomes, effectiveness) 
• Increased working from home provision through IT enhancements 
• Positive sustainability implications of fewer meetings, shorter agenda, increased home 

working 
 

The outcome of the tenants’ vote against a transfer to South Cambridgeshire Village Homes 
is likely to continue to have an effect on Corporate Services during 2010/11. 
 
b) Our Key Partners 

 
• Cambridgeshire Direct 
• RSM Tenon 
• Zurich Commercial & Municipal 
• Cambridgeshire Procurement Group – working with: 

o Cambridgeshire County Council (e.g. framework agreements for advertising, 
agency staff and occupational health) 

o ESPO 
o Office of Government Commerce 
o Regional Improvement and Efficiency Partnership 

• Local Strategic Partnership 
• Neighbouring Local Authorities (e.g. shared services projects, joint procurement of an 

integrated HR/Payroll system) 
• New technology/Enterprise Ltd (Modern.Gov committee management system) 
• IDeA 
• ICT suppliers 
• Bailiff service providers 
• Addenbrookes Occupational Health team 
• Ministry of Justice 
• Land Registry 
• Parish Councils and Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Association of Local Councils 

(CPALC) 
• Information Commissioner’s Office 
• Standards for England (SfE) 
• Local Government Ombudsman 
• Local MPs 
• Ordnance Survey 
• Cambridgeshire County Council as highway authority 
• Cambridgeshire County Council as Pension scheme administrators 

Page 42



 11 

• Local Land Charges Institute 
• Land Data cic 
• Training providers 

Page 43



 12 

c) Our Strengths and Weaknesses 
 

Strengths 
 
• Team work  
• Mutual respect, within team, with 
colleagues across the authority and 
with Members 

• Enthusiasm and positive attitude 
• Professionalism, commitment and 
motivation 

• Highly skilled and experienced 
workforce across all services 

• Breadth of knowledge 
• Excellent performance in service 
areas 

• Good working relationship with 
Members  

• Accounts have been produced to the 
statutory timetable and are 
unqualified 

• Efficient services with low costs 
• Adept at balancing priorities in the 
face of competing demands 

• Strive for continuous improvement 
and proactive in identifying and 
implementing solutions 

• Performance culture embedded 
through annual service plan targets 

• Mature risk management 
arrangements 

• Good procurement advice and 
support service 

• Top quartile/decile Revenues & 
Benefits performance levels 

• Corporate efficiency savings achieved 
in excess of NI 179  

 

Weaknesses 
 
• Challenges on organisation to  

o meet statutory deadlines 
o follow risk management processes 
o meet report deadlines, leading to 
incomplete and badly formatted/ 
laid out reports 

• Ownership of forward plans 
• Communication 
• Age profile of staff in some services 

areas 
• Inability to arrange meetings in a 

timely manner due to member and 
officer availability 

• Lower staff satisfaction in comparison 
to other services 

• Lack of capacity for business support 
and service development 

• Large number of complex corporate 
projects and initiatives to support 

• Lack of technical systems expertise to 
enable better use, support and 
development of systems 

• Response times for advice and 
production of documentation where 
there are particular pressures of 
competing work  

• Potential for high profile cases to 
absorb significant officer time that 
may impact on service levels 

• Lack of investment in infrastructure, 
so hampered by lack of integration 
with corporate systems containing 
information required 

• Limited corporate understanding of 
the role support services play in 
underpinning the delivery of the 
Council’s 3A’s  

• Misunderstanding of the role of the 
public PFH meeting, i.e. not for 
informal early-stage policy 
discussions 

• Too many information items, 
especially at SMT 

• Failure by officers to use the weekly 
bulletin to convey info to Members; 
leads potentially to duplication and 
information overload 

 

Page 44



 13 

Opportunities 
 
• Improve public access to services 
• Action plan in place to improve direct 
communication with staff and 
Members 

• Improvement in Member training and 
development; carry out targeted and 
co-ordinated work programme in 
future years. 

• Efficiency review across Council 
• Co-operation / co-ordination between 
services 

• Focus on corporate Aims, 
Approaches and Actions 

• Embedding financial and performance 
management culture across Council 

• Partnership working 
• Improve communication 
• Improve customer focus 
• Maximising use of financial 
management system across Council 

• Shared services with neighbouring 
authorities and joint working 

• Improve use and exploitation of ICT 
initiatives 

• To further improve policies and 
procedures relating to procurement 

• Service reviews 
• Management Development 
programme 

• Succession Planning 
• Equalities agenda/EIA’s 
• Investor in People project 
• Work with partners to change 
perception of non District Council 
services 

• Work with other services on decisions 
which could impact support services 

• Strengthened quality of decision-
making process via changes to report 
approval process 

• Further enhance opportunities for 
public involvement in meetings 

• Increased flexible/home-working from 
technological advances  

• Streamline processes to reduce the 
cost of meetings  

• Opportunities to review and improve 
how SCDC promotes local democracy 
via new statutory duty 

• Achieve Member Development Charter 
status 

Threats 
 
• Efficiency and other saving 

requirements  
• Age profile of staff in some services 

areas leading to loss of expertise and 
knowledge 

• Resource levels could impact the 
attainment of Corporate Aims and / or 
services plans 

• Reduction in capacity if DSM post is 
frozen or deleted – can no longer be a 
proactive service 

• Failure by the organisation to prioritise 
and resource Member development; 

• Challenge to demonstrate and 
evidence Comprehensive Area 
Assessment and Use of Resources 
requirements and to meet the harder 
test for Use of Resources  

• Tougher national standards for benefit 
services with introduction of Audit 
Commission Key Lines of Enquiry 

• Increased demands on the benefits 
and collection services due the 
economic downturn 

• Potential equal pay claims 
• Lack of budget to deliver 

organisational development initiatives 
• Political change/balance of authority 
• Services exposure to competition 
• New national indicator set and 

performance management framework 
• Loss of momentum on improvement 

programme 
• Lack of Member buy-into training and 

development. 
• Workload caused by weekly SMT 

meetings; knock-on effect for rest of 
team; exacerbated if capacity reduced 

• Lack of Member engagement in 
government connect project means 
info no longer gets through. 

• Growing evening meeting/out of hours 
culture has negative effects on work-
life balance 

• Lack of resources may mean flexible 
working advantages cannot be 
realised 

• Planning Committee getting 
unmanageably long again depending 
on the impact of the removal of 
CHDM meetings 

Page 45



 14 

• Information Governance now on the 
agenda of ICT Steering group re-
named ICT & Information Governance 
Steering Group (ICTIG) with new terms 
of reference. Information Governance 
Working Group (IGWG) first meeting 
2/11/09 (chaired by Legal Services) - 
will report to ICTIG on all aspects of 
Information Governance - more joined-
up approach 

• Impact of ICT Review 

• LGA obtaining legal advice on options 
available to LA's on charging for 
information supplied as part of local 
search & Con29 enquiries.  Indication 
that many LA's will have to reduce 
their charges significantly to bring 
them in line with Environmental 
Information Regulations 

 
 

3. The Council’s Objectives 
 
Corporate Services will continue to underpin the delivery the Council’s Aims, Approaches 
and Actions and further key issues across the Council.  
 
Council’s Aims 
 
1. We are committed to being a listening council providing first class services accessible 

to all; 
2. We are committed to ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and 

healthy place for you and your family; 
3. We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel 

proud to live; 
4. We are committed to assisting provision for local jobs for you and your family; 
5. We are committed to providing a voice for rural life. 
 
New Council Actions for 2010/11 
 
Democratic Services will develop, agree and implement an action plan which will deliver 
Member Development Charter accreditation by March 2011, so that Members are better 
equipped for their role, bringing benefit to decision-making and scrutiny as well as improving 
their ability to represent the electorate effectively. 
 
The Finance Project Team will assist as appropriate with procurement aspects of the new 
Council actions for 2010/11, in particular regarding outcomes from the refuse and recycling 
service review and from the housing service review and restructure. 
 
Major projects to deliver new Council actions will have their own project plans and risk logs 
(these latter, copied to the Finance Project Officer), so that risks associated with delivery of 
those new Council actions will be properly managed.  
 
Values 
 
Corporate Services’ actions to embed Values will be closely linked to actions to meet 
Customer Service Excellence (see section 5 below).  Included within these actions will be 
consultation with service users (external and internal). 
 
 
4. Our Service Objectives 

 
Corporate Services will:   

Page 46



 15 

• Contribute to arrangements for the proper administration of the Council’s financial 
affairs. 

• Enable the Council to manage its risks effectively. 
• Identify areas for potential cost savings, or rationalisation of products and suppliers. 
• Contribute towards achieving the Council’s efficiency savings forecasts. 
• Assist colleagues with implementing procurement practices and systems (including 

e-procurement) in line with the Council’s policies and procedures and with EU and 
other procurement legislation. 

• Coordinate the corporate project to identify and implement efficiency savings across 
the authority. 

• Coordinate the corporate arrangements to maintain an appropriate Use of Resources 
overall score. 

• Work in partnership to provide efficient and customer focused services. 
• Ensure that the Council implements employment best practice and the statutory 

requirements in the various employment, health & safety and equalities acts. 
• Support the attainment of the Council’s ICT Strategy 2009-2011. 
• Enable the Council to make effective use of ICT systems and achieve its service 

objectives through the implementation, development and management of appropriate 
technologies. 

• Ensure best value for money options for service delivery. 
• Achieve improved customer satisfaction with our services. 
• Work with the Standards Committee to raise the profile of ethical governance within 

the Council and all Parish Councils in the District. 
• Work with colleagues to promote good information management across the Authority 

to achieve efficiencies in Records Keeping, Information Sharing, public access to and 
re-use of information, and data security ensuring the Authority meets its legal 
obligations in these areas. 

• Manage an effective, efficient, open and transparent decision-making process, which 
meets statutory requirements and enables the Council to make informed decisions 
and develop its community leadership role, whilst providing the required support and 
first point-of-contact with elected Members to enable them to carry out their roles. To 
assist the Council in putting in place further improvements in political processes, 
conduct and leadership through proactive involvement in corporate governance 
reviews of the Constitution and decision-making mechanisms. 

• Support and evaluate the training and development of Members, enabling effective 
training and development to contribute to the Council meeting its strategic aims. 

• Work in partnership to provide an efficient and customer focused Revenues Service. 
 
 
5. Our Customers 
 
Corporate Services provides services to both internal and external customers. 
 
Internal Customers 
 
The Accountancy, ICT, Finance Project Team, HR/Payroll, Internal Audit and Legal & 
Democratic Services teams mainly provide services to internal customers, including 57 
Members. 
 
Legal Services are meeting its performance standards in council house and equity share 
sales. 
 
Legal Services will conduct a survey on internal clients to identify aspects of the service that 
internal clients are not satisfied with and take appropriate action to improve satisfaction. 

Page 47



 16 

 
External Customers 
 
Our external customers are mainly through Revenues Services and Legal & Democratic 
Services, including Land Charges.  For all of these areas, customer service standards have 
been established and are followed and monitored.   
 
Cambridgeshire Direct provides a contact centre service for Revenues Services customers 
between 8am and 8pm Monday to Saturday handling in the region of 55,000 calls per year.  
Customers wishing to make a payment are also to pay 24 hours per day seven days per 
week by automated telephone payment or through the Council’s website.  Quarterly 
satisfaction surveys are conducted by Cambridgeshire Direct and report a very high level of 
customer satisfaction. 
 
The table below shows the approximate numbers of customers for the range of Revenues 
Services: 
 

Council Taxpayers 60,600 

Non-Domestic ratepayers 4,200 

Council tenants 5.500 

Concession travel pass holders 26,000 

Recipients of housing benefit 5,100 

Recipients of council tax benefit 6,100 
 
The Land Charges section has carried out a survey of all personal search agents using the 
service and the responses indicated a high level of satisfaction with the service. 
 
Land Charges will now conduct a survey of all Land Charges external customers (solicitors & 
estate agents) to identify aspects of the service that customers are not satisfied with and 
take appropriate action to improve satisfaction. 
 
The Council is planning on enhancing self-service opportunities for its customers. 
 
Customer Service Excellence 
 
The corporate Customer Service Excellence project is led by Service First, which the 
Revenues Manager, Benefits Manager and Head of ICT attend.  Revenues & Benefits and 
ICT will be key participants in and contributors to the project. 
 
The HR/Payroll service intends to procure and facilitate corporate training and development 
to support the Customer Service Excellence project.  This will develop customer service 
skills within service areas, leading to improved service for residents, resulting in increased 
customer satisfaction. 
 
There are individual actions within the Accountancy Service, ICT and Revenues & Benefits 
improvement plans, to improve services to both external and internal customers. 
 
Customer Complaints 
 
The formal complaints process is publicised by the Service and Revenues Services monitor 
complaints from customers in order to identify service failings and to take corrective actions 
to minimise future complaints.  Revenues Services seek to minimise complaints through 
good customer service and aims to experience less than 20 justified complaints each year. 

Page 48



 17 

 
SMT receives a quarterly report on complaint handling performance.  The latest report 
shows that Corporate Services received 3 complaints in the first quarter of 2009/10, 5 in the 
second quarter and 7 in the third quarter.  Of these, 2 (67%), 4 (80%) and 7 (100%) were 
responded to within target.  Considering the range and complexity of the services provided, 
this is a remarkably low level of customer dissatisfaction.  In addition, Corporate Services 
received 2 compliments in the third quarter (figures not available for the first two quarters). 
 
More information about customers is contained under the next section. 
 

 
6. Are we meeting the needs of all our community? 
 
South Cambridgeshire is very rural in nature, with 101 villages, no urban centres and an 
area of approximately 90,000 hectares.  The population is approximately 140,000 and 
population density is low at 1.6 persons per hectare.  There are 60,600 households in the 
District, of which approximately 16,000 are single adult households.  Approximately 300 
households received council tax reductions due to a resident’s disability.  
 
There is little deprivation in South Cambridgeshire with the area ranked 5th least deprived in 
England using the Indices of Multiple Depravation.  6,100 (10.1%) of households receive 
Council Tax benefit and approximately 60% of recipients are of pensionable age.  The 2008 
Place Survey showed that 47% of respondents were employed in full time work, 12% part-
time and 9% self employed.  32% of respondents were not working - 20% being retired; 7% 
looking after the home; 3% permanently sick or disabled and the rest in education or 
training.  Employment is above both the regional and national averages; however, 
unemployment levels have increased due to recession, leading to increased numbers of 
residents claiming welfare benefits.   
 
Educational attainment is high resulting in generally knowledgeable and well-informed 
customers who expect a high standard of service. 

 
The population of South Cambridgeshire is predominantly white British (89.5%).  The largest 
individual ethnic minority population in the district is the fluctuating Traveller population, 
estimated at 1,330 people (1 per cent of the population of the district) in the sub-regional 
Travellers Need Assessment survey published in 2006. 

 
The Council’s offices are located in Cambourne, which is towards the geographical the 
centre of the District, and are fully accessible to persons with a disability.  Cambourne is 
easily accessible by road and is well served by public transport by bus from Cambridge.  
However, unless residents live on the Cambridge – Cambourne – St Neots bus route they 
will need to take two bus journeys to reach the offices.  There is little call for residents to visit 
the village of Cambourne other than to attend to business with the Council and consequently 
most residents prefer to transact their business by telephone.  The Contact Centre is open 
for calls 72 hours per week from 8am to 8pm Monday to Saturday providing a high level of 
accessibility.  Callers may use type-talk, language line or text-phone to contact the Centre.  
Revenues Services employ a Welfare Visiting Officer to visit at home those residents 
wishing to claim benefits that have difficulty in access the service through other channels. 

 
Revenues Services are evaluating the take-up of benefits in growth communities and will 
develop a formal strategy in 2009 to ensure the Council is equipped to maximise take-up of 
welfare benefits in new communities.  In particular the Service wishes to evaluate the 
differences between new growth communities and established communities to ensure the 
service adapts to meet the needs of those new communities. 

Page 49



 18 

 
The Council has recently achieved Level 2 of the national Equality Standard and has made a 
commitment to progress to Level 3.  All services are reviewing policies and procedures so 
they can be prioritised and impact assessed over the next couple of years as part of the 
overall Council programme.  Staff have been involved in equalities training and will be 
supported by the Equalities team to conduct equality impact assessments during the year.  A 
Comprehensive Equalities Policy has been approved to give direction to the Council’s 
equalities work for the period 2009 to 2012. 

 
All Corporate Services service areas considered high priority have been equality impact 
assessed.  Remaining service areas will be equality impact assessed on a priority basis. 
 
The Revenues team will train appropriate Revenues staff, particularly visiting officers, to be 
alert to signs that children or young persons’ safety or wellbeing is at risk.  In addition, a 
minimum of two mangers within the Revenues team will be trained to act as first point of 
referral for any concerns raised by employees, and to ensure that appropriate action is 
taken.  Any concerns about the safety or wellbeing of children and young people will 
therefore be referred to the appropriate agency, leading to greater safeguarding of children 
and young people. 
 
The Procurement Team will produce addenda to the Council’s Procurement Strategy, 
Contract Regulations and procurement processes, as necessary, so that appropriate 
Safeguarding Children considerations are taken into account in relevant procurement 
exercises.  Incorporate fully at next formal review.   
 
 
7. Our Performance and Plans to Improve 
 
Overall the performance of the service during the year has been positive and the direction of 
travel is in the right direction.  However there have also been areas that need to be improved 
further to enhance and improve the services offered. 
 
In the last year a number of achievements have been made against the 2009/10 service 
plans.  However there are also areas where limited progress has been made and actions are 
still outstanding.  The key issues are summarised in the table below: 
 

Achievements Areas needing action 
 
• Statement of Accounts produced 

and unqualified within statutory 
timeframe 

• Integrated financial information with 
performance 

• Member training and development 
programme being implemented 

• Managed risk management process 
across Council with regular review 
and robust challenge 

• Contributed to improved 
performance in Contact Centre so 
contract requirements met 

• Updated financial regulations and 
contract regulations 

• Procurement procedures and 

 
• Further development of income 

management and e-billing 
• Gaining further ownership from cost 

centre managers for their budgets 
• Integration of CRM and back office 

systems 
• Deployment of new desktop system 
• Further improvements to the 

Constitution to increase its 
accessibility to the user 

• Improvements to the Council’s 
business planning mechanisms to 
improve the quality and transparency 
of decision-making 

• Progress on ICT projects 
• Better customer engagement 

Page 50



 19 

flowchart available on Council’s 
intranet 

• Implementation of findings from the 
survey of Council tenants 

• Procurement efficiencies and 
savings 

• Introduction and operation of 
standards local assessment 
framework 

• Efficiency target exceeded 
• Collection rates comparable to 

previous year despite the economic 
downturn 

• Benefit performance maintained 
despite increasing caseload 

• Meeting targets in respect of Cabinet 
agenda, key decisions on forward 
plan, publication of decisions, 
publication of full agenda 

• Portfolio Holder meeting dates 
agreed for the year  

• Responding to all Members 
enquiries quickly and within target 

• Portfolio Holder operating guidelines 
review report submitted; 
recommendations influenced 
development of combined PFHs’ 
forward plan 

• Delivered revenues and benefits 
training session in response to an 
identified need 

• Proposals to improve the report-
drafting process for Cabinet agreed 
and implemented 

• Changes to vetting process 
• On target to achieve ICT service 

review by 31/3/10; will enhance 
customer experience 

• Revenue collection performance 
generally maintained despite the 
recession, especially council tax and 
rents 

• Legal & Democratic Services are 
meeting targets for processing 
complaints under the Members 
Code of Conduct as set by SfE 

• Legal Services ran two successful 
Parish Forums for parish councils in 
Sept/Oct 2009 covering topics such 
as parish planning powers and pre-
determination and bias, the Code of 
Conduct, capacity building and how 
to deal with Freedom of Information 
Act/Data Protection Act requests 

particularly in respect of the Housing 
and Council Tax benefits service 

• Targeted benefit take-up initiatives to 
ensure residents do not miss out on 
benefits they are entitled to 

• Meeting the increased demand on 
services resulting from the economic 
downturn (e.g. increasing benefits 
caseload) 

• Reports to Democratic Services on 
time and in the correct template; 
quality of reports and 
recommendations 

• Absence rates still high 
• Restructure of Revenues & Benefits 

service to achieve financial savings 
while maintaining performance 

• Need to ensure achieving sound 
Use of Resources scores of 2 and 
3’s where appropriate 

• Member Development work 
programme: not delivering events 
within timescale, attendance poor, 
lack of co-ordinated feedback 
mechanism 

• Low levels of public interest at 
community Scrutiny and Overview 
Committee meetings 

• From 1 January 2010 land Charges 
will start to operate an electronic 
register instead of making paper 
copies for register 

Page 51



 20 

 
 
In addition, the service has performed well in its performance indicators; no Corporate 
Services functions have been identified as performing poorly.  However, corporately, the 
Council failed to achieve its stretch target of 10 days to pay undisputed invoices.  The key 
indicators are summarised below: 
 

Functions performed well 
 

Functions performed adequately 

• Percentage of undisputed invoices 
paid within 30 days 

• Average days to process new claims 
• Percentage of Council Tax collected 
• Percentage of non-domestic rates 

received 
• Percentage of rent collected 
• Percentage of tenants evicted due to 

arrears (recovery action taken 
earlier, including serving notices to 
quit, resulting in tenants paying 
arrears and hence a low number of 
actual evictions) 

• Percentage of Housing Benefit 
overpayments recovered 

• Percentage of key decisions taken 
by Cabinet which were previously 
published on the Forward Plan. 

• Percentage of Council and Cabinet 
decisions published within two 
working days of the meeting. 

• Average number of days taken to 
process complaints under the Code 
of Conduct 

• Average number of days taken to 
turnaround a Land Charges search 

• Percentage of full agendas 
published, without late reports ‘to 
follow’. 

• Budget outturn forecast 
• Percentage of Councillors attending 

at least one skills development 
training session 

• Percentage of Contact Centre calls 
dealt with at first contact 

• Percentage satisfied with Council 
website 

• Average days to process 
notifications of changes of 
circumstance 

• Number of prosecutions / sanctions 
per 1,000 caseload 

 
This demonstrates that most aspects of the service are performing on average or above, 
however all services are striving for continuous improvement and maintaining levels of 
performance.  
 
 
8. Our Resources 
 

Your budget and estimated outturn for 2009/10 and budget for 2010/11 should be 
summarised. To be added into final service plan in March with info supplied by 
Finance. 
 
Also give assessment of areas where your service is under/over resourced and 
any additional resources you need to deliver the service plan. 

 
The Council’s budget delivers the improvements proposed in the improvement plans. 

Page 52



 21 

The Council will be under pressure in some areas due to staffing reductions as part of the 
savings package. 
 
 
9. Do we provide Value for Money? 
 
Accountancy 
 
The Accountancy Service currently undertakes benchmarking with the CIPFA Benchmarking 
club for Accountancy, Creditors and Treasury Management.  This data demonstrates that 
the cost of the Accountancy and Creditors Services was below the average compared to 
other shire district councils. 
 
The Accountancy Service has continued to meet all statutory requirements and contributes 
to the overall use of resources score.  The Treasury Management performance of the 
service, for 2008/09 showed that South Cambridgeshire achieved another creditable 
performance for the fifth year running, with a return of 5.61% on combined investments (less than 
and more than 365 days) compared to 5.36% for its comparator group, and 5.26% for the overall 
group.  South Cambridgeshire was third highest in the comparator group of 13 other 
organisations and nineteenth highest in the overall group of 128 other organisations.  The service 
will continue to use this benchmarking information to improve value for money in this area. 
 
Revenues Services 
 
Revenues Services monitor the unit cost of a number of activities, including cost of council 
tax collection, cost of non-domestic rates collection and cost of administering benefit claims, 
over time.  Key income streams for the service such housing and council tax benefit subsidy 
and income from legal costs are monitored on a monthly basis.  The links between 
performance and cost are generally understood and an improvement in performance in the 
recovery of overpaid benefits has led to an increase in income and reduction in the cost of 
providing the service.  Efficiency improvements have been made in 2008/09 as performance 
has been maintained with the same resources at a time of increasing caseload due to the 
economic recession.   
 
An analysis of the service’s value for money performance has been conducted using the 
Audit Commission’s Value for Money tool.  This analysis indicates that the Council performs 
well in comparison to geographical neighbours, but less well in comparison to the 
recommended ‘family grouping’ of similar authorities.  However, it is recognised that the 
VFM tool utilises very broad data and further benchmarking is required to establish the 
reason for differences between costs at different authorities. 
 
The Council is a member of the SPARSE benchmarking group, which provides annual 
benchmarking information on performance and value for money among rural district 
Councils.  The annual performance profile for Benefit Services for 2007/08 indicates that the 
Council provides good value for money in comparison to other SPARSE members. 
 
ICT 
 
The outcome of the ICT service review will be included here. 
 
Legal & Democratic Services 
 
Legal Services has not carried out a benchmarking exercise but remain confident that the 
service provides value for money for the Council.  Clients prefer working with an in-house 
legal support team rather than external legal advisors because of the convenience, 

Page 53



 22 

availability and knowledge of corporate business that comes with being on-site and closely 
involved with the client.  An in-house land and property surveying service is highly cost 
effective and means the Council does not need to engage external surveying expertise. 
Exploratory talks are being held with Heads of Legal Services at the other councils in 
Cambridgeshire to consider what savings and efficiencies could be made via shared legal 
services. 
 
Land Charges have to charge fees set by central government for Personal Search Agents 
and Personal Search companies.  The Land Charges service is subject to commercial 
competition and can therefore be demonstrably benchmarked against private sector 
providers.  A fee for refresher searches was introduced from November 2009. 
 
Democratic Services has undertaken benchmarking work with all shire district councils 
around the country. This process has demonstrated that the service provides value for 
money in terms of the number of meetings serviced per officer on an annual basis; it will be 
repeated to ensure continuing value-for-money in future years. 
 
General 
 
Corporate Services facilitates the search for and achievement of efficiencies and savings 
across the authority.  In 2008/09, the authority achieved ongoing cash-releasing value for 
money gains (National Indicator [NI] 179) of £1.244 million, exceeding its target of £1.089 
million by £155,000. 
 
 
10. Workforce Overview 
 
Corporate Services employs the following numbers of employees: 
 

 Number of 
Employees 

Full Time 
Equivalents 

Accountancy 15 12.96 

Finance Project Team 2 2.00 

Human Resources / Payroll 10 8.32 

ICT 25 23.61 

Legal & Democratic Services (inc. Land Charges) 20 17.73 

Revenues Services 58 52.88 

Total 130 117.50 
 
A key workforce planning issue facing the service is the age profile of staff.  In some service 
areas there are concentrations of employees of similar ages with key knowledge and 
experience.  This creates a risk that several key staff could retire within a short period of 
time, which could affect the delivery of key activities.  A further risk may arise if it proves 
difficult to recruit employees of the appropriate calibre, qualification and experience.  A 
review of this risk to the service will be undertaken as part of the Council’s wider succession 
planning project.   
 
There were periods of maternity leave across the service during 2009/10 and it can be 
anticipated that further maternity leave will be taken during 2010/11.  Maintaining service 
levels is likely to require the employment of temporary staff, which can create budgetary 
pressures where rates for experienced or qualified temporary staff are higher than savings 
accruing due to maternity leave. 

Page 54



 23 

 
The Service is committed to staff development and has contributed to the corporate bid for 
Investors in People accreditation.  Representatives from the Service have participated in the 
Management Competencies Development project and the resulting pilot programme.  Staff 
development will continue to be a core aspect of the delivery of Corporate Services and it is 
anticipated that further improvements will be implemented as part of the Investors in People 
improvement plan 
 
Minimising productive time lost through sickness absence is key to maximising the human 
resources available to the service.  Managers have received training in managing sickness 
absence and mangers ensure that employees suffering serious illness are given help and 
support in returning to work.  In the first half of 2009/10, 2.56% of working days have been 
lost through sickness (figure to be provided in due course) – equivalent to 3.0 FTE posts.  
Nearly two-thirds of the time lost due to sickness resulted from long-term sickness and just 
over one-third from short-term sickness in this period.  The effective management of 
sickness absence will continue to be a priority for the service. 

 
 
11. Risk Overview 
 
Corporate Services have compiled a risk register for the whole service that summarises the 
major risks that could affect the service over the next 12 months: 
 

• Reduction in HR/Payroll team to meet savings target 
• Inadequate resources allocated to Revenues & Benefits business support: 

Workload demands / Resignation / Sickness / Difficulty in recruitment. 
• HR/Payroll system: Lack of system administration and development skills and 

expertise. 
• Impact of market conditions on conveyancing: Collapse/downturn of the housing 

market. 
• Knowledge / experience in Accountancy service: Retirement / resignation / 

restructuring and redundancy / long term sickness of key senior staff / difficulty in 
recruiting suitably qualified staff. 

• Late approval and receipt of audit opinion on 2009/10 and later years’ 
accounts, arising from significant changes in accounting requirements increasing the 
length and complexity of the Statement of Accounts, tight deadlines. 

• The EU Remedies Directive means a major shift in the balance of power from the 
authority to suppliers, if staff do not comply with procurement procedures and 
legislative requirements. 

• Recruitment & selection: Non conformance with recruitment & selection legislation 
and best practice, including safeguarding checks. 

• Data Transfer Security: Loss of residents confidential data due to inadequate 
security for transfer of data. 

• Loss of connectivity to ‘outside world’: Recognising Government Connect, 
Communications and data links fail / degrade. 

• System upgrades 
• 3rd party dependencies: 3rd party does not deliver to timetable. 
• System hardware failure 
• Information Governance: Failure to process or protect information in accordance 

with legal and regulatory obligations and best practice. 
• Limited management capacity in Revenues & Benefits: Increasing demands from 

corporate core / Increasing demands from customers. 
• Job Evaluation & Equal Pay project: Insufficient resources or slippage against 

project plan affect the Job Evaluation & Equal Pay project. 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is left blank intentionally.



 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN:  Finance Project Team 
 
 
COUNCIL 
ACTION 

# 
 

 Council Action  
Supporting Information 

 
 

Completion 
by Month 

 
Officer 

 
 

3  We will meet or surpass a 65% recycling and 
composting rate by 2012. 
 
Assist with procurement aspects arising from the refuse 
and recycling service review. 

Additional Resources Required: Possible 
service budget provision for external 
procurement support; sufficient time to run 
procurement exercise. 
Outputs: Procurement plan followed. 
Outcomes: Cost effective procurements to 
support the new service. 
Risks: Procurements not conducted properly; 
procurements not completed on time; resulting 
costs of goods/services exceed budgets; 
resulting goods/services do not meet service 
needs; challenges delay service 
implementation or result in substantial costs. 
Other services affected: Those involved in 
the refuse and recycling service review and 
consequent procurements. 

 
 
 

September 
2010 

 
 
 

Procurement 
Officer (PO) 
[and Finance 

Project 
Officer 

(FPO), as 
necessary] 

11  We will review and restructure the Housing service to 
enable us to continue to provide our tenants with the 
best possible service within the resources available 
and to meet new regulatory standards. 
 
Assist as necessary with procurement aspects arising 
from the housing service review and restructure. 

Additional Resources Required: Possible 
service budget provision for external 
procurement support; sufficient time to run 
procurement exercise. 
Outputs: Procurement plan followed. 
Outcomes: Cost effective procurements to 
support the new service. 
Risks: Procurements not conducted properly; 
procurements not completed on time; resulting 
costs of goods/services exceed budgets; 
resulting goods/services do not meet service 
needs; challenges delay service 
implementation or result in substantial costs. 
Other services affected: Those involved in 
the housing service review and restructure and 
consequent procurements. 

 
 
 
 
 

tba 

 
 
 
 
 

PO  
[and FPO, as 
necessary] 

 

P
age 57



COUNCIL 
Aim/ 

Approach 
# 

See Key 

Service 
Objective 

# 
See Key 

Supporting Objective SMART* Actions or 
Milestones Supporting Information Completion 

by Month 

 
Officer 

 
 

Procurement 
A v F2a 

CT1 
The procurement team 
supports effective and 
compliant procurement. 

(a) Review the contracts 
register to identify contracts 
due for renewal in year; 
prioritise these. 
 
(b) Work proactively with 
relevant service managers to 
procure new contracts as 
necessary.   
(Note: This action will also 
support the cross-cutting 
themes of Customer service 
and Values.) 

Additional Resources Required: Time to 
work with service managers. 
Outputs: Prioritised schedule of contracts due 
for renewal. 
Outcomes: Contracts are renewed/re-
subjected to competition on a timely basis; 
continuity of supply of goods or provision of 
services is facilitated; procurement is effective, 
complies with legislative requirements and 
obtains goods/services at the most 
economically advantageous price. 
Risks: Lack of capacity to support contract 
renewal projects; procurements not conducted 
properly; challenges delay award of contracts 
or result in substantial costs. 
Other services affected: Those involved in 
the subsequent procurements. 

(a) April 
2010 
 
 
 

(b) 
Throughout 
the year, as 
necessary 

PO 
 
 
 
 

PO 

A v F2b The procurement team 
has been tasked with 
contributing £20,000 
towards the Council’s 
£1.6m savings target. 

Implement projects to deliver 
the procurement team’s 
£20,000 savings target. 
 

Additional Resources Required: Time to 
implement projects. 
Outputs: List of projects and savings. 
Outcomes: £20k savings achieved.  
Risks: Lack of capacity to identify and 
implement projects; lack of support from 
colleagues in implementing projects. 
Other services affected: Those affected by 
the projects proposed. 

December 
2010 

FPO and PO 
 

P
age 58



COUNCIL 
Aim/ 

Approach 
# 

See Key 

Service 
Objective 

# 
See Key 

Supporting Objective SMART* Actions or 
Milestones Supporting Information Completion 

by Month 

 
Officer 

 
 

A I 
A ii 
A iii 
A v 

F2c The procurement team 
supports effective and 
compliant procurement. 

Review the Procurement 
Strategy, Contract 
Regulations and procurement 
processes annually. 
 
Implement new procedures 
resulting, including templates, 
guidance notes and training. 

Additional Resources Required: Time to 
review strategy and regulations, update 
procedures, prepare templates and guidance 
notes and provide training. 
Outputs: Procurement Strategy, Contract 
Regulations and procurement processes 
reviewed and updated. 
Outcomes: The Procurement Strategy 
supports the achievement of Council 
objectives; the Council’s procurement 
processes remain up to date, enabling effective 
procurement which complies with legislative 
requirements and obtains goods/services at 
the most economically advantageous price. 
Risks: Staff and/or suppliers/contractors do 
not comply with the requirements. 
Other services affected: Those consulted. 

March 2011 PO  
[and FPO, as 
necessary] 

Efficiency Savings 
A v F3 The procurement team 

identifies opportunities for 
savings across the 
authority. 

Publish one guidance note 
each quarter on ways to save 
money, e.g. via email, on In-
Site, or in SCene, Chief 
Exec’s weekly message, 
Corporate Brief, etc. 
 

Additional Resources Required: Time to 
research, prepare and publish guidance notes. 
Outputs: Series of guidance notes. 
Outcomes: Savings achieved across a range 
of expenditure headings which make 
contributions towards the Council’s wider 
requirements. 
Risks: Lack of capacity to research, produce 
and publish guidance notes; lack of support 
from colleagues in following guidance. 
Other services affected: Communications, 
ICT and possibly others, in preparing and 
publishing articles; colleagues, as appropriate, 
in following guidance. 

Quarterly 
 

FPO and PO 

P
age 59



 
COUNCIL 
Aim/ 

Approach 
# 

See Key 

Service 
Objective 

# 
See Key 

Supporting Objective SMART* Actions or 
Milestones Supporting Information Completion 

by Month 

 
Officer 

 
 

Safeguarding Children 
N/a CT2 Safeguarding Children 

actions in 2010/11. 
Produce addenda to the 
Council’s Procurement 
Strategy, Contract 
Regulations and procurement 
processes, as necessary, so 
that appropriate Safeguarding 
Children considerations are 
taken into account in relevant 
procurement exercises. 
 
Incorporate fully at next 
formal review. 

Additional Resources Required: Time to 
research and prepare appropriate guidelines. 
Outputs: Safeguarding Children section/ 
clauses included in Procurement Strategy, 
Contract Regulations and/or procurement 
processes, as appropriate. 
Outcomes: Safeguarding Children aspects 
taken into account when procuring relevant 
goods/services. 
Risks: Goods or services procured put 
children at risk; criticism of Council, damage to 
reputation, possibility of sanctions. 
Other services affected: Those involved in 
procurements with particular children-related 
services. 

June 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 2011 

PO  
[and FPO, as 
necessary] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PO 

Climate Change 
C vii CT4 Assist reduction of CO2 

emissions. 
Ascertain ways in which 
procurement can assist 
reduction of CO2 emissions. 
 
Produce addenda to add 
appropriate wording to the 
Council’s Procurement 
Strategy, Contract 
Regulations and procurement 
processes, as necessary.   
 
Incorporate fully at next 
formal review. 

Additional Resources Required: Time to 
research and prepare appropriate guidelines. 
Outputs: Guidance incorporated in 
Procurement Strategy, Contract Regulations 
and procurement processes, as appropriate. 
Outcomes: Consideration of ways in which 
CO2 emissions can be reduced, included in 
procurement specifications. 
Risks: May not obtain the best goods/services 
if pursued slavishly. 
Other services affected: Those undertaking 
relevant procurement projects. 

August 2010 
 
 
 

September 
2010 
 
 
 
 
 

March 2011 

PO  
[and FPO, as 
necessary] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PO 
 

P
age 60



 
COUNCIL 
Aim/ 

Approach 
# 

See Key 

Service 
Objective 

# 
See Key 

Supporting Objective SMART* Actions or 
Milestones Supporting Information Completion 

by Month 

 
Officer 

 
 

Customer Service 
N/a CT2 Customer Service actions 

in 2010/11. 
Produce addenda to the 
Council’s Procurement 
Strategy, Contract 
Regulations and procurement 
processes, as necessary, so 
that appropriate Customer 
Service considerations are 
taken into account in relevant 
procurement exercises. 
 
Incorporate fully at next 
formal review. 

Additional Resources Required: Time to 
research and prepare appropriate guidelines. 
Outputs: Customer Service section/ clauses 
included in Procurement Strategy, Contract 
Regulations and/or procurement processes, as 
appropriate. 
Outcomes: Customer Service aspects taken 
into account when procuring relevant 
goods/services; Customer Service Excellence 
accreditation assisted. 
Risks: Goods or services procured do not 
meet customer needs or expectations; criticism 
of Council, damage to reputation. 
Other services affected: Those involved in 
procurements with particular customer-focused 
services. 

December 
2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 2011 

PO  
[and FPO, as 
necessary] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PO 

Values 
N/a CT2 Values actions in 

2010/11. 
Produce addenda to the 
Council’s Procurement 
Strategy, Contract 
Regulations and procurement 
processes, as necessary, so 
that appropriate Values 
considerations are taken into 
account in relevant 
procurement exercises. 
 
Incorporate fully at next 
formal review. 

Additional Resources Required: Time to 
research and prepare appropriate guidelines. 
Outputs: Values section/ clauses included in 
Procurement Strategy, Contract Regulations 
and/or procurement processes, as appropriate. 
Outcomes: Values aspects taken into account 
when procuring relevant goods/services. 
Risks: Goods or services procured do not 
meet the Council’s Values expectations; 
criticism of Council, damage to reputation. 
Other services affected: Those undertaking 
relevant procurement projects. 

December 
2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 2011 

PO  
[and FPO, as 
necessary] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PO 

SMART = Specific, measurable, achievable, relevant and timed. 
 

P
age 61



Key for Improvement Plan 
 
Relevant Council Aims 
 
A - We are committed to being a listening Council providing first class services accessible to all.  
C - We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
 
3 - We will meet or surpass a 65% recycling and composting rate by 2012. 
11 - We will review and restructure the Housing service to enable us to continue to provide our tenants with the best possible service within the 

resources available and to meet new regulatory standards. 
 
Relevant Council Approaches   
 
A i - Listening and engaging with our local community 
A ii  - Working with voluntary organisations, Parish Councils and Cambridgeshire County Council to improve services through partnership 
A iii - Making South Cambridgeshire more open and accessible 
A iv - Achieving improved customer satisfaction with our services 
A v - Ensuring that the Council demonstrates value for money in the way it works 
 

C vii - Taking account of climate change in all the services that we deliver  
 
Service Objectives 
 
Finance Project Team 
Procurement:  

• F2a - To identify areas for potential cost savings, or rationalisation of products and suppliers  
• F2b - To contribute towards achieving the Council’s efficiency savings forecasts; and  
• F2c - To assist colleagues with implementing procurement practices and systems (including e-procurement) in line with the Council’s policies and 

procedures and with EU and other procurement legislation. 
Efficiency savings:  

• F3 - To coordinate the corporate project to identify and implement efficiency savings across the authority. 
 

P
age 62



Cross-cutting themes 
 
Customer Service Excellence 

• CT1 – Provide HR support to the Customer Service Excellence project. 
Safeguarding Children:  

• CT2 - Provide for safeguarding of children in procurement processes. 
Climate Change:  

• CT4 - Assist reduction of CO2 emissions in procurement processes. 
 
 
 

P
age 63



P
age 64

T
his page is left blank intentionally.



 Page 1 of 13 

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
DRAFT SERVICE PLAN FOR: 
PLANNING & SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES 2010/11 to 2012/13 
 
Corporate Manager: Gareth Jones 

Executive Director: Steve Hampson 

Portfolio Holder/s: Cllr Nick Wright 
 
1. About Our Service 

 
Statutory Services 
 
Planning Policy 
Its main role is delivering the Local Development Framework (LDF) as required under section 17 
of the 2004 Planning Act, and this includes one of the largest growth agendas in the country.  The 
Act also imposes a statutory requirement to produce an annual monitoring report which must be 
submitted to the Secretary of State.  It also services the recently established section 29 
Committee. 
 
Development Control 
Its main role is to determine approximately 2,000 applications (including almost all the major 
applications with the exception of those relating to the major growth sites) and 1,500 significant 
amendments to these applications.  Our customers have varied agendas ranging from applicants 
and developers, to neighbours, interest groups and Parish Councils.  In an extreme case we 
received and processed over 30,000 individual representations on one application.  It also 
includes sub-sections responsible for defending the Council’s case at appeal and enforcing and 
monitoring development within the District, as well as High Hedge applications. 
 
Building Control 
Its main role is to enforce building regulations by determining building regulation applications and 
carrying out site visits to check the works at specified stages of the development.  As well as 
being concerned with building safety, accessibility and thermal efficiency building regulations are 
the most significant tool for delivering the Government’s sustainability agenda and carbon 
reduction commitment.  The sub-section also provides a dangerous structure service and 
provides advice and guidance on related issues. 
 
Design and Conservation 
Its main role is to protect and improve the historic, natural and built environment and it covers 
landscapes, trees, wildlife habitats and species, historic buildings and areas of national and local 
importance.  The service deals with listed building and tree applications and provides 
conservation and design input to Planning Policy, Development Control and New Communities.  
It helps create sustainable development and environmental and other wellbeing (statutory 
responsibility and power). 
 
Non-Statutory Services 
 
Services include supporting community action to improve local places and public involvement in 
and enjoyment of people’s culture, heritage and environment.  They deliver national and LAA 
indicators, the Sustainable Communities Strategy, the Council’s wellbeing power and Council 
aims, approaches and actions. 
• Duty officer service 
• Formal pre-application advice service 
• Pre-application charging 
• Forums: Planning Parish Forum, Agents’ Forum & Parish and Housing Association Forum 
• Provision of tourist advice, working with Cambridge City Council 
• An urban design team that has enabled improved quality of development through working 

with the policy, design and development control teams, as well as advice to the Growth team. 

Agenda Item 5Page 65



 Page 2 of 13 

2. The Context for Our Plan 
 
a) External Drivers 
 

Political 
 
The Government’s growth agenda continues apace, and there will be continued pressure to 
deliver housing over and above the Local Development Framework. 
 
Political change locally or nationally could have a significant impact on the growth agenda 
and appear to point to the strengthening of local powers.  Change in government could lead 
to the loss of regional authorities and plans and a return to county structure plans. 
 
The importance of climate change within the wider political framework has and will continue to 
make this an important area of work for the Council.  Building Control has a strong role to play 
in delivering more sustainable development.  The Government is planning step changes to 
the regulations to new house build to reduce their carbon footprint.  The natural, historic and 
built environment has a key role in reducing the causes and impacts of climate change. 
 
Changes in legislation result in: 
• Variations for the need for planning permission 
• Requirements to make an application 

e.g. new General Development Order and legislation on Biodiversity (NERC Act 2006). 
Building Regulations. 

 
The new PPS 15 Planning for the Historic Environment will give the Council extra 
responsibilities and challenges such as requiring an integrated approach to heritage backed 
by record systems and increasing the need for detailed pre-application discussions. 
 
Increased support for localism and involving the voluntary (or third) sector. 
 
Economic 
 
We are having to address the shortfall in housing completions following the effects of the 
credit crunch on the development sector through the LDF process and could be an issue for 
planning appeals.  The single issue review by the RSS re Traveller and Gypsy sites has 
determined how many sites the Council will have to plan to provide. 
 
Delivery of growth is highly dependent on appropriate progress being made by our key 
partners.  Transport is particularly key to this and any delays in delivering transport 
infrastructure such as the Cambridgeshire Guided Bus or the improvements to the A14 will 
have significant impact on this service and its ability to deliver. 
 
Green infrastructure including the natural and historic environment is a key component of 
growth and strongly supported by the RSS.  Reduction in HGF (housing growth fund) support 
increases the need to gain funding through other means including community infrastructure 
levies or tariffs. 
 
We are working with Cambridgeshire Horizons and other local authority partners to maximise 
the contributions from development to fund improvements in services, facilities and 
infrastructure which will not only benefit the development areas but the rest of the community. 
 
Socio-Cultural 
 
The local population has heightened expectations about its rights and ability to influence the 
planning process.  Increased availability of information through the Internet continues to 
impact on officers’ time.  The press continues to be quick to pick up on planning issues and in 
most cases there will be one party not satisfied with the outcome of a planning application; it 
can be a productive area for stories. 

Page 66



 Page 3 of 13 

Technological Environment 
 
The use of the planning portal and continued use of Devcon continue to impose demands on 
staff e.g. scan plans.  The lack of an integrated corporate IT system makes this more difficult 
across the service.  The demand for information and an expectation of an instant response 
also continues. 
 
Managing environmental data is key to informed decision making and E government. 
Accurate, digitised information and public access is required.  Information is held and 
managed by this authority and by the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Records Centre and 
other partners. 
 
The challenge to find a new and efficient planning system is currently being addressed 
through the procurement process. 
 
The planning policy consultation system continues to deliver economies in manpower and 
efficiencies in handling public consultations. 
 

b) Our Key Partners 
 
Partnership working is integral to the Planning service with a number of organisations, 
including other statutory partners, businesses, and third sector organisations.  Key partners 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
• EERA (East of England Regional Assembly) 
• Go-East 
• Greater Cambridge Partnership 
• Cambridgeshire Horizons 
• Cambridgeshire County Council 
• Cambridge City Council 
• Parish Councils 
• Building Control teams in other districts 
• Developers 
• Agents 
• Partnerships e.g. Cambridgeshire Green Vision, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 

Biodiversity Partnership 
• National Agencies e.g. Natural England, English Heritage, CABE 
• Voluntary Sector e.g. Cambridge Past, Present and Future 
• Local Groups e.g. River Mel Restoration Project 
• Make Cambridgeshire Count. 
 
For our major partnerships, robust partnership arrangements are in place and have been 
checked through the corporate review of partnerships and corporate partnerships register.  
For example, our relationship with Cambridgeshire Horizons and others working on growth is 
shaped by Cambridgeshire Horizons Board and managed through the Senior Officer Board 
that regularly review progress, risks and issues. 
 
Voluntary sector and other partnerships provide excellent value for money with high outputs 
achieved with relatively small inputs.  Local authorities complement the type of contribution 
made by the voluntary sector and other partners e.g. by providing specialist professional 
input. 
 

c) Our Strengths and Weaknesses 
 
Strengths 
• Skilled, experienced and motivated staff across service area 
• Duty Officer System 
• Planning Parish Forum & Agents’ Forum 

Page 67



 Page 4 of 13 

Strengths continued … 
• Pre-application protocol and charging 
• S106 monitoring officer, developing database and chasing obligations 
• Application determination rates achieving Government targets 
• Improved website information including delegated reports 
• Efficient and effective Appeals and Enforcement service 
• Quality of Building Control service, continuing to hit targets and signing two partners 
• A planning policy team with a proven record in delivery (secured over £1m in PDG in 

2008) 
• Joint working with other Cambridgeshire local authorities and with service and 

infrastructure providers 
• GTDPD in preparation 
• NW Cambridge Action Plan being adopted 
• Good framework of Supplementary Planning Documents e.g. for  

Trees, Conservation Areas, Listed Buildings, Biodiversity, Landscape and Design 
• Contribution to housing growth sites e.g. Orchard Park landscaping 
• Ability to attract funding and deliver ambitious enhancement schemes such as 

Trumpington Meadows wildlife/landscape scheme 
• Ability to deal with demanding casework loads and achieve quality results  
• Engaging local communities, supporting volunteers and improving local places through a 

range of schemes 
• 100% tree applications being turned round on time. 
 
Weaknesses 
• Lack of comprehensive IT system 
• Unsupported IT system in Building Control 
• Need to continue with Devcon2 until new planning system is procured, leads to: 

o Continued daily system errors and delays in planning process 
o Difficulty generating reliable statistics 

• Slow IT system speed continuing to cause delays in the registration process. 
 
Opportunities 
• Improve delivery of affordable housing by setting up a Forum to include Parish Councils 

and Housing Associations 
• Enhance pre-application advice and having input for better quality applications and 

determinations 
• Increased income through pre-application charging, effective 5 October 2009 
• Achieving better quality applications through adoption of design guides 
• Review of delegation system 
• Statutory consultee and third party comments on the web 
• Implement fully electronic Appeals service 
• Building Control has Marketing Representative on East Anglia Group 
• LABC Award Scheme and closer work with planning 
• Cambridgeshire green infrastructure e.g. review of strategy 
• Supporting local people to establish community orchards 
• Targeted training programme to build knowledge and skills 
• Fully electronic appeals service 
• New planning IT system will: 

o Deliver a more linked up and effective service; enable service area to meet targets 
more effectively; include Appeals and Enforcement database 

• Working with the Contact Centre and providing regular training to improve service 
• Systems Thinking review to deliver a more efficient and effective service to meet the 

needs of the customer 
• Partnership working 
• High value put on historic villages, countryside and access to wildlife given by public 
• High value given to historic villages, countryside and access to wildlife given by the public 
• Political and other support for volunteering and importance of local places and actions. 

Page 68



 Page 5 of 13 

Threats 
• Large savings to be found resulting in loss of staff and other budgets: 

o Threat to services, peoples’ livelihood’s and morale 
o Threat to delivery of strategic objectives and actions e.g. 

§ Council’s Aims and Approaches 
§ Sustainable Communities Strategy 
§ Local Area Agreement 
§ National indicators 

o Threat to integrated and complementary statutory and discretionary services, and 
council’s community leadership and place shaping roles 

• Continued work pressures and meeting deadlines 
o Currently at and above capacity for a number of services; what happens when 

development takes off again in 6 months time? 
• Continued high level of casework for Conservation & Design and stretching range of 

commitments to meet including housing growth and policy  
• Lack of investment in data and electronic systems 
• Possible increased workloads and threats to targets due to review of delegation protocol 
• Working from home and mobile working may be limited due to Gov.Connect 
• Loss of experienced staff 
• Low staff morale/stress 
• Less income via applications 
• Less income via HPDG 
• Pre-application charging could result in less pre-application discussions which could lead 

to poorer developments 
• Response to downturn 
• Increased legislation 
• Customers expectations 
• ICT mend and make do approach leads to further costs in the long run 
• Costs of printing from the Planning Portal 
• Reduction in training opportunities and personal development. 
 

3. The Council’s Objectives 
 
The Council has set a Vision, Values and Aims, Approaches and Actions for 2010/11.  The 
Council also works to achieve the South Cambridgeshire Sustainable Community Strategy and 
the county-wide LAA. 
 
1. We are committed to being a listening council providing first class services accessible to all 

• Listening to and engaging with our local community 
• Working with voluntary organisations, Parish Councils and Cambridgeshire County 

Council to improve services through partnership and achieve real improvements on the 
ground 

• Making South Cambridgeshire District Council more open and accessible 
• Achieving improved customer satisfaction with our services 
• Ensuring that the Council demonstrates value for money in the way it works 
• Promoting health and fitness through green infrastructure. 
 

2. We are committed to ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and healthy 
place for you and your family 
• We are enabling provision of additional areas of play in new developments including 

safety elements through our policies 
• Building Control working to ensure safe developments. 
 

Page 69



 Page 6 of 13 

3. We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud 
to live 
• Making affordable housing more available to local people 
• Ensuring that affordable housing is in balance with the community 
• Achieving a sustainable future for the Council’s housing stock 
• Taking account of climate change in all the services we deliver 
• Promoting low carbon living and delivering low carbon growth through the planning 

system. 
 

4. We are committed to assisting provision for local jobs for you and your family 
• Promoting policies for the protection and encouragement of job opportunities 
• Supporting cultural heritage which generates tourism and helps local firms. 
 

5. We are committed to providing a voice for rural life 
• Working more closely with Parish Councils and local Groups 
• Implementing planning policies to achieve successful and well designed new communities 
• Maximising planning gain for neighbouring communities 
• Playing our part in improving rural services including transport links 
• Protecting and enhancing our villages and countryside. 
 

The Council Actions that will be undertaken by our service area in 2010/11 are: 
• We will contribute to achieve Customer Service Excellence accreditation by 31 March 2011 
• We will promote the relocation of Marshalls within Cambridgeshire in order to meet the 

district’s requirements for new homes and retain job opportunities 
• We will support local people to establish community orchards 
• Improve delivery of affordable housing by setting up a Forum to include Parish Councils and 

Housing Associations 
• Provision of retirement homes in new major developments 
• Innovative working with developers. 
 
Values 
 

The Council has also adopted a set of Values that will be embedded in the service in 2010/11 
through behaviours agreed across the Council: 
Customer service; Mutual Respect; Trust; Commitment to Improving Services 
 
Systems thinking and improvements to web pages will also contribute. 
 

4. Our Service Objectives 
 

• To ensure the preservation and enhancement of the district’s natural and built environment 
and achieve high standards of sustainable design on major growth sites and other 
developments throughout the district 

• To increase people’s engagement in and enjoyment of their heritage and environment and 
achieve real improvements to local places 

• To influence the plans and projects which have an impact on South Cambridgeshire, its 
statutory service provision responsibilities as well as the environment, economy and 
community life 

• To deliver the LDF and all its component parts in accordance with the agreed program 
• To deliver an improved development control service that meets all its statutory requirements 

and improves response rates to customer enquiries 
• To deliver an improved building control service that meets all its statutory requirements and 

improves market share 
• To enable enhanced electronic use of the planning service 
• To ensure the quality and success of development is maintained through increased 

monitoring 
• To deliver high standards of design 
• To enable provision of affordable housing to meet local needs 
• To ensure that new developments are designed to take into account climate change. 

Page 70



 Page 7 of 13 

5. Our Customers 
 
Our services impact upon everyone within the District, especially through the Local Development 
Framework. 
 
How needs are changing 
 
Customer demand and expectations have increased over time, as has the quality of response 
provided.  Although planning applications have decreased over the past year by almost 15%, 
customer’s expectations have increased.  Conservation & Design has not had a decrease in 
planning and other casework. 
 
In order to improve our services and two-way communication and meet the expectations of 
Parishes, we have introduced a Planning Parish Forum that meets every six months to discuss 
specific planning issues whilst providing Parishes with training on new Supplementary Planning 
Documents (SPDs) and any other items they request.  This Forum is attended by approximately 
60 people over 40+ Parishes, has proved successful and with positive feedback. 
 
The need to obtain and implement a new planning system is essential to providing an efficient 
planning service. 
 
A number of additional factors impacting how needs are changing are: 
• Bringing in more alternative energy e.g. windfarms 
• Economic development will continue to be a challenge 
• Review of website to incorporate large projects 
• Consider different working arrangements including shared services in light of the need to find 

savings and the Make Cambridgeshire Count project 
• Record management, electronic access 
• Support for business and others through recession 
• Emphasis on localism and supporting voluntary sector 
• Ageing population. 
 
Results of consultation/engagement in the last year 
 
Customer satisfaction surveys are in place for users of Development Control, Building Control 
and Conservation; feedback on these services is generally positive.  To ensure future customers' 
needs and aspirations are taken into account, Agents’ Forums for both Building and Development 
Control were introduced.  Attendance at both forums continues to grow, as does the positive 
feedback. 
 
We continue to engage with Parish Councils during consultation whilst also providing additional 
advice and training at the Planning Parish Forum meetings held every six months. 
 
The Duty Officer System was introduced on 1 February 2009 which to date has proved an 
extremely successful service.  Members of the public, Agents and Members, have welcomed this 
as it provides a direct line to a planning officer for general planning advice.  All planning officers 
including, seniors and principals are on duty on a rota basis for half a day at a time; this enables 
the planning officers to continue with their day-to-day responsibilities whilst being able to provide 
an improved customer service. 
 
In addition to the Duty Officer System, pre-application charging was introduced on 5 October 
2009 to increase revenue due to loss of income through reduced planning applications and 
promoting and encouraging better quality applications.  By providing formal pre-application 
advice, it has provided the Applicant with a more detailed and helpful service whilst providing 
advice on external consultations that may be necessary prior to submitting an application. 
 
We are reviewing the delegation protocol in response to Parish Councils’ concern over 
delegation. 
 

Page 71



 Page 8 of 13 

Customer service standards and how these are being delivered 
 
The Council has set the target to achieve the Customer Service Excellence standard and in 
2010/11 all services will be contributing to the corporate project to meet this standard. 
 
Planning will continue to contribute to plans to improve customer service to meet the Customer 
Service Excellence Standard in 2010/11; Paul Knight is taking this forward for the Council. 
 
Complaints and how we have learnt from them 
 
Reports submitted to SMT have shown Planning as having the highest percentage of complaints: 
• July 09 for period April - June 09 had 11 complaints with 63% being sent within the set 

response timeframe 
• October 09 for period July - September 09 had 9 complaints with 88% being sent within the 

set response timeframe. 
 
Planning has appointed a champion to ensure response turnaround times are improved.  
Although the response rate has improved, further work is needed with the Performance Manager 
to reduce the number of avoidable complaints received. 
 
Avoidable complaints have been received due to lack of response, lack of communication and 
the customer not being kept informed.  Measures taken to prevent further complaints being 
received are: 
• Providing more information about the progress of applications and enquiries on the web 
• Encouraging officers to respond to correspondence when received rather than working to the 

10 day turnaround time 
• Introduction of Anite for correspondence received within planning to monitor and store all 

correspondence and replies; this will be trialled in Conservation effective November 2009 
• Acknowledgement letters sent when cheques are received for planning applications, 

discharge of conditions and formal pre-application advice 
• Introduction of Duty Officer System, general planning enquiries are satisfied. 
 

6. Are we meeting the needs of all our community? 
 
What are the main equalities issues facing the Service? 
 
The population of the district is undergoing a transition. South Cambridgeshire has an ageing 
population. The percentage of the population aged 65 or above is expected to rise from 14.8% in 
2001 to 23.5% by 2021. Conversely, the percentage of under 20-year olds is forecast to 
decrease from 25% in 2001 to 22.6% by 2021.  
 
The Gypsy and Traveller population is also growing from the last known figure of 1.330 (1% of 
the total population in the District) in 2005 and the Council needs to find an additional 88 pitches 
by 2021 to accommodate growth. There is also information to suggest that the District has one of 
the highest populations of migrant workers in the country, but details are not accurate at the 
current time.Do you know the composition of the people who use your services and whether the 
needs of all service users are being met? 
 
Do you know the composition of the people who use your services and whether the needs 
of all service users are being met? 
 
The equalities data of all service users is not currently known, although Planning Policy have 
developed an equalities monitoring form, which is used during consultations on the (LDF?). This 
is an example of effective equalities mapping and once developed further, this will provide a 
useful tool to evaluate service delivery. This is a corporate issues for the Council, which is being 
developed in conjunction with the EQIA process. 
 

Page 72



 Page 9 of 13 

What are the findings of EQIAs carried out in the last year? Did they point to any actions 
that need to be undertaken? What EQIAs will be carried out next year? 
 
All High and Medium risk EqIAs should be completed by 31 March 2010 (4 in total). Planning & 
Sustainable Communities have also completed an additional 6 EQIAs this year on new or revised 
policies, which is an example of good practice for the rest of the Council. 2010/11 will focus on 
Low risk EqIAs (3 in total).  All new and revised policies and services will be impact assessed as 
a matter of course and any report presented to Cabinet or Council without an EqIA will not be 
considered. 
 
A number of key actions have been identified from the EQIA process, which are specific to the 
policy, function or practice being assessed.  The key theme to emerge from all EQIAs is the need 
to improve monitoring of equalities data across the Council. 
 
At the current time there have been no full EQIAs carried out, as the partial EQIAs completed so 
far have not identified an adverse impact on different groups of the community. 
 
Are there any other actions for your service in the Comprehensive Equalities Policy? The 
Gender, Race or Disability Equality Schemes? or the Gypsy and Travellers Community 
Strategy? 
 
From April 2011, the Council will look at developing a Single Equality Scheme to cover age, 
disability, gender, race, religion/faith and sexual orientation - and perhaps a 7th strand of 
equalities, called 'rurality.' 
 
• The Gender Equality Scheme will be reviewed from April 2010 
• The Race Equality Scheme will be reviewed from April 2011 
• The Gender Equality Scheme will be reviewed by March 2010 
• The Gypsy and Traveller Community Strategy will be adopted by January 2010. Officers from 

Planning Policy have been instrumental in putting this Strategy together as it aligns with the 
GT DPD. 

 
Officers from Planning & Sustainable Communities will continue to inform the above via the 
Equality and Diversity Steering Group. 
 

Actions to promote equality and diversity in 2010/11 
 

It is hoped that the Council's membership of Stonewall will continue in 2010/11, but this depends 
on the outcome of the overview of the Council's financial position.  As a Stonewall Diversity 
Champion, we work with Stonewall to promote lesbian, gay and bisexual equality in the 
workplace.  In 2009 we joined their Workplace Equality Index - the definitive national 
benchmarking exercise showcasing Britain’s top employers for lesbian, gay and bisexual staff.  It 
provides us with valuable feedback and allows us to measure improvement. 
 

The Council will participate in the following national and international events during 2010/11: 
• Gypsy Roma Traveller History Month - June 2010 
• Disability Awareness Day - July 2010 
• Black History Month - October 2010 
• International Day of Older People - October 2010 
• Holocaust Memorial Day - January 2011 
• Lesbian Gay Bisexual Trans History Month - February 2011 
• International Women’s Day - March 2011. 
 

Identify any safeguarding children actions in 2010/11 
 

The Council is committed to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and young 
people and vulnerable adults.  All services are represented at the safe guarding group and will 
ensure: 
• Safer recruitment and employment practices are followed; relevant officers are aware of 

safeguarding reporting policies; appropriate safeguarding training is given. 

Page 73



 Page 10 of 13 

7. Our Performance and Plans to Improve 
 
Performance to date: 
• Building Control achieved all its statutory time limit targets 
• Building Control won at the Cambridgeshire LABC Awards and this went through to the 

National award but was unsuccessful 
• Building Control continuing to work without a supported IT system; to be included in the new 

planning system to provide an integrated service 
• Conservation & Design – strong performance across most performance indicators (details 

can be added) Difficulties delivering some work areas and meeting deadlines because of 
wide ranging and demanding input to housing growth sites, enhancement/community 
schemes, policy and development control, and continuing high volume of casework.  

• Full team within Enforcement; enabling efficient monitoring and enforcement 
• S106 officer employed; S106 area of Planning Parish Pack updated 
• Performance management role filled and helping to deliver services e.g.: 

o Planning Parish Forum - effective January 2009 
o Duty Officer System - effective 1 February 2009 
o Formal pre application advice - effective March 2009 
o Pre-application Charging - effective 5 October 2009 
o Improvements made within the Contact Centre; updating business rules, scripts and 

process trees - effective October 2009 
• Development Control continuing to work well despite not having a planning system 
• Supplementary Planning Documents continuing to be delivered; training to Parish Councils 

via Planning Parish Forum 
• Planning policy has made good progress in putting in place the planning framework to steer 

development.  This has been recognised by one of the highest awards of Planning Delivery 
Grant 

• Policy team works jointly with Cambridge City Council and Cambridgeshire County Council to 
produce plans for cross boundary plans - now formalised with the creation of the Section 29 
Cambridge Fringes Joint Committee 

• Customer satisfaction up to 80% 
• % applications delegated >90% Government ambition. 
 
The main areas for improvement in 2010/11 are:   
• Purchase and implement new planning system; need to provide accurate stats, true reflection 

of planning file, electronic payments, audit trail etc 
• Reduce the time taken to register and validate applications 
• Reduce the number of conditions applied to planning applications: 

o Working with developers to provide detailed information 
o Looking at how we can negotiate S106 agreements before planning decisions are 

issued and concentrating on pre-application advice 
• Reduce the number of complaints received; predicting customer demand 
• Improve response rate to correspondence 
• Complete review of planning within the Contact Centre 
• Advertise services of Building Control to increase revenue 
• Continue to promote the Partnership service in Building Control 
• Better management of joint and listed building applications 
• Improvement in work processes across planning e.g. using Systems Thinking 
• Reduce journeys for site visits across the service area, helping reduce CO2 emissions 
• Review of pre-application charging after six months could lead to implementing charging in 

other areas 
• Help reduce CO2 emissions e.g. reducing site visits 
• Promoting sustainable travel; promoting liftshare/camshare and alternative modes of 

transport 
• Review of web pages to provide: 

o Easy reference tool and Information available to meet customer demand 
• Delivering a quality, more customer focused service. 
Ian Salter to provide PI performance table 

Page 74



 Page 11 of 13 

8. Our Resources 
 
Budget and estimated outturn for 2009/10 and budget for 2010/11 will be included when agreed 
by Council in February 2010. 
 
A Systems Thinking review is underway across Registration and the DC planning process which 
it is hoped will result in areas for improvement and reduction in waste.  This is an ongoing project 
which is aimed to be rolled out across the service area. 
 
Significant reductions in budgets will lead to loss of services, levels of services and performance. 
 
Budget cuts will prevent progress in dealing with existing problems such as lack of capacity in 
some services (e.g. Conservation & Design) and failure to invest in scanning and electronic 
record systems. 
 
Reductions in capital budgets could have a damaging impact on community grants and 
partnership support and delivery of national indicators, the LAA and Sustainable Communties 
Strategy. 
 
Revenue and capital reductions will severely reduce the ability to deliver the Council and LSP’s 
community leadership and place shaping roles. 
 

9. Do we provide Value for Money? 
 
The recent Place Survey showed low levels of the public believing that the Council provides 
value for money; SCDC was in the third quartile being ranked at 132 out of 201 district 
authorities, for value for money. 
 
Benchmarking assessment needed. 
 
Value for money achieved through grant schemes which achieve outputs worth, for example, six 
times, cost of input. Value for money also achieved by pulling in significant external funding (e.g. 
HGF and other grants for Trumpington Meadows scheme) and in partnerships with third sector 
which benefit from volunteering and other community contributions. 
 
The introduction of the new planning system will promote a more efficient planning process and 
enhance value for money with applications being determined in a shorter timeframe.  The Duty 
Officer System is a non charging service providing a direct line to a planning officer, meeting 
customer demand and again, providing value for money. 
 
• Opportunities to use external resources to fund services have been maximised e.g. 

Cambridgeshire Horizons funding of the new Urban Design Team. 
 
Benchmarking figures will be provided. 
 

10. Workforce Overview 
 
The workforce across our service area is: 
 
1 x corporate manager 
1 x performance manager 
 
Planning Policy 
1 x policy manager 
2 x principal policy officers 
2 x senior policy officers 
1 x junior policy officer 
1 x policy admin 
1 x planning technician 

Page 75



 Page 12 of 13 

Development Control (including Appeals) 
2 x team leaders 
3 x principal planning officers 
6 x senior planning officers 
8 x junior planning officers 
5 x planning admin (one on 20 hours per week and one on reduced hours, working 3 days a 
week) 
 
Building Control 
1x  building control manager 
1 x principal building control surveyor 
4 x senior surveyors  
2.6 x admin assistants 
 
Enforcement 
2 x senior enforcement officers 
1 x junior enforcement officer 
1 x S106 monitoring officer 
 
Design and Conservation 
1 x conservation & design manager 
1 x principal conservation officer 
1 x historic buildings officer  
2 x conservation assistants 
1 x trees and landscape officer 
1 x trees and landscape assistant 
1 x landscape design officer  
1 x landscape assistant  
1 x ecology officer  
1 x administrative assistant  
 
Registration 
1 x registration manager (office manager) 
5 x registration technicians 
 
Land Charges 
1 x land charges officer 
 
Shared Support 
3 x typists  
1 x office assistant 
 
We have a highly skilled workforce from a range of technical backgrounds and the majority have 
at least one qualification at degree level.  We have a number of long-serving staff and staff 
participating in training one day per week.  The retirement of the DC Manager has meant that 
there has been a decrease in experience and an increased mentoring role for the remaining 
experienced staff.  Development of individuals remains a high priority, with a focus on both 
increasing professional skills and on developing management and leadership capacity. 
 
Conservation is catching up with a backlog of work, particularly on policy and conservation area 
documents.  Need to provide maternity cover in conservation team with statutory services with 
high workload. 
 
Gaps in the teams that were previously difficult to fill due to skills shortages have now been filled 
e.g. urban designers, conservation and performance management. 
 
With efficiency savings of £475,000 recruitment has been frozen with essential posts filled 
internally where possible.  To find the savings amount assigned to Planning, vacant posts will not 
be filled and staff leaving will not be replaced. 

Page 76



 Page 13 of 13 

Potential reduction in staff could lead to a reduction in quality of service, an increase in appeals, 
less effective enforcement and impact on ability to determined applications within timescales. 
 
With savings having to be found, the capacity of our workforce cannot be enhanced and will be 
reduced in 2010/11. 
 

11. Risk Overview 
 
There are risks facing the service in the coming year that have a short or medium term impact on 
the ability of the service to deliver on its priorities.  However, given the long-term nature of the 
projects in which this team is involved, there are also very significant longer-term risks, which 
could be mitigated or worsened by actions taken and leadership. 
 
Current, short and medium term risks: 
• Economic slow-down, and non availability of credit results in the non-delivery of new housing 

areas, affordable housing and the ability to negotiate a suitable or satisfactory S106 
agreement 

• Failure of core strategy due to economic slow-down 
• Loss of market share to approved inspectors and decline in income leading to decline in 

service standards 
• Failure to meet traveller and gypsy demand for sites could continue to lead to new breaches 

of planning control 
• Lack of capacity in support services e.g. ICT could lead to inability of team to deliver 
• Inability to recruit and/or retain appropriately skilled staff - loss of staff because of lack of 

secure employment 
• Reduction in staff due to efficiency savings could result in some services not being 

delivered/poor quality 
• Under funding from application fee income could reduce resource in Development Control 

and jeopardise the delivery of high quality services 
• Loss of experienced staff through retirement 
• Changes to Government policy on Heritage Protection and Biodiversity result in increasing 

demands on specialist staff and resources which are already stretched and require 
investment in record systems 

• Inability to deal with range and volume of conservation service work 
• Lack of investment in environmental systems and ensuring accurate information leads to 

damage to environment, poor public service and inefficient working 
• Loss of funding reduces or prevents delivery of LSP, Council and Service objectives 
• Workload and training requirements with introducing new planning system reduces time for 

service delivery 
• Failure of new system in total or to meet requirements, including through lack of council 

funding to exploit the system’s potential 
• Failure to improve planning systems mean extra workload for services, lack of co-ordinated 

working, inefficiencies and poorer service 
• Lack of a supported Building Control System is a significant risk to the service 
• If our service delivery reduces, private Building Control will cherry pick the lucrative work 
• Delay in new planning system being implemented will continue to delay the registration 

process of applications 
• Low staff morale could result in increased sickness levels/lack of motivation. 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is left blank intentionally.



  

 
 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Development Control Service 
 
Relevant Council Aim/s: 
 
A - We are committed to being a listening Council providing first class services accessible to all.  
C - We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
E - We are committed to providing a voice for rural life 
Relevant Council Approach/es: 
 
A i Listening to and engaging with our local community. 
A ii working with voluntary organisations, Parish Councils and Cambridgeshire County Council to improve services through partnership 
A iii making South Cambridgeshire District Council more open and accessible 
A iv Achieving improved customer satisfaction with our services.  
A v. Ensuring that the Council demonstrates value for money in the way it works. 
 
C i making affordable housing more available to local people 
C ii ensuring that affordable housing is in balance with the community 
C iii achieving a sustainable future for the Council’s housing stock 
C vii Taking account of climate change in all the services we deliver.  
C viii Promoting low carbon living and delivering low carbon growth through the planning system. 
 
E ii working more closely with Parish Councils and local Groups 
E iii implementing planning policies to achieve successful new communities 
E iv maximising planning gain for neighbouring communities 
E v playing our part in improving rural services including transport links 
Service Objective: 
 
c To deliver an improved Development Control Service that meets all its statutory requirements and improves response rates to customer enquiries. 
 

P
age 79



  

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 

Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 
SMART Milestone 

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 
Lead Officer Performance 

A i 
A ii 
A iii 
A iv 
E ii 

3 
4 

Introduce a new system of 
quarterly meetings to which all 
Parish Councils will be invited 
by March 10 

Contribute to the setting up of the 
meetings and attend to offer 
advice and training.  Establish 
Parish training sessions, perhaps 
1 per team per year. 

N/A N/A N/A SDCM  

A v 
2 
3 
4 

Provide an efficient service for 
applicants, to ensure that 
applications are determined in 
accordance with Government and 
local targets. 

NI 157a Processing of planning 
applications as measured against 
targets for ‘major types 

71% 72% 72% SDCM  

A v 
2 
3 
4 

Provide an efficient service for 
applicants, to ensure that 
applications are determined in 
accordance with Government and 
local targets. 

NI 157b Processing of planning 
applications as measured against 
targets for ‘minor’ types 

71% 73% 73% SDCM  

A v 
2 
3 
4 

Provide an efficient service for 
applicants, to ensure that 
applications are determined in 
accordance with Government and 
local targets. 

NI 157c Processing of planning 
applications as measured against 
targets for ‘other’ application 
types 

86% 86% 86% SDCM  

A v 
2 
3 
4 

Provide an efficient service for 
applicants, to ensure that 
applications are determined in 
accordance with Government and 
local targets. 

SP921 % of householder 
applications determined within 8 
weeks. 

90% 90% 90% SDCM  

A iv 1 
4 

Provide an efficient service for 
applicants, to ensure that 
applications are determined in 
accordance with Government and 
local targets. 

SP902 The %of decisions 
delegated to officers as a %of all 
decisions 

95% 95% 95% SDCM  

C i 
C ii 
C iii 

1 
2 
12 

Provide an efficient service for 
applicants, to ensure that 
applications are determined in 
accordance with Government and 
local targets. 

SH320 Affordable housing 
planning permissions as a % of 
all residential permissions 
(excludes new Traveller/Gypsy 
pitches) 

23% 25% 25% SDCM  

A v 3 Provide improved service to 
applicants and agents. 

SP944  % of customers satisfied 
with the processing of their 
planning application 

73% 74% 74% SDCM  

 

P
age 80



  

 

IMPROVEMENT PLAN:  Development Control Service 

COUNCIL 
ACTION 

# 

Service 
Objective 

Supporting 
Objective 

Performance 
Indicator or SMART 
Milestone 

Supporting Information Completion 
by Month 

Responsible 
Officer Performance 

A i 
A iii 
A iv 

3 
4 
5 

Improve customer 
contact with Planning 
Officers 

Maintain a Duty 
Officer System 
following staff cuts 
in 10/11 

Additional Resources Required:  None.  . 
Outputs:  Improved service to the public to 
provide direct contact with a Planning Officer. 
Outcomes:  Fewer complaints. 
Risks:  Poor quality services, delays in the 
process and poor quality developments. Staff 
cuts could prejudice maintaining this service 
Other services affected:  Contact Centre, 
ICT. 

Jun 2010 
 

In 
operation 

SDCM 

 

A i 
A iii 
A iv 

1 
3 
4 

Provide an efficient 
service for applicants 
and agents 

 

Additional Resources Required:  None 
other than that generated by the eventual 
introduction of charging for some pre-
application discussions. 
Outputs:  Improved applications and 
compliance with 1APP requirements. 
Outcomes:  Better quality decisions, 
improved and more consistent advice and 
improved quality of development. 
Risks:  Delays in the process, not meeting 
targets for determination of applications and 
poorer quality developments. 
Other services affected:  Other Services 
involved in development, such as 
Conservation, Environmental Health and 
Housing. 

Jun 2010 
 

In place 
SDCM 

 

C i 
C ii 
C iii 

2 
10 

To provide a clear 
and efficient process 
for development from 
pre-application 
through to appeal. 

Implement the 
recommendations of 
systems thinking task 
group, assigning 
responsibility to case 
officer for applications 
from registration to 
appeal 

Additional Resources Required:  None – 
there will be a reduction 
Outputs:  To provide a clear responsibility for 
applications  
Outcomes:  To ensure a consistently high 
quality of development while meeting 
Government targets. 
Risks:  Ability of staff to cope with potentially 
increased workloads and new work practices 
Other services affected:  None. 

Jun 2010 SDCM 

 

P
age 81



  

IMPROVEMENT PLAN:  Development Control Service 

E iii 
E iv 
E v 

2 
7 

Implement the new IT 
system to be provided 
by Swift to the agreed 
timescale. 

Help the section to 
deliver an efficient 
planning system 
with less staff 

Additional Resources Required:  Agreed 
as part of 09/10 budget. 
Outputs:  More efficient use of staff and 
information. 
Outcomes:  Better monitoring and provision 
of services in a timely manner. More 
information available to customers 
Risks:  Delays in service provision and 
increase in complaints as system beds in 
Other services affected:  IT 

Jun 2010 GHJ/SH/SR 

 

 
 

P
age 82



  

 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Building Control Service 
 
Relevant Council Aim/s: 
 
A - We are committed to being a listening Council, providing first class services accessible to all.  
C - We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
 
Relevant Council Approach/es: 
 
A i Listening to and engaging with our local community.  
A iv Achieving improved customer satisfaction with our services.  
A v. Ensuring that the Council demonstrates value for money in the way it works.  
C vii Taking account of climate change in all the services we deliver.  
C viii Promoting low carbon living and delivering low carbon growth through the planning system. 
 
Service Objective: 
 
9 Provide an efficient and effective service achieving improved public satisfaction.  
10. Safeguard and improve the built and natural environment of the district.  
11. Ensure the continued reductions in carbon growth in line with changing legislation and sustainable development. 
 
 

PI target or deadline (month) for action Aim/ & 
Approach 

Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 
Lead Officer Performance 

A i 9 

To provide accurate, current 
and consistent advice on 
Building Regulations, 
sustainability and energy 
efficiency and allied legislation 
using Audited sources 

Carry out the annual 
customer survey in 
December 2010.  
Other actions include a 
Customer forum, training 
technical meetings and 
seminars to ensure 
accurate and consistent 
advice. 

Dec 2010 
 
 

SP927 
SP935 

Dec 2011 
 
 

SP927 
SP935 

Dec 2012 
 
 

SP927 
SP935 

Andy Beyer 

 

A i 11 

To provide accurate, current 
and consistent advice on 
Building Regulations, 
sustainability and energy 
efficiency and allied legislation 
using Audited sources 

Carry out the annual 
customer survey in 
December 2010.  
Other actions include a 
Customer forum, training 
technical meetings and 
seminars to ensure 
accurate and consistent 
advice. 

Dec 2010 
 
 

SP927 
SP935 

Dec 2011 
 
 

SP927 
SP935 

Dec 2012 
 
 

SP927 
SP935 

Andy Beyer 

 

P
age 83



  

PI target or deadline (month) for action Aim/ & 
Approach 

Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 
Lead Officer Performance 

A iv 9 

To provide accurate, current 
and consistent advice on 
Building Regulations, 
sustainability and energy 
efficiency and allied legislation 
using Audited sources 

Carry out the annual 
customer survey in 
December 2010.  
Other actions include a 
Customer forum, training 
technical meetings and 
seminars to ensure 
accurate and consistent 
advice. 

Dec 10 
 
 

SP927 
SP935 

Dec 2011 
 
 

SP927 
SP935 

Dec 2012 
 
 

SP927 
SP935 

Andy Beyer 

 

A iv 11 

To provide accurate, current 
and consistent advice on 
Building Regulations, 
sustainability and energy 
efficiency and allied legislation 
using Audited sources 

Carry out the annual 
customer survey in 
December 2010.  
Other actions include a 
Customer forum, training 
technical meetings and 
seminars to ensure 
accurate and consistent 
advice. 

Dec 2010 
 
 

SP927 
SP935 

Dec 2011 
 
 

SP927 
SP935 

Dec 2012 
 
 

SP927 
SP935 

Andy Beyer 

 

A iv 9 

To ensure all Building 
Regulation Applications are 
Registered and processed 
efficiently. 

Monitor the time taken to 
acknowledge 
applications or provide a 
meaningful response and 
ensure procedures are 
updated 

SP922 
SP923 

SP922 
SP923 

SP922 
SP923 Andy Beyer 

 

A v 9 

To ensure all Building 
Regulation Applications are 
Registered and processed 
efficiently. 

Monitor the time taken to 
acknowledge 
applications or provide a 
meaningful response and 
ensure procedures are 
updated 

SP922 
SP923 

SP922 
SP923 

SP922 
SP923 Andy Beyer 

 

A iv 9 

To ensure all Full Plans 
applications and Building 
Notices are checked efficiently 
and consistently and within 
statutory and internal target 
time limits 

Monitor and check time 
taken to check 
applications and issue 
decisions and ensure 
consistency of approach 
through guidance and 
training 

SP924 
SP925 

SP924 
SP925 

SP924 
SP925 

Andrew 
Dearlove, Nick 

Kendall 

 

P
age 84



  

PI target or deadline (month) for action Aim/ & 
Approach 

Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 
Lead Officer Performance 

A v 9 

To ensure all Full Plans 
applications and Building 
Notices are checked efficiently 
and consistently and within 
statutory and internal target 
time limits 

Monitor and check time 
taken to check 
applications and issue 
decisions and ensure 
consistency of approach 
through guidance and 
training 

SP924 
SP925 

SP924 
SP925 

SP924 
SP925 

Andrew 
Dearlove, Nick 

Kendall 

 

A ii 9 

To inspect all building work 
under our control to ensure 
compliance with current 
building regulations efficiently 
and effectively 

Monitor the number of 
inspections and time 
taken to carry out and 
ensure the resources are 
targeted to ensure speed 
and accuracy, 
consistency and 
recording 

SP926 SP926 SP926 Andrew 
Dearlove 

 

A ii 10 

To inspect all building work 
under our control to ensure 
compliance with current 
building regulations efficiently 
and effectively 

Monitor the number of 
inspections and time 
taken to carry out and 
ensure the resources are 
targeted to ensure speed 
and accuracy, 
consistency and 
recording 

SP926 SP926 SP926 Andrew 
Dearlove 

 

A iv 9 

To inspect all building work 
under our control to ensure 
compliance with current 
building regulations efficiently 
and effectively 

Monitor the number of 
inspections and time 
taken to carry out and 
ensure the resources are 
targeted to ensure speed 
and accuracy, 
consistency and 
recording 

SP926 SP926 SP926 Andrew 
Dearlove 

 

A iv 10 

To inspect all building work 
under our control to ensure 
compliance with current 
building regulations efficiently 
and effectively 

Monitor the number of 
inspections and time 
taken to carry out and 
ensure the resources are 
targeted to ensure speed 
and accuracy, 
consistency and 
recording 

SP926 SP926 SP926 Andrew 
Dearlove 

 

P
age 85



  

PI target or deadline (month) for action Aim/ & 
Approach 

Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 
Lead Officer Performance 

A v 9 

To inspect all building work 
under our control to ensure 
compliance with current 
building regulations efficiently 
and effectively 

Monitor the number of 
inspections and time 
taken to carry out and 
ensure the resources are 
targeted to ensure speed 
and accuracy, 
consistency and 
recording 

SP926 SP926 SP926 Andrew 
Dearlove 

 

A v 10 

To inspect all building work 
under our control to ensure 
compliance with current 
building regulations efficiently 
and effectively 

Monitor the number of 
inspections and time 
taken to carry out and 
ensure the resources are 
targeted to ensure speed 
and accuracy, 
consistency and 
recording 

SP926 SP926 SP926 Andrew 
Dearlove 

 

A i 10 

To respond to all dangerous 
structure reports efficiently and 
within specific time limits 

Ensure time taken to 
respond is 
commensurate with risk. 
Procedures are in place to 
ensure consistency of 
response on notification 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

Andy Beyer 
Andrew 

Dearlove 

 

A ii 10 

To respond to all dangerous 
structure reports efficiently and 
within specific time limits 

Ensure time taken to 
respond is 
commensurate with risk. 
Procedures are in place to 
ensure consistency of 
response on notification 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

Andy Beyer 
Andrew 

Dearlove 

 

A iv 10 

To respond to all dangerous 
structure reports efficiently and 
within specific time limits 

Ensure time taken to 
respond is 
commensurate with risk. 
Procedures are in place to 
ensure consistency of 
response on notification 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

Andy Beyer 
Andrew 

Dearlove 

 

A i 10 

To respond to all dangerous 
structure reports efficiently and 
within specific time limits 

Ensure time taken to 
respond is 
commensurate with risk. 
Procedures are in place to 
ensure consistency of 
response on notification 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

Andy Beyer 
Andrew 

Dearlove 

 

P
age 86



  

PI target or deadline (month) for action Aim/ & 
Approach 

Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 
Lead Officer Performance 

A ii 10 

To respond to all dangerous 
structure reports efficiently and 
within specific time limits 

Ensure time taken to 
respond is 
commensurate with risk. 
Procedures are in place to 
ensure consistency of 
response on notification 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

Andy Beyer 
Andrew 

Dearlove 

 

A iv 10 

To respond to all dangerous 
structure reports efficiently and 
within specific time limits 

Ensure time taken to 
respond is 
commensurate with risk. 
Procedures are in place to 
ensure consistency of 
response on notification 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

Andy Beyer 
Andrew 

Dearlove 

 

A v 10 

To respond to all dangerous 
structure reports efficiently and 
within specific time limits 

Ensure time taken to 
respond is 
commensurate with risk. 
Procedures are in place to 
ensure consistency of 
response on notification 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

Andy Beyer 
Andrew 

Dearlove 

 

A v 10 

To enforce building regulations 
throughout the district in a 
consistent and professional 
manner 

Produce new 
enforcement procedures 
by June 2010, to ensure 
any enforcement takes 
place in a consistent 
manner and follows a 
specific procedure 
maintaining accurate 
records of any action 

Jun 2010 N/A N/A Andy Beyer 

 

A iv 10 

To enforce building regulations 
throughout the district in a 
consistent and professional 
manner 

Produce new 
enforcement procedures 
by June 2010, to ensure 
any enforcement takes 
place in a consistent 
manner and follows a 
specific procedure 
maintaining accurate 
records of any action 

Jun 2010 N/A N/A Andy Beyer 

 

P
age 87



  

PI target or deadline (month) for action Aim/ & 
Approach 

Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 
Lead Officer Performance 

A v 9 

To provide additional 
monitoring of planning 
conditions and consultations 
(subject to current financial 
bid) 

Introduce a method of 
monitoring the time taken 
to respond to 
consultation requests by 
June 2010 and ensure site 
monitoring and accurate 
responses process audit 

Jun 2010 N/A N/A 
Andy Beyer/ 

Andrew 
Dearlove 

 

A iv 9 

To provide additional 
monitoring of planning 
conditions and consultations 
(subject to current financial 
bid) 

Introduce a method of 
monitoring the time taken 
to respond to 
consultation requests by 
June 2010 and ensure site 
monitoring and accurate 
responses process audit 

Jun 2010 N/A N/A 
Andy Beyer/ 

Andrew 
Dearlove 

 

 

P
age 88



  

IMPROVEMENT PLAN: Building Control Service 
(To be used to set out plans of the service to address inescapable requirements and service developments or improvements) 

Relevant Council Aim/s: 
 
A - We are committed to being a listening Council, providing first class services accessible to all.  
C - We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
 
Relevant Council Approach/es: 
 
A i Listening to and engaging with our local community.  
A iv Achieving improved customer satisfaction with our services.  
A v. Ensuring that the Council demonstrates value for money in the way it works.  
C vii Taking account of climate change in all the services that we deliver.  
C viii Promoting low carbon living and delivering low carbon growth through the planning system. 
 
Service Objective: 
 
9 Provide an efficient and effective service achieving improved public satisfaction.  
10 Safeguard and improve the built and natural environment of the district.  
11 Ensure the continued reductions in carbon growth in line with changing legislation and sustainable development 
 
 

Aim/ & 
Approach 

Service 
Objective 

Improvement or 
Change Objective Actions Supporting Information Completion 

by Month 
Responsible 

Officer Performance 

A i 9 

To improve operation 
and enable 
acceptance of on line 
applications, 
information and 
compatible integration 
with existing council 
software and enable 
the Egov initiative to 
continue.   

To upgrade the 
existing building 
control computer 
system, by June 
2010, to a supported 
or web based version 
and provide software 
and hardware to plan 
check and record on 
site 

Additional Resources Required: 
Funding for software and equipment 
Outputs: Improved service and 
integration with other services 
Outcomes: Greater efficiency, 
Compliance with government guidelines  
Risks: Critical unsupported system risks 
total failure. 
Other services affected: Planning, 
Legal. Finance 
 

Jun 2010 

A Beyer  
/ 

Paul 
Grainger 

 

P
age 89



  

Aim/ & 
Approach 

Service 
Objective 

Improvement or 
Change Objective Actions Supporting Information Completion 

by Month 
Responsible 

Officer Performance 

A iv 9 

To improve operation 
and enable 
acceptance of on line 
applications, 
information and 
compatible integration 
with existing council 
software and enable 
the Egov initiative to 
continue.   

To upgrade the 
existing building 
control computer 
system, by June 
2010, to a supported 
or web based version 
and provide software 
and hardware to plan 
check and record on 
site 

Additional Resources Required: 
Funding for software and equipment 
Outputs: Improved service and 
integration with other services 
Outcomes: Greater efficiency, 
Compliance with government guidelines  
Risks: Critical unsupported system risks 
total failure. 
Other services affected: Planning, 
Legal. Finance 
 

Jun 2010 

A Beyer  
/ 

Paul 
Grainger 

 

A v 9 

To improve operation 
and enable 
acceptance of on line 
applications, 
information and 
compatible integration 
with existing council 
software and enable 
the Egov initiative to 
continue.   

To upgrade the 
existing building 
control computer 
system, by June 
2010, to a supported 
or web based version 
and provide software 
and hardware to plan 
check and record on 
site. 

Additional Resources Required: 
Funding for software and equipment 
Outputs: Improved service and 
integration with other services 
Outcomes: Greater efficiency, 
Compliance with government guidelines  
Risks: Critical unsupported system risks 
total failure. 
Other services affected: Planning, 
Legal. Finance 
 

Jun 2010 

A Beyer  
/ 

Paul 
Grainger 

 

A  iv 9 

To explore the 
sharing and pooling of 
resources with 
adjoining authorities 
to provide a 
consistent county 
wide approach to 
improve market share 
and service to our 
customers  

Discuss with 
adjoining authorities 
the sharing of 
training, expertise, 
methods of working 
and secondment 
possibilities when 
workload dictates 
by Sep 2010. 

Additional resources required: minimal 
some development of SLAs etc, 
Outputs: Increased marketing, greater 
levels of expertise, increased 
consistency. 
Outcomes: Possible increase in market 
share, improved customer service. 
Income. 
Other services affected.: Legal, 
Planning  

Sep 2010 A Beyer/ A 
Dearlove. 

 

P
age 90



  

Aim/ & 
Approach 

Service 
Objective 

Improvement or 
Change Objective Actions Supporting Information Completion 

by Month 
Responsible 

Officer Performance 

A v 9 

To explore the 
sharing and pooling of 
resources with 
adjoining authorities 
to provide a 
consistent county 
wide approach to 
improve market share 
and service to our 
customers  

Discuss with 
adjoining authorities 
the sharing of 
training, expertise, 
methods of working 
and secondment 
possibilities when 
workload dictates 
by Sep 2010. 

Additional resources required: minimal 
some development of SLAs etc, 
Outputs: Increased marketing, greater 
levels of expertise, increased 
consistency. 
Outcomes: Possible increase in market 
share, improved customer service. 
Income. 
Other services affected.: Legal, 
Planning  

Sep 2010 A Beyer/ A 
Dearlove. 

 

 

P
age 91



  

 
Planning Services (Building Control) 
Risk Register 
 
Date completed: February 2010 

 
 
No. Title Description 
a) The risk event,  
b) leading to consequence for service/Aim/Approach/Action,  
c) resulting in possible outcome(s). 

Impact/ 
Likelihood 

 

Direction of 
Travel 

Council Aims, 
Approaches, 

Actions 
Owner Timeline for 

Progress 

1a. Reduction in market share or slowing of construction sector 
1b. Leading to inability to provide first class service 
1c. Reduction in value for money. 

B/1 � A iv, A Beyer 06/2010 

4a. Under funding  
4b. Leading to a failure to meet statutory requirements 
4c. Affecting ability to provide a first class service  

B/2 � A iv 
A v A Beyer 06/2010 

8a. Under funding and lack of qualified staff  
8b. Leading to a reduced response to dangerous structures a loss of site 
control and reduced levels of public safety 
8c. Injury and Claims against the Council 

A/3 � E i A Beyer 06/2010 

      
a. Under funding  
b. Leading to reduced engineering and surveying public and 

interdepartmental advice 
c. Reduced site control and increased enforcement loss of market share 

C/3 � A iv A Beyer 04/2010 

      
 
Impact Likelihood Direction of Travel 
A  Extreme 
B  High 
C  Medium 
D  Low 

1  Almost certain 
2  Likely 
3  Possible 
4  Unlikely 
5  Seldom 
6  Rare 

� 
� 
� 

Priority reduced from last review (bracket indicates previous priority) 
Priority equal to last review 
Priority increased from last review (bracket indicates previous priority)  

 
Notes: 1. The dotted line shows the Council’s risk tolerance line. 

2. The Council is due to adopt new Aims, Approaches and Actions for 2009/10 onwards; please cross reference each risk to the relevant Aim(s), Approach(es) 
and/or Action(s), as appropriate (e.g. A. v., or E. ii. 2.). 

P
age 92



  

 

OPERATIONAL PLAN: Conservation and Design Service 

Relevant Council Aim/s:  
A: We are committed to being a listening Council, providing first class services accessible to all.  
B: We are committed to ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and healthy place for you and your family  
C: We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
D. We are committed to assisting provision of local jobs for you and your family 
E: We are committed to providing a voice for rural life 
Relevant Council Approach/es:  
A i. Listening and engaging with our local community. 
A ii. Working with voluntary organisations, Parish Councils and Cambridgeshire County Council to improve services through partnership  
A iv. Achieving improved customer satisfaction with our services.  
A v. Ensuring the Council demonstrates value for money in the way it works.  
B iii. Promoting active lifestyles and increasing sport and recreation to improve the health of all age groups  
C iv. Working with local residents to promote community cohesion and addressing the needs of the most vulnerable in the community  
C vii. Taking account of climate change in all the services that we deliver. 
C viii. Promoting low carbon living and delivering low carbon growth through the planning system. 
D i. Working closely with local businesses 
D iii. Using cultural activities effectively to promote tourism 
E i. Protecting existing communities, villages and the countryside. 
E ii. Working more closely with Parish Councils and local Groups 
E iii. Implementing planning policies to achieve successful new communities. 
E iv. Maximising planning gain for neighbouring communities. 
Relevant Draft Council Actions for 2010/11 
9. We will support local people to establish community orchards  
Service Objectives:  

1 - To act as stewards of the environment and take positive action to improve it 
2 - To protect and make best use of the sustainability benefits of the natural and historic environment 
3 - To reduce the causes and impacts of climate change and help the environment to adapt to it 
4 - To support housing growth which is sensitive to and enhances the environment  
5 - To increase public involvement in and enjoyment of the environment 
6 - To provide a high quality and value for money service to the public and other users  

Supporting Objectives: 
(a) Increasing understanding of the natural and historic environment and influencing and guiding change  
(b) Providing an effective and efficient environmental planning service to applicants and other customers 

(c) Protecting, enhancing and managing the natural and historic environment  
(d) Working with communities and other partners to achieve improvements to local places  

P
age 93



  

 
PI target or deadline (month) for 

action 
Aim/ & 

Approach 
 

Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
20010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Lead 
Officer 

Performance 

C viii 
E i,iii, iv 1-4 

Increasing understanding of the 
natural and historic environment 
and influencing and guiding 
change – Subject SPD 

Promote and provide training on 
the Landscaping of New 
Developments SPD (following   
adoption March 2010)  
 

April - June N/A N/A David 
Hamilton  

 

C viii 
Ei,iii 1-4 

Increasing understanding of the 
natural and historic environment 
and influencing and guiding 
change – Design Guide SPD 

Promote and provide training on 
the District Design Guide SPD  
(following adoption March 2010)  
 

April - June N/A N/A Corrie 
Newell 

 

Aii 
E I, iii 1-4 

Increasing understanding of the 
natural and historic environment 
and influencing and guiding 
change – Conservation Area 
Appraisal programme  

BV 219b - % of conservation 
areas in the local authority area 
with an up to date character 
appraisal. 
 

34% 
(29 out of 

85) 

36% 
31 out of 

85) 

39% 
(33 out of 

85) 

David 
Bevan  

Aii 
E I, iii 1-4 

Increasing understanding of the 
natural and historic environment 
and influencing and guiding 
change – Conservation Area 
Appraisal programme 

Number of conservation area 
appraisals completed. 
 

5 
(4 from 
drafts) 

2 2 David 
Bevan 

 

A iv, v 6 
1-4 

Providing an effective and 
efficient environmental planning 
service to applicants and other 
customers – Speed of response 
to applications 

SP 907 - % Listed Building 
Applications determined in 8 
weeks. 
Note: Will contribute to NI157b 
(minor planning applications) 

75%. 
 

80% 
 

85%. 
 

Corrie 
Newell  

 

A i, iv, v 6 
1-4 

Providing an effective and 
efficient environmental planning 
service to applicants and other 
customers – Customer 
satisfaction 

SP 908 - % of listed building 
applicants who agree or strongly 
agree that they were treated fairly 
Need to review indicator and data 
collection given small and 
possibly unrepresentative 
sample.   
 

90% 91% 92% Corrie 
Newell  

 

A iv, v 6 
1-4 

Providing an effective and 
efficient environmental planning 
service to applicants and other 
customers – Speed of response 
to applications 

SP 909 - % of listed tree consent 
applications processed within 8 
weeks of receipt 

95% 96% 97% Roz 
Richardson 

 

P
age 94



  

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action 

Aim/ & 
Approach 

 

Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
20010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Lead 
Officer 

Performance 

A iv, v 1-4, 6 

Providing an effective and 
efficient environmental planning 
service to applicants and other 
customers – Monitoring 
implementation  

The existing indicator is:  
SP931 - The number of 
implemented landscape schemes 
monitored 
 
The approach to monitoring is to 
be reviewed including in relation 
to the new planning system and 
an indicator and target should be 
agreed by the start of 2010/11. 
 

TBC TBC TBC 

David 
Hamilton/ 
Cariona 

Campbell  

 

A ii  
C vii 
E i 

1-3 

Protecting, enhancing and 
managing the natural and historic 
environment – Improving site 
management  

NI 197 - Improved local 
biodiversity – active management 
of local sites 
 

52% 55% 57% Rob 
Mungovan   

A ii  
C vii 
E i 

1-4 

Protecting, enhancing and 
managing the natural and historic 
environment – Extent and 
quality of resource 

SP939 - Net area of County 
Wildlife Sites and Sites of Special 
Scientific Interest (in South 
Cambridgeshire) combined – 
Hectares 
  

3,282 ha 3,283 ha 3,284 ha Rob 
Mungovan  

 

Ai, iv, v 
E i 
D i.  

 

1-2, 6 

Protecting, enhancing and 
managing the natural and historic 
environment – Conservation 
repairs  

SP904 - Number of historic 
buildings repaired with the 
support of SCDC grants 

12  12 12 Shona 
Smith  

 

Ai, iv, v 
E i 1-2, 6 

Protecting, enhancing and 
managing the natural and historic 
environment – Removing threats  

SP903 - Historic buildings at risk 
taken off the register as a % of all 
buildings at risk 
 

3 4 5 
Stacey 
Weiser-
Jones 

 

A i, ii, v 
B iii, iv 
C viii 
E I, ii 

1-3, 5,6  

Working with communities and 
other partners to achieve 
improvements to local places – 
New planting  

SP905 - Metres of hedges and 
hedgerow trees created with the 
support of SCDC grants 
 
Add indicator to CorVu for 
number of trees planted with 
target of 30 a year (TBC). 
 

2,500 2,500 2,500 Roz 
Richardson 

 

P
age 95



  

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action 

Aim/ & 
Approach 

 

Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
20010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Lead 
Officer 

Performance 

A i, ii, iv 
B iii 
C viii 

E I, iii, iv 

1-3, 5 

Working with communities and 
other partners to achieve 
improvements to local places – 
Increasing people’s contact 
with wildlife  

SP 901 – Hectares of accessible 
wildlife space per 1,000 
population  

7.6 8.1 8.6 Rob 
Mungovan  

 

C.Action 9 
A i, ii, 
B iii 

C iv, viii 
E i, ii 

 

1-3, 5 

Working with communities and 
other partners to achieve 
improvements to local places –
Supporting local people to 
establish community orchards 

Need to add indicator to CorVu 
and confirm target.  Scheme is 
currently limited to 2010/11. 
Also included in Improvement 
Plan.  
 

2 TBC TBC Rob 
Mungovan 

 

 
 
 

 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN:  Conservation & Design Service 
 
(To be used to set out plans of the service to address Council Actions or other plans to improve the service or address corporate themes set out in the Overview). List the 
Council Actions that are the responsibility of your service first. 
 
COUNCIL 
ACTION 

# 
 

 Council Action  
Supporting Information 
 
 

Completion 
by Month 

 
Officer 

 
 

9  Supporting local people to establish community orchards 
Work funded through existing Wildlife 
Enhancement Scheme budget. 
Target of 2 orchards to be confirmed.  

Ongoing 
through 
2010/11 

Rob Mungovan 
 

   

Additional Resources Required: No 
Outputs: Orchards planted  
Outcomes: Improvements to local places, 
sustainability, community engagement, 
volunteering, supports development of parish 
and local groups 
Risks: Loss of budget, failure to engage 
communities, speed of projects 
Other services affected: Tree and Landscape 
teams within Conservation & Design 

  

P
age 96



  

 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN:  Conservation & Design Service 
 
(To be used to set out plans of the service to address Council Actions or other plans to improve the service or address corporate themes set out in the Overview). List the 
Council Actions that are the responsibility of your service first. 
 
COUNCIL 

Aim/ 
Approach 

# 
See Key 

Service 
Objective 

# 
See Key 

Supporting Objective SMART* Actions or 
Milestones Supporting Information Completion 

by Month 

 
Officer 

 
 

Ai, iv, v 
Ei 

1, 6 
 

Improvements to planning 
services  

Exploiting benefits of new ICT 
planning system 
Improving co-ordination of 
planning and listed building 
consent systems 

Additional Resources Required: No  
Outputs: Improved performance, efficiency 
and co-ordination of Council services  
Outcomes: better customer service, VFM 
Risks: Problems with implementation of new 
system 
Other services affected: Development 
Control, Building Control  

TBC David Bevan  

A iv, v 
Ei 1,6 

Improvements to 
information systems and 
management  

Systematic filing systems and 
improved record 
management  

Additional Resources Required: Yes but 
very limited available  
Outputs: Fit for purpose systems which meet 
corporate and national standards  
Outcomes: Improved performance, avoidance 
of problems, compliance  
Risks: Lack of resources and support for 
digitisation 
Other services affected: Development 
Control, Legal, ICT 

Ongoing  David Bevan/ 
Theresa Roberts 

SMART = Specific, measurable, achievable, relevant and timed. 

P
age 97



  

 
Planning Services (Conservation & Design) Risk Register 

 
 

Date completed, November 2009 

No. Title Description 
a) The risk event,  
b) Leading to consequence for service/Aim/Approach/Action,  
c) Resulting in possible outcome(s)). 

Impact/ 
Likelihood 

 

Direction of 
Travel 

Council Aims, 
Approaches, 

Actions 
Owner Timeline for 

Progress 

Implementation of Biodiversity Duty (NERC Act 2006), which sets out 
the responsibilities of local authorities across their functions. Increased 
workload and demands on specialist staff.  Diversion of staff resources 
from existing tasks and programme, and from meeting corporate, LAA 
and national targets. Impact on staff morale.  

B3 Equal  Aiv, Ei, Eiii Rob 
Mungovan  Ongoing 

Major changes to historic environment planning introduced by new 
PPS 15. Need for Historic Environment Record covering historic 
buildings and revisions to SPDs will require investment/staff time. Extra 
workload and potential confusion created by emphasis on significance 
and lack of supporting legislation.  
 

B2 Equal Ai, iv 
Ei, iii 

David 
Bevan/Corrie 

Newell 
TBC 

Insufficient capacity to deal with continued high levels of workload and 
range of demands (planning/tree casework, policy, grants schemes, 
partnerships and housing growth) resulting in –  
- Failure to meet deadlines  
- Failure to deliver some areas of work  

- Staff suffering from stress 
 
Knock-on impact of cuts in Planning and New Communities.  

B2 Increased 
and new 

Ai, iv 
Ei, iii David Bevan Ongoing  

Lack of resources to improve the accuracy of environmental data, and 
digitise information backlog and new data, which applies across the 
section’s areas. This conflicts with national planning policy and 
reduces the quality, effectiveness and efficiency of the section’s work 
and the quality of planning policy, development control and other 
council services. Ultimately it harms the protection, management and 
enhancement of the environment. It also prevents the delivery of e 
Government and full public participation and access to information.  

B2 Equal  Ai, ii, iv, v 
Ei, ii, iii David Bevan  Ongoing  

Failure to fill the temporary maternity leave cover post in historic 
buildings team – inability to maintain statutory service  B3 New  Ai, iv, Ei David Bevan  

Failure to provide effective planning arrangements including – 
- improved validation processes  B2 New  Aiv, Ei David 

Bevan/Corrie  

P
age 98



  

Planning Services (Conservation & Design) Risk Register 
 
 

Date completed, November 2009 

No. Title Description 
a) The risk event,  
b) Leading to consequence for service/Aim/Approach/Action,  
c) Resulting in possible outcome(s)). 

Impact/ 
Likelihood 

 

Direction of 
Travel 

Council Aims, 
Approaches, 

Actions 
Owner Timeline for 

Progress 

- better integrated planning/historic buildings services 
 

Newell  

Introduction of new planning system –  
- time taken to set up the system, transfer data and learn how to use  
- the system does not meet requirements including specialised 
functions of section 
- unable to exploit potential of system e.g. due to lack of funding 
- lack of adequate training and support  
 

B3 New  Aiv, Ei David 
Bevan/Section   

Time taken dealing with complaints and contentious cases/applicants  C1 New  Ai, iv, v 
E ii 

David 
Bevan/Section  

 
 
Impact Likelihood Direction of Travel 
A Extreme 
B High 
C Medium 
D Low 

1 Almost certain 
2 Likely 
3 Possible 
4 Unlikely 
5 Seldom 
6 Rare 

R 
E 
I 
N 

Priority reduced from last review (bracket indicates previous priority) 
Priority equal to last review 
Priority increased from last review (bracket indicates previous priority)  
Priority which is new  

 
Notes: 1. The dotted line shows the Council’s risk tolerance line. 

2. The Council is due to adopt new Aims, Approaches and Actions for 2009/10 onwards; please cross reference each risk to the relevant Aim(s), 
Approach/es and/or Action(s), as appropriate (e.g. A. v., or E. ii. 2). 

 

P
age 99



  

 
 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
 
Service Objective: 
To provide up to date and deliverable planning policies to secure sustainable development and use of land in South Cambridgeshire which also gives effect to the spatial 
proposals in the Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Communities Strategy and Cambridgeshire’s Local Area Agreement and to secure by representation appropriate 
policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy as it affects South Cambridgeshire.. 

PI target or deadline (month) for action Council 
Aims/ 
Approaches 

Supporting Objective Performance Indicator 
or SMART Milestone 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Lead 
Officer 

Performance 

A2, C1, C2, 
C7, C8, D2, 
E1, E3 

Work with the local 
authority partners in 
Cambridgeshire to help 
shape the First Review of 
the East of England Plan 
or any successor strategic 
plan for Cambridgeshire. 

The programme for the 
preparation of the East of 
England Plan. 

Work with 
Cambridgeshire 
authorities on 
consultation on the 
submission draft of 
the East of England 
Plan: Sep 2010 

Evidence for East of 
England 
Examination in 
Public: Not yet 
programmed 

 Keith Miles  

E1, E4 Seeking to influence the 
content of Cambs CC 
Minerals and Waste 
Development Plan 
Documents to minimize 
the impact of mineral 
extraction and 
transportation, and to 
minimize the impact of 
waste disposal. 

The programme for plan 
preparation set out in the 
Cambs CC’s Local 
Development Scheme 

1. Consultation on  
submission Core 
Strategy and Site 
Specific Policy 
DPDs: Jul 2010 
2. Core Strategy 
DPD Examination: 
Nov 2010 

Site Specific 
Policies DPD 
Examination: Nov 
2011 

 Keith Miles/ 
Alison 
Talkington 

 

A1, A2, A3, 
A4, A5, C1, 
C2, C7, C8, 
D2, E1, E2, 
E3, E4 

Keep the rolling 
programme of plan 
preparation set out in the  
Local Development 
Scheme up to date. 

 Revise Local 
Development 
Scheme: Apr 2010 

Revise Local 
Development 
Scheme: Apr 2011 

Revise Local 
Development 
Scheme: Apr 2012 

Keith Miles  

P
age 100



  

 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
 
Service Objective: 
To provide up to date and deliverable planning policies to secure sustainable development and use of land in South Cambridgeshire which also gives effect to the spatial 
proposals in the Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Communities Strategy and Cambridgeshire’s Local Area Agreement and to secure by representation appropriate 
policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy as it affects South Cambridgeshire.. 

PI target or deadline (month) for action Council 
Aims/ 
Approaches 

Supporting Objective Performance Indicator 
or SMART Milestone 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Lead 
Officer 

Performance 

A1, A2, B3, 
C5, C7, C8, 
D1, D2, E2, 
E4, E5 

Work with Cambridge City 
Council and 
Cambridgeshire County 
Council to prepare a 
Cambridge Northern 
Fringe Area Action Plan 
(S29 Committee). 

The programme for plan 
preparation set out in the 
S29 Committee Local 
Development Scheme. 

1. Pre-production 
including 
commencement of 
document 
preparation and 
scoping  the 
sustainability 
appraisal: Jun 2010 
2. Identify and 
assess issues and 
options including 
consultation with 
stakeholders: Jan 
2011 

1. Consultation on 
Draft Submission 
DPD and 
subsequent 
submission to SoS: 
Jun 2011 
2. Public 
Examination: Jan 
2012 

Adoption: Jul 2013 Keith Miles  

A1, A2, B3, 
C1, C2, C7, 
C8, D1, D2, 
E1, E2, E4, 
E5 

Review the Core Strategy 
to provide a continuous and 
up to date planning policy 
framework for the 
development and 
enhancement of South 
Cambridgeshire to meet 
the needs of its population. 

The programme for plan 
preparation set out in the 
Local Development 
Scheme. 

Pre-production 
including 
commencement of 
document 
preparation and 
scoping  the 
sustainability 
appraisal: Sep 2010 

1. Identify and 
assess issues and 
options including 
consultation with 
stakeholders and 
sustainability 
appraisal report: 
Apr 2011 
2. Draft Core 
Strategy DPD: Nov 
2011 

1. Consultation on 
Draft Submission 
DPD and 
subsequent 
submission to SoS: 
Feb 2012. 
 

Caroline 
Hunt 

 

P
age 101



  

 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
 
Service Objective: 
To provide up to date and deliverable planning policies to secure sustainable development and use of land in South Cambridgeshire which also gives effect to the spatial 
proposals in the Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Communities Strategy and Cambridgeshire’s Local Area Agreement and to secure by representation appropriate 
policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy as it affects South Cambridgeshire.. 

PI target or deadline (month) for action Council 
Aims/ 
Approaches 

Supporting Objective Performance Indicator 
or SMART Milestone 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Lead 
Officer 

Performance 

A1, A2, B3, 
C1, C2, C7, 
C8, D1, D2, 
E1, E2, E3, 
E4 

Review Development 
Control Policies DPD to 
set out policies and 
proposals for development 
and land use in South 
Cambridgeshire’s villages 
and countryside in a 
replacement Development 
Management Policies 
DPD. 

The programme for plan 
preparation set out in the 
Local Development 
Scheme. 

 Pre-production 
including 
commencement of 
document 
preparation and 
scoping  the 
sustainability 
appraisal: Sep 2011 

1. Identify and 
assess issues and 
options including 
consultation with 
stakeholders and 
sustainability 
appraisal report: 
Apr 2012 
2. Draft 
Development 
Control Policies 
DPD: Nov 2012 

Caroline 
Hunt 

 

A1, B3, C1, 
C2, C7, C8, 
D1, D2, D3, 
E1, E2, E4, 
E5  

Review Site Specific 
Policies DPD to set out 
policies and proposals for 
development and land use 
in South Cambridgeshire’s 
villages and countryside. 

The programme for plan 
preparation set out in the 
Local Development 
Scheme. 

  Pre-production 
including 
commencement of 
document 
preparation and 
scoping the 
sustainability 
appraisal: Sep 2012 

Caroline 
Hunt 

 

A1, A2, B4, 
C1, C2, C4, 
C7, C8, E1, 
E2 

The preparation of a 
Gypsy and Travellers 
Development Plan 
Document to provide an 
equitable policy framework 
for housing all of South 
Cambridgeshire’s 
residents. 

The programme for plan 
preparation set out in the 
Local Development 
Scheme. 

Consultation on 
Draft Submission 
DPD and 
subsequent 
submission to SoS: 
Feb 2011 
 

Public Examination:  
Apr 2012 
 

Adoption and 
publication: Dect 
2012 

Jonathan 
Dixon 

 

P
age 102



  

 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
 
Service Objective: 
To provide up to date and deliverable planning policies to secure sustainable development and use of land in South Cambridgeshire which also gives effect to the spatial 
proposals in the Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Communities Strategy and Cambridgeshire’s Local Area Agreement and to secure by representation appropriate 
policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy as it affects South Cambridgeshire.. 

PI target or deadline (month) for action Council 
Aims/ 
Approaches 

Supporting Objective Performance Indicator 
or SMART Milestone 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Lead 
Officer 

Performance 

A1, A2, A3, 
C1, C2, D1, 
E2, E3, E4, 
E5 

The preparation of a 
Planning Obligations 
SPD to provide guidance to 
landowners, developers 
and stakeholders on 
development funding for 
necessary services, 
facilities and infrastructure. 

A proposal in an adopted 
Development Plan 
Document.  The 
programme for plan 
preparation set out in the 
Local Development 
Scheme. 

 Adoption and 
publication: Dec 
2011 

 Keith Miles  

A1, A2, C1, 
C2, E1, E2, 
E3, E4 

The preparation of a SPD 
providing guidance on 
securing a Housing Mix to 
help ensure that the 
District’s housing needs 
can be met in new 
developments. 

A proposal in an adopted 
Development Plan 
Document.  The 
programme for plan 
preparation set out in the 
Local Development 
Scheme. 

Adoption and 
publication: Dec 
2011 

  Caroline 
Hunt 

 

  A proposal in an adopted 
Development Plan 
Document.  The 
programme for plan 
preparation set out in the 
Local Development 
Scheme. 

Adoption and 
publication: Jan 
2011 

  Caroline 
Hunt 

 

A1, A2, C1, 
C2, C7, C8, 
E1, E2, E3, 
E4, E4 

The preparation of a SPD 
providing guidance on the 
redevelopment of 
Papworth West Central to 
secure suitable provision of 
housing and community 
facilities to meet the needs 
of the local community. 

A proposal in an adopted 
Development Plan 
Document.  The 
programme for plan 
preparation set out in the 
Local Development 
Scheme. 

Adoption and 
publication: Oct 
2010 

  Keith Miles  

P
age 103



  

 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
 
Service Objective: 
To provide up to date and deliverable planning policies to secure sustainable development and use of land in South Cambridgeshire which also gives effect to the spatial 
proposals in the Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Communities Strategy and Cambridgeshire’s Local Area Agreement and to secure by representation appropriate 
policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy as it affects South Cambridgeshire.. 

PI target or deadline (month) for action Council 
Aims/ 
Approaches 

Supporting Objective Performance Indicator 
or SMART Milestone 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Lead 
Officer 

Performance 

A1, A2, C7, 
C8, D1, D2, 
E1, E2, E3, 
E4 

The preparation of a SPD 
providing guidance on the 
redevelopment of 
Papworth Hospital to 
secure suitable provision of 
employment and 
community facilities to meet 
the needs of the local 
community. 

A proposal in an adopted 
Development Plan 
Document.  The 
programme for plan 
preparation set out in the 
Local Development 
Scheme. 

  Adoption and 
publication: Jan 
2013 

Caroline 
Hunt 

 

A1, A2, A4, 
B3, B4, E1, 
E2, E3 

Supporting the 
Environmental Health 
Service to produce a 
guidance on the 
preparation of Health 
Impact Assessments to 
accompany planning 
applications for relevant 
development. 

A proposal in an adopted 
Development Plan 
Document.  The 
programme for plan 
preparation set out in the 
Local Development 
Scheme. 

Adoption and 
publication: Mar 
2011 

  Claire 
Spencer 

 

A1, A2, D3, 
E1, E2 

Supporting the Design and 
Conservation Manager to 
produce guidance on 
development affecting 
Historic landscapes park 
and gardens. 

A proposal in an adopted 
Development Plan 
Document.  The 
programme for plan 
preparation set out in the 
Local Development 
Scheme. 

Adoption and 
publication: Mar 
2011 

  Claire 
Spencer 

 

A1, A2, C7, 
C8, D1, D2, 
D3, E1, E2 

The preparation of a SPD 
providing guidance on  
Rural dwellings required 
to support enterprises in 
the countryside. 

A proposal in an adopted 
Development Plan 
Document.  The 
programme for plan 
preparation set out in the 
Local Development 
Scheme. 

Adoption and 
publication: Mar 
2011 

  Caroline 
Hunt 

 

P
age 104



  

 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
 
Service Objective: 
To provide up to date and deliverable planning policies to secure sustainable development and use of land in South Cambridgeshire which also gives effect to the spatial 
proposals in the Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Communities Strategy and Cambridgeshire’s Local Area Agreement and to secure by representation appropriate 
policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy as it affects South Cambridgeshire.. 

PI target or deadline (month) for action Council 
Aims/ 
Approaches 

Supporting Objective Performance Indicator 
or SMART Milestone 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Lead 
Officer 

Performance 

A1, A2, C7, 
C8, D1, D2, 
E1, E2 

The preparation of a SPD 
providing guidance on 
securing a Fen Drayton 
LSA  to help provide for on 
site experimental or other 
ground-breaking forms of 
sustainable living. 

A proposal in an adopted 
Development Plan 
Document.  The 
programme for plan 
preparation set out in the 
Local Development 
Scheme. 

Adoption and 
publication: Mar 
2011 

  Caroline 
Hunt 

 

A4, A5, B4, 
C1, C2, C7, 
C8, D2, E3, 
E4, E5 

Update the Annual 
Monitoring Report 
examining the extent to 
which key policies of the 
Local Development 
Framework are being 
implemented together with 
meeting the timetable for 
the preparation of Local 
Development Documents 

The programme for plan 
preparation set out in the 
Local Development 
Scheme. 

Submission to 
Secretary of State: 
Dec 2010 

Submission to 
Secretary of State: 
Dec 2011 

Submission to 
Secretary of State: 
Dec 2012 

Jenny 
Nuttycomb
e 

 

A4, B3, C7, 
C8, D1, E2, 
E3, E4 

Working with internal 
service departments and 
externals service and 
infrastructure providing 
partners to ensure that well 
serviced development 
proceeds as planned as 
well as assisting to plan the 
delivery of service and 
infrastructure 
improvements within or 
affecting South 
Cambridgeshire. 

The housing 
trajectories set out in the 
East of England Plan and 
South Cambridgeshire 
Local Development 
Framework  

Sites identified in 
the housing 
trajectories shown 
in the South 
Cambridgeshire 
Local Development 
Framework.  
Service and 
infrastructure 
projects within or 
affecting  South 
Cambridgeshire: 
On-going 

Sites identified in 
the housing 
trajectories shown 
in the South 
Cambridgeshire 
Local Development 
Framework.  
Service and 
infrastructure 
projects within or 
affecting  South 
Cambridgeshire: 
On-going 

Sites identified in 
the housing 
trajectories shown in 
the South 
Cambridgeshire 
Local Development 
Framework.  Service 
and infrastructure 
projects within or 
affecting  South 
Cambridgeshire: 
On-going 

Keith Miles  

P
age 105



  

 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
 
Service Objective: 
To provide up to date and deliverable planning policies to secure sustainable development and use of land in South Cambridgeshire which also gives effect to the spatial 
proposals in the Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Communities Strategy and Cambridgeshire’s Local Area Agreement and to secure by representation appropriate 
policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy as it affects South Cambridgeshire.. 

PI target or deadline (month) for action Council 
Aims/ 
Approaches 

Supporting Objective Performance Indicator 
or SMART Milestone 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Lead 
Officer 

Performance 

C1, C7, C8, 
D2, D3, E1, 
E5 

Working on statutory and 
other consultations from 
planning authorities, local 
authorities, local 
organizations and 
infrastructure providers 
whose proposals, services or 
infrastructure would have a 
significant impact on South 
Cambridgeshire. 

Determined on a case by 
case basis by the timeline 
for the project. 

1. A14 upgrade 
(Highways Agency). 
2. Cambridgeshire 
TIF (Cambs CC, 
Cambridge City) 
3. Community 
transport in South 
Cambs (SCDC). 
4. Local Transport 
Plan 3 (Cambs CC). 
5. Cambridge 
transport corridors 
improvements 
strategy (Cambs CC, 
Cambridge City). 
6. Cambridge Cycle 
Demonstration Town 
(Cambs CC, 
Cambridge City).  
7. Stacking and 
flightpaths  
Stansted/Luton 
Airports  consultation 
(NATS). 
8. Cambs Water 
Cycle Strategy 
(Cambs Horizons, 
Cambs CC, Anglia 
Water, IDBs) 
9. Green 
Infrastructure 
Strategy (Cambs 
Horizons, Cambs 
CC, Cambs Districts, 
Natural England) 

On-going from 
previous years 
otherwise not known 
at this time. 

On-going from 
previous years 
otherwise not known 
at this time. 

Relevant 
Planning 
Policy team 
members 

 

 

P
age 106



  

 
SERVICE PLAN: Registration Team (Registration/Administration/Secretarial Assistant Service) 
 
Relevant Council Aim: 
 

A) We are committed to being a listening Council, providing first class services accessible to all. 
Relevant Council Approaches: 
 
A iii Making South Cambridgeshire District Council more open and accessible 
A iv Achieving improved customer satisfaction with our services.  
A v Ensuring that the Council demonstrates value for money in the way it works. 
Service Objectives: 
 
Deliver high quality services that represent best value and area accessible to all our community by: 
 
p - A commitment to improvement and good quality services. 
q - Achieving improved customer satisfaction with our services. 
 
 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Registration Team 
 

PI target or deadline (month) for action Aim/ & 
Approach 

Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 
Lead 

Officer Performance 

A iii 
A iv 
A v 

p, q 
To improve internal and 
external customer 
service satisfaction. 

Revise Contact Centre 
business rules for the Planning 
Service to take into account any 
training and development 
needs for the customer liaison 
officers 

As and when 
required – on-

going 

As and when 
required – on-

going 

As and 
when 
required 
– on-
going 

Rachael 
Fox  

A iii 
A iv 
A v 

p, q 
To improve internal and 
external customer 
service satisfaction. 

Coordinate Contact Centre 
Training for the Planning 
service 

¼ Training 
Schedule 

Implemented 
Mar 12 Mar 13 Rachael 

Fox  

A iii 
A iv 
A v 

p, q 
To improve internal and 
external customer 
service satisfaction. 

Customer Service Excellence 
Accreditation 

Training 
Schedule 

Implemented.  
Collation of 
Evidence 
Mar 11 

Mar 12 Mar 13 

Paul 
Knight/ 

Rachael 
Fox 

 

P
age 107



  

 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Registration Team 
 

PI target or deadline (month) for action Aim/ & 
Approach 

Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 
Lead 

Officer Performance 

A iv 
A v p, q 

To ensure the 
validation of Planning 
Applications to 
Development Control 
Area Teams is done in 
an efficient and 
effective manner. 

SP936 - % Major Planning 
Applications average process 
time for registration team 

7 days 6 days 5 days Rachael 
Fox  

A iv 
A v p, q 

To ensure the 
validation of Planning 
Applications to 
Development Control 
Area Teams is done in 
an efficient and 
effective manner. 

SP937 - % Minor Planning 
Applications average process 
time for registration team 

5 days 4 days 3 days Rachael 
Fox  

A iv 
A v p, q 

To ensure the 
validation of Planning 
Applications to 
Development Control 
Area Teams is done in 
an efficient and 
effective manner. 

SP938 - % Other Planning 
Applications average process 
time for registration team 

3 days 2 days 2 days Rachael 
Fox  

A iv 
A v p, q 

To ensure the 
validation of Planning 
Applications to 
Development Control 
Area Teams is done in 
an efficient and 
effective manner. 

SP945 - % Prior Notification 
(PNT, PND and PNA Planning 
Applications average process 
time for registration team 

1/3 days 2 days 2 days Rachael 
Fox  

A iv 
A v p, q 

To ensure the 
validation of Planning 
Applications to 
Development Control 
Area Teams is done in 
an efficient and 
effective manner. 

SP944 - Analysis of how 
Development Control 
Customers felt their application 
was dealt with – Customer 
Satisfaction Survey Responses 

73% 73% 73% Rachael 
Fox  

 

P
age 108



  

Registration/Administration/Secretarial Assistant Risk Register 
Date completed 5 November 2008 

 
No. Title Description 
(The risk event,  
Leading to consequence for service/Aim/Approach/Action,  
Resulting in possible outcome(s).) 

Impact/ 
Likelihood 

 

Direction of 
Travel 

Council Aims,  
Approaches,  

Actions 

Owner Timeline 
for 

Progress  

1. Under funding and lack of additional hardware and software would not enable the 
effective and efficient checking, validation, registration and determination of on-line and 
paper copy planning applications.  This would create dissatisfaction from customers of 
service. 

B  

A (i) 
A (iii) 
A (iv) 
A (v) 

Rachael Fox  

2. Under funding and lack of additional hardware and software would restrict the amount of 
information the service would publish on the Council’s website.  We would not be able to 
keep our customers informed at what stage their planning application was at.   B  

A (i) 
A (iii) 
A (iv) 
A (v) 

Rachael Fox  

3. Lack of funding would restrict consultants from further improving, developing and 
maintaining of existing ICT systems and databases. A  

A (i) 
A (iii) 
A (iv) 
A (v) 

Rachael Fox  

4. If a new Planning ICT system is not implemented it will jeopardise any integration of joint 
working partnerships with other services both internally and externally.  It would reduce 
efficiency, as no software enhancements would be active.  No information would be 
available for measuring performance.  This will create a diverse effect on staff morale and 
motivation.  Setting of priorities and targets will be non-existent. 

A  

A (i) 
A (iii) 
A (iv) 
A (v) 

Michael 
Osbourn/ 

Rachael Fox 
 

5. Increased stress and pressure that could lead to short-term and/or long-term 
sickness/illness put upon employees if flexible working is not introduced and monitored 
effectively within the workplace. 

B  A (iv) 
A (v) Rachael Fox  

6. Lack of knowledge and training provided by the Planning service to our Contact Centre 
affects our performance and the ability to provide a first class customer care service 
standard. 

C  A (iii) Rachael Fox  

7. Lack of funding leads to staff not being fully trained and up to date with legislation, cannot 
provide adequate advice leading to under performing staff, incompetency and 
unprofessional manner.  Dissatisfaction from customers of service, compensation because 
of bad decision-making. 

A  A (iv) 
A (v) Rachael Fox  

 

Impact Likelihood Direction of Travel 
A Extreme 
B High 
C Medium 
D Low 

1 Almost certain 
2 Likely 
3 Possible 
4 Unlikely 
5 Seldom 
6 Rare 

L 
L 
L 

Priority reduced from last review (bracket indicates previous priority) 
Priority equal to last review 
Priority increased from last review (bracket indicates previous priority)  

Notes: 1. The dotted line shows the Council’s risk tolerance line. 
2. The Council is due to adopt new Aims, Approaches and Actions for 2009/10 onwards; please cross reference each risk to the relevant Aim(s), Approach/es and/or Action(s), as appropriate (e.g. A. v., or E. ii. 2.). 
 

P
age 109



  

APPENDIX 1 

Registration function: 

The processing of an application will involve the following stages: 

§ Checking to ensure forms are properly completed, plans included, the owner and/or leaseholder of the property notified, if required, and the correct 
fee paid 

§ The application requirements, advice and checklists for the submission of different types of applications are contained within the relevant application 
forms and guidance notes on the “1App” forms.  All this information can be viewed and obtained from either the Planning Portal or the Council’s 
website 

§ Advertisements, if necessary, are placed in newspapers or site notices are put up in appropriate places 

§ Consultations – these cover clearing technical aspects with other statutory and technical bodies and supply services; informing those people who 
might be affected by the application; they all have the right to ask the local authority for more information and to raise objections 

§ Comments on applications may be made in writing to both Team East and Team West quoting the planning reference number whilst the application 
has not been decided.  Alternatively the Council’s on-line system for viewing applications “Planning Application Search” also enables comments to 
be made direct to these teams via the Council’s website 

§ Consideration of applications against existing and emerging Council policies and any past history of decisions on that site or for similar applications 

§ More technical checks that the application meets the Council’s standards for such things as parking, day lighting and visibility near road junctions, 
etc 

§ Following a site visit by a planning officer who might also contact the agent and/or applicant if more information or amendments are advisable 

§ The application will either go to Planning Committee made up of Councillors, or will be considered by the Chief Officer responsible for planning 
matters.  Should the application be referred to Planning Committee members of the public may attend the meeting and take part in the debate 

§ A link is provided to view the Council’s on-line Committee information “Modern.Gov”.  All agendas, minutes, delegation and committee reports for 
Planning Committee applications are available at least 5 working days before the relevant meeting.  The information is updated on a daily basis 
where necessary 

§ Shortly after Planning Committee the applicant and/or agent will receive a ‘decision notice’ 

§ Any time during the above process you can contact the Case Officer handling your application to discuss its progress and to give any information 
supporting the application 

§ All local planning authorities are required to deal with an application within prescribed time periods.  The process could be delayed beyond the 
target period by, for example, requests to the applicant and/or agent for amendments or the need to fit into the Planning Committee meeting 
schedule.  If the application is complicated, it is advised to engage with a professional consultant.  You can help speed up the process by contacting 
the planning duty officer before you submit the application to see if there are any standards or policies which could apply to your application.  You 
may even be told that planning permission is not necessary, though you may still need approval under Building Regulations.  To help try and identify 
if you need planning permission or not please view our “Planning Expert System” on-line to answer any questions. 

P
age 110



 
SERVICE PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
 
Relevant Council Actions: 
 
C1 - Set up a forum of Parish Councils, housing associations and others to examine the workings of our exception sites policy in light of recent experience 
and current market conditions 
Relevant Council Aim/s: 
 
A - We are committed to being a listening Council providing first class services accessible to all.  
C - We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
E - We are committed to providing a voice for rural life 
Relevant Council Approach/es: 
 
A ii Working with voluntary organisations, Parish Councils and Cambridgeshire County Council to improve services through partnership 
A iii Making South Cambridgeshire District Council more open and accessible 
 
C i Making affordable housing more available to local people 
C ii Ensuring that affordable housing is in balance with the community 
C iii Achieving a sustainable future for the Council’s housing stock 
 
E v Playing our part in improving rural services including transport links 
Service Objective: 
 
 

P
age 111



 

COUNCIL ACTIONS IMPLEMENTATION PLAN:  Planning Policy Service 
(To be used to set out plans to deliver the 33 Council Actions) 

Council 
Action Actions Supporting Information Completion 

by Month  
Responsi
ble Officer 

A ii 
Aiii 

Prepare and consult on a Statement 
of Community Involvement on 
planning issues by Sep 2010. 

Additional Resources Required: None, part of base budget 
Outputs:  A Statement of Community Involvement, which shows 
how the community will be involved in plan-making and in decisions 
on planning applications. 
Outcomes: Plans and planning application decisions, which the 
public have been better able to influence by knowing when and how 
they will be consulted. 
Risks:  Listed in the Local Development Scheme. 
Other services affected: The Council will integrate community 
engagement on planning with other community engagement 
activities taking place across the Council’s wider functions; and in 
the process consider how its equality duties are being fulfilled.  

Sep 2010 
 

Jan 2010 

Alison 
Talkington 

C ii 
C iii 

Review the Core Strategy DPD by 
Dec 2012 

Additional Resources Required: None, part of base budget 
Outputs:  An updated Core Strategy providing a continuous and up 
to date planning policy framework for the development and 
enhancement of South Cambridgeshire to meet the needs of its 
population which updates targets for responding to climate change 
and affordable housing. 
Outcomes:  Reductions in C02 emissions from new development.  
Risks: Listed in the Local Development Scheme 
Other services affected: 

Dec 2012 
 

Not yet 
started 
Expected 
start 

Sep 2010 

Caroline 
Hunt 

A iii 
C iii 

The preparation of a Gypsy and 
Travellers DPD by Jan 2012 

Additional Resources Required: None, part of base budget 
Outputs:  A Gypsy and Travellers DPD providing for an equitable 
policy framework for housing all of South Cambridgeshire’s residents 
Outcomes:  Planned pitch provision for travellers with local ties to 
South Cambridgeshire.  
Risks: Listed in the Local Development Scheme and unauthorised 
development of illegal travellers sites. 
Other services affected: 

Jan 2012 
 

Site options 
consultation 
completed 

Jonathan 
Dixon 

P
age 112



COUNCIL ACTIONS IMPLEMENTATION PLAN:  Planning Policy Service 
(To be used to set out plans to deliver the 33 Council Actions) 

Council 
Action Actions Supporting Information Completion 

by Month  
Responsi
ble Officer 

C i 
C ii 

The preparation of an Affordable 
Housing SPD by Jan 2010 

Additional Resources Required: None, part of base budget 
Outputs:  An Affordable Housing SPD providing guidance on 
securing affordable, including retirement homes for the elderly as a 
proportion of open market housing provision in the District. 
Outcomes:  Affordable housing including retirement homes to meet 
the proven needs of the residents of South Cambridgeshire. 
Risks: Listed in the Local Development Scheme 
Other services affected: 

Jan 2010 
 

Mar 2010 

Caroline 
Hunt 

C iii 
The preparation of a Sustainable 
Design and Construction SPD by 
Jan 2010 

Additional Resources Required: None, part of base budget 
Outputs:  A Sustainable Design and Construction SPD to help 
achieve the Council’s targets for energy & water conservation and 
energy generation. 
Outcomes:  Reductions in C02 emissions from new development. 
Risks: Listed in the Local Development Scheme 
Other services affected: 

Jan 2010 
 

Mar 2010 
Keith Miles 

E v 

Working with the Community 
Development Team, Cambridgeshire 
County Council and local 
communities in South 
Cambridgeshire to develop a 
Community Transport Plan by Jan 
2010 

Additional Resources Required:  None within Planning Policy.  
Focussing existing officers with transport responsibilities for the 
duration of this policy development. 
Outputs:  A strategy for Community Transport provision in South 
Cambridgeshire. 
Outcomes:  New community transport schemes in areas of poor 
public transport provision. 
Risks:  Staff will be diverted on to meeting the DPD and SPD 
deadlines. 
Other services affected:  Community development team. 

Jan 2010 
 

On track 

Claire 
Spencer 

 
 
 
 

P
age 113



 
 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
 
Service Objective: To provide up to date and deliverable planning policies to secure sustainable development and use of land in South Cambridgeshire 
which also gives effect to the spatial proposals in the Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Communities Strategy and Cambridgeshire’s Local Area 
Agreement and to secure by representation appropriate policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy as it affects South Cambridgeshire. 
 

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

  

Work with the local authority 
partners in Cambridgeshire to 
help shape the First Review of 
the East of England Plan using 
the programme for the 
preparation of the East of 
England Plan. 

Work with Cambridgeshire 
authorities on preferred strategy 
for submission to EERA by Mar 
2009. 
 
Consultation on submission draft 
of the East of England Plan by 
Dec 2009 

Dec 09 
 

Completed 
N/A N/A Keith Miles 

  

Keep the rolling programme of 
plan preparation set out in the 
Local Development Scheme up 
to date. 

Revise Local Development 
Scheme each year 

Apr 2009 
Completed Apr 2010 Apr 2011 Keith Miles 

A ii 
A iii  

Preparation of a Statement of 
Community Involvement which 
shows how the community will be 
involved in plan-making and in 
decisions on planning 
applications using the programme 
for plan preparation set out in the 
Local Development Scheme. 

Public participation on preferred 
SCI options and sustainability 
appraisal report by May 2009 

May 09 
 

Completed 
Dec 2009 

N/A N/A Alison 
Talkington 

A ii 
A iii  

Preparation of a Statement of 
Community Involvement which 
shows how the community will be 
involved in plan-making and in 
decisions on planning 
applications using the programme 
for plan preparation set out in the 
Local Development Scheme. 

Consultation on submission of 
SCI and Sustainability Appraisal 
Report to SoS by Oct 2009 

 
Oct 09 

 
Completed 

N/A N/A Alison 
Talkington 

P
age 114



 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
 
Service Objective: To provide up to date and deliverable planning policies to secure sustainable development and use of land in South Cambridgeshire 
which also gives effect to the spatial proposals in the Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Communities Strategy and Cambridgeshire’s Local Area 
Agreement and to secure by representation appropriate policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy as it affects South Cambridgeshire. 
 

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

C ii, iii  

Review the Core Strategy to 
provide a continuous and up to 
date planning policy framework 
for the development and 
enhancement of South 
Cambridgeshire to meet the 
needs of its population, using the 
programme for plan preparation 
set out in the Local 
Development Scheme 

Pre-production including 
commencement of document 
preparation and scoping the 
sustainability appraisal by Jul 
2009 

Jul 09 Jul 2010 N/A Caroline 
Hunt 

C ii, iii  

Review the Core Strategy to 
provide a continuous and up to 
date planning policy framework 
for the development and 
enhancement of South 
Cambridgeshire to meet the 
needs of its population, using the 
programme for plan preparation 
set out in the Local 
Development Scheme 

Public participation on preferred 
options and sustainability 
appraisal report: Sep 2010 

N/A 
Sep 10 

 
Mar 2011 

N/A Caroline 
Hunt 

P
age 115



 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
 
Service Objective: To provide up to date and deliverable planning policies to secure sustainable development and use of land in South Cambridgeshire 
which also gives effect to the spatial proposals in the Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Communities Strategy and Cambridgeshire’s Local Area 
Agreement and to secure by representation appropriate policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy as it affects South Cambridgeshire. 
 

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

C ii, iii  

Review the Core Strategy to 
provide a continuous and up to 
date planning policy framework 
for the development and 
enhancement of South 
Cambridgeshire to meet the 
needs of its population, using the 
programme for plan preparation 
set out in the Local 
Development Scheme 

Consultation on proposed 
submission of DPD and 
Sustainability Appraisal Report to 
SoS: Jun 2011 

N/A N/A 
June 11 

 
Dec 2011 

Caroline 
Hunt 

C ii, iii  

Review the Core Strategy to 
provide a continuous and up to 
date planning policy framework 
for the development and 
enhancement of South 
Cambridgeshire to meet the 
needs of its population, using the 
programme for plan preparation 
set out in the Local 
Development Scheme 

If no significant issues raised 
during period for representations 
requiring a change to the DPD, 
the Council can move straight to 
Submission to SoS: Nov 2011. 

N/A N/A 
Nov 11 

 
Mar 2012 

Caroline 
Hunt 

A iii 
C iii  

The preparation of a Gypsy and 
Travellers Development Plan 
Document to provide an 
equitable policy framework for 
housing all of South 
Cambridgeshire’s residents using 
the programme for plan 
preparation set out in the Local 
Development Scheme. 

Public participation on preferred 
GTDPP options and sustainability 
appraisal report by Nov 2009 
 

 Nov 2010 N/A Jonathan 
Dixon 

P
age 116



 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
 
Service Objective: To provide up to date and deliverable planning policies to secure sustainable development and use of land in South Cambridgeshire 
which also gives effect to the spatial proposals in the Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Communities Strategy and Cambridgeshire’s Local Area 
Agreement and to secure by representation appropriate policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy as it affects South Cambridgeshire. 
 

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

A iii 
C iii  

The preparation of a Gypsy and 
Travellers Development Plan 
Document to provide an 
equitable policy framework for 
housing all of South 
Cambridgeshire’s residents using 
the programme for plan 
preparation set out in the Local 
Development Scheme. 

Consultation on submission of 
DPD and Sustainability Appraisal 
Report to SoS: Sep 2010 

N/A  Sep 2011 Jonathan 
Dixon 

A iii 
C iii  

The preparation of a Gypsy and 
Travellers Development Plan 
Document to provide an 
equitable policy framework for 
housing all of South 
Cambridgeshire’s residents using 
the programme for plan 
preparation set out in the Local 
Development Scheme. 

If no significant issues raised 
during period for representations 
requiring a change to the DPD, 
the Council can move straight to 
Submission to SoS: Dec 2010. 

N/A  Dec 2011 Jonathan 
Dixon 

A iii 
C iii  

The preparation of a Gypsy and 
Travellers Development Plan 
Document to provide an 
equitable policy framework for 
housing all of South 
Cambridgeshire’s residents using 
the programme for plan 
preparation set out in the Local 
Development Scheme. 

Adoption and publication: Jan 
2012 N/A N/A 

Jan 12 
 

Jun 2012 

Jonathan 
Dixon 

P
age 117



 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
 
Service Objective: To provide up to date and deliverable planning policies to secure sustainable development and use of land in South Cambridgeshire 
which also gives effect to the spatial proposals in the Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Communities Strategy and Cambridgeshire’s Local Area 
Agreement and to secure by representation appropriate policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy as it affects South Cambridgeshire. 
 

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

  

Complete the preparation of a 
Site Specific Policies DPD to 
set out policies and proposals for 
development and land use in 
South Cambridgeshire’s villages 
and countryside by using the 
programme for plan preparation 
set out in the Local 
Development Scheme. 

Adoption and publication of SSP 
DPD by Oct 2009 

Oct 09 
 

Jan 2010 
N/A N/A Caroline 

Hunt 

  

Complete the preparation of a 
Cambridge North West Area 
Action Plan to set out policies 
and proposals for development to 
meet the long-term development 
needs of Cambridge University 
using the programme for plan 
preparation set out in the Local 
Development Scheme. 

Adoption and publication of 
CNWAAP by Jul 2009 

Jul 09 
 

Completed 
Sep 2009 

N/A N/A Caroline 
Hunt 

  

The preparation of a Planning 
Obligations SPD to provide 
guidance to landowners, 
developers and stakeholders on 
development funding for 
necessary services, facilities and 
infrastructure using t he 
programme for plan preparation 
set out in the Local 
Development Scheme. 

Adoption and publication of PO 
SPD by Jan 2010   Jun 2011 Jonathan 

Dixon 

P
age 118



 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
 
Service Objective: To provide up to date and deliverable planning policies to secure sustainable development and use of land in South Cambridgeshire 
which also gives effect to the spatial proposals in the Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Communities Strategy and Cambridgeshire’s Local Area 
Agreement and to secure by representation appropriate policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy as it affects South Cambridgeshire. 
 

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

C i  

The preparation of a SPD 
providing guidance on securing 
Affordable Housing as a 
proportion of open market 
housing provision in the District 
using the programme for plan 
preparation set out in the Local 
Development Scheme. 

Adoption and publication of AH 
SPD by Jan 2010 

Jan 10 
 

Mar 2010 
N/A N/A Caroline 

Hunt 

C ii  

The preparation of a SPD 
providing guidance on securing 
Affordable Housing as a 
proportion of open market 
housing provision in the District 
using the programme for plan 
preparation set out in the Local 
Development Scheme 

Adoption and publication of AH 
SPD by Jan 2010 

Jan 10 
 

Mar 2010 
N/A N/A Caroline 

Hunt 

C ii  

The preparation of a SPD 
providing guidance on securing 
Sustainable Design and 
Construction to help achieve the 
Council’s targets for energy & 
water conservation and energy 
generation using the programme 
for plan preparation set out in the 
Local Development Scheme 

Adoption and publication of SDC 
SPD by Jan 2010 

Jan 10 
 

Mar 2010 
N/A N/A Keith Miles 

P
age 119



 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
 
Service Objective: To provide up to date and deliverable planning policies to secure sustainable development and use of land in South Cambridgeshire 
which also gives effect to the spatial proposals in the Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Communities Strategy and Cambridgeshire’s Local Area 
Agreement and to secure by representation appropriate policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy as it affects South Cambridgeshire. 
 

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

  

Supporting the Design and 
Conservation Manager to 
produce a Design Guide SPD to 
secure high quality design in all 
new development using the 
programme for plan preparation 
set out in the Local 
Development Scheme. 

Adoption and publication of DG 
SPD by Jan 2010 

Jan 10 
 

Mar 2010 
N/A N/A Claire 

Spencer 

  

Supporting the Design and 
Conservation Manager to 
produce a Listed Buildings SPD 
to ensure that any alterations to 
listed buildings are sympathetic 
and high quality using the 
programme for plan preparation 
set out in the Local 
Development Scheme. 

Adoption and publication: Oct 
2009 

Oct 09 
 

Completed 
Jul 2009 

N/A N/A Claire 
Spencer 

  

Supporting the Design and 
Conservation Manager to 
produce a Biodiversity Strategy 
to preservation and enhancement 
of the wildlife and ecology of the 
District using the programme for 
plan preparation set out in the 
Local Development Scheme. 

Adoption and publication: Oct 
2009 

Oct 09 
 

Completed 
Jul 2009 

N/A N/A Claire 
Spencer 

P
age 120



 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
 
Service Objective: To provide up to date and deliverable planning policies to secure sustainable development and use of land in South Cambridgeshire 
which also gives effect to the spatial proposals in the Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Communities Strategy and Cambridgeshire’s Local Area 
Agreement and to secure by representation appropriate policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy as it affects South Cambridgeshire. 
 

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

  

Update the Annual Monitoring 
Report examining the extent to 
which key policies of the Local 
Development Framework are 
being implemented together with 
meeting the timetable for the 
preparation of Local Development 
Documents using the programme 
for plan preparation set out in the 
Local Development Scheme. 

Submission annually to Secretary 
of State by December 

Dec 09 
 

Completed 
Dec 2010 Dec 2011 

Jenny 
Nuttycomb

e 

E v  

Working with internal service 
departments and externals 
service and infrastructure 
providing partners to ensure that 
well serviced development 
proceeds as planned as well as 
assisting to plan the delivery of 
service and infrastructure 
improvements within or affecting 
South Cambridgeshire using the 
housing trajectories set out in the 
East of England Plan and South 
Cambridgeshire Local 
Development Framework 

Sites identified in the housing 
trajectories shown in the South 

Cambridgeshire Local 
Development Framework.  
Service and infrastructure 

projects within or affecting South 
Cambridgeshire 

Mar 10 Mar 11 Mar 12 Keith Miles 

 

P
age 121



 

IMPROVEMENT PLAN: Planning Policy Service 
(To be used to set out plans of the service to address inescapable requirements and service developments or improvements) 

Relevant Council Aim/s: N/A 
Relevant Council Approach/es: N/A 
Service Objective: N/A 

Aim/ & 
Approach 

Service 
Objective 

Improvement or 
Change Objective Actions Supporting Information Completion 

by Month 
Responsibl
e Officer 

No specific improvements have been identified. 
 
Our systems have already been changed at no cost to the Council and any other changes during the course of 09/10 will also be efficiency improvements 
again made at no cost to the Council.  
 
The improvement that we need to have made is to change our IT consultation systems to take on board new plan-making Regulations. 
 
The only 'improvement' that will have a cost is scanning our files, which has gone in as a Corporate Bid for the whole department. 
 
 

P
age 122



 

COUNCIL ACTIONS IMPLEMENTATION PLAN:  Development Control Service 
(To be used to set out plans to deliver the 33 Council Actions) 

COUNCIL 
ACTION 

# 
Council Action Actions Supporting Information Completion 

by Month 
Responsible 

Officer 

C1 
E ii 

Set up a forum of parish 
councils, housing 
associations and others by 
Sep 2009 to examine the 
workings of our exception 
sites policy in light of recent 
experience and current 
market conditions 

The Forum will be 
established and have fully 
examined with a view to 
improving the exceptions 
policy, by Sep 2009. 

Additional Resources Required:  None. 
Outputs:  Improved understanding by and 
quality of responses from Parish Councils, 
Housing Associations and others to 
applications for affordable housing on 
exception sites. 
Outcomes:  Improved relationships with 
Parish Councils, Housing Associations and 
others and support from them to providing 
affordable housing on exception sites 
Risks:  The Council not providing sufficient 
affordable housing to meet the needs of its 
population.  
Other services affected:  Housing and 
Legal  

Sep 2009 
 

Jan 2010 

Gareth 
Jones 

 

P
age 123



 
 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Development Control Service 
 
Relevant Council Aim/s: 
 
A - We are committed to being a listening Council providing first class services accessible to all.  
C - We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
E - We are committed to providing a voice for rural life 
Relevant Council Approach/es: 
 
A i Listening to and engaging with our local community. 
A ii working with voluntary organisations, Parish Councils and Cambridgeshire County Council to improve services through partnership 
A iii making South Cambridgeshire District Council more open and accessible 
A iv Achieving improved customer satisfaction with our services.  
A v. Ensuring that the Council demonstrates value for money in the way it works. 
 
C i making affordable housing more available to local people 
C ii ensuring that affordable housing is in balance with the community 
C iii achieving a sustainable future for the Council’s housing stock 
C vii Taking account of climate change in all the services we deliver.  
C viii Promoting low carbon living and delivering low carbon growth through the planning system. 
 
E ii working more closely with Parish Councils and local Groups 
E iii implementing planning policies to achieve successful new communities 
E iv maximising planning gain for neighbouring communities 
E v playing our part in improving rural services including transport links 
Service Objective: 
 
c To deliver an improved Development Control Service that meets all its statutory requirements and improves response rates to customer enquiries. 
 

P
age 124



 
 
 

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

A i 
A ii 
A iii 
A iv 
E ii 

3 
4 

Introduce a new system of 
quarterly meetings to which all 
Parish Councils will be invited 
by March 10 

Contribute to the setting up of the 
meetings and attend to offer 
advice and training.  Establish 
Parish training sessions, perhaps 
1 per team per year. 

March 10 
Achieved N/A N/A David Rush 

A v 
2 
3 
4 

Provide an efficient service for 
applicants, to ensure that 
applications are determined in 
accordance with Government and 
local targets. 

NI 157a Processing of planning 
applications as measured against 
targets for ‘major types 

71% 
On target 72% 73% David Rush 

A v 
2 
3 
4 

Provide an efficient service for 
applicants, to ensure that 
applications are determined in 
accordance with Government and 
local targets. 

NI 157b Processing of planning 
applications as measured against 
targets for ‘minor’ types 

71% 
On target 72% 73% David Rush 

A v 
2 
3 
4 

Provide an efficient service for 
applicants, to ensure that 
applications are determined in 
accordance with Government and 
local targets. 

NI 157c Processing of planning 
applications as measured against 
targets for ‘other’ application 
types 

86% 
On target 86% 86% David Rush 

A v 
2 
3 
4 

Provide an efficient service for 
applicants, to ensure that 
applications are determined in 
accordance with Government and 
local targets. 

SP921 % of householder 
applications determined within 8 
weeks. 

90% 
80% 

Delays in 
registrati

on 
process 

90% 90% David Rush 

A iv 1 
4 

Provide an efficient service for 
applicants, to ensure that 
applications are determined in 
accordance with Government and 
local targets. 

SP902 The %of decisions 
delegated to officers as a %of all 
decisions 

95% 
90% NB 
change I 
approach 

95% 95% David Rush 

P
age 125



PI target or deadline (month) for 
action Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

C i 
C ii 
C iii 

1 
2 
12 

Provide an efficient service for 
applicants, to ensure that 
applications are determined in 
accordance with Government and 
local targets. 

SH320 Affordable housing 
planning permissions as a % of 
all residential permissions 
(excludes new Traveller/Gypsy 
pitches) 

20% 
On target 23% 25% David Rush 

A v 3 Provide improved service to 
applicants and agents. 

SP944  % of customers satisfied 
with the processing of their 
planning application 

73% 
Achieved 74% 75% David Rush 

 

P
age 126



 

IMPROVEMENT PLAN:  Development Control Service 

COUNCIL 
ACTION 

# 

Service 
Objective 

Supporting 
Objective 

Performance 
Indicator or SMART 

Milestone 
Supporting Information 

Completio
n by 
Month 

Responsibl
e Officer 

A i 
A iii 
A iv 

3 
4 
5 

Improve customer 
contact with Planning 

Officers 

Establish a Duty 
Officer System by 

June 2009 

Additional Resources Required:  None.  
Additional Senior Officer recruited as part of 
08/09 budget. 
Outputs:  Improved service to the public to 
provide direct contact with a Planning Officer. 
Outcomes:  Fewer complaints. 
Risks:  Poor quality services, delays in the 
process and poor quality developments. 
Other services affected:  Contact Centre, 
ICT. 

06/09 
 
In 

operation 

David Rush 

A i 
A iii 
A iv 

1 
3 
4 

Provide an efficient 
service for applicants 
and agents 

Prepare a protocol 
for pre-application 
discussions, by 
June 2009 following 
discussions and 
agreement at the 
Agents Forum 

Additional Resources Required:  None other 
than that generated by the eventual 
introduction of charging for some pre-
application discussions. 
Outputs:  Improved applications and 
compliance with 1APP requirements. 
Outcomes:  Better quality decisions, improved 
and more consistent advice and improved 
quality of development. 
Risks:  Delays in the process, not meeting 
targets for determination of applications and 
poorer quality developments. 
Other services affected:  Other Services 
involved in development, such as 
Conservation, Environmental Health and 
Housing. 

06/09 
 

In place 
David Rush 

P
age 127



IMPROVEMENT PLAN:  Development Control Service 

C i 
C ii 
C iii 

2 
10 

To provide a clear 
and efficient process 
for future 
development. 

Require the 
submission of 
Design Guides with 
applications for 
‘major major’ 
developments by 
Sep 2009 (Arbury 
Park report 
recommendation). 

Additional Resources Required:  None. 
Outputs:  To provide a clear basis for 
decisions on future applications. 
Outcomes:  To ensure a consistently high 
quality of development. 
Risks:  Lack of public confidence in the 
planning system. 
Other services affected:  None. 

09/09 
Design 

Guide is in 
draft with 
Urban 
Design 
Expected 
Mar 2010 

David Rush 

E iii 
E iv 
E v 

2 
7 

Establish a database, 
which will enable the 
team to ensure the 
implementation of 
S.106 obligations in 
accordance with 
agreed timescale. 

Increase staff 
resource to develop, 
launch and utilise 
the S106 obligation 
database by June 
2009 

Additional Resources Required:  Agreed as 
part of 08/09 budget. 
Outputs:  Better control of S.106 
implementation. 
Outcomes:  Better monitoring and provision of 
services in a timely manner. 
Risks:  Delays in service provision and 
increase in complaints. 
Other services affected:  Legal. 

06/09 
 

Completed 

David Rush 
(with Paul 
Grainger 
support) 

 

P
age 128



 
 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Building Control Service 
 
Relevant Council Aim/s: 
A - We are committed to being a listening Council, providing first class services accessible to all.  
C - We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
Relevant Council Approach/es: 
A i Listening to and engaging with our local community.  
A iv Achieving improved customer satisfaction with our services.  
A v. Ensuring that the Council demonstrates value for money in the way it works.  
C vii Taking account of climate change in all the services we deliver.  
C viii Promoting low carbon living and delivering low carbon growth through the planning system. 
Service Objective: 
h Provide an efficient and effective service achieving improved public satisfaction.  
i Safeguard and improve the built and natural environment of the district.  
j Ensure the continued reductions in carbon growth in line with changing legislation and sustainable development. 

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

A I 
A iv 

9 
11 

To provide accurate, current and 
consistent advice on Building 
Regulations, sustainability and 
energy efficiency and allied 
legislation using Audited sources 

Carry out the annual customer 
survey in December 2009.  
Other actions include a Customer 
forum, training technical meetings 
and seminars to ensure accurate 
and consistent advice. 

12/09 
SP927 
SP935 

Completed 
In 

progress 

12/10 
 
 

SP927 
SP935 

12/11 
 
 

SP927 
SP935 

Andy Beyer 

A iv 
A v 9 

To ensure all Building Regulation 
Applications are Registered and 
processed efficiently. 

Monitor the time taken to 
acknowledge applications or 
provide a meaningful response 
and ensure procedures are 
updated 

SP922 
SP923 

On target 

SP922 
SP923 

SP922 
SP923 Andy Beyer 

A iv 
A v 9 

To ensure all Full Plans 
applications and Building Notices 
are checked efficiently and 
consistently and within statutory 
and internal target time limits 

Monitor and check time taken 
to check applications and issue 
decisions and ensure 
consistency of approach through 
guidance and training 

SP924 
SP925 

On target 

SP924 
SP925 

SP924 
SP925 

Andrew 
Dearlove, 

Nick 
Kendall 

P
age 129



 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Building Control Service 
 
Relevant Council Aim/s: 
A - We are committed to being a listening Council, providing first class services accessible to all.  
C - We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
Relevant Council Approach/es: 
A i Listening to and engaging with our local community.  
A iv Achieving improved customer satisfaction with our services.  
A v. Ensuring that the Council demonstrates value for money in the way it works.  
C vii Taking account of climate change in all the services we deliver.  
C viii Promoting low carbon living and delivering low carbon growth through the planning system. 
Service Objective: 
h Provide an efficient and effective service achieving improved public satisfaction.  
i Safeguard and improve the built and natural environment of the district.  
j Ensure the continued reductions in carbon growth in line with changing legislation and sustainable development. 

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

A ii 
A iv 
A v 

9 
10 

To inspect all building work under 
our control to ensure compliance 
with current building regulations 
efficiently and effectively 

Monitor the number of 
inspections and time taken to 
carry out and ensure the 
resources are targeted to ensure 
speed and accuracy, consistency 
and recording 

SP926 
 

On target 
SP926 SP926 Andrew 

Dearlove 

A i 
A ii 
A iv 
A v 

10 

To respond to all dangerous 
structure reports efficiently and 
within specific time limits 

Ensure time taken to respond 
is commensurate with risk. 
Procedures are in place to ensure 
consistency of response on 
notification 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

On target 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

SP928 
SP929 
SP930 

Andy Beyer 
Andrew 
Dearlove 

A iv 
A v 10 

To enforce building regulations 
throughout the district in a 
consistent and professional 
manner 

Produce new enforcement 
procedures by June 2010, to 
ensure any enforcement takes 
place in a consistent manner and 
follows a specific procedure 
maintaining accurate records of 
any action 

06/10 
 

50% 
Complete 

N/A N/A Andy Beyer 

P
age 130



 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Building Control Service 
 
Relevant Council Aim/s: 
A - We are committed to being a listening Council, providing first class services accessible to all.  
C - We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
Relevant Council Approach/es: 
A i Listening to and engaging with our local community.  
A iv Achieving improved customer satisfaction with our services.  
A v. Ensuring that the Council demonstrates value for money in the way it works.  
C vii Taking account of climate change in all the services we deliver.  
C viii Promoting low carbon living and delivering low carbon growth through the planning system. 
Service Objective: 
h Provide an efficient and effective service achieving improved public satisfaction.  
i Safeguard and improve the built and natural environment of the district.  
j Ensure the continued reductions in carbon growth in line with changing legislation and sustainable development. 

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

A iv 
A v 9 

To provide additional monitoring 
of planning conditions and 
consultations (subject to current 
financial bid) 

Introduce a method of 
monitoring the time taken to 
respond to consultation 
requests by June 2010 and 
ensure site monitoring and 
accurate responses process audit 

06/10 
 

Not 
Started 

N/A N/A 

Andy 
Beyer/ 
Andrew 
Dearlove 

 

P
age 131



 

IMPROVEMENT PLAN: Building Control Service 
(To be used to set out plans of the service to address inescapable requirements and service developments or improvements) 

Relevant Council Aim/s: 
A - We are committed to being a listening Council, providing first class services accessible to all.  
C - We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
Relevant Council Approach/es: 
A i Listening to and engaging with our local community.  
A iv Achieving improved customer satisfaction with our services.  
A v. Ensuring that the Council demonstrates value for money in the way it works.  
C vii Taking account of climate change in all the services that we deliver.  
C viii Promoting low carbon living and delivering low carbon growth through the planning system. 
Service Objective: 
9 Provide an efficient and effective service achieving improved public satisfaction.  
10 Safeguard and improve the built and natural environment of the district.  
11 Ensure the continued reductions in carbon growth in line with changing legislation and sustainable development 

Aim/ & 
Approach 

Service 
Objective 

Improvement or 
Change Objective Actions Supporting Information Completion 

by Month 
Responsible 

Officer 

A i 
A iv 
A v 

9 

To improve operation 
and enable 
acceptance of on line 
applications, 
information and 
compatible integration 
with existing council 
software and enable 
the Egov initiative to 
continue.   

To upgrade the 
existing building 
control computer 
system, by June 
2009, to a supported 
or web based version 
and provide software 
and hardware to plan 
check and record on 
site 

Additional Resources Required: Funding for 
software and equipment 
Outputs: Improved service and integration 
with other services 
Outcomes: Greater efficiency, Compliance 
with government guidelines  
Risks: Critical unsupported system risks total 
failure. 
Other services affected: Planning, Legal. 
Finance 
 

June 09 
 

March 2010 

A Beyer  
/ 

Paul 
Grainger 

P
age 132



IMPROVEMENT PLAN: Building Control Service 
(To be used to set out plans of the service to address inescapable requirements and service developments or improvements) 

 
A v 
A iv 

9 

To explore the 
sharing and pooling 
of resources with 
adjoining authorities 
to provide a 
consistent county 
wide approach to 
improve market share 
and service to our 
customers  

Discuss with 
adjoining 
authorities the 
sharing of training, 
expertise, methods 
of working and 
secondment 
possibilities when 
workload dictates 
by Sep 2009. 

Additional resources required: minimal 
some development of SLAs etc, 
Outputs: Increased marketing, greater levels 
of expertise, increased consistency. 
Outcomes: Possible increase in market 
share, improved customer service. Income. 
Other services affected: Legal, Planning  

09/09 
 

Ongoing 

A Beyer/ A 
Dearlove. 

 

P
age 133



 
 
Planning Services (Building Control) Risk Register 
 
Date completed, Draft 24th October 2008 

 

 
No. Title Description 
a) The risk event,  
b) Leading to consequence for service/Aim/Approach/Action,  
c) Resulting in possible outcome(s). 

Impact/ 
Likelihood 

 

Direction of 
Travel 

Council Aims, 
Approaches, 
Actions 

Owner Timeline for 
Progress 

1a. Reduction in market share or slowing of construction sector 
1b. Leading to inability to provide first class service 
1c. Reduction in value for money. 

B/1 G A iv, A Beyer 06/2009 

4a. Under funding  
4b. Leading to a failure to meet statutory requirements 
4c. Affecting ability to provide a first class service  

B/2 G A iv 
A v A Beyer 06/2009 

8a. Under funding and lack of qualified staff  
8b. Leading to a reduced response to dangerous structures a loss of 
site control and reduced levels of public safety 
8c. Injury and Claims against the Council 

A/3 G E i A Beyer 06/2009 

a. Under funding  
b. Leading to reduced engineering and surveying public and 

interdepartmental advice 
c. Reduced site control and increased enforcement loss of market 

share 

C/3 G A iv A Beyer 04/2009 

Impact Likelihood Direction of Travel 
A Extreme 
B High 
C Medium 
D Low 

1 Almost certain 
2 Likely 
3 Possible 
4 Unlikely 
5 Seldom 
6 Rare 

G 
G 
G 

Priority reduced from last review (bracket indicates previous priority) 
Priority equal to last review 
Priority increased from last review (bracket indicates previous priority)  

Notes: 1. The dotted line shows the Council’s risk tolerance line. 
2. The Council is due to adopt new Aims, Approaches and Actions for 2009/10 onwards; please cross reference each risk to the relevant Aim(s), 

Approach/es and/or Action(s), as appropriate (e.g. A. v., or E. ii. 2.). 
 
 
 

P
age 134



OPERATIONAL PLAN: Conservation and Design Service 

Relevant Council Aim/s: 
A: We are committed to being a listening Council, providing first class services accessible to all.  
B: We are committed to ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and healthy place for you and your family  
C: We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
E: We are committed to providing a voice for rural life 
Relevant Council Approach/es: 
A i. Listening and engaging with our local community. 
A ii. Working with voluntary organisations, Parish Councils and Cambridgeshire County Council to improve services through partnership  
A iv. Achieving improved customer satisfaction with our services.  
A v. Ensuring the Council demonstrates value for money in the way it works.  
B iii. Promoting active lifestyles and increasing sport and recreation to improve the health of all age groups  
C iv. Working with local residents to promote community cohesion and addressing the needs of the most vulnerable in the community  
C vii. Taking account of climate change in all the services that we deliver. 
C viii. Promoting low carbon living and delivering low carbon growth through the planning system. 
E i. Protecting existing communities, villages and the countryside. 
E iii. Implementing planning policies to achieve successful new communities. 
E iv. Maximising planning gain for neighbouring communities. 
Service Objectives:  
k - To act as stewards of the environment and take positive action to improve it 
l - To protect and make best use of the sustainability benefits of the natural and historic environment 
m - To reduce the causes and impacts of climate change and help the environment to adapt to it 
n - To support housing growth which is sensitive to and enhances the environment  
o - To increase public involvement in and enjoyment of the environment 
p - To provide a high quality and value for money service to the public and other users  
 
Supporting Objectives: 

(a) Increasing understanding of the natural and historic environment and influencing and guiding change  
(b) Providing an effective and efficient environmental planning service to applicants and other customers 
(c) Protecting, enhancing and managing the natural and historic environment  
(d) Working with communities and other partners to achieve improvements to local places  

P
age 135



 
PI target or deadline (month) for 

action 
Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

C viii 
E i,iii, iv 1-4 

Increasing understanding of the 
natural and historic environment 
and influencing and guiding 
change – Subject SPD 

Work with Planning Policy to 
produce the adopted SPD for 
Listed Buildings for the LDF  

Adoption 
Sept 09 
Adopted 
July 09 

N/A N/A David 
Bevan  

C viii 
E i,iii, iv 1-4 

Increasing understanding of the 
natural and historic environment 
and influencing and guiding 
change – Subject SPD 

Work with Planning Policy to 
produce the adopted SPD for 
Landscaping of New 
Developments for the LDF 

Adoption 
Sept 09? 
February 

10 
Consultation 
responses 
received 

N/A N/A David 
Hamilton  

C viii 
E i,iii, iv 1-4 

Increasing understanding of the 
natural and historic environment 
and influencing and guiding 
change – Subject SPD 

Work with Planning Policy to 
produce the adopted SPD for 
Biodiversity for the LDF. 

Adoption 
Sept 09 
Adopted 
July 09 

N/A N/A Rob 
Mungovan  

C viii 
Ei,iii 1-4 

Increasing understanding of the 
natural and historic environment 
and influencing and guiding 
change – Design Guide SPD 

Work with Planning Policy to 
revise the District Design Guide 
and prepare for adoption as SPD. 

Consultatio
n draft  
July 09 
February 

10 
Consultation 
responses 
received 

N/A N/A Corrie 
Newell 

Aii 
E I, iii 1-4 

Increasing understanding of the 
natural and historic environment 
and influencing and guiding 
change – Conservation Area 
Appraisal programme  

BV 219b - % of conservation 
areas in the local authority area 
with an up to date character 
appraisal. 

TBC 
following 
review of 
existing 

work  TBC 

TBC TBC David 
Bevan 

P
age 136



PI target or deadline (month) for 
action 

Aim/ & 
Approach 

Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

Aii 
E I, iii 1-4 

Increasing understanding of the 
natural and historic environment 
and influencing and guiding 
change – Conservation Area 
Appraisal programme 

NEW PI - Number of conservation 
area appraisals completed. 

TBC 
following 
review of 
existing 
work   

1 in draft.  
3 more to 
be in draft 
by end of 
09/10. 

TBC TBC David 
Bevan 

A iv, v 6 
1-4 

Providing an effective and 
efficient environmental planning 
service to applicants and other 
customers – Speed of response 
to applications 

SP 907 - % Listed Building 
Applications determined in 8 
weeks. 
Note: Will contribute to NI157b 
(minor planning applications) 

71% 
On target 
88% 

72% 
 

73% 
 

Corrie 
Newell  

A i, iv, v 6 
1-4 

Providing an effective and 
efficient environmental planning 
service to applicants and other 
customers – Customer 
satisfaction 

SP 908 - % of listed building 
applicants who agree or strongly 
agree that they were treated fairly 

91% 
78% to 
Dec 09 
Note: 
results 
have 
limited 
reliability 
because 
of small 
sample 
size of 
returns. 

92% 93% Corrie 
Newell  

A iv, v 6 
1-4 

Providing an effective and 
efficient environmental planning 
service to applicants and other 
customers – Speed of response 
to applications 

SP 909 - % of listed tree consent 
applications processed within 8 
weeks of receipt 

91% 
On target 
99% 

92% 93% Roz 
Richardson 

P
age 137



PI target or deadline (month) for 
action 

Aim/ & 
Approach 

Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

A iv, v 1-4, 6 

Providing an effective and 
efficient environmental planning 
service to applicants and other 
customers – Monitoring 
implementation  

SP931 - The number of 
implemented landscape schemes 
monitored 
Targets for this indicator have 
not been met over recent years, 
mainly because of other work 
pressures.  
Approach to monitoring and 
this indicator need to be 
reviewed with the new planning 
system. 

50 
 

TBC but 
limited to 
date 

50 50 

David 
Hamilton/ 
Cariona 
Campbell  

A ii  
C vii 
E i 

1-3 

Protecting, enhancing and 
managing the natural and historic 
environment – Improving site 
management  

NI 197 - Improved local 
biodiversity – active management 
of local sites 

45% 
On target 52% 55% Rob 

Mungovan  

A ii  
C vii 
E i 

1-4 

Protecting, enhancing and 
managing the natural and historic 
environment – Extent and 
quality of resource 

SP939 - Net area of County 
Wildlife Sites and Sites of Special 
Scientific Interest (in South 
Cambridgeshire) combined - 
Hectares 

3,282 ha 
On target 3,282 ha 3,282 ha Rob 

Mungovan  

Ai, iv, v 
E i 1-2, 6 

Protecting, enhancing and 
managing the natural and historic 
environment – Conservation 
repairs  

SP904 - Number of historic 
buildings repaired with the 
support of SCDC grants 

12 
Achieved 

13 
12 12 Shona 

Smith  

Ai, iv, v 
E i 1-2, 6 

Protecting, enhancing and 
managing the natural and historic 
environment – Removing threats  

SP903 - Historic buildings at risk 
taken off the register as a % of all 
buildings at risk 
Buildings at risk have not been 
monitored and pursued 
systematically because of 
other work pressures. 

3 
TBC 4 5 

Stacey 
Weiser-
Jones 

A i, ii, v 
B iii, iv 
C viii 
E i 

1-3, 5,6  

Working with communities and 
other partners to achieve 
improvements to local places – 
New planting  

SP905 - Metres of hedges and 
hedgerow trees created with the 
support of SCDC grants 

2,500 
Achieved 
2,975 

2,500 2,500 Roz 
Richardson 

P
age 138



PI target or deadline (month) for 
action 

Aim/ & 
Approach 

Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

A i, ii, iv 
B iii 
C viii 

E I, iii, iv 

1-3, 5 

Working with communities and 
other partners to achieve 
improvements to local places – 
Increasing people’s contact 
with wildlife  

SP 901 – Hectares of accessible 
wildlife space per 1,000 
population  

7.1 
On target 7.6 8.1 Rob 

Mungovan  

 

P
age 139



Planning Services (Conservation & Design) Risk Register Date completed, Draft ??/??/ 2008 
No. Title Description 
a) The risk event,  
b) Leading to consequence for service/Aim/Approach/Action,  
c) Resulting in possible outcome(s)). 

Impact/ 
Likelihood 

 

Direction of 
Travel 

Council Aims, 
Approaches, 
Actions 

Owner Timeline for 
Progress 

Implementation of Biodiversity Duty (NERC Act 2006), which sets out 
the responsibilities of local authorities across their functions. Increased 
workload and demands on specialist staff.  Diversion of staff resources 
from existing tasks and programme, and from meeting corporate, LAA 
and national targets. Impact on staff morale.  

D2 G 2(a), 2(c), 2(d)   

Fundamental changes to Heritage Protection proposed with new 
legislation. (Probable timetable: parliamentary sessions 08/09, 
enactment ’09, and implementation ’10).  New responsibilities for local 
authorities include the transfer of the Scheduled Ancient Monument 
system from English Heritage and the delivery of an integrated heritage 
approach.  Increased demands on specialist staff and team workload. 
Need to revise SPDs.  Diversion of staff resources from existing tasks.  
Reduction in capacity to deliver existing programmes and meet 
corporate and LAA targets. Impact on staff morale.   

B6 G 
 2(d), 3(b)   

Significant increase in housing growth work without extra capacity 
reduces the ability to deliver programmes and meet targets. For 
example, there is less time to support partnership working with 
communities and improve local places.  

B/C1 

↑ 
(not included 

in last 
review) 

   

Lack of resources to improve the accuracy of environmental data, and 
digitise information backlog and new data, which applies across the 
section’s areas. This conflicts with national planning policy and reduces 
the quality, effectiveness and efficiency of the section’s work and the 
quality of planning policy, development control and other council 
services. Ultimately it harms the protection, management and 
enhancement of the environment. It also prevents the delivery of e 
Government and full public participation and access to information.  

C1 

↑ 
(not included 

in last 
review) 

   

 

Impact Likelihood Direction of Travel 
A 
Extreme 
B High 
C Medium 
D Low 

1 Almost 
certain 
2 Likely 
3 Possible 
4 Unlikely 
5 Seldom 
6 Rare 

G 
G 
G 

Priority reduced from last review (bracket indicates previous priority) 
Priority equal to last review 
Priority increased from last review (bracket indicates previous priority)  

P
age 140



 

Notes: 1. The dotted line shows the Council’s risk tolerance line. 
2. The Council is due to adopt new Aims, Approaches and Actions for 2009/10 onwards; please cross reference each risk to the relevant Aim(s), Approach/es and/or Action(s), as appropriate (e.g. A. v., or 

E. ii. 2). 

 
 
SERVICE PLAN: Registration Team (Registration/Administration/Secretarial Assistant Service) 
 
Relevant Council Aim: 
 

A) We are committed to being a listening Council, providing first class services accessible to all. 
Relevant Council Approaches: 
 
A iii Making South Cambridgeshire District Council more open and accessible 
A iv Achieving improved customer satisfaction with our services.  
A v Ensuring that the Council demonstrates value for money in the way it works. 
Service Objectives: 
 
Deliver high quality services that represent best value and area accessible to all our community by: 
 
p - A commitment to improvement and good quality services. 
q - Achieving improved customer satisfaction with our services. 
 
 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Registration Team 
 

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

A iii 
A iv 
A v 

p, q To improve internal and external 
customer service satisfaction. 

Revise Contact Centre business 
rules for the Planning Service to 
take into account training and 
development needs for the 

customer liaison officers, by Sep 
09 

Sep 09 
Completed 

and 
Jan 2010 

N/A N/A Rachael 
Fox 

A iii 
A iv 
A v 

p, q To improve internal and external 
customer service satisfaction. 

Coordinate Contact Centre 
Training for the Planning service 

Mar 10 
Ongoing Mar 11 Mar 12 Rachael 

Fox 

P
age 141



 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: Registration Team 
 

PI target or deadline (month) for 
action Aim/ & 

Approach 
Service 
Objective Supporting Objective Performance Indicator or 

SMART Milestone 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Lead 
Officer 

A iv 
A v p, q 

To ensure the validation of 
Planning Applications to 

Development Control Area 
Teams is done in an efficient and 

effective manner. 

SP936 - % Major Planning 
Applications average process 

time for registration team 

7 days 
Not 

achieved 
6 days 5 days Rachael 

Fox 

A iv 
A v p, q 

To ensure the validation of 
Planning Applications to 

Development Control Area 
Teams is done in an efficient and 

effective manner. 

SP937 - % Minor Planning 
Applications average process 

time for registration team 

5 days 
Not 

achieved 
4 days 3 days Rachael 

Fox 

A iv 
A v p, q 

To ensure the validation of 
Planning Applications to 

Development Control Area 
Teams is done in an efficient and 

effective manner. 

SP938 - % Other Planning 
Applications average process 

time for registration team 

3 days 
Not 

achieved 
2 days 2 days Rachael 

Fox 

 

P
age 142



 
Registration/Administration/Secretarial Assistant Risk Register 
Date completed 5 November 2008 

 
No. Title Description 
(The risk event,  
Leading to consequence for service/Aim/Approach/Action,  
Resulting in possible outcome(s).) 

Impact/ 
Likelihood 

 

Direction 
of Travel 

Council 
Aims,  

Approaches,  
Actions 

Owner Timeline 
for 

Progress  

1.Under funding and lack of additional hardware and software would not 
enable the effective and efficient checking, validation, registration and 
determination of on-line and paper copy planning applications.  
Dissatisfaction from customers of service. 

B  

A (i) 
A (iii) 
A (iv) 
A (v) 

Rachael 
Fox  

2. Under funding and lack of additional hardware and software would restrict the amount of 
information the service would publish on the Council’s website.  We would not be able to 
keep our customers informed at what stage their planning application was at.   B  

A (i) 
A (iii) 
A (iv) 
A (v) 

Rachael 
Fox  

3. Lack of funding would restrict consultants from further improving, developing and 
maintaining of all ICT systems and databases. 

A  

A (i) 
A (iii) 
A (iv) 
A (v) 

Rachael 
Fox  

4. Increased stress and pressure that could lead to short-term and/or long-term 
sickness/illness put upon employees if flexible working is not introduced and monitored 
effectively within the workplace. 

B  A (iv) 
A (v) 

Rachael 
Fox  

5. Lack of knowledge and training provided by the Planning service to our Contact Centre 
affects our performance and the ability to provide a first class customer care service 
standard. 

C  A (iii) Rachael 
Fox  

6. Lack of funding leads to staff not being fully trained and up to date with legislation, 
cannot provide adequate advice leading to under performing staff, incompetency and 
unprofessional manner.  Dissatisfaction from customers of service, compensation because 
of bad decision-making. 

A  A (iv) 
A (v) 

Rachael 
Fox  

 

Impact Likelihood Direction of Travel 

P
age 143



A 
Extreme 
B High 
C Medium 
D Low 

1 Almost 
certain 
2 Likely 
3 Possible 
4 Unlikely 
5 Seldom 
6 Rare 

G 
G 
G 

Priority reduced from last review (bracket indicates previous priority) 
Priority equal to last review 
Priority increased from last review (bracket indicates previous priority)  

Notes: 1. The dotted line shows the Council’s risk tolerance line. 
2. The Council is due to adopt new Aims, Approaches and Actions for 2009/10 onwards; please cross reference each risk to the 

relevant Aim(s), Approach/es and/or Action(s), as appropriate (e.g. A. v., or E. ii. 2.). 
 

P
age 144



APPENDIX 1 

Registration function: 

The processing of an application will involve the following stages: 
§ Checking to ensure forms are properly completed, plans included, the owner and/or leaseholder of the property notified, if required, and the correct fee 

paid 
§ The application requirements, advice and checklists for the submission of different types of applications are contained within the relevant application 

forms and guidance notes on the “1App” forms.  All this information can be viewed and obtained from either the Planning Portal or the Council’s website 
§ Advertisements, if necessary, are placed in newspapers or site notices are put up in appropriate places 
§ Consultations – these cover clearing technical aspects with other statutory and technical bodies and supply services; informing those people who might 

be affected by the application; they all have the right to ask the local authority for more information and to raise objections 
§ Comments on applications may be made in writing to both Team East and Team West quoting the planning reference number whilst the application has 

not been decided.  Alternatively the Council’s on-line system for viewing applications “Planning Application Search” also enables comments to be made 
direct to these teams via the Council’s website 

§ Consideration of applications against existing and emerging Council policies and any past history of decisions on that site or for similar applications 
§ More technical checks that the application meets the Council’s standards for such things as parking, day lighting and visibility near road junctions, etc 
§ Following a site visit by a planning officer who might also contact the agent and/or applicant if more information or amendments are advisable 
§ The application will either go to Planning Committee made up of Councillors, or will be considered by the Chief Officer responsible for planning matters.  

Should the application be referred to Planning Committee members of the public may attend the meeting and take part in the debate 
§ A link is provided to view the Council’s on-line Committee information “Modern.Gov”.  All agendas, minutes, delegation and committee reports for 

Planning Committee applications are available at least 5 working days before the relevant meeting.  The information is updated on a daily basis where 
necessary 

§ Shortly after Planning Committee the applicant and/or agent will receive a ‘decision notice’ 
§ Any time during the above process you can contact the Case Officer handling your application to discuss its progress and to give any information 

supporting the application 
§ All local planning authorities are required to deal with an application within prescribed time periods.  The process could be delayed beyond the target 

period by, for example, requests to the applicant and/or agent for amendments or the need to fit into the Planning Committee meeting schedule.  If the 
application is complicated, it is advised to engage with a professional consultant.  You can help speed up the process by contacting the planning duty 
officer before you submit the application to see if there are any standards or policies which could apply to your application.  You may even be told that 
planning permission is not necessary, though you may still need approval under Building Regulations.  To help try and identify if you need planning 
permission or not please view our “Planning Expert System” on-line to answer any questions. 

 

P
age 145



P
age 146

T
his page is left blank intentionally.



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: New Communities Portfolio Holder 2 March 2010 
AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Operational Services) / Corporate Manager 

(Planning and Sustainable Communities) 
 

 
SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME 

 
Purpose 

 
1. The purpose of this report is to agree the Local Development Scheme, which will set 

out the timetable for plan preparation for the 3 year period April 2010 – March 2013 
 

Background 
 
2. The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires all local planning 

authorities to maintain a Local Development Scheme (LDS), which sets out its 
timetable for preparing Development Plan Documents (DPDs) over the forthcoming 3-
year period.  The Local Development Scheme must be submitted to and approved by 
the Secretary of State each year. 

 
Considerations 

 
3. This year’s scheme will cover the completion of the Gypsy & Travellers DPD.  A 

review of the Core Strategy is also necessary to enable the Council to demonstrate a 
15-year supply of deliverable housing land and to provide a strategy more tailored to 
the period of recovery from the recent recession.  The adopted Core Strategy 
currently provides for 6 years to the March 2016 albeit that a number of adopted 
plans do include provision beyond 2016 and was prepared in different economic 
circumstance than will be confronting South Cambridgeshire for the foreseeable 
future.  The Development Control Policies DPD will also be reviewed to make any 
necessary changes that flow from the review of the Core Strategy and will be re-
named the Development Management DPD. 

 
4. The Local Development Scheme is an important tool for programme managing the 

preparation of Development Plan Documents and enables the public to know when 
and how they will be consulted in plan preparation.  It is also used for service 
planning and budget setting (see service plan and budget items on this agenda). 

 
5. Delivery of the Development Plan Documents against the timetable in the Local 

Development Scheme has been one of the factors upon which Council’s have been 
judged for the award of Housing and Planning Delivery Grant (HPDG).  In the last 2 
years, the Council has secured £1.4m of HPDG for its plan-making achievements. 

 
6. The Local Development Scheme includes for completeness the Supplementary 

Planning Documents and the Statement of Community Involvement which will be 
prepared as well as the Development Plan Documents and Supplementary Planning 
Documents that have already been adopted and therefore comprise the Local 
Development Framework.  

 

Agenda Item 6Page 147



Options 
 
7. The 2004 Act requires that the Local Development Scheme is reviewed annually and 

submitted to the Sectretary of State. 
 

Implications 
 

Financial The Local Development Scheme provides the basis for the 
Planning Policy Service Plan for the period 2010-2013 and for 
budget estimate for those 3 years. 

Legal None 
Staffing See Service Plan 
Risk Management See Service Plan 

8. 

Equal Opportunities Each plan will be assessed during the course of preparation to 
ensure that no group will be disadvantaged by their policies and 
proposals 

 
Consultations 

 
9 Service departments have been consulted on the need for the DPDs and SPDs which 

are proposed to be prepared over the coming 3 years. 
 

Effect on Strategic Aims 
 

10 Commitment to being a listening council, providing first class services accessible to all. 
 The publication of the Local Development Scheme will enable the public and other 

stakeholders to know when they can become involved in plan-making.  Plan-making 
includes a number of stages at which views and comments will be sought and 
considered by the Council. 

 Commitment to ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and healthy place 
for all. 

 The review of the Core Strategy and the Development Management DPDs and the 
preparation of the SPDs listed in the Local Development Scheme will help the 
Council to protect and enhance the physical and social environment of the District.  
The preparation of the Health Impact Assessments SPD in particular will provide a 
basis for developers to ensure that their proposals will not have an adverse impact 
on the health of existing and future residents and provide the opportunity for them to 
demonstrate how their proposals could provide healthier living environments.  

 Commitment to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
 The review of the Core Strategy and the Development Management DPDs and the 

preparation of the SPDs listed in the Local Development Scheme will help the 
Council to protect and enhance the physical and social environment of the District.  
The completion of the Gypsy & Travellers DPD will ensure that the accommodation 
needs of the largest historically disadvantaged group of South Cambridgeshire 
residents are met to the same extent as the settled community. 

 Commitment to assisting provision for local jobs for all. 
 The review of the Core Strategy and the Development Management DPDs will 

provide an opportunity to ensure that the Council’s employment policies and 
proposals best meet the overall needs ad aspirations of business and people living 
and working in South Cambridgeshire. 

Page 148



 
 Commitment to providing a voice for rural life. 
 The preparation of the planning policies and proposals in the DPDs and SPDs which 

will be prepared over the coming 3 years will provide an opportunity to consider the 
views of all residents and businesses in South Cambridgeshire and to ensure that 
high levels of job growth and new housing which are forecast to be created will be 
accommodated in sustainable locations which will bring benefits to the wider 
community whilst at the same time ensuring that the rural way of life of much of the 
remainder of South Cambridgeshire can continue to evolve and improve. 

 
 Recommendations 
 
11. It is recommended that the New Communities Portfolio Holder agrees the Local 

Development Scheme attached at Appendix 1. 
 
 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report:  

None 
 

Contact Officer:  Keith Miles – Planning Policy Manager 
Telephone: (01954) 713181 

Page 149



Page 150

This page is left blank intentionally.



 
 
 
 

South Cambridgeshire District Council 
 

New Communities Service 
 
 

Service Plan 20010 -11 to 2012 - 13 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Corporate Manager:  Jo Mills 
 
Portfolio Holders:  Cllr. Dr. David Bard (New Communities) 
   Cllr. Nick Wright (Planning) 
   Cllr Tim Wotherspoon (Northstowe) 
 
Member Champions: Cllr Mervyn Loynes (Business and Employment) 
   Cllr Jaime Dipple (2010 Olympics) 

Cllr Bridget Smith (Children and Young People) 
   Cllr Tim Wotherspoon (Design and Heritage) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7Page 151



INTRODUCTION 
 
This document sets out the key objectives for the New Communities Service during 
2010/11.  The Plan will be refreshed on an annual basis, and it will need to 
accommodate change.  For instance, the draft plan included almost no work on 
Northstowe and this position changed in December 2009 when the local authorities 
were invited to submit a bid for eco-town status.     
 
New Communities will merge with Planning and Sustainable Communities from April 
2010.  For 2010/11, there will continue to be two service plans and they will combine 
in the following year. 
 
New Communities was required to achieve substantial savings for 2010-11, and as a 
result, this service plan sets careful objectives mindful that there will be fewer 
resources in terms of people and programme budgets.   
 
New Communities is committed to supporting rural life and delivering new 
developments through a co-ordinated approach focussed on the ‘whole offer’.  We 
will listen to our customers to make sure that we reflect their views in the way we 
provide our services.  The ‘whole offer’ means that we consider all the factors that 
contribute to good quality of life and quality of place, and create the right environment 
and services to enable this. 
 
Quality of life factors include: 

o Good relations between neighbours 
o Good community cohesion 
o Good job and business opportunities 
o Low crime and low fear of crime 
o Good public and community transport services  
o Good health and care services 
o Good child care and education services for all ages 
o Good air quality and lack of noise and congestion 
o Strong community groups and Third Sector 
o Civic engagement and trust in government. 
 

Quality of place factors include: 
o Well-designed and maintained buildings that plan for the future in terms of 

carbon reduction and infrastructure for new technology 
o Good mix of homes – we know we need more affordable and executive 

homes 
o Good transport infrastructure including routes for cyclists and pedestrians 
o Built heritage treated as an asset 
o Ample high quality green space and infrastructure 
o Good mix of local shops, pubs and restaurants; and areas for commercial use 
o Good range of easily accessible cultural facilities 
o Good range of local sport and leisure facilities 
o Local, easily accessible public services 
o Well-designed and maintained streets and public places 
o Homes and neighbourhoods designed with older, disabled and younger 

people in mind 
 
(Based on World Class Places: The Government’s strategy for improving quality 
of place 2009) 

 

Page 152



SERVICE PLAN OVERVIEW 
 
1. Key Functions and Responsibilities 
 
The New Communities Service delivers a diverse range of functions for the district 
and leads the planning and development of new communities.  The service works 
with other areas of the council, including environmental services and conservation, to 
provide a comprehensive approach.   
 
New Communities’ district-wide services include: 
 

o Urban Design Service available for all planning applications. 
 
o Measures to ensure villages gain maximum benefit from local developments. 

 
o Environmental sustainability programme influencing the way the council and 

other businesses operate their services, and working directly with residents 
whose villages are participating in the Parish Energy Project.  

 
o Economic development and tourism programme supporting local businesses 

through the recession, and creating a positive environment for local economic 
growth. 

 
o Arts, sports and community development working with village colleges, parish 

councils and others to deliver numerous programmes that enhance wellbeing, 
increase fitness and involve young people in positive activities. 

 
At Orchard Park and Cambourne, New Communities works with local people, their 
councils, the developers and all other partners so that we work together to create the 
best possible outcomes.  This includes facilitating further development including retail 
centres and new homes, and involving our range of services to help these new 
villages to become sustainable communities. 
 
New Communities works with the Director of Joint Planning, the City Council, County 
Council and Cambridgeshire Horizons to deliver the planned major new 
developments at Northstowe and on the southern fringe and north-west of 
Cambridge.  The service is also involved in the ongoing discussions around the 
development of Cambridge East and North East. 
 
2. Context 
 

a) External Drivers  
 
The following external factors are likely to influence the service: 
 

q Policy changes regarding growth 
q Emerging best practice and guidance on planning and engagement 
q Making Cambridgeshire Count leading to new ways of working 
q Climate Change measures such as 1010, Climate Change Act and the 

Copenhagen conference 
q Current economic climate affecting the viability and delivery of development 
q Ability of other public bodies such as the Highways and Environment 

Agencies to deliver planned improvements to support growth, during a period 
of reduced public spending  

Page 153



q The Homes and Communities Agency regarding the development of 
affordable homes and the delivery of Northstowe  

q Joint planning arrangements and strategic partnerships with Cambridgeshire 
Horizons and other local authorities, co-ordinated through Cambridgeshire 
Together 

q Boundary review of South Cambridgeshire and Cambridge City Council 
q Initiatives linked to the Olympic Games in 2012  
 
b) Internal Drivers 

 
A range of corporate measures affect the service, including: 

 
q Savings and Efficiencies Targets 
q Customer Service Excellence initiatives 
q The Comprehensive Equalities Policy  
q Investors in People and associated programmes such as the Competency 

Framework and management development programmes 
q The Community Engagement Strategy 
q The Communication Strategy  
q Gypsies and Travellers Strategy  
q Planning policies for affordable housing, open space, public art and 

community facilities 
 

c) Key Partners 
 
The service works very closely with a large number of partners, and all our services 
rely on joint working.  We are committed to working with and through Cambridgeshire 
Horizons, our joint planning authorities at the County and Cambridge City, our Parish 
Councils, and other agencies including NHS Cambridgeshire, housing associations, 
faith and community groups. Listed below are some of our key partners: 

 
q Cambridgeshire Horizons 
q Cambridgeshire Together strategic partnerships including Environmental 

Sustainability, Economic Prosperity and Growth 
q Cambridgeshire Partnerships Ltd (CPL) 
q Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) 
q Developers including Gallagher’s, Countryside, Grosvenor Estates and the 

Cambourne Consortium 
q The nine Village Colleges in South Cambridgeshire 
q Renewables East 
q Sport England 
q Arts Council East  
q Greater Cambridgeshire Partnership 
q Business Link 

 
 
 
 

Page 154



d) Strengths and Weaknesses 
 

Strengths 
 
• Robust partnership 

arrangements with Horizons 
and other key partners 

• Joint planning arrangements 
• Highly skilled staff with broad 

skill base 
• Strong experience of 

enabling and supporting 
communities through local 
partnership working  

• Good and developing 
community engagement 
practice 

• Good practice in arts, sports 
and community development 

• Good understanding of the 
ingredients needed to create 
a sustainable community 

• New posts for development 
and monitoring of S106 
agreements are providing 
benefits to villages and the 
Council  

• New project team structure for 
the major growth sites has 
improved communication and 
co-ordination between 
departments 

 

Weaknesses 
 

• Inefficient use of resources 
across authorities  

• Difficult to plan workforce 
requirements when the 
timetables for the major sites 
are unclear 

 
 

 
Opportunities 

 
• The skills and knowledge 

brought together in the New 
Communities Service lays a 
great foundation for delivering 
successful and creative 
outcomes 

• Current negotiations between 
HCA and Gallagher’s offer 
potential for new approaches 
at Northstowe 

• Restructure of New 
Communities will enable the 
service to adapt to change, 
and deliver joined-up services 

• New DPD’s on community 
facilities and Gypsies and 
Travellers strengthen the 
policy framework and support 

 
Threats 

 
• Economic climate Savings 

requirements mean staffing 
levels could impact on 
attainment of targets,  

• Loss of knowledge through 
redundancies resulting from 
savings  

• Continuing uncertainty about 
Northstowe 

•  Developing realistic and 
deliverable procurement and 
management mechanisms for 
all public facilities within 
growth areas. 

• Non-relocation of Cambridge 
Airport 

 
 

Page 155



delivery of SCDC objectives 
•  New requirements to reduce 

carbon emissions in new and 
existing settlements 

• Taking advantage of the 
sporting and cultural benefits 
of the Olympics in the lead up 
to 2012 

• New Economic Development 
Strategy  

• New Planning IT system 
• Review of corporate working 

arrangements for the joint 
growth sites 

• New working arrangements 
with Planning and Sustainable 
Communities 

• Climate Change Action Plan 

 

 
3. Service Objectives 
 
New Communities Service Plan is guided by the Council’s corporate objectives.  The 
Council has five guiding aims that are listed below, and these are supported by 12 
Actions.  New Communities is the lead department for five of these Actions, and will 
also support the action to enhance customer service. 
 
Council’s Aims 
 

1. We are committed to being a listening council providing first class 
services accessible to all; 

2. We are committed to ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be 
a safe and healthy place for you and your family; 

3. We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which 
residents can feel proud to live; 

4. We are committed to assisting provision of local jobs for you and your 
family; 

5. We are committed to providing a voice for rural life. 
 
New Communities Service Objectives and links to Corporate Aims 

 
New Communities will lead the following council actions for 2010/11: 

 
o We will increase the number of teenagers taking part in positive activities by 

500 in 2010/11 – which links to the Council Aim to ensure that South 
Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and healthy place for you and your 
family.  Measures will include implementation of the Youth Participation 
Strategy and delivery of the Street Football Programme, Free swimming for 
16’s and under and County Youth Offer for the Arts. 

 
o We will achieve 10% reduction in the emission of CO2 from the Council’s 

operations and publicise the outcome in order to set an example to other 
organisations – which links to the Council Aim to make South Cambridgeshire 
a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 

 

Page 156



o We will work with parish councils to complete at least 10 local projects 
supported by LPSA funding to contribute to the county target for the reduction 
of CO2 emissions – which also links to the Council Aim to make South 
Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 

 
o We will promote the relocation of Marshalls within Cambridgeshire in order to 

meet the district’s requirements for new homes and retain job opportunities – 
which links to the Council Aim to assist provision of local jobs for you and 
your family. 

 
o We will promote the district to new businesses - which also links to the 

Council Aim to assist provision of local jobs for you and your family. 
 
Other priorities for 2010-11 are:  
 

o At Orchard Park, we will plan an additional 220 homes in line with the 
Planning Inspector’s decision and intend to deliver an innovative housing 
scheme on plots owned by the City Council and Unex.  We will ensure the 
smooth transfer of open space including sports facilities and continue to 
manage the community arts programme, deliver welcome packs and other 
community development work.  We will meet regularly with the Community 
Council and partners, promote personal travel plans and possibly introduce a 
car club scheme.  We shall participate in the Joseph Rowntree Foundation 
SUNN (Sustainable Urban Neighbourhood Networks) project by attending 
quarterly meetings (having hosted a visit in March 2010). 

 
o At Cambourne, we will ensure plans are secured to deliver the Sports Centre 

and Pavilion, issue the 950 application following detailed viability negotiations, 
facilitate other planning applications such as the car dealership, fire station 
and further development of the High Street.  We will provide community 
development support including arts and sports programmes. 

 
o At North West Cambridge, we will work as part of the joint project team for the 

University’s application including input on urban design and community 
facilities and consultation.  We will also provide pre-application advice for 
NIAB Extra.  We will ensure that South Cambridgeshire residents and 
members are consulted effectively on these proposed developments. 

 
o For Trumpington Meadows, we will provide design code advice, discharge 

conditions for the outline consent and provide pre-application advice on initial 
reserved matter applications.  We will also work with the County Council and 
City Council to ensure that local people, Haslingfield Parish Council and 
District Members have appropriate opportunities to engage in the design and 
planning of the new primary school and other services. 

 
o For Northstowe, we will submit a bid for eco-town status, subject to local 

approval, and work with the HCA regarding the delivery of the new town, 
subject to approval by Her Majesty’s Treasury. 

 
o We will be prepared to deliver Cambridge East if this major project becomes 

‘live’ again, and in the meantime will continue to work with Cambridgeshire 
Horizons, Marshalls and others to make progress with this projects.  

 
o We will implement the Climate Change Action Plan. 

 

Page 157



o We will implement the Economic Development Strategy including measures 
relating to creative industries and tourism.  

 
o We will develop a procurement model for community facilities across the 

growth sites and support the planning of community facilities at Clay Farm 
and North West Cambridge. 

 
o We will work with City Council and the University to develop community 

infrastructure proposals for North West Cambridge 
 

o We will roll out a new engagement strategy for growth, and continue to 
provide opportunities for member training. 

 
o We will create and manage a list of the Parish Projects that can be funded 

through the open space planning obligations, implement a charging schedule 
and prepare for the adoption of the Community Infrastructure Levy or Variable 
Tariff. 

 
4. Our Customers 
 
Residents and businesses across the district are customers and beneficiaries of 
programmes and services provided by or with support from the New Communities 
Service.  In addition, New Communities plans for future customers – those people 
who will be moving into homes in the new communities we are building. 
 
Our customers also include developers, and our wide range of partners.  We help a 
range of other agencies deliver shared objectives, including the County Council, 
Cambridge City Council and Cambridgeshire Horizons. 
 
For all our programmes, we intend to review and improve our methods for assessing 
customer satisfaction and to use the information we collect to continuously improve 
our services. 
 
5. Progress/Performance Overview 
 
New Communities is on course to achieve its performance objectives for 2009/10, 
apart from slippage on major sites.  Performance relating to the eight Council Priority 
Actions for 2009/10 is shown in the table below: 

 
Service Plan Performance 2009/10 
 
ACTION 06 - Review the current grant 
scheme. 

Action is 100% complete. 
The scheme has been reviewed and the 
Elite Athletes grant scheme is now in 
place with the second Panel having met 
in February 2010 (22 applicants with 14 
grants approved). 

ACTION 11 - Residents taking up sport 
or formal exercise. 

See Active People’s Survey NI8. Local 
interventions contributing towards this 
action include; Adult Try, Fitness for 
health and Free swimming programmes. 

ACTION 23 - Climate Change Action 
Plan  

On target to complete by year-end.  

ACTION 24 - Renewable energy & low Exceeded annual target of six schemes 

Page 158



carbon living schemes 
(Sustainable Parish Energy Partnership) 

by qtr two (11 parishes are signed up). 

ACTION 25 - Business Forum & 
Business Breakfasts. 

Annual target achieved by qtr three.    

ACTION 27 - Business space in the 
District. 

On target to deliver programme by year-
end, including commercial property 
database. 

ACTION 28 - Spin-offs from London 
2012 Olympics. 

A draft action plan has been developed 
following a number of successful events 
in 2009.  

ACTION 32 – New premises for small 
businesses. 

Economic Assessment has been 
completed, and further action will be 
developed as part of the Economic 
Development Strategy.   

 
Other key achievements during 2009/10 include:  

 
o Establishment of Orchard Park Community Council 
o 10th Anniversary celebrations for Cambourne 
o Transfer of Community Centre at Orchard Park 
o S106 database and information provided to parishes 
o Sawston cinema opening, including film project and DVD 
o Orchard Park book and Crop Marks arts project 
o Stepping Stones Public Art project at Cambourne 
o New programme of Try Sport courses including Netball 
o Five venues for street football project 
o Olympics Countdown event at Milton Country Park in August 
o S106 Agreement signed for Trumpington Meadows 
o River Cam enhancement project 
o Restructure completed, achieved savings and intended to improve 

ability to adapt to change 
o Range of measures to support local businesses through the economic 

downturn using £150K specially dedicated by the Council including 
rate relief and business grants scheme. 

o Procurement of a new Planning IT System 
 
6. Resources 

 
The estimated total net revenue expenditure for New Communities during 2010/11 is 
£1.079m, a significant reduction from the approved net revenue budget of £1.86m for 
2009/10.  The revenue budget is spent on staffing costs, programme delivery, 
overheads and recharges. 
 
New Communities had a savings requirement of £75K for 2009/10, and during the 
current budget setting process a further target of £458K was set bringing the total 
savings requirement to £533K.  Savings were identified from staffing cuts and 
reduced programme budgets.   

 
In addition to the net revenue budget, there is approximately £582K funding from 
Horizons that pays for posts in New Communities and other services, and one post in 
New Communities is funded through Planning Delivery Grant.  For the Sustainable 
Parish Energy Project and promotion of the Cambridge Climate Change Charter 
(joint funding with City Council) the service is drawing down income through LPSA 
money, worth a total of £230K over three years.   

Page 159



 
The Council is administering funding of £24,000 that will go directly to deliver the 
County Youth Arts Offer, Artsmash; and £143,956 for free swimming for under 16’s 
and over 65’s.  It is expected that £37,500 will be received through s106 payments 
for public art.  In the growth areas budget there is a transfer from reserves of 
£58,510, which was external income from 2009/10, including Horizons funding for 
improvements at Orchard Park.  There is also a transfer from reserves for 
sustainability through s106 payment in previous years for the Orchard Park 
innovation fund. 
 
In order to mitigate the impact of cuts, it has been agreed that more realistic charges 
will be made for the administration of s106 payments. This is expected to generate  
£10,000 per year as additional income on top of the £30,000 estimated for s106 
monitoring. The budget assumes further income generation of £10,000. 
 
The table below shows the programme budgets for 2010/11: 

 

Budget heading Estimated budget 2010/11 
Council 
Actions 
Addressed 

  Total 
Expenditure 

Less 
Income 

Net 
SCDC 
spend 

  

Arts £141,500 £61,500 £80,000 2 
Community Development £30,000 0 £30,000 2 

Economic Development & 
Tourism 

£60,900 0 £60,900 7,8 

Growth Areas £119,510 £58,510 £61,000   
Sustainability £81,080 £55,030 £26,050 5,6 
Sports £105,200 0 £105,200 2 
Free Swimming/Health 
and fitness 

£143,956 £143,956 £0  2 

Income from S.106 
Administration, Monitoring 
etc 

0 £50,000 -£50,000   

Total £682,146 £368,996 £313,150   
 

 
During 2009/10, the New Communities Service has a capital grants programme.  
This funding has been preserved for 2010/11 as shown below. 

 
Village Sports Facilities £100,000 
Community Facilities £100,000 
Arts Capital Grants £40,000 
  
Total £240,000 

 

Page 160



7. Value for Money Overview 
 
The New Communities Service was designed to enhance Value for Money by 
promoting more effective corporate working.   
 
It should be noted that investment by the council helps draw  substantial additional 
funds  into the district.  For instance, the Village College Arts Development Managers 
estimate that the SCDC funding towards their posts and their programme budgets 
brought in external funding of £493,000 in 2008/09. 
 
8. Workforce Overview 
 
New Communities has a skilled workforce including officers from a range of technical 
backgrounds.  

 
The service completed a restructure during 2009/10 that included a net loss of 8.5 fte 
posts in order to achieve the required savings target.  This has reduced the number 
of employees to 22, three of whom are part-time.   In addition, the Partnerships 
Project Officer is a joint-funded post employed by the City Council.  The Community 
Technical Manager is employed by the district and provides a technical service to the 
NHS, County, City and District Councils.  Three Urban Designers, including one part-
time, are employed by the District Council and provide services to the district as part 
of the Joint Urban Design Team.  Internally the service receives most input from 
Environmental Services, Accountancy, Planning Policy and Conservation.  New 
Communities administers the Voluntary Sector Grants programme on behalf of the 
Leader’s Portfolio. 

 
For 2010/11, New Communities will have a new post of Head of New Communities 
with two team leaders managing a communities and a planning team.  The Joint 
Urban Design team will continue to work closely alongside the service. 
 
9. Equalities Overview 

 
The Service is strongly committed to delivering services and new communities that 
are accessible and welcoming to all.  It recognises that sustainable communities are 
inclusive and that they value diversity and the contribution that everyone can make.  
The largest ethnic minority population in the district is Travellers and Gypsies.  New 
Communities will seek to deliver appropriate provision for Travellers and Gypsies 
within its growth objectives, supported by the Gypsy and Traveller DPD that is 
currently subject to consultation. 

 
Other activities that have supported equalities objectives are: 

 
• Consulting and engaging the population in planning for growth, 

including through events aimed at engaging young people (e.g. the 
design event in schools), older people and faith groups; 

• Delivering affordable housing for people on low incomes, people with 
disabilities, older people, and people with special needs; 

• Delivering and enabling community development activities to a range 
of groups to encourage their participation in their community; 

• Using sport and recreation programmes to encourage people to 
develop and maintain healthy lifestyles, and appreciate the social 
inclusion benefits of participation. This has included programmes 

Page 161



targeted at women (“women try sport”) and youth programmes 
targeted specifically at areas where anti social behaviour is an issue;  

• Capital grant aid towards making village halls and community 
buildings more accessible; 

• Planning to provide for Gypsies and Travellers within the major growth 
sites; 

• Sports events and coaching for people with a disability in build up to 
2012 Paralympics e.g. Best 8 Event.  

 
During 2009/10, the following Equality Impact Assessments were carried out: 

• High Priority - Community Engagement/Development, Sports 
Development and Arts Development; 

• Medium - Economic Development Strategy, Environmental 
Sustainability and Draft Youth Participation Strategy  

  
10. Risk Overview  
 
There are risks facing the service this year and in future years that are managed 
through the corporate risk register, service risk register and the risk registers for the 
major growth sites that are managed through Cambridgeshire Horizons.    

 
Key risks for 2010/11 are risks associated with: 

 
• The downturn in the housing market; 
• Negotiating s106 agreements in the context of viability issues; 
• Insufficient resources and priority given to measures to reduce carbon 

emissions and adapt to climate change; 
• Reliance on Horizons and Planning Delivery Grant funding; 
• Insufficient resources and strategy for delivery of sports, recreation 

and cultural facilities on new developments, and support for 
community development. 

 
In terms of staffing resources, we face the risk of not having enough people for the 
district to perform effectively when the development programmes pick up again. 
 
11.   Safeguarding Vulnerable People 
 
The Council is committed to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and 
young people and vulnerable adults.  New Communities will ensure: 
 

1. Safer recruitment and employment practices are followed. 
2. Relevant officers are aware of safeguarding reporting policies. 
3. Appropriate safeguarding training is given. 
 

Page 162



IMPROVEMENT PLAN:  New Communities Service 
 
Aim A: We are committed to being a listening Council providing first class services accessible to all. 
 
COUNCIL 
Aim/ 

Approach 
# 

See Key 

Service 
Objective 

# 
See Key 

Supporting Objective SMART* Actions or 
Milestones Supporting Information Completion 

by Month 

 
Officer 

 
 

A  

Improve the ability of SCDC 
elected members to engage 
in the development of 
communities 

Programme of at least three 
training events over the 
year for elected members 
to be delivered on the 
following topics: 
1. Key elements of Circular 
05/05 
2. Implications of the 
Appeal decision for Glebe 
Farm/Clay Farm 
3. Topic as chosen by 
elected members. 
 
Each training event to be 
offered as both a daytime 
and early evening event 
 
Liaison with 
Cambridgeshire Horizons 
and neighbouring local 
authorities on any other 
training events planned for 
the year on aspects of the 
planning and delivery 
processes. 

Additional Resources Required: Staff Time  
Outputs: Greater participation and 
engagement 
Outcomes; More effective and engaged 
members  
Risks: Training not well attended, leading to 
wasted resources. 
Other services affected:, Democratic 
Services, Planning, Housing, Partnerships. 
 
Links to the Quality Charter Steering Group 

On-going Jo Mills/ 
Jane Green 

Aii  

To share, capture and 
demonstrate best practice 
in the development of new 
communities, building on 
the lessons learnt in South 
Cambridgeshire  

Produce New Communities 
Toolkit 
 
A guide to make sure 
lessons from Orchard Park 
identified through SCDC 
and City Scrutiny are 
brought together for easy 
reference for members and 

Additional Resources Required: Staff Time. 
And cost of printing (£1,000) 
Outputs: A toolkit for use by practitioners 
within and outside the council of measures to 
be taken and lessons to be learnt when 
planning and delivering new communities. 
Outcomes: Well-informed practitioners, active 
and cohesive communities with good quality of 
life from the early stages  

September 
2010 Kirsty Human 

P
age 163



IMPROVEMENT PLAN:  New Communities Service 
 
Aim A: We are committed to being a listening Council providing first class services accessible to all. 
 
COUNCIL 
Aim/ 

Approach 
# 

See Key 

Service 
Objective 

# 
See Key 

Supporting Objective SMART* Actions or 
Milestones Supporting Information Completion 

by Month 

 
Officer 

 
 

project teams.  Risks: Lost opportunities, repeat errors of 
past, inefficient use of future resources, loss of 
reputation. 
Other services affected: Planning, Housing, 
Partnerships IT & Graphics  

A A1 
Delivery of a Growth Areas 
Engagement Strategy (to 
be approved) 

 
Member briefings for major 
growth sites – at least three  
 
Local Liaison Forum 
established for each major 
growth site – at least four 
meetings of the Northstowe 
Parish Forum 
 
 
Programme of lunch time 
seminars for staff – at least 
two 
 
E bulletins, updates and 
growth website pages  - 
four newsletters 
 
 

Additional Resources Required: Existing 
budget and staff time (max budget of 5,000) 
Outputs: Number of engagement events, 
communications sent out, information provided 
and satisfaction surveys involving participants 
and recipients 
Outcomes:  A more effective and consistent 
approach to Member and community 
engagement for those affected by major growth 
sites, including high satisfaction levels 
Risks: Risks associated with the delivery of 
the engagement plan include poor public 
reaction to the engagement, and perceptions of 
poor engagement (reputational risk) if poorly 
delivered. Lack of staff resource and 
commitment of development partners to fully 
engage.  
Other services affected: Planning, 
Partnerships, Communications, IT 
 
This work relies on timetables agreed with the 
Joint Director of Planning  

 New 
Communities 

 

P
age 164



 
 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN:  New Communities Service 
 
Aim B: Ensuring South Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and healthy place for you and your family. 
COUNCIL 
Aim/ 

Approach 
# 

See Key 

Service 
Objective 

# 
See Key 

Supporting Objective SMART* Actions or 
Milestones Supporting Information Completion 

by Month 

 
Officer 

 
 

COUNCIL 
ACTION 
2 

 

 

Council Action:  We will 
increase the number of 
teenagers taking part in 
positive activities by 500 in 
2010/11 

Increase the number of 
teenagers taking part in sport, 
arts and recreation or other 
positive activities, by 500 in 
2010/11: Develop a co-
ordinated SCDC approach to 
support the LAA Action. 
 
Delivery of the Youth 
Participation Strategy Action 
Plan. New SCDC benchmark 
figures to be established for 
2010/11, taking into account 
2009/10 projects (street 
football, training programme 
for Parish Councils, school 
design events, arts youth 
offer, free swimming) and 
adding new activities for 
2010/11. 
 
Two design days for year 8’s 
linked to major developments  

 
Engage with education 
providers and community 
groups to promote the 
general understanding of built 
environment issues by 
attending 4 events in a year 
 

Additional Resources Required: Required 
£20,000 from re-allocating existing budgets 
and funding from Cambridgeshire Horizons 
Outputs: Programme of positive activities and 
more opportunities for youth consultation and 
engagement. Contributes towards CCC/LAA NI 
110.  
Outcomes; i) more young people engaged in 
positive activities to help meet LAA target NI 
110 
ii) more young people participating in decisions 
that affect them, including for SCDC services 
Risks: Budget reductions and inability to 
attract external funding  
Other services affected:, Housing, 
Community Safety, Partnerships, 
Environmental Health, Equality 

March 2011 

Richard 
Hales and 

Glen 
Richardson/ 
Ian Howes 

P
age 165



B/Action 2 
Positive 
Activities 
for YP 

Increase young people 
participation in Street 
Football Programme 

Increase the number of 
individuals attending by 5% 
over 2009/10 figures.  

Additional Resources Required: £20,000 
provided for in 2010/11 budget.  
Outputs:  180 street football sessions in 5 
venues across South Cambs.  
Outcomes: Increased (5% increase over 
2009/10) number of young people participating 
in sport who would not otherwise do so, 
increased health benefits, reduction in ASB 
Risks: Service contracted out. Contract risks 
mitigated by way of contract management 
procedures.  
Other services affected: Community Safety 

March 2011 
– full year 
programme 

Richard 
Hales 

B/Action 2  
Positive 
Activities 
for YP 

Increase number of young 
people (16 yrs and under) 
participating in Free 
Swimming programme 

Increase the number of 
individuals attending by 5% 
over 2009/10 figures. 
 
 

 
 
 

Additional Resources Required: None 
Outputs: 785 more (5% + 2009/10) young 
people taking advantage of free swimming 
sessions; improved data collection system 
Outcomes: Improved health of young people, 
reduction in obesity, reduction in ASB 
Risks: Poor take up of activities, or activities 
seen as a poor use of public money.  
Other services affected: None 

March 2011 
– full year 
programme 

Richard 
Hales 

B/Action 2 
Positive 
Activities 
for YP 

Arts Youth Offer 
(ArtsMash): Increase 
opportunities for young 
people aged 13-19 to 
access arts and cultural 
activities 

Number of 13 – 19 year olds 
involved in programme 
target100. 
ii) 12 representatives 
producing the activity menus.  
iii) Retention of these young 
people in the programme 
over the year target85 
iv) 30 young people to gain 
arts awards 

Additional resources required: None, 
external funding (£24,000) to deliver the 
project.  
Outputs: 100 young people involved in 
activities at Bar Hill, Cottenham, Gamlinay, 
Linton and Melbourn. To be measured by CCC 
(under tender) 
Outcomes: Greater involvement in arts 
activities; increase in skills levels, reduction in 
ASB 
Risks:  Poor take up of activities, or activities 
seen as a poor use of public money. 
Other services: Partnerships and Village 
Colleges 

March 2011 
– full year 
programme 

Andy 
OHanlon 

B/Action 2 

Positive 
Activities 
for Young 
People 

Delivery of the Youth 
Participation Strategy (Due 
for PFH approval in July 
2010) 

Draft Objectives: 
1. Develop four training 
sessions to employees on 
effective Youth Participation.  
2. Involve young people in 
service delivery planning and 
delivery in one service 
3. Hold an event to celebrate 

Additional Resources Required: Existing 
budgets and potentially external funding 
Outputs: Co-ordinated corporate approach to 
youth participation, increased opportunities for 
YP to participate in decisions and services 
Outcomes: Better informed and effective 
services for YP, young people feeling more 
engaged and empowered 

March 2011 
– full year 
programme 

Richard 
Hales 

P
age 166



young people’s involvement 
in their communities. 
  

 

Risks: Resources if external funding not 
achieved. 
Other services affected: Corporate including 
Housing, Environmental Health, Partnerships 

B B5 

NI 8: Increase number of 
new adults taking up sport 
by 1%  

Increase number of adults 
participating in Try Sport 
Events by 1%  
1) Increased number of new 

club/club links as a result 
of the Try Sport 
programme 

2) Increased number of 
adults participating in free 
swimming programme 

3) Increase in the 
participation of the 
Fitness for health 
scheme, Adult disability 
sport activities and 
Healthy walks scheme 

4) Work with 9 Dual Use 
Sports centres to 
establish standardised 
user data collection 
system 

Additional Resources Required: Existing 
budgets (£20,000) 
Standardised collection system (£10,200) to be 
funded form existing resources.  
Outputs: More people engaged in sports and 
exercise, in line with LAA targets (1% over 
2009/10). 
Improved data collection and analysis 
capability within each sports centre.  
Outcomes. Healthy and engaged population 
and increased levels of health.  
Risks: Service to be contracted out. Inherent 
contracting risks, managed via the contract 
management process.  
Other services affected: Environmental 
Health and Village Colleges with dual use 
facilities 

March 2011 
– full year 
programme 

Richard 
Hales 

B  
Develop the Public Art 
Policy as set out in the SPD 
approved January 2009 

1) One x Public Arts Seminar 
for officers and developers  
 
2) Increase the contribution 
collected from S.106 
negotiations to average 1% 
inline with the SPD, subject to 
viability negotiations  

Additional resources required: None (£0) to 
be produced in line with Joint urban design 
Team & City Council.  
Outputs: Completion of 6 public art schemes 
funded by S.106 contributions 
Outcomes: More engaged communities and 
individuals, greater knowledge of local 
history/issues, community cohesion through 
the arts. Greater advocacy from Members and 
Senior Officers. 
Risks: Risks associated with the negotiation of 
agreements, to be mitigated by improved 
training for officers in the negotiation of 
agreements and greater understanding of the 
importance of Public Art SPD. 
Other Services: Planning, including S.106. 

 Andy 
OHanlon 

P
age 167



 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN:  New Communities Service 
 
Aim C: We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live 
 
COUNCIL 
Aim/ 
Approach 
# 
See Key 

Service 
Objective 
# 
See Key 

Supporting Objective SMART* Actions or 
Milestones 

Supporting Information Completion 
by Month 

 
Officer 
 
 

C  

Supporting the existing 
and future residents at 
Cambourne 

1. Determine 950 Planning 
application & associated 
S106 Agreement. 
2. Facilitate further 
development of High Street. 
3. Develop project plan and 
business plan for Youth 
Centre. 
4. Ensure delivery of Sports 
Centre and Pavilion. 
5. Oversee transfer of sites to 
Parish Council. 

Additional Resources Required Staff time, 
950  
Outputs: Detailed planning permission, 
additional facilities, clear management 
arrangements. 
Outcomes: A more sustainable community 
with a sense of identity, safety and security. 
Greater civic participation, local communities 
running their own events and fit for purpose 
facilities. 
Risks: Reliance on other partners and 
applicants, dissatisfied residents, loss of 
reputation. 
Other services affected: Planning, Housing, 
Environmental Health 

March 2011  
Kate 
Wood/Team 
Leader 
(Planning) 

C  

Supporting the existing 
and future residents at 
Orchard Park 

1. Deliver innovative housing 
on K1 and L2. 
2. Transfer and opening of 
public open space 1, with 
associated sports, changing 
and play facilities. 
3. Transfer of public open 
spaces 3, 4, 5 & 6 to 
Community Council. 
4.Handover of personalised 
travel planning to Community 
Council. 
5. Plan for additional 220 
homes. 

Additional Resources Required: Staff time. 
Budget – within existing monies already ring 
fenced for Orchard Park. 
Outputs: Additional facilities, detailed planning 
permissions for additional housing, clear 
management arrangements. 
Outcomes: A more sustainable community 
with a sense of identity, safety and security. 
Greater cohesion. Greater civic participation, 
local communities running their own events 
and fit for purpose facilities. 
Risks: Reliance on other partners and 
applicants, unmanaged areas of land, 
dissatisfied residents, loss of reputation. 
Other services affected: Housing, Planning 
 

  
John 
Pym/Team 
Leader 
(Planning) 

C  Planning for future 
communities at  

1. Receive, consult and 
consider CNW planning 

Additional Resources Required: Staff time 
Outputs:  Co-ordinated project and delivery 

Sept 2010 Trevor  
Faulkner  

P
age 168



North West including 
NIAB sites 

application, environmental 
statement including viability 
and S.106 work and planning 
obligations – all to be done 
jointly with City 
2. Establish project plan and 
carry out pre-application 
advice for  
NIAB 2 
3. Agree community facility 
requirements for University 
site 

plans. Greater understanding of service 
requirements. Assessment of outline planning 
application. Target to agree Head of Terms. 
Outcomes: Planned and more efficient service 
delivery and use of resources, well considered 
master plan, which will form basis for new 
community. Community Plan for University site 
in partnership with other local authorities and 
University. 
Risks: Reliance on other partners and 
applicants, uncoordinated approach to service 
delivery, delays to delivery, loss of reputation, 
dissatisfied residents in adjoining communities. 
Other services affected: Environmental 
Health, Planning, IT, Housing. 

C  

Planning for future 
communities at 
Trumpington Meadows 

1. Discharge conditions of 
outline permission. 
2. Develop and determine 
design codes 
3. Planning performance 
Agreement and pre-
application advice for 
reserved matter applications 
4. Community, Parish Council 
and District Member 
Engagement. 
5. Support city lead on joint 
Community Development 
Plan and youth and play 
strategy. 
6. Ensure design of primary 
school meets community 
needs and meets s106 
requirements. 

Additional Resources Required: Staff time 
Outputs:  Co-ordinated project and delivery 
plans. Detailed planning permissions enabling 
development to start on site. 
Outcomes: Co-ordinated delivery of facilities 
and services as first residents move in.  
Risks: Reliance on other partners and 
applicants, uncoordinated approach to service 
delivery, delays to delivery, loss of reputation, 
dissatisfied residents in adjoining communities. 
Other services affected: Environmental 
Health, Planning, IT, Housing. 

 Michelle 
Crees/Kirsty 
Human 

C  

Northstowe 

1. Bid for eco town.  
2. Engage with HCA  
3. Pre-application discussions 
4. Confirm and refine delivery 
mechanisms. 

Additional Resources Required: Additional 
staff. May be provided in conjunction with 
partners within the wider public sector.  
Outputs: Productive pre-application 
discussions leading to an agreeable application 
at the end of 2010/11 or early 11/12.  
Strong engagement with the HCA to deliver a 
working partnership.  
Outcomes: Confirmation of Eco-town status, 

March 2011 
and on-
going 
thereafter 

Head of New 
Communities 

P
age 169



and strong policy position to deliver against. 
Risks: Reliance on other partners and 
applicants 
Other services affected: Environmental 
Health, Planning, IT, Housing. Other authority 
and developer partners. 

C  

 
Cambridge East 

1. Be prepared to deliver if 
projects become ’live’. 

Additional Resources Required: Additional 
staff. 
Outputs: Will depend upon the point of the 
project moving forward.  
Outcomes: Indicative outcomes will include 
productive pre-application discussions. 
Risks: Reliance on other partners and 
applicants 
Other services affected: Environmental 
Health, Planning, IT, Housing. 

On-going Head of New 
Communities 

C  
 
Council 
Action 
2010/11 

 

Climate Change Action 
Plan 
 
Achieve reductions in the 
emission of CO2 from the 
Council’s own operations 
by 10% by December 
2010:- Reduced Energy 
Consumption on SCDC 
premises 

1. Introduction of voltage 
optimisation technology:  
Assess viability   
Submit Capital Bid  
Procurement process  
Purchase equipment  
Install 
2. Internal behaviour Change; 
Purchase 10 home energy 
monitors. Make available for 
home loan to staff  
3. Joint Power Purchase 
agreements; 
Investigate the potential to 
jointly purchase “green” 
energy with other public 
sector – either in Cambourne 
(police, fire & County Council) 
or with City Council.  
 
 

Additional Resources Required: £25k 
capital, £1000 revenue 
Outputs:  Reduced Co2 output on energy 
(estimate10% or 200t) Increased awareness of 
energy usage and total costs by staff in SCDC. 
Improved DEC rating, in line with the reduction.  
Outcomes: Reduced CO2 emissions (10% by 
Dec.2010) from SCDC activities 
Risks: Building Management systems failing to 
allow for improvements.  
Other services affected: Facilities 
Management  

December 
2010 and 
thereafter 

Richard 
Hales 

  

Reduce water 
Consumption 

Review usage on (min) 
quarterly basis, by area of 
building.   

Additional Resources Required: Capital bids 
re invest-to save at South Cambs hall.  
Outputs:  Production and analysis of water 
use & options for improving the building’s 
performance re. Water (grey & potable) 
Outcomes: Reduced water use, contributing to 

June 2010 & 
on-going 

Richard 
Hales 

P
age 170



lower CO2 emissions from SCDC activities. 
Baseline not yet set for water consumption. 
Establishment of baseline is first action.  
Re-commission rainwater harvesting systems 
in South Cambs Hall.  
Risks: Building Management systems failing to 
allow for improvements.  
Other services affected: Facilities 
Management 

  

Reduce Business Miles 

Introduce quarterly reporting 
top all service areas of 
business miles claimed.  
 
Assess opportunities for 
SCDC car pool within review 
of business mileage & 
essential car use.  

Additional Resources Required: Officer Time 
(JM) 
Outputs:  Reduced costs for SCDC mileage 
(estimate of 10% overall.) Increased 
awareness of energy usage and total costs by 
staff in SCDC. 
Outcomes: Reduced CO2 emissions from 
SCDC, activities, cost saving form reduced 
business mileage claims. 
Risks: .  
Other services affected: HR & payroll. 

On-Going Richard 
Hales 

  

Adaption to climate 
change (NI188) 

Activities for Level 2 as 
specified in NI188 guidance. 
1. Risk review of impact on 
Council services to meet 
Level 2 by March 2011 using 
UKCIP method 
2. Briefing for senior 
members and managers 
across the authority leading 
to all having detailed 
understanding of the risks 
and vulnerabilities identified 
in risk analysis 
3. Incorporate adaption into 
LDF review process 
4. Link to LSP activities  
Gain SMT approval for this 
process. Roll out within 
service areas. 

Additional Resources Required: Officer Time 
(JM) 
Outputs: Understanding of the risks to the 
council and its services arising from climate 
change 
Outcomes: The authority is able to manage & 
mitigate the risks associated with climate 
change & deliver services. 
Risks: Implementation across all service 
areas, and lack of “buy-in”.  
Other services affected: All 

March 2011 Richard 
Hales 

Council 
Action 
2010/11 

 Council Action: Work with 
parish councils across the 
district to reduce CO2 
emissions through the 

1. Recruit eight new parishes 
to join the project. 
2. Provision of support to year 
one parishes. Zero fall out 

Additional Resources Required. Included 
within SPEP plan. 
Outputs: Additional 8 parishes to joint the 
programme 

July 2010 & 
on-going 

Alex Day 

P
age 171



implementation of local 
community initiatives 
(3A6/NI 186) Maintaining 
and growing Membership 

rate. 
 

Outcomes:  Greater levels of awareness 
regarding local carbons saving opportunities. 
Engagement in the SPEP.  
Risks: High level of year 1 membership, 
results in lower year 2 demands. 
Limited resource available to the project results 
in low satisfaction form excessive demands. 
Other services affected: All – this will require 
cross service working to deliver.  

  

Improved 
Communications  

1. Produce, distribute and 
update village energy booklet 
for all parishes within the 
SPEP 
2. Web Site development to 
bring about support network 
for all parishes in the SPEP 
3. Increased engagement 
with schools and other 
community area  
4. To hold at least 2 energy 
reduction shows per year 

Additional Resources Required: Within 
existing budgets 
Outputs: Provision of up to date and accurate 
information for all participating parishes. Wider 
spread of the messages and spread 
throughout the communities.  
Outcomes:  Greater ability to communicate 
and engage, leading to more committed 
parishes and greater carbon savings.   
Risks:  
Other services affected: None 

On-going Alex Day 

  

Delivery of carbon saving 
measures 

1. Off-gas community action 
plan for SPEP communities 
without gas connection. 
Applicable and used in 
recruitment for other off-gas 
communities.  
2. Solid wall insulation. 
Investigate and apply for 
specific funding from low 
carbon communities 
challenge fund  
3. DIY solar water availability 
for installations. Develop 
options for baulk purchase of 
solar water panels to reduce 
cost.  Confirm procurement 
options and issues. 
4. Roll out of improved 
insulation scheme in 
conjunction with Eastern 
Carbon reduction Initiative. 

Additional Resources Required: Within 
existing project budgets 
Outputs: Increased uptake of practical carbon 
saving measures in SPEP communities.  
Outcomes:  Greater saving of home energy 
bills and CO2 savings. Individual village targets 
defined contributing to an overall target of x 
tonnes (to be set once year one completed and 
capital allocations for renewable technology 
are confirmed).    
Risks: Non-take up of the scheme 
Other services affected: None 

On-Going Alex Day 

  Assessment and Produce interim assessment Additional Resources Required: Within September Alex 

P
age 172



evaluation and evaluation report.  existing budgets 
Outputs: Production of initial assessment of 
success and analysis of areas for 
improvement.  
Outcomes:  Lessons of project at halfway 
point able to be implemented in this and other 
SCDC/LSP projects.    
Risks: None 
Other services affected: None 

2010 Day/Richard 
Hales 

 

P
age 173



 
 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN:  New Communities Service 
 
Aim D: We are committed to assisting provision of local jobs for your and your family 
COUNCIL 
Aim/ 
Approach 
# 
See Key 

Service 
Objective 
# 
See Key 

Supporting Objective SMART* Actions or 
Milestones 

Supporting Information Completion 
by Month 

 
Officer 
 
 

D (7)  

Council Action We will 
promote the relocation of 
Marshalls within 
Cambridgeshire in order 
to meet the districts 
requirements for new 
homes and retain job 
opportunities.  

1. Continue to work in 
partnership with Marshall 
Group, via the 
Cambridgeshire Horizons led 
relocation group. 
2. Support the assessment of 
option sites, as proposed 
within the relocation group 
3. Build upon existing strong 
links with Marshall Group.  

Additional Resources Required: None, 
within existing officer time 
Outputs: Retention of employment 
opportunities in South Cambs  
Outcomes: Marshall Group retained in 
Cambridgeshire, providing job opportunities for 
South Cambs residents.   
Risks: Marshall’s relocation outside of 
Cambridgeshire. Non-relocation leading to 
non-0delivery of significant development site.  
Other services affected: 

On-going to 
March 2011 

Nicole 
Kritzinger 

D (8)  

We will promote the 
district to new businesses 
To build a resilient 
economy, building upon 
the existing strengths and 
creating new 
opportunities,  

1. To market the district as a 
location for businesses, 
through partnership work with 
GCP, EEI, and publish vacant 
land and property information 
on SCDC Website. 
2. Targeted interventions by 
SCDC with partners resulting 
in either relocation or 
retention of 5 businesses in 
SCDC area. 
3. Host and enable at least 12 
business development 
workshops within the District.  
4. Build links with the 
University, in conjunction with 
the GCP to assist start-ups 
and grow on companies with 
the science park.  

 Additional Resources Required: Within 
identified budgets, total £10,000. 
Outputs: Direct promotion of SCDC by way of 
advertisement and literature delivery. 
Coordinated approach with regional investment 
agency, details pending review of regional 
contact.  
Outcomes:  Increased range of employment 
opportunities within South Cambs. Improved 
partnership working & partner confidence in 
SCDC as a delivery focused partner.  
Risks: General economy related risks. And 
identified actions more than budget 
Other services affected: All – this will require 
cross service working to deliver.  

On-going Nicole 
Kritzinger 

D  Delivery of the agreed 
Economic Development 
strategy 

1. Deliver the Strategy action 
plan as approved – due May 
2010  

Additional Resources Required: Officer 
Time, strong delivery partnership, £10,00 from 
within existing budgets 

 Nicole 
Kritzinger 

P
age 174



 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN:  New Communities Service 
 
Aim D: We are committed to assisting provision of local jobs for your and your family 

Outputs: Strategy action plan to be confirmed. 
Broadly anticipated outputs will include the 
development of environmentally friendly 
businesses opportunities in line with the growth 
agenda. 
To continue to develop the district as a centre 
of excellence in identified strengths sectors. 
Outcomes:  To be confirmed 
Risks:  
Other services affected: Arts and cultural 
services.   

 
 

P
age 175



 
 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN:  New Communities Service 
 
Aim E: We are committed to providing a voice for rural life 
COUNCIL 
Aim/ 

Approach 
# 

See Key 

Service 
Objective 

# 
See Key 

Supporting Objective SMART* Actions or 
Milestones Supporting Information Completion 

by Month 

 
Officer 

 
 

  

Section 106 monitoring 
charging and getting the 
best for South Cambs 

Parishes 

Implement and Review 
charging schedule for the 
monitoring of Section 106 
agreements.  
Charging will take effect in as 
of January 2010, with a 
review to take place in July 
2010.  
 
Create and manage a list of 
Parish projects that can be 
funded through open space 
and community planning 
obligations. This list is to be 
created by the District 
Council, but updated by 
Parish Councils, to inform 
developers of how planning 
obligations are to be spent 

Additional Resources Required: S106 
Implementation Officer, Finance and legal 
services 
Outputs: Income for the District Council to fully 
fund the position of S106 Implementation 
Officer 
Outcomes: Secures the long term monitoring 
of community infrastructure, ensuring timely 
delivery. Council will have record of time spent 
monitoring individual agreements. 
Risks: Continued down-turn in the 
development economy leads to lower than 
anticipated income.  
Other services affected: Planning & S.106 
monitoring 

On-going 
charging 

with review 
to take 

place July 
2010 

James Fisher 

 
 

P
age 176



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Planning Portfolio Holder  2 March 2010 
AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Operational Services)/ 

Corporate Manager (Planning and Sustainable Communities) 
 

 
CAMBRIDGESHIRE GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY  

PUBLIC AND STAKEHOLDER CONSULTATION 
 

Purpose 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to provide information on the Cambridgeshire Green 

Infrastructure Strategy consultation and seek approval for the Council’s response.   
 
2. This is a key decision because it is likely to be significant in terms of its effects on 

communities living or working in an area of the District comprising all wards.  
 

Recommendations 
 
3. It is recommended that the Council’s reply to the Green Infrastructure Strategy 

consultation should be: 
 
1. The Council supports the role that an effective strategy will have in the 

protection, creation and management of green infrastructure.  
 
2. The Council supports the development of a strategy which will provide a 

robust and defensible basis for green infrastructure planning and delivery, for 
both existing communities and the growth areas.   

 
3. The Council has significant concerns about the approach and content of the 

draft Green Infrastructure Strategy as set out in this report and previous officer 
comments to Cambridgeshire Horizons. 

 
4. The Council will require major changes to the strategy addressing its concerns 

before it will be able to endorse it. 
 

5. Council officers will work with Cambridgeshire Horizons and other partners to 
achieve the changes required. 

 
Background 

 
(a)  Green Infrastructure 
 

4. Green Infrastructure describes a network of public open spaces, routes, wildlife 
habitats, landscapes and heritage sites. It includes a wide range of different types of 
element such as rivers and streams, country parks, rights of way, woodlands and 
historic landscapes, and combines a range of functions. 
 

5. Green Infrastructure provides an environmental support system and is set within and 
contributes to a high quality natural, historic and built environment. It helps create 
places that are attractive, healthy and give a good quality of life, and deliver a range 
of other social, economic and environmental benefits.  

Agenda Item 8Page 177



 
6. The Green Infrastructure approach is endorsed at national, regional and local levels. 

It is included in PPS 12: Creating strong, safe and prosperous new communities 
through spatial planning and is promoted in Natural England’s Green Infrastructure 
Guidance (2009) and CABE’s Grey to Green (2009). The East of England Plan (May 
2008) gives policy support for green infrastructure.  
 

7. Green infrastructure elements and approaches are included in Local Development 
Documents such as Area Action Plans, the Development Control Policies DPD and 
Site Specific Policies DPD, as well as Supplementary Planning Documents for 
Biodiversity, Open Space, Landscape and Design.    
 

8. The policy framework supports the planning, delivery and management of green 
infrastructure at county, district and community or neighbourhood scales. Green 
infrastructure is necessary to meet the needs of existing and new communities and is 
a crucial part of successful new development. It should be protected and well 
managed, and existing and new green infrastructure should be an integral part of 
development and its surroundings, and link with wider green infrastructure networks.  
 

9. Cambourne is an example of the successful provision of green infrastructure within 
the context of housing growth and through development. Cambourne also 
demonstrates how attractive places can be created, and a range of benefits 
combined such as sustainable drainage, flood management, biodiversity, and routes 
which encourage people to walk, cycle and enjoy their surroundings.   

 
(b)  The existing Green Infrastructure Strategy 
 

10. In 2006 Cambridgeshire Horizons and its partners (including South Cambridgeshire 
District Council) produced the first Green Infrastructure Strategy for the Cambridge 
Sub-Region 
(www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/environment/countryside/natureconservation/delivering/
greenvision ).  
 

11. The Strategy covers a period of 20 years and sets out an integrated network, 
comprising green corridors, major sites and wider area initiatives. The Strategy has 
raised the profile of green infrastructure and highlighted its role in delivering 
successful, sustainable communities. It has helped to secure Growth Area Funds for 
projects such Trumpington Meadows where green infrastructure, which will increase 
biodiversity and public access, is related to new housing on the southern fringe of 
Cambridge.  
 

12. Criticisms of the existing strategy include its failure to fully include historic 
environment and landscape or see green infrastructure within its wider context. It is 
also, arguably, over-ambitious.  
 

13. Other weaknesses with the existing strategy were highlighted by the Inspectors’ 
Reports on the Local Development Framework in 2007. The Inspectors did not 
support the Northstowe Area Action Plan’s proposals for new strategic open space 
and country parks at the new town, or a strategic open space target intended to apply 
to all development across the district. The Reports highlighted the fact that green 
infrastructure needed to be supported by a strategy which had community 
involvement and a strong evidence base.  
 

14. The current consultation on a proposed revised strategy will help address the lack of 
community involvement but a key requirement for the new strategy is to provide the 

Page 178



necessary robust evidence base and analysis to support any proposals. (It should be 
noted that national and regional policy support for green infrastructure has increased 
since 2007. In addition, if Northstowe is given eco-town status it will be required to 
deliver particular approaches and higher standards set out in recent guidance.) 
 
(c)  The new Green Infrastructure Strategy  
 

15. It was intended that the current strategy would be regularly reviewed in order to learn 
lessons from its use, respond to new needs and opportunities, and reflect changing 
agendas. More recently it was decided that the scope of the strategy should be 
extended to cover the whole of Cambridgeshire.  
 

16. As a result, a second edition of the strategy has been developed. This has been 
commissioned by Cambridgeshire Horizons and produced by LDA Design. The 
development of the strategy has been directed by the Cambridgeshire Green 
Infrastructure Officer and a sub-group of the Green Infrastructure Forum that includes 
representatives from this Council.  Officers contributed to the development of the 
strategy through a workshop and interview and have given comments on Baseline 
and Delivery Reports produced by the consultants in November and December 2009.  
 
(d)  The consultation  
 

17. A consultation draft of the new strategy has now been produced and Cambridgeshire 
Horizons are asking residents and stakeholders for their views. The consultation runs 
from 25th January to 7th March and information on the consultation draft of the 
strategy is available on www.cambridgeshirehorizons.co.uk/greenvision. We have 
promoted the consultation on our website and have staffed three events in the District 
with Cambridgeshire Horizons (at Sawston Village College, Milton Country Park and 
Sackville House, Cambourne). Information has been distributed to all Parish Councils 
and libraries.  

 
Considerations 
 
(a) The approach of the consultation draft of the strategy 
 

18. The second edition of the strategy is intended to be better integrated with the 
planning process and deliver new objectives such as achieving healthy communities 
and climate change adaptation and mitigation. The content and impact of the existing 
strategy has been reviewed, along with other baseline information and links to 
neighbouring strategies. Current and new projects have been considered for 
inclusion.  
 

19. The Strategy sets out four green infrastructure objectives for Cambridgeshire: 
 

1. Reverse the Decline in Biodiversity 
2. Mitigate and Adapt to Climate Change 
3. Promote Sustainable Growth and Economic Development 
4. Support Healthy Living and Wellbeing 

 
20. The measures given to achieve each of these objectives, such as promoting place 

making and protecting and enhancing cultural heritage and landscape character, give 
a fuller idea of the thrust and range of the strategy.  

 

Page 179



21. The Strategy has three main categories of initiative: 
 
1. There are four Investment Opportunities: 
 

1. Biodiversity Enhancement  
2. Sustainable Movement  
3. Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation  
4. Economic Investment 

 
These are generic programmes within which projects will be taken forward by 
appropriate deliverers as opportunities arise. 
 
An appendix details local projects which relate to the four Investment 
Opportunity Programmes. A majority of these are at least partly in South 
Cambridgeshire: Coton Countryside Reserve, Fowlmere Nature Reserve, 
Chalk Rivers Project, West Cambridgeshire Hundreds, Gog Magog 
Countryside Project, North Cambridge Heritage Trail, Wicken Fen Heritage 
Trail and Cambridge Sports Lakes.  

 
2. There are ten Strategic Projects: 
 

1. A14 Green Infrastructure 
2. Cambridge Green Wheel 
3. The Fen Waterways Link 
4. Great Fen Project  
5. Wicken Fen Vision 
6. Great Ouse Wetland 
7. Fenland Country Parks 
8. Ely Country Park 
9. Cambridge East Country Park 
10. Northstowe Green Network 

 
These are site specific initiatives of strategic importance. 

 
3. Area Frameworks are a new approach and will apply to areas within the 

county where a high degree of change is planned, primarily as a result of 
housing and economic development. Specific Area Frameworks are still to be 
identified and described.  

 
(b)  Response to strategy development reports and the consultation draft  

 
22. The Baseline and Delivery Reports marked major stages in the development of the 

strategy. Officer comments on the reports noted that there were positive aspects to 
the documents but listed numbers of weaknesses and gaps. Our responses were 
divided between detailed and general comments and the latter are included as 
Appendix A.  
 

23. The reports, comments on them, and the consultation draft were produced over three 
months and that limited the time available to Cambridgeshire Horizons and the 
consultants to make changes.  
 

24. We welcome the inclusion of Northstowe Green Network as a Strategic Project in the 
consultation draft following our input. The Area Framework concept recommended in 
the strategy would allow the development of a green infrastructure initiative in 
Cambridge and the surrounding area. This could both help promote a green 

Page 180



infrastructure network to serve the city as a whole and help co-ordinate the green 
infrastructure required in relation to the growth sites on the edge of the city (for 
example, in line with Area Action Plans), and the links between it and the wider 
countryside and green infrastructure network. Officers consider that there may be 
merit in including within the Area Framework the Cambridge Green Wheel and 
Cambridge East Country Park Strategic Projects identified in the strategy. More work 
would be needed to clarify what an Area Framework for Cambridge would comprise 
and contribute, and to identify the sources of resources to plan and deliver it. Further 
consideration is also necessary on the scope and description of the Cambridge East 
strategic project and whether one should be identified for the Cambridge Southern 
Fringe. 
 

25. The potential for a Cambridge Area Framework and general reactions to the strategy 
have been discussed and agreed with officers at Cambridge City Council. The City 
Council’s Development Plan Steering Group is considering the consultation document 
at its meeting on 23 February and the City Council’s conclusions on the strategy and 
the Area Framework approach will be reported orally at the meeting. 
 

26. Despite the positive changes to, and potential of, parts of the strategy just described, 
most of our criticisms of the Baseline and Delivery Reports do, however, still apply. 
Some of the most important points are:   
 
1. The strategy does not provide the required robust evidence base, analysis 

and rationale to support the green infrastructure proposals it contains. The 
Investment Opportunities would be better used as part of the evidence base 
and rationale for identifying green infrastructure priorities (and implemented 
alongside the strategy) rather than as initiatives in their own right. Historic 
environment, landscape, open/green spaces, and visitor sites and gateways 
should be considered fully as part of the evidence base and rationale and 
expressed in the priorities. The document should give more weight to the 
importance of growth in terms of the challenges and opportunities created by 
development, the need to make successful new places, and the impact of 
major increases in population, particularly in and close to South 
Cambridgeshire.  

 
2. The use of Investment Opportunity, Strategic Project and Area Framework 

(plus local project) categories gives a complex message. The whole does not 
create an understandable or successful network which is multi-functional and 
connected. 

 
3. The strategy concentrates too much on proposals which are to be 

implemented in the future and which (arguably) have a good chance of being 
achieved. It should also include existing green infrastructure and projects, 
which are a major part of the network and need to be completed, added to, 
protected and managed. It should establish a network which will direct future 
action as opportunities, often not known or realisable today, arise.  

 
4. The initiatives and their graphic representation appear divorced from the area 

to which they are being applied. The lack of connection is accentuated by 
what appears to be a demotion of ‘local projects’. For example, the existing 
strategy shows the Farmland Museum and Denny Abbey as a ‘Historic 

Page 181



Cultural Centre’ with proposed green corridors linking it to Cottenham and 
Northstowe to the west and a crossing over the River Cam and the Wicken 
Fen Vision to the east. The role of the Museum and Abbey as important visitor 
sites and a potential gateway to the countryside is not highlighted in the new 
strategy, apart from a reference to Denny Abbey in the Wicken Fen Heritage 
Trail. 

 
5. The strategy does not provide an approach, spatial framework and 

methodology which will encourage and support green infrastructure planning 
and action at district and community levels.  

 
6. The strategy suggests that further documents will be needed to secure green 

infrastructure planning, implementation and funding but it is not clear what is 
needed and how and when it will be provided. Given the resources local 
authorities have and the need to make progress with green infrastructure it is 
important that this strategy fulfils as many of these requirements as possible. 
For example, it should be able to support the case for a community 
infrastructure levy or tariff contribution to green infrastructure.  

 
7. The strategy must be able to act as an effective tool, which can be justified 

and carries sufficient weight, for policy and development control planners, and 
developers and their agents, as well as those planning, managing, securing 
funding for and delivering green infrastructure inside and outside planning and 
development. Currently we do not believe that this is the case.  

 
27. There are many aspects of the strategy that have value and which we support such 

as the influence of the biodiversity mapping exercise and the successful case studies 
from South Cambridgeshire. However, in our opinion, the document will require major 
changes to make it acceptable and fit for purpose.  
 

28. Following the publication of the consultation draft, there have been discussions with 
the Cambridgeshire Green Infrastructure Officer which have allowed us to explain 
further some of our concerns and he has responded positively to our suggestions.   
 

29. In the light of our concerns, and the ambitious timetable for the preparation of the 
consultation draft, officers believe that it is important that time is taken now to 
reconsider in detail the approach to the strategy and they way it is presented in the 
document. Officers are prepared to help Cambridgeshire Horizons and other partners 
agree and inform the changes required with the aim of producing a document which 
can be endorsed by this Council. 
 
Options 
 

30. There are 3 possible options for the Council: 
 
1. To accept the consultation draft and not request changes. 
2. To object to the consultation draft.  
3. To respond to the consultation draft with comments and recommended 

changes and say that officers will work with Cambridgeshire Horizons and 
other partners to help make the required improvements.  

 

Page 182



Implications 
 

31. Results of the different options and potential reactions to them are: 
 

(a) A green infrastructure strategy which is not robust, defensible or otherwise fit 
for purpose 

(b) The lack of a current green infrastructure strategy which has been endorsed 
by the Council  

(c) Incomplete endorsement of the strategy by local authority and other partners 
which will affect its credibility and implementation 

(d) Disagreement with Cambridgeshire Horizons and possibly some other 
partners on the changes needed  

 
Consultations 
 

32. The strategy consultation including information on the Council’s website has been 
described above. Members and parish councils were told about the consultation in 
their bulletins. Officers in the Planning and New Communities Services were asked 
for their views on the reports and strategy. 
 
Effect on Strategic Aims 
 

33 Commitment to being a listening council, providing first class services accessible to all. 
 The strategy consultation has actively sought the views and ideas of the public and 

stakeholders. Green infrastructure is delivered by partnerships between the public, 
private and voluntary sectors, and by local communities, groups and volunteers.  

 Commitment to ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and healthy place for all. 
 Green infrastructure supports the Council’s approach of “promoting active lifestyles and 

increasing opportunities for sport and recreation to improve the health of all age groups”. 
 Commitment to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
 Community green infrastructure projects involve working with local people and promote 

community cohesion. Green infrastructure has a key role in helping to address the 
causes and impacts of climate change and promoting low carbon living and growth. The 
Strategy highlights climate change mitigation and adaptation as an Investment 
Opportunity.  

 Commitment to assisting provision for local jobs for all. 
 Green infrastructure is delivered in partnership with and contributes to local businesses 

and promotes economic development. The Strategy targets economic investment 
opportunities and areas of deprivation. Green infrastructure supports cultural activities 
and tourism including through strategic projects such as the Wicken Fen Vision.  

 Commitment to providing a voice for rural life. 
 Green infrastructure supports all the approaches which contribute to this strategic aim: 

o protecting existing communities, villages and the countryside 
o working more closely with Parish Councils and local Groups 
o implementing planning policies to achieve successful new communities 
o maximising planning gain for neighbouring communities 
o playing our part in improving rural services including transport links 

Green infrastructure protects and improves the quality of life of existing communities and 
creates successful new places. It helps provide a network of routes for walking, cycling 
and riding.  

 

Page 183



Conclusions/Summary 
 

34 Green infrastructure helps give quality of life, healthy and attractive places, and a 
  range of other benefits. It is a key way of maintaining and creating successful,  
  sustainable communities and is supported by policy at all levels. 

 
35 The existing Green Infrastructure Strategy produced in 2006 has highlighted green 
 infrastructure and help attract funding but has a number of fundamental weaknesses.  

 
36 The new Green Infrastructure Strategy is being consulted on by Cambridgeshire 
 Horizons which will cover the whole of Cambridgeshire and addresses new agendas 
 and opportunities. It identifies new types of initiative and specific projects and will 
 have greater weight as a result of the consultation.  

 
37 Officers have commented on reports produced as part of the development of the 
 strategy and raised a number of concerns. Some points have been addressed in the 
 strategy but major issues remain outstanding.  

 
38 The strategy will need significant changes before officers could recommend 
 endorsement by the Council. Officers are prepared to help agree and make those 
 changes. 

 
Recommendations 
 

39 It is recommended that the Council’s reply to the Green Infrastructure Strategy 
 consultation should be: 

 
(a) The Council supports the role that an effective strategy will have in the 

protection, creation and management of green infrastructure.  
 
(b) The Council supports the development of a strategy which will provide a 

robust and defensible basis for green infrastructure planning and delivery, for 
both existing communities and the growth areas.   

 
(c) The Council has significant concerns about the approach and content of the 

draft Green Infrastructure Strategy as set out in this report and previous officer 
comments to Cambridgeshire Horizons. 

 
(d) The Council will require major changes to the strategy addressing its concerns 

before it will be able to endorse it. 
 
(e) Council officers will work with Cambridgeshire Horizons and other partners to 

achieve the changes required. 
 

Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation 
of this report:  
 
• Cambridgeshire Horizons (May 2006) Green Infrastructure Strategy 
• LDA Design (December 2009) Cambridgeshire Green Infrastructure Strategy, 

Delivery Report  
• LDA Design (November 2009) Cambridgeshire Green Infrastructure Strategy, 

Baseline Report 
• Officer comments on Baseline Report (23 November 2009) 
• Officer comments on Delivery Report (5 January 2010)  

Page 184



• Cambridgeshire Horizons and LDA Design (January 2010) Cambridgeshire Green 
Infrastructure Strategy, Second Edition Green Infrastructure Strategy: Draft for 
Public and Stakeholder Consultation 

 
Contact Officer:  David Bevan – Conservation & Design Manager  

Telephone: (01954) 713177 
Note: David Bevan is on leave from 1- 5 March. Alternative contacts 
are: 
Caroline Hunt – Local Development Framework Team Leader  
Telephone: (01954) 713196 
David Hamilton – Landscape Design Officer  
Telephone: (01954) 713415 

Page 185



Page 186

This page is left blank intentionally.



Appendix A 
 

General comments on the Baseline Report 
 

Comment No Comment 
1 Need for clear and inclusive GI definition and approach, and fuller 

description of the benefits of GI.  
2 There should be greater clarity on the purpose of the strategy and 

what it can deliver, and whether additional documents are 
achievable and can be produced soon enough. 

3 There should be a wider ranging and more critical analysis of base 
line information, existing initiatives and opportunities. 

4 There should be a more accurate, complete and balanced 
description of the growth and planning policy contexts. 

5 There should be a more accurate and fuller reference to GI policies 
which propose GI projects, strategies and other initiatives. 

6 There should be greater clarity and accuracy on how planning can 
deliver GI including through tariffs or community levies. 

7 Need to better reflect GI’s role as integral to spatial and master 
planning.  

8 The planning and delivery of GI outside the planning system should 
be given more emphasis.  

9 The strategy should be providing a context for and promote 
community GI engagement, planning, and delivery. 

 
 
General comments on the Delivery Report 
 
Comment No Comment 

1 These comments do not repeat those already given on the Baseline 
Report unless it is necessary in order to make points on the Delivery 
Report. For the usual reason of lack of time they focus on areas 
where we have concerns and do not endorse the many areas which 
we support.  

2 Weaknesses in the assessment given in the Baseline Report were 
noted in our previous comments. There are also a number of 
examples where analysis, opportunities and initiatives that were 
contained in that Report do not feed through into the Delivery 
Report. These include the need to respond to population increases 
and new development and initiatives linked to growth sites such as 
Northstowe.  

3 The Delivery Report does not generally give a strong evidence base 
or methodology. It does not explain convincingly how and why the 
spatial framework has been developed. A robust evidence base and 
methodology are essential if the Strategy is to hold up to scrutiny, be 
integrated into planning policy documents or support decisions on 
planning applications, and justify funding.  

4 The Biodiversity Enhancement Programme and Sustainable 
Movement Programme are both justified by existing pieces of work 
including mapping exercises. The latter involves a hierarchical 
approach whereas the former (at least as used in the Delivery 
Report) is limited to the strategic level. We are concerned, however, 
that the green infrastructure priorities in these subjects have not 
been drawn out.  

5 There is a lack of cover of landscape, heritage, public open space, 
visitor sites and ‘gateways’. This may be because the supporting 
evidence is not available from existing pieces of work (unlike 
biodiversity and access routes) but this should not be a reason for 
their exclusion. These themes should also be influencing those 

Page 187



Comment No Comment 
which are covered in the Strategy.  

6 Each of the subject areas need to be looked at spatially in term of 
the existing resource and what it does and can contribute to green 
infrastructure. Existing and future public and other needs should be 
fed in to influence the design of the network and help identify 
priorities.  

7 The existing green infrastructure network should be identified, as 
one of the tasks of the strategy is to highlight what it is and seek its 
protection, management and enhancement. 

8 The Report does not synthesise the different aspects of green 
infrastructure. While different subject layers will be justified in their 
own right, a fuller analysis of how they combine together (or don’t in 
places) is needed. 

9 A multi-functional approach is important. That does not mean that 
every part of the network is multi-functional but that the network will 
be, and that an integrated approach will be at the heart of GI work 
and culture. 

10 If the Report - and by implication GI – do not synthesise different 
subjects and highlight existing projects – then arguably the Strategy 
will add little to what we have now. 

11 The Report does not show a strong link between population and 
housing growth (on individual sites and across districts) and the 
delivery of green infrastructure to meet existing and new pressures. 

12 The role of green infrastructure within, around and in the wider areas 
surrounding growth sites needs to be given greater emphasis. 

13 The Report does not particularly help planners identify projects or 
approaches which can be supported by or integrated into new 
development. 

14 The Report does not support the creation of a framework or 
hierarchy of green infrastructure plans and action, with district and 
local levels complementing the county strategy. This hierarchy 
should be introduced and promoted in the strategy and 
methodologies used which can be applied or adapted at the lower 
levels.  

15 The Report should bring out more strongly the importance of 
community green infrastructure and action.  

16 The different categories of Strategic Projects, Investment 
Programmes and Area Frameworks is complex and will not aid 
general understanding of the programme nor help a synthesis of 
different initiatives. The categorisation could diminish the importance 
of initiatives which aren’t Strategic Projects. 

17 The Strategy is set at a high and general (and sometimes 
provisional) level and refers in a number of places to the need for 
further work. It should look at some areas and subjects in more 
detail rather than defer their consideration to future pieces of work. 
Given other timescales, we cannot wait for more developed thinking 
and may well not have the resources to carry out further work. 

18 The strategy needs to say what the implications of the spatial 
framework are, for example, if you are in a ‘white area’ or covered by 
an initiative with a limited focus. 

19 There are links with some strategic projects in adjacent counties but 
there are generally not strong connections with green infrastructure 
strategies in neighbouring areas. 

20 The document needs a conclusion and would also benefit from an 
executive summary to try to ensure effective public consultation. 

 
 

 

Page 188



 1 

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Planning and New Communities 

Portfolio Holders  
2 March 2010 

AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Operational Services) / Corporate Manager 
(Planning and Sustainable Communities)  

 

 
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK - 

ADOPTION OF SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENTS 
 

Purpose 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Council on the results of a public 

consultation exercise carried out on three Supplementary Planning Documents 
(SPD), and to seek approval for these documents to be formally adopted by the 
Council.  Once adopted, the SPDs will form part of the Local Development 
Framework and be used to help determine planning applications.  

 
2. The three SPDs that were consulted on were as follows:  
 

• Affordable Housing 
• District Design Guide: High Quality and Sustainable Development in South 

Cambridgeshire 
• Landscape in New Developments 

 
3. This is a key decision because it raises new issues of policy, or is made in the course 

of developing proposals to amend the policy framework, or is a decision taken under 
powers delegated by the Council to amend an aspect of the policy framework.  The 
agreement to carry out the public consultation was taken at the joint meeting of the 
Portfolio Holders for Planning and for Growth and Sustainable Communities on 1 
October 2009. 

 
Executive Summary 

 
4. This report outlines the representations received on the three SPDs that were subject 

to a period of public participation from October to December 2009.  As a result of 
these representations amendments have been made to the draft SPDs.  The next 
step is to adopt the SPDs when they will form part of the Local Development 
Framework. 
 
Background 

 
5. The Council has adopted a number of Development Plan Documents (DPD) that form 

part of the Local Development Framework.  The purpose of Supplementary Planning 
Documents (SPD) is to expand on policies set out in DPDs and to provide additional 
detail.  The three SPDs that have been consulted on relate to policies contained 
within the adopted Development Control Polices DPD, and in the adopted Area 

Agenda Item 9Page 189



 2 

Action Plans for Northstowe, Cambridge East, Cambridge Southern Fringe and North 
West Cambridge.  

 
6. Similar to the DPDs under the European Union Strategic Environment Assessment 

(SEA) Directive, the Council needs to consider whether there will be any significant 
environmental effects of the SPDs.  A Sustainability Appraisal Statement was 
prepared for the SPDs and consulted on alongside the draft SPDs.  

 
7. The six-week public consultation took place between 23 October to the 4 December 

2009.  
 

The results of the Public Consultation 
 
8. During the consultation 311 representations were received relating to the three SPDs, 

as follows:   
 

SPD  Support Object Comment Total 
Affordable Housing  2 31 21 54 
District Design Guide 40 42 103 185 
Landscape in New Developments 12 29 38 79 

 
Consultation responses range from single to large numbers of points.  Each of these 
points is recorded as a separate representation.  No representations were received 
on the Sustainability Appraisal Statement.  One representation was received on the 
Habitats Regulations Assessment Statement from Natural England.   

 
9. The Council has received confirmation that the three SPDs are in conformity with the 

Regional Spatial Strategy from the East of England Regional Assembly, who stated: 
 

The Regional Planning Panel Standing Committee considered a report at its meeting 
on 6 November 2009 before endorsing the recommendation that the Affordable 
Housing, District Design Guide and Landscape in New Developments Supplementary 
Planning Documents are in general conformity with the East of England Plan. 

 
10. A brief outline of the contents of each of the three SPDs is provided below together 

with a summary of the main issues raised during the consultation period.   
 

• Affordable Housing SPD 
 

11. The Affordable Housing SPD provides further guidance on implementation of the 
District Council’s existing Affordable Housing policies HG/3, HG/4 and HG/5 of the 
Development Control Policies DPD.   

 
12. The main issues raised include: 
 

• More than half of the representations received are from the landowners / 
developers for the major developments, in particular Gallagher, Homes and 
Communities Agency and Marshall.  They are seeking to ensure that the SPD 
properly reflects the issues affecting the major developments and that it is 

Page 190



 3 

consistent with the affordable housing policies in the Area Action Plans.  They 
also raise concerns with the proposals for dealing with development viability, 
including the proposed 3 year review period in cases where initial viability leads 
to a reduced affordable housing contribution, the requirement for developers to 
fund the independent validation of viability evidence, the approach to residual 
land valuation, and the requirement for the development to provide free 
serviced land. 
 

• Questions are raised about the proposed indicative tenure mix targets and the 
approach to size of units, including from the County Council which is concerned 
that this could have implications for numbers of children on affordable housing 
developments. 
 

• Cambridge City Council makes a number of detailed comments on the SPD, 
essentially seeking consistency in approach between the two districts where 
they felt clarifications would be helpful. 
 

• A number of detailed points are made by other representors e.g. approach to 
rounding of affordable housing calculations, promotion of energy efficient 
design, delivery of rural exception sites. 

 
• District Design Guide SPD  

 
13. The SPD provides guidance to applicants and agents to ensure delivery of sensitively 

and appropriately designed, sustainable developments.  It sets out important design 
principles based on recognised good practice and explains key requirements of the 
District Council that will be taken into account when considering planning proposals.  

 
14. The main issues raised include: 
 

• Strong support for the SPD in general and to specific parts of it. 
 
• Suggestions that the SPD could usefully include more illustrations of good 

and/or bad examples, provide clearer annotations on illustrations. 
 

• Suggestions that the SPD would benefit from a slight restructure to improve 
clarity, remove duplication and reduce the length of the document to make it 
more user-friendly.   

 
• Suggestions that more information be added on car parking, Green 

Infrastructure, and using design to promote sport and recreation should be 
included. 

 
• Suggestions for more policy references to source policies in LDF documents, 

and for cross-references to adopted SPD. 
 

• Landscape in New Developments SPD 
 
15. This SPD has been produced to provide additional advice and guidance on landscape 

planning and design for developers, planning applicants, planning agents, consultants, 

Page 191



 4 

contractors and others involved in the planning process and others who have an input 
into the quality of landscape schemes for developments in South Cambridgeshire.  The 
SPD specifically covers the District of South Cambridgeshire, with reference to the 
surrounding landscapes where these are relevant to south Cambridgeshire. 

 
16. The main issues raised include: 

 
• Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS) – several respondents noted 

that the references to SUDS were brief, and should be extended.   
 
• Maintenance and Management - several replies noted that it was important 

that Maintenance (generally short term) and Management (Long term vision of 
the scheme) should be made distinct. 

 
• Green Infrastructure - requests were made for further support for green 

infrastructure.  
 

• Landscape examples - requests for examples of good and bad landscapes, 
and clarification of maps and drawings.   

 
• Request for inclusion of reference to allotments. 

 
17. Detailed schedules of all representations received on each SPD are provided in 

Appendices 2 - 4.  The schedules provide a summary of each representation received 
in plan order together with any suggested change to the text of the SPD, the Council’s 
assessment of them and, where appropriate, proposes amendments to the text of the 
draft SPD.  It should be noted that a number of additional changes have been made to 
the Design SPD to assist with improving the clarity and structure of the document for 
the user, which are not detailed in the schedule.  

 
Adoption Process 

 
18. The SPDs have been prepared in compliance with the legislative and regulatory 

requirements for the preparation of SPDs and are now ready for adoption.  Members 
are recommended to adopt the SPDs as amended, as contained in Appendices 5-7.  
Once adopted, the SPDs will become part of the Local Development Framework. 

 
19. Following the enactment of the Planning Act 2008 and a change to the Regulations in 

2009 there is no longer a requirement to carry out a Sustainability Appraisal (SA) of 
the social, environmental and economic effects of the proposals contained within 
each SPD.  However, under the European Union Strategic Environment Assessment 
(SEA) Directive, the Council still needs to consider whether there will be any 
significant environmental effects of the SPDs.  Given the parent policies in the DPDs 
have been fully appraised, and SPDs cannot create new policy, it is considered 
unnecessary to undertake an SA / SEA of the SPDs.  A statement to this effect has 
been prepared and was published alongside the draft SPDs.  There were no 
representations received on the Sustainability Appraisal Statement. 

 

Page 192



 5 

20. The Habitats Directive (Council Directive 92/43/EEC) sets out the requirement for 
Assessment of plans or projects affecting Natura 2000 sites1.  The first stage in 
carrying out an HRA is the scoping report which identifies the likely impacts upon a 
Natura 2000 or Ramsar site, either alone or in combination with other projects or 
plans, and considers whether these impacts are likely to be significant.  If it is found 
that there is not likely to be a significant impact then a full Appropriate Assessment 
would not need to be carried out.  Each of the DPDs containing the parent policies for 
the SPDs has been found to have no likely significant impact.  Given the parent 
policies in the DPDs have been fully appraised, and SPDs cannot create new policy, 
it is considered unnecessary to undertake an assessment of the SPDs.  A statement 
to this effect was been prepared and published alongside the draft SPDs. 

 
21. There was one representation received on the Habitat Regulations Assessment 

Statement, from Natural England, who commented:  
 

‘This states that a screening assessment has been undertaken for each of the DPDs 
containing the parent policies for the SPDs and these have been identified as having 
no likely significant impact; the Council therefore considers that there is no need to 
undertake further assessment of the SPDs. Your authority should be aware however, 
that irrespective of the conclusion of an HRA at this strategic level, it should be noted 
that that any further plans or projects arising out of these SPDs may need to be 
subject to HRA scrutiny.’ 

 
22. No objections were received to the Sustainability Appraisal and Habitat Regulations 

Assessment Statements and they can be published alongside the adopted SPDs. 
 
23. As with the DPD plan making process, the new system allows for any person 

aggrieved by the SPD may apply to the High Court for permission to apply for judicial 
review of the decision to adopt the SPD.  Any such application for leave must be 
made promptly and in any event not later than 3 months after the date on which the 
SPD was adopted.   

 
Implications 
 

24. By adopting the three SPDs there will be increased clarity in the implementation of 
the related DPD policies and this will assist officers when giving advice to developers 
and applicants since the development process will be more understandable.  

 
Financial Within existing budget. 
Legal The SPDs will assist by providing information on the legal 

requirements of the different aspects covered by the SPDs. 

25. 

Staffing The SPDs will assist officers by providing developers and 
applicants with greater detail as to what is expected in 
submitting planning applications so making it quicker to process 
applications.  They encourage people to contact the Council to 
discuss specific places and cases, which will increase workload.  

                                                
1 Natura 2000 is a Europe-wide network of sites of international importance for nature conservation 
established under the European Council Directive ‘on the conservation of natural habitats and of wild 
fauna and flora’ – (92/43/EEC ‘Habitats Directive’).   

Page 193



 6 

Risk Management None. 
Equal Opportunities None. 

 
Consultations 

 
26. The draft SPDs have been prepared in consultation with the relevant specialist 

officers within the Council prior to being agreed for consultation.  As part of the public 
consultation letters were sent to a range of relevant organisations and also included a 
CD-Rom, containing both draft SPDs and their related documents.  

 
Effect on Strategic Aims 
 
Commitment to being a listening council, providing first class services accessible to all. 
The SPDs will provide more information and advice to the public and encourage 
better communication.  They will help applicants submit acceptable planning 
applications which can be dealt with efficiently and more quickly.  
Commitment to ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and healthy place 
for all. 
The Design SPD will help create and support healthy places and lifestyles. 
Commitment to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
The Design SPD will help reduce the causes and impacts of climate change. 
Commitment to providing a voice for rural life. 

27. 

The SPDs will: 
Encourage effective working with the public, including land and building 
owners, parish councils and others;  
protect and enhance the built and natural environment of South 
Cambridgeshire; 
raise the standard of new development;  
and improve the quality of life of residents. 

 
Conclusions / Summary 
 

28. This report outlines the representations received on the three SPDs that were subject 
to a period of public participation from October to December 2009.  As a result of 
these representations amendments have been made to the draft SPDs.  The next 
step is to adopt the SPDs when they will form part of the Local Development 
Framework. 

 
Recommendations 

 
29. The Portfolio Holders are invited to agree the adoption of the SPDs relating to 

Affordable Housing, Design and Landscape as contained in Appendices 5 to 7 and 
proceed in accordance with Regulations 18 and 19 (for ease of reference, Appendix 
1 lists the changes made to the draft SPDs following the consultation process); 

 
 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report:  
Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document (Consultation Draft October 2009) 

Page 194



 7 

District Design Guide: High Quality and Sustainable Development in South Cambridgeshire 
Supplementary Planning Document (Consultation Draft October 2009) 
Landscape in New Developments (Consultation Draft October 2009) 
Sustainability Appraisal Statement (October 2009) 
Habitats Regulations Assessment Statement (October 2009) 
 
 
Contact Officers:   Claire Spencer - Senior Planning Policy Officer  
    Telephone (01954) 713418 
 

Caroline Hunt - Principal Planning Policy Officer 
Telephone: (01954) 713196 
 
Corrie Newell - Principal Conservation Officer 
Telephone: (01954) 713258 
 
David Hamilton - Landscape Design Officer 
Telephone: (01954) 713415 

Page 195



Page 196

This page is left blank intentionally.



 SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Planning and New Communities 

Portfolio Holders 
2 March 2010 

AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Operational Services) / Corporate Manager 
(Planning and Sustainable Communities)  

 
 

CAMBRIDGESHIRE’S THIRD LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN  
 

Purpose 
 
1. To agree the Council’s response to Cambridgeshire County Council’s consultation on 

the third Local Transport Plan (LTP). 
 
2. This is a key decision as it is likely to affect many of the communities across the 

district.  It was first published in the January 2010 Forward Plan. 
 

Executive Summary 
 
3. The Government requires Cambridgeshire County Council to produce a Local 

Transport Plan that sets out the existing and future transport issues and how they will 
be addressed.  The current LTP covers the period 2006 - 2011 and Cambridgeshire 
County Council is beginning work on LTP3.  The County Council is starting the 
process by seeking views of stakeholders and the wider public on draft objectives and 
strategy areas that should be included in the new plan, before drafting the plan ready 
for submission to Government in March 2011.   
 
Background 

 
4. Cambridgeshire County Council works with the District Councils and other 

stakeholders to produce its Local Transport Plans. 
 
5. The current Local Transport Plan runs out in March 2011, so it is necessary to 

produce a new one to plan for the future, matching transport investment with 
transport need and local priorities.  It will need to address the existing transport 
problems in the county and take account of new developments planned for 
Cambridgeshire. 

 
6. The new Plan will be implemented from 2011 and will set out how the County intend 

to spend the transport funding received from government and other sources (such as 
contributions from developers).  It will be reviewed to keep it current. 

 
7. Cambridgeshire is a diverse county with different transport problems experienced in 

different parts of the county.  It is therefore important that the County Council develop 
and implement schemes that respond to a range of urban and rural problems.  The 
aim is to create an integrated strategy that looks at how transport solutions best 
support and make the county accessible and that improves the quality of life for all 
who live, learn, work and travel in Cambridgeshire.  

 
8. The Plan will include a clear programme of transport improvements that meet the 

objectives, offer value for money, and are informed through consultation with 
partners, stakeholders and local residents.  

Agenda Item 10Page 197



 
9. The success of the plan will be measured through a series of targets.  These will be 

based upon: 
 

• Increasing the use of public transport, walking and cycling 
• Reducing congestion 
• Reducing the total number of accidents 
• Improving accessibility to the transport system 
• Improving the condition of the roads in Cambridgeshire  
• Improving bus journey time reliability 

 
In addition, the impacts of the Plan in other areas, such as air quality, health, and 
access to services and facilities, will also be measured. 

 
LTP3 Consultation 

 
10. The current consultation is a high level, strategic consultation on draft objectives and 

strategy areas.  There is also the opportunity to put forward other suggestions for 
issues that should be addressed in the Plan. 

 
11. It is proposed the Plan will include the following objectives, which reflect central 

Government’s broad objectives for transport and also locally those of Cambridgeshire 
Together and the Local Area Agreement Board, to guide the Local Transport Plan’s 
transport and travel improvements: 

 
• Growth – accommodating growth while ensuring communities enjoy the benefits 

of growth 
• Economic prosperity – supporting the role of Cambridgeshire as a centre of 

knowledge and innovation. 
• Environmental sustainability – meeting the challenges of climate change whilst 

maintaining high quality environment. 
• Equality and inclusion – supporting vulnerable groups and encouraging 

healthier and more sustainable lifestyles. 
• Safer and stronger communities – engaging citizens and ensuring communities 

enjoy a good quality of life and health. 
 

12. The County Council is also asking people to prioritise these strategy areas: 
 

• Public Transport 
• Cycling 
• Walking 
• Smarter Choices 
• Road Safety 
• Traffic Management 

 
Further information on these strategy areas is provided in the consultation leaflet 
appended to this report. 
 

Page 198



Funding Issues 
  
13. All national parties have indicated there will be no extra funding for councils transport 

spending, and it is likely that existing levels of transport funding will be cut but it is 
currently not known by how much.  As a result there will be significant pressures on 
council transport finances during the period covered by LTP3.  This is why the County 
Council are asking people to prioritise the strategy areas, as resources and peoples’ 
expectations must be carefully managed.  

 
14. The County Council comments that there is a difficult balance to be made between 

what should be included in the LTP3 Implementation Plan and what may be delivered 
through the Transport Innovation Fund (TIF)1 proposals, depending upon the financial 
settlement the County Council receives from the Department for Transport (DfT).  At 
the moment there is uncertainty over the size of any settlement the County Council 
may receive from DfT.  Given the limited resources for delivering LTP3, it is important 
to focus them on measures that will best deliver the objectives in a cost effective way.  
If the TIF funding comes forward there may be more LTP3 funding for the rest of the 
county as the TIF monies focus on the Cambridge area.  However, if the TIF 
settlement is much lower than the bid, some of those TIF measures may need to be 
incorporated into LTP3.  These measures could include improvements to public 
transport; providing a fast, frequent and reliable bus service from residential areas to 
key destinations, satellite Park and Ride facilities or rural interchanges with improved 
facilities and connected by demand responsive services, new and/or expanded 
Cambridge Park and Ride sites, improved parking at railway stations, improved 
cycling facilities, and various measures for promoting smarter choices.   

 
15. There is a clear synergy between different objectives, for example, measures that 

encourage modal shift to public transport, cycling and walking are likely to make a 
positive contribution to economic growth (by tackling congestion), reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions and enhancing the local environment, as well as 
improving public and personal health.  These modes are also more accessible to 
a wider cross-section of the community, particularly those unable to drive such as 
the young and elderly.  As such, prioritising non-car modes, which reach a wider 
cross-section of the community, provide travel choice, and are often less 
expensive to implement, offer better value for money.  South Cambridgeshire does 
not support the congestion charging part of the TIF bid and the more modest monies 
and projects associated with LTP3 may be all that will be available for investment, 
which would tend to reinforce the focus of LTP3 on non-car transport infrastructure. 

 
16. However, it is important that adequate provision is made for other measures such 

as traffic management and road safety to ensure the existing transport network is 
well maintained and safe for all users. 

 
Issues for South Cambs 
 

17. Working in partnership with the County Council on LTP3 may assist the Council in 
achieving its own Vision, Aims and Approaches, in particular addressing the following 
actions for 2010/11:  

                                                
1 The TIF was set up by Government to support the introduction of innovative packages of measures 
to tackle congestion.  The TIF will provide some £1.4 billion nationally over the period 2008 to 2015.  
Cambridgeshire County Council has prepared a £520m package of transport improvements and is 
bidding for £465.6 million of Central Government funding.  The County Council is still waiting to hear 
from the DfT whether the bid has been successful and how much funding will be made available. 

Page 199



• increase the number of teenagers taking part in positive activities – through 
improving accessibility and safety for young people. 

• promote the district to new businesses – by addressing congestion, improving 
travel choice, air quality and the general attractiveness of the area.  

• implement key actions from the Community Transport Plan. 
 

18. Several parishes have produced Parish Plans, some of which have identified 
transport actions.  The Council also works in partnership on a number of issues, 
including the Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) (renamed The Big Plan after 
asking Cambridgeshire’s children), which includes a Transport and Young Peoples 
Transport Plan.  It is therefore important to ensure LTP3 addresses issues arising 
from these plans and partnerships.  

 
19. The Council’s Local Development Framework (LDF) includes a number of sites for 

development, particularly in and around Cambridge.  Whilst the LDF also outlines a 
number of transport policies, specifically to address the needs of individual 
developments and more generally across the district, it is important that LTP3 
includes a comprehensive strategy to address the transport needs arising from new 
and existing development across the whole county.   

 
20. Many of the remoter villages in South Cambs access essential services in their 

nearest Market Towns, including those outside the county, rather than Cambridge.  It 
is therefore important that Cambridgeshire County Council work closely with their 
neighbouring authorities to ensure the needs of such residents are not overlooked. 

 
21. The Council recently adopted its Community Transport Strategy (CTS), on 11 

February 2010.  The evidence base for the CTS highlights areas that are poorly 
served by conventional bus services and/or community transport.  This impacts on 
the quality of life of local residents, particularly the young, elderly and others who 
cannot drive, if they are unable to access basic services.  The CTS includes an 
Action Plan to address these issues.  One of the actions is to engage as appropriate 
in local transport and accessibility planning to raise the profile of Community 
Transport issues.  It is therefore important to ensure LTP3, particularly through the 
Bus Strategy and Community Transport Strategy, adequately addresses these, and 
wider accessibility, issues.   

 
22. The Council has recently responded to the County Council’s consultation on a draft 

advisory heavy commercial vehicles (HCV) route map, in January 2010.  The County 
Council is currently consulting on the Minerals and Waste Plan (see separate report 
to this meeting), which will also have implications for HCV movements.  The impact of 
HCVs on villages is a concern of many local residents, and the Council wants to 
ensure HCV traffic is minimised and uses the most appropriate routes to minimise 
impact on local residents.  It is therefore important to ensure LTP3, particularly 
through the Traffic Management Strategy, adequately addresses this issue.   

 
23. Cambridgeshire Horizons (with its partners) is reviewing the Green Infrastructure 

Strategy.  This Strategy provides an opportunity to improve green infrastructure that 
promotes sustainable movement by walking and cycling, reducing the need to travel 
by car.  It is important to ensure this is integrated into the wider LTP3 strategy. 

 
24. Air quality and climate change are intrinsically linked.  Both can arise from the 

emission of combustion processes to the atmosphere and transport is the main 
reason for the Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) along the A14 to the north of 
the city.  On declaration of an AQMA the Council is required to draw up an Air Quality 
Action Plan (AQAP), which details potential actions that will help to reduce 

Page 200



concentrations of pollutant.  Low Emission Strategies (LES) provide a package of 
measures to help mitigate the transport impacts of development on local air quality 
and on climate change.  These include provision for non-car modes, travel plans, car 
clubs, and provision for rail freight.  It is important to ensure LTP3 addresses these 
issues to assist the Council’s air quality objectives. 

 
Response to Cambridgeshire County Council 

 
25. The Council will work closely with the County Council and other Cambridgeshire 

districts in drafting LTP3.  It will be important to ensure the issues outlined above are 
considered and addressed.  Regular updates on progress will be reported to the Joint 
Planning and Transport Lead Members.   

 
26. The objectives of LTP3 are consistent with those the Council is signed up to and 

should be supported.  All of the strategy areas are all important to the Council in 
achieving its objectives but in recognition that funding for transport will be limited, the 
County Council is asking for the strategy areas to be prioritised to focus funding in the 
areas that are most important to people.  In South Cambridgeshire many areas are 
lacking in transport choice to be able to carry out their journey in a safe manner, 
therefore improvements to public transport will offer more choice to a wider range of 
people, followed by cycling and walking.  When people have a genuine choice, 
smarter choices will have a role in raising awareness.  Road Safety and Traffic 
Management will continue to be important to ensure the existing transport network is 
well maintained and safe for all users. 

 
27. It is therefore proposed that the Council makes a representation to Cambridgeshire 

County Council in response to the LTP3 consultation, in line with paragraph 32. 
 

Implications 
 

Financial Being prepared by Cambridgeshire County Council, Local 
Transport Plan 3 has no direct financial implications for South 
Cambridgeshire. 

Legal Being prepared by Cambridgeshire County Council, Local 
Transport Plan 3 has no direct legal implications for South 
Cambridgeshire. 

Staffing Within existing staff resources. 
Risk Management There is a small risk because decisions would be taken by 

Cambridgeshire County Council.   

28.  

Equal Opportunities Local Transport Plan 3 will be subject to Equality Impact 
Assessment. 

 
Consultations 

 
29. Internal consultation with officers in Development Control, New Communities, 

Conservation, Environmental Health and Partnerships. 
 

Effect on Strategic Aims 
 
Commitment to being a listening council, providing first class services accessible to all. 30. 
Improving modal choice will enhance accessibility to a range of services and facilities 
for a wider proportion of the community and improve the quality of life for local 
residents. 
 

Page 201



Commitment to ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and healthy place for 
all. 
Including measures that encourage modal shift to public transport, cycling and walking 
in LTP3 are likely to make a positive contribution by tackling congestion, reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions and enhancing the local environment, as well as improving 
public and personal health.   
 
Commitment to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
Including measures that encourage modal shift to public transport, cycling and walking 
in LTP3 are likely to make a positive contribution by tackling congestion, reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions and enhancing the local environment, as well as improving 
public and personal health.   
 
Commitment to assisting provision for local jobs for all. 
LTP3 can make a positive contribution to economic growth by tackling congestion and 
enhancing the local environment, making Cambridgeshire more attractive for 
businesses. 
  
Commitment to providing a voice for rural life. 
Improving modal choice will enhance accessibility to a range of services and facilities 
for a wider proportion of the community and improve the quality of life for local 
residents. 
 

 
Conclusions / Summary 

 
31. The Government requires Cambridgeshire County Council to produce a Local 
 Transport Plan that sets out the existing and future transport issues and how they 
 will be addressed.  The current LTP covers the period 2006 - 2011 and 
 Cambridgeshire County Council is beginning work on LTP3.  The County Council is 
 starting the process by seeking views of stakeholders and the wider public on draft 
 objectives and strategy areas that should be included in the new plan, before drafting 
 the plan ready for submission to Government in March 2011.  It is important to ensure 
 the Council continues to work closely with the County Council in drafting the Plan, to 
 ensure the diverse transport needs of everyone in the district are addressed.   
 

Recommendations 
 
32. It is recommended that the Council makes the following representation to 

Cambridgeshire County Council in response to the LTP3 consultation  
 

“The Council supports the overarching objectives of LTP3 and prioritises non-
car modes as these will provide travel choice and best achieve the objectives 
with limited resources.  The strategy areas should be prioritised as follows: 

 
1. Public Transport 
2. Cycling 
3. Walking 
4. Smarter Choices 
5. Road Safety 
6. Traffic Management 

 
It is important to ensure the needs of all sectors of community are addressed, 
including the most vulnerable – the young, elderly and disabled.  At present 
many residents experience social isolation as they are unable to access 

Page 202



essential services, shopping, leisure or simply meet with friends, due to a lack 
of bus or community transport service and/or the prohibitive cost of using it.   

 
The Council would urge the County Council not to forget linkages to market 
towns outside the county as many of the remoter parts of the district look to 
these areas for their services. 

 
The Council would also ask the County Council to take in to consideration the 
outcomes of plans and strategies produced by other organisations, including 
the South Cambridgeshire Local Development Framework, Community 
Transport Strategy and Air Quality Action Plan, Parish Plans, the Children and 
Young People’s Plan (BigPlan2), and Cambridgeshire Horizon’s Green 
Infrastructure Strategy, to name a few.  These may provide an extensive 
evidence base of transport provision and need, highlight issues concerning 
specific groups of people, and many contain an action plan including issues 
that can be addressed through LTP3.  

 
The Council would like to continue to work closely with the County Council and 
the other Cambridgeshire districts on drafting LTP3.” 

 
 
Background Papers: the following background paper was used in the preparation of this 
report:  

Cambridgeshire County Council’s leaflet – Consultation on Cambridgeshire’s third 
Local Transport Plan (appended) 
Cambridgeshire Local Transport Plan 2006-2011 
 

Contact Officer:  Claire Spencer – Senior Planning Policy Officer 
Telephone: (01954) 713418 

Page 203



Page 204

This page is left blank intentionally.



 1 

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Planning and New Communities Joint 

Portfolio Holders 
2 March 2010 

AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Operational Services) / Corporate Manager 
(Planning and Sustainable Communities)  

 
 

RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION BY CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL AND 
PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL ON THE TWO DRAFT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING 

DOCUMENTS RELATING TO WASTE MANAGEMENT  
 

Purpose 
 
1 The purpose of this report is to agree the Council’s response to a consultation 

currently being carried out by the Cambridgeshire County Council and Peterborough 
City Council. The consultation is on the two Supplementary Planning Documents  

 
• The Location and Design of Waste Management Facilities 

 
• The Recycling in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Partnership (RECAP) 

Waste Management Design Guide.   
 
2 The consultation is for six weeks from 15 February to 29 March 2010 and is taking 

place alongside the consultation on the proposed Submission version of the Minerals 
and Waste Development Plan (MWDP).  

 
3 The full consultation can be seen on the County’s website.  

www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/environment/planning/mineralswasteplan 
 
4 This is a key decision because it is likely to have an impact on the design of all new 

developments throughout the district.  
 
5  It was first published in the December 2009 Forward Plan. 
 

Executive Summary 
 

6 This report outlines the Council’s response to the consultation on two waste related 
Supplementary Planning Documents.  These SPDs are supporting policies from the 
draft Minerals and Waste Development Plan, which is currently out for consultation in 
its proposed Submission stage.  South Cambs is concerned that the consultation of 
these SPDs is premature when the MWDP has yet to be adopted.  The Council 
supports the Location and Design of Waste Management Facilities SPD and 
welcomes that it gives separate consideration to facilities placed in a rural location.  It 
needs to consider the traffic implications of such rural locations.  The impact of new 
waste facilities on the existing communities in urban fringe and major development 
sites needs to be highlighted.  Concern at how noise and air quality issues are 
included in the SPD – needs to be revised. The Council has adopted as Council 
Policy the RECAP Waste Design Guide SPD that is now being consulted upon.  
Concern that design guide is not as easy to use as it should be to encourage use of 
it.  Toolkit section of SPD needs to be revised so that it is clearer where it is within the 
document.  Need clear definition of meaning of waste audit. Planning and policy 
context of SPD needs to be revised to reflect what is within current proposed 

Agenda Item 11Page 205



 2 

Submission MWDP. Design element of waste facilities need to be included – not just 
functional needs of waste facilities.      
 
Background 

 
7 Both of the SPDs are linked to the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and 

Waste Plan and support policies contained within this draft plan.  
 

The Location and Design of Waste Management Facilities SPD (draft) –  
 
8 This SPD will provide guidance on the location and design of waste management 

facilities over the Plan period from 2006 to 2026. . It is intended to guide the design 
and location for the waste management facilities (including Household Recycling 
Centres) in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough to ensure high quality in relation to 
layout, access, appearance, environment and the use of materials, and to 
demonstrate how these facilities can be developed in both urban and rural settings. 

 
9 The guidance contained within the SPD relates to policy CS24 in the Minerals and 

Waste Core Strategy (MWCS) covering the design of sustainable waste management 
facilities.  Currently the Location and Design of Major Waste Management Facilities 
SPD is linked to the adopted Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Local Plan. 
According to the County Council this SPD is being consulted upon alongside the 
MWDP because it needed to be update to avoid a policy vacuum when the MWCS is 
adopted and supersedes the Waste Local Plan.  

 
10 Also the revision has allowed the County Council to amend and update the content of 

the existing SPD - for example in relation to locating facilities in urban areas. Unlike 
the previous SPD the updated document has a broader scope, extending beyond 
‘major’ waste management facilities to cover important matters such as the location 
and design of local community facilities, including Household Recycling Centres. The 
title of the document has been amended to reflect this difference.  

 
11 For more details about the contents of the SPD see Appendix 1 
 

The Recycling in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Partnership (RECAP) Waste 
Management Design Guide. SPD (draft)  

 
12 This SPD will provide guidance in relation to the design of waste management 

facilities as part of residential and commercial developments and the requirements for 
expanded and/or additional household waste management infrastructure. 

 
13 The purpose of the SPD is to set out a series of development principles and design 

practice and it is intended to be used by: 
 

• Developers and designers to ensure effective segregation, storage and 
collection of waste materials; and  

 
• Planning Authorities in assessing planning applications to ensure that 

waste management needs for both residential and commercial 
developments are adequately addressed and secured. 

 
14 The guidance contained within the SPD relates to policies CS16 covering the 

provision of Household Recycling Centres and C28 covering Waste Minimisation, Re-
use, and Resource Recovery.  

 

Page 206



 3 

15 The Recycling Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Partnership (RECAP) Design 
Guide was originally prepared by consultants Wiser Environment (an Environmental 
Consultancy) on behalf of the partnership and was subsequently published in 2008.  
South Cambridgeshire District Council adopted this earlier version as Council Policy 
in March 2008 pending its adoption as a SPD – the process that is now taking place 
as it is out for consultation alongside the MWDP. 

 
16 The content of the Guide has been reviewed since 2008 to take account of the 

policies of the MWDP and to take into account more recent developments e.g. current 
national planning policy.  The SPD supplements the policies of the MWDP with 
design standards and expands upon the requirements needed to provide additional 
waste management infrastructure in a sustainable way. 

 
17 The focus of the RECAP Design Guide is the waste management facilities, which are 

to be provided as part of residential and commercial developments allowing for the 
segregation of waste for recycling and composting. For more details about the 
contents of the SPD see Appendix 1 

 
Issues for consideration  

 
18 Premature consultation  

South Cambridgeshire District Council is concerned that the two SPDs are being 
consulted upon prematurely before the MWCS has been adopted.  It would appear 
that the intention of the County Council is that the SPDs will be formally adopted once 
the Core Strategy of the MWDP is adopted in July 2011.  Both SPDs are supporting 
policies that are contained within the proposed Submission version of the MWCS.  
These policies could be amended as a result of the current consultation process and 
any subsequent public inquiry may revise the contents of the MWDP.  The SPDs 
would then have to be subject to further consultation if the supporting policies in the 
MWDP are changed.   This could produce a very confused process with different 
versions of the SPDs being used by local planning authorities. 

 
19 South Cambs has made detailed comments about the contents of both SPDs and 

these have been included in Appendices 2 and 3 of this report.  The SPDs are 
considered in turn in this report and the main points that the Council wishes to make 
are outlined below. 

 
1) The Location and Design of Waste Management Facilities SPD (draft)   

 
20 South Cambs welcomes the detailed guidance produced in this SPD and welcomes 

that rural locations have been considered separately thereby recognising the different 
considerations that must be given to locating waste management facilities in 
countryside settings such as is found in much of South Cambridgeshire.  Also that 
separate consideration is given to urban fringe sites and major development sites of 
which South Cambs has within its boundaries.  

 
21 There needs to be recognition within the SPD that South Cambs has a number of 

adopted planning policy documents in the Local Development Framework.  For 
planning applications for waste management facilities within this district there are a 
number of relevant Development Plan Documents (DPD) and Supplementary 
Planning Documents (SPD) that would need to be considered.  

  
22 In the principles to apply for rural locations one must be added that considers the 

traffic generated by a waste facility particularly heavy commercial vehicles (HCV) so 
that there is not an increase in unsuitable traffic on rural road through rural 

Page 207



 4 

settlements.  The criteria is applied to both urban and urban fringe locations but is 
equally as valid in rural areas if traffic ends up going through nearby villages.  

 
23 There also needs to be consideration of impact that locating a waste management 

facility will have on the existing local communities in urban fringe and major 
development sites.  The needs of these communities must be taken into account in 
planning these facilities. 

 
24 The SPD promotes the idea of the co-location of related waste facilities which 

although may have significant benefits, would obviously result in a much larger of 
scale development.   This would be potentially more intrusive on the environment 
thereby reducing those sites that could be considered suitable. 

 
25 Waste Management sites have potential to cause significant and complex noise 

impact. South Cambs has concerns about how noise is addressed in the SPD.  In the 
section considering noise (page 36) reference is made to a noise report ……..and 
appropriate mitigation measures…………but does not detail that the main purpose is 
to assess noise impact locally, characterise the existing noise climate at noise 
sensitive premises and use the best practical means to mitigate any adverse noise as 
necessary.   This must be included in this section to safeguard amenity and minimise 
noise disturbance from any future facilities.  

 
26 Also in the SPD reference is made to guidance against World Health Organisation 

Community Noise Guidelines and actual dB levels are quoted e.g. 55dB day 45 night 
and or no more than 5 to 10 dB increase in background.  These actual dB noise 
levels should be used with caution as these levels can be misleading and understate 
impact.   South Cambs requests that any reference to actual dB noise levels should 
be removed and simply state that noise will be assessed on a site by site basis on its 
merits having regard to local circumstances.  It would be simpler within the SPD to 
refer to assessment in accordance with PPG 24 methodology and recommended 
noise guidance in WHO and best practice such as British Standards. 

 
27 The SPD considers the air quality of waste facilities but narrows this consideration to 

the impact arising from traffic.  There should also be included the air quality issues 
arising from the on-site operations of the facility.  

 
2) The Recycling in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Partnership (RECAP) 
Waste Management Design Guide SPD (draft)  

 
28 Whilst recognising that this document has been in existence for a while it does not 

appear to have been reviewed thoroughly before it has been approved for 
consultation as a draft SPD.  An SPD cannot create new policies but must support 
policies in an adopted Development Plan Document and it is not clearly stated within 
the SPD which policies the SPD is providing guidance to.  The structure of the SPD 
must be revised so that this fundamental fact is made clear at the beginning of the 
document.   

 
29 The SPD states that one of the purposes of the document is to be  ‘ a strategic tool 

for use for Planning Authorities when assessing development applications.’  An SPD 
cannot have this strategic role – it can only provide guidance for local planning 
authorities when they are considering planning applications, supporting policies in a 
Development Plan Document.    

 
30 Mention is made in the SPD of the need for a ‘ waste audit ‘ to be carried out by a 

developer of a development proposal but there is no definition of this term or what it 

Page 208



 5 

may include.  This must be included in the SPD to assist both developers and local 
planners. 

 
31 If this is to be used by planners and developers the SPD as a design guide must be 

easy to use and the SPD as drafted needs to be revised so that it is clearer what the 
planners should ask for from developers submitting planning applications e.g. if a 
waste audit is required and what developers should provide when submitting a 
planning application.  It is unclear whether a developer would be expected to produce 
both a waste audit and to complete the Toolkit included in the SPD.  

 
32 If it is expected that a ‘Toolkit’ be filled out for each planning application submitted by 

a developer then consideration needs to be given as to the format of the SPD and 
where the Toolkit is placed within the document.  Consideration should be given to 
making the Toolkit section of the SPD as a clearly identifiable part.  Suggestions to 
achieve this include putting it at the end of the SPD with a different coloured 
background or font to make it easily seen.  As a paper document the SPD could have 
a pocket in the cover in which the Toolkit is placed so that it can be accessible.  An 
electronic version of the SPD could have the Toolkit as a separately accessible 
document, which could either be downloaded as a Word document or printed off so 
that it can be filled in and submitted with a planning application. 

 
33 The earlier version of the Waste Design Guide was adopted by South Cambs as 

Council Policy in March 2008 and planners have referred developers to the guide 
before they submit planning applications to the Council.  South Cambs encourages 
pre- applications discussions with developers.   There is no indication in the current 
SPD or in the accompanying report, which was prepared by County planners in 
September 2009 of the success of the guide, and details of which other local planning 
authorities within Cambridgeshire had adopted it as Council Policy.  It would be useful 
to know what success there was been in improving the waste management content of 
planning applications as a result of the existence of the guide.  The toolkit appears to 
be a useful way of assessing the waste needs of a development but are developers 
submitting these with their applications? 

 
34 The chapter setting the planning and policy context of the SPD refers to documents 

but does not make it clear who has published these and the relevance of their 
content.  The section on the Minerals and Waste Development Plan is particularly 
weak and does not appear to reflect that the MWDP is at the proposed Submission 
stage, being out for consultation at the same time as this SPD.  This must be 
amended and further highlight the difficulties of consulting on this SPD when the 
MWDP is not yet adopted.  

 
35 Part 3 on ‘Waste Management in Context’ needs to mention the fact that 

Cambridgeshire comes within the area identified by Central Government as an area 
where there will be a step change in growth and that this is planned for in the East of 
England Plan up to 2021 and beyond.  It is not just the popularity of the area that has 
led to an increase in its population but it has been specifically identified as a growth 
area where there will be a planned step increase in house building. 

 
36 The SPD in considering the practical needs of how to assist a developer in planning 

for waste management in residential and commercial developments is welcomed by 
South Cambs.  It will assist planners to recognise the need to consider waste within 
proposed developments.  However the emphasis seems to be upon the technical/ 
functional specifications needed for waste facilities at the expense of considering the 
aesthetic design of such facilities to fit into their surroundings.  This should be 
addressed in the SPD.  

Page 209



 6 

 
37 The SPD should highlight to developers that there will be financial implications 

relating to the provision of waste management infrastructure. These will vary 
according to the nature and scale of the proposed development and associated 
supporting infrastructure and will be based on any additional costs likely to be 
incurred by the local authority arising out of the proposed development. 

 
38  The Council is concerned at the lack of information within the Design Guide to justify 

 the request for contributions to household recycling centres. Planning obligations 
 cannot be used to ask developers to simply provide contributions to extra sites. There 
 are five tests that have to be satisfied to allow obligations to be sought.  

 
1. Relevant to planning;  
2. Necessary to make the proposed development acceptable in planning terms; 
3. Directly related to the proposed development; 
4. Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed development; and 
5. Reasonable in all other respects. 

 
39 In the MWDP Core Strategy in Policy CS16 it states that ‘…New housing 

development will contribute to the provision of household recycling centres.  
Contributions will be consistent with RECAP Waste Guide….’.  South Cambs is 
concerned that the DPD cannot require such contributions from planning obligations 
and as drafted the SPD does not contain sufficient information about this matter to 
provide guidance to developers.   

 
Implications 

 
Financial Nil 
Legal Nil 
Staffing By responding to the consultation on the SPDs the Council will 

more efficiently use of staff time since the SPDs will provide 
guidance on waste issues relating to planning applications.  

Risk Management Nil 

40 

Equal Opportunities Nil 
 

Consultations 
 
41 In preparing this report consultations have taken place with officers in Environmental 

Health; New Communities and the Urban design team.  
 

Effect on Strategic Aims 
 
Commitment to being a listening council, providing first class services accessible to all. 
The Council is responding on behalf of the residents of the district to the 
consultation.  Where the contents of the SPDs may impact upon development and 
therefore affect local communities within South Cambs the Council has indicated 
where changes should be made to the SPDs  
 
Commitment to ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and healthy place 
for all. 

42 

By responding to the consultation the Council will ensure that the contents of the 
SPDs maintain S Cambs as being a safe and healthy place for all and that its 
proposals in future will produce better designed developments within the district.  
 

Page 210



 7 

Commitment to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
By responding to the consultation the Council will ensure that the contents of the two 
SPDs are able to assist in the planning of the district as regards waste and will 
ensure that good design is fundamental to this planning.  
 
Commitment to assisting provision for local jobs for all. 
The two SPDs are promoting good design for waste in new developments and for 
well-designed waste facilities within the district.  These developments could provide 
for local jobs.  
 
Commitment to providing a voice for rural life. 
The Council in responding to the consultation will ensure that the SPDs consider 
rural areas and the special needs of such areas as most of the district is rural in 
character. .  
 

 
Conclusions/Summary 

 
43 The report outlines the Council comments on the two SPDs being consulted upon.  

South Cambs is concerned that the consultation is premature given that the MWDP 
that these SPDs are supporting has not yet been adopted and therefore may change.   
Not withstanding this the Council has made comments on the content of both SPDs 
and these are outlined in the report. 

  
Recommendations 

 
44 The Portfolio holders for Planning and New Communities are recommended to agree 

the responses to the consultation on the two SPDs as contained within the report and 
in Appendix 2 for The Location and Design of Waste Management Facilities SPD and 
Appendix 3 for RECAP Waste Management Design Guide SPD.    

 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation 
of this report:  

 
The Location and Design of Waste Management Facilities SPD (Consultation draft 
2010) 

 
The Recycling in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Partnership (RECAP) Waste 
Management Design Guide SPD. (Consultation draft 2010) 

 
Report to Cabinet on 13 March 2008 on RECAP Waste Design Guide  

  
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste Core Strategy DPD (Pre 
Submission 2010)  
 
 
Contact Officer:  Alison Talkington – Senior Planning Policy Officer 

Telephone: (01954) 713182 
 
 

 

Page 211



Page 212

This page is left blank intentionally.



 

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Planning and New Communities Joint 

Portfolio Holders 
2 March 2010 

AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Operational Services) / Corporate Manager 
(Planning and Sustainable Communities)  

 
 

RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION BY CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL AND 
PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL ON THE PROPOSED SUBMISSION VERSION OF 

THE MINERALS AND WASTE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 

Purpose 
 
1 The purpose of this report is to agree the Council’s response to a consultation 

currently being carried out by the Cambridgeshire County Council and Peterborough 
City Council. The consultation is on the proposed Submission version of the Minerals 
and Waste Development Plan (MWDP) which has been jointly prepared by these two 
councils and which is intended to be submitted to the Secretary of State in July 2010.   

 
2 This Plan sets the framework for all minerals and waste developments over the 

period 2006 –2026.  It allocates sites to ensure a steady supply of minerals including 
those necessary to supply much of the growth agenda.  It also facilitates the provision 
of modern waste management facilities so that the way the Cambridgeshire manages 
waste will become much more sustainable.  

 
3 The consultation is for six weeks from 15 February to 29 March 2010.  
 
4 The full consultation can be seen on the County’s website.  

http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/environment/planning/mineralswasteframework/ 
 
5 This is a key decision because it is likely to affect many of the communities across 

the district. Some of the allocated mineral sites may have an impact on their local 
communities such as at Cottenham, Willingham, Over and Barrington.   Also there will 
be a significant impact on communities living or working in the wards in the District 
adjacent to the A14 because clay borrowpits are identified in the minerals plan – Fen 
Drayton; Swavesey; Longstanton; Bar Hill; Oakington; Girton; Lolworth; Boxworth; 
Dry Drayton; Conington.  The proposed waste sites are to serve the whole of the 
district and so their locations will have a district wide benefits.  

 
6  It was first published in the December 2009 Forward Plan. 
 

Executive Summary 
 

7 The report outlines the Council’s response to the Minerals and Waste Development 
Plan Consultation.  It indicates the previous consultations that have taken place and 
when South Cambs has responded to these. Few changes have been made to the 
Minerals and Waste Core Strategy (MWCS). Minerals - Only one site is allocated as a 
strategic site within South Cambs – Barrington for chalk marl extraction.  Two sites 
are identified in MWCS as being broad locations for sand and gravel extraction – 
Cottenham and Needingworth both of which the Council objects to until more detailed 
information is made available.  The Council is concerned that there is no routeing 
strategy policy as had been requested in earlier consultations. The traffic impact of 

Agenda Item 12Page 213



 

minerals and waste developments is not adequately covered in the MWCS. The 
measures to address impact of the traffic should be included in a policy.  Need for 
recognition that it is not just the increase in traffic but the nature of this traffic – i.e. 
HCVs.  Concern that air quality issues are not adequately addressed in MWCS.    
Waste – Council remains concerned at waste strategy in MWCS.  Regret that 
Cambridgeshire’s Household Recycling Strategy is not part of supporting documents 
to MWDP.  Concern that no strategy for waste transfer stations if they are essential 
element of waste strategy.   Mention made of RECAP Design Guide SPD and great 
importance attached to this document.    South Cambs concerned that it may not be 
robust enough to achieve that aims of recycling, waste minimisation.  MWCS 
requiring future new development to contribute to Household Recycling Centres 
(HRC) with section 106 – question whether this can be asked for.  If review of East of 
England Plan results in more housing growth would need to review MWDP to revise 
waste strategy. Waste Water Treatment Works have a 400m safeguarding area 
around them – Council concerned at why arbitrary figure of 400m. Comments made 
on sites for HRCs within S Cambs – Cambridge East, Cambridge Northern Fringe; 
Northstowe and Cambridge South. 
Minerals and Waste Site Specific Proposals DPD (MWSSP) South Cambs repeats its 
concerns about mineral safeguarding areas and the policy has not been revised to 
clarify that not all the areas safeguarded would be worked; These areas still extend 
over environmentally sensitive areas.  All the clay borrowpits for the A14 
improvements are within S Cambs and still concerned about air quality if all sites 
worked at same time.  Hierarchy of sites has been proposed by S Cambs if Highway 
Agency does not need all sites identified.  Schedule included in report that provides 
summary of Councils comments on all the sites for minerals and waste identified 
within the MWDP that affect this district.    

      
Background 

 
8 Cambridgeshire County Council is preparing jointly with Peterborough City Council 

the MWDP as part of its new Local Development Framework (LDF).  This will replace 
the adopted Waste Local Plan 2003 and the Cambridgeshire Aggregates (Minerals) 
Local Plan adopted 1991. The procedures for preparing the MWDP have been 
lengthy and have included significant public consultation1.  South Cambs has 
responded at all the relevant stages.  

  
9 In September/October 2008 they carried out a Preferred Options 2 Consultation, 

which set out the County Council’s preferred options in terms of policies that will 
guide minerals and waste development until 2026, and included site-specific 
proposals.   South Cambridgeshire District Council responded to this consultation in 
October 2008.  

 
10 During the Preferred Options 2 consultation the County Council received 

representations from stakeholders who put forward a number of new sites or 
suggestions to amend existing proposed sites.  The County Council carried out two 
further consultations on these new/ amended sites early in 2009 and the Council 
responded to those sites that were within South Cambridgeshire in March 2009.  

 

                                                
1 Public consultation on MWDP - Two rounds of Issues and Options (June 2005 and January 2006); Two rounds of Preferred 
Options (November 2006 and October 2008) ; Two rounds of consultation on additional proposed sites ( both early 2009)   

Page 214



 

 
 
 
The Current Consultation 

 
11 The MWDP comprises  
 

• Core Strategy (MWCS): a document setting out the strategic vision and 
objectives, and including a suite of development control policies to guide 
minerals and waste development  

 
• Site Specific Proposals (MWSSP): a document setting out site specific 

proposals for minerals and waste development and supporting site 
specific policies.  

 
12 Before the MWDP is submitted to the Secretary of State it has to be subject to a 

further 6 weeks of consultation. If representations are made during this consultation 
then a public inquiry will be arranged to consider them once the Plan is formally 
submitted. Once submitted there will be no opportunities for the Councils to make 
changes to the Plan.   This current version of the Plan is the one that the County 
Council and Peterborough City Council are intending to submit in July 2010 and will 
seek to adopt and implement in the future. 

 
Stages   MWDP –  

Core Strategy 
MWDP 
Site Specific Policies 

Preferred option 2 September / October 2008 September / October 2008 
Pre –submission 
consultation  

February / March 2010  February / March 2010 

 Submission July 2010 July 2010 
Pre-hearing meeting September 2010 May 2011 
Hearing November 2010 July 2011 
Adoption  June 2011 February 2012 

 
Issues for consideration 

 
MINERALS AND WASTE CORE STRATEGY DPD 

 
13 The content of the proposed Submission Minerals and Waste Core Strategy 

(MWCS) has only had minor amendments made to it from that which was consulted 
upon in the Preferred Options 2 in 2008 and to which South Cambs submitted 
comments.  (See Appendix XXX for report)    As a result of the additional 
consultations that the County carried out in 2009 there have been some amendments 
made to the sites identified and policies and relevant updates have been included on 
waste and mineral matters.   

 
14 The MWCS in this proposed Submission version has strategic allocations for minerals 

and waste sites plus a list of broad locations within different policies of the where 
particular uses will be.  The specific sites to achieve these policies are contained 
within the Minerals and Waste Site Specific Proposals (MWSSP).  The detailed 
comments relating to these sites are contained within Appendices 2 and 3.  

 
 
 
 

Page 215



 

MINERALS 
 
15 Options for mineral extraction are constrained by the fact that minerals can only be 

extracted where they occur.  Their geological location has greatly influenced the 
mineral strategy. This strategy has been determined by the location of minerals in 
relation to the proposed development areas and the implications of extracting 
minerals on amenity of neighbours, traffic generation through towns and villages etc.  
There are policies in the MWDP to consider this. 

 
16 In the MWCS there is now only one policy that contains a strategic allocation within 

South Cambs – Policy CS9 The Scale and Location of Future Chalk and Marl 
Extraction.  There are broad locations identified in Policy CS4 The Scale and 
Location of Future Sand and Gravel Extraction. Maps showing the location of the 
sites are included in Appendix 1.  

 
Table 1 

 
Site location (Proposals 
Map number in brackets) 

Location of Proposed 
Mineral Workings; 
Policy Ref from Core 
Strategy and Site 
Specific Proposals DPD 
and number 

Summary of South 
Cambs comments 

Barrington Quarry, 
Barrington 
(Strategic site) 
 
(Map 13) 

Chalk marl extraction 
 
CS9 The Scale and 
Location of Future Chalk 
Marl Extraction. 
 
SSP M4A – Specific site 
allocation for chalk marl 
extraction 
 
SSP M9Q  - Mineral 
consultation areas 

No objection to the 
mineral allocation subject 
to measures to mitigate 
the matters raised by 
Environmental Health and 
Conservation. These are 
that full Health and 
Environmental Impact 
Assessments should be 
carried out and that 
consideration needs to be 
given to the impact of the 
extension of the quarry on 
the character of the 
landscape.   
 
A site-specific policy could 
include a requirement to 
consider these matters. 

Cottenham 
(Broad location) 
 
(Map 1) 

Sand and gravel 
extraction 
 
CS4 The Scale and 
Location of Future Sand 
and Gravel –  
Principal broad locations 
for sand and gravel 
Cottenham/ Landbeach 
(Central / Southern Zone) 
 
SSP M1A – Specific site 
allocations for sand and 

Object to the allocation 
until such time as more 
detailed information is 
provided on the full 
environmental impact of 
the site now being 
identified for extraction.  
Until this information is 
available it is not possible 
to evaluate this site.  A full 
environmental 
assessment is essential at 
this stage before the 

Page 216



 

gravel 
 
SSP M9E  - Mineral 
consultation areas 

Council can determine 
whether this site should be 
allocated as an allocated 
site for extraction. 
 
The Council would need to 
be assured that the 
mitigation measure 
identified by 
Environmental Health and 
Conservation could be 
adopted to minimise 
impact on sensitive 
receptors.  
 
A site-specific policy is 
needed for this allocation 
indicating that routing 
agreements are essential 
before permission is given 
to work this site to ensure 
that the additional lorries 
generated by the larger 
scale of operation do not 
adversely affect the 
residents of Cottenham or 
the gypsies and travellers 
on the nearby Smithy Fen. 

Needingworth 
(Broad location) 
 
(Map 2) 

Sand and gravel 
extraction 
 
CS4 The Scale and 
Location of Future Sand 
and Gravel –  
Principal broad locations 
for sand and gravel 
Needingworth 
(Central / Southern Zone) 
 
SSP M1B – Specific site 
allocations for sand and 
gravel 
 
SSP M9R  - Mineral 
consultation areas 

Object to the allocation 
until such time as more 
detailed information is 
provided on the full 
environmental impact of 
the site now being 
identified for extraction. 
Until this information is 
available it is not possible 
to evaluate this site and 
decide whether it is an 
appropriate allocation  
 
The settlements of 
Willingham and Over are 
very close to the identified 
site and the Council would 
need to be assured that 
the mitigation measure 
identified by 
Environmental Health and 
Conservation could be 
adopted to minimise 
impact on sensitive 
receptors. The MWSSP 
should include a site-
specific policy to include 

Page 217



 

these matters. 
 
Routing agreements 
would need to be made to 
ensure that lorries do not 
go through the villages of 
Willingham and Over.  
These must be a 
requirement of a site-
specific policy for this 
allocation to be included in 
the MWSSP. 
 
Minerals would need to 
continue to be removed 
from the site via 
Needingworth and the 
need for a bypass for 
Willingham would have to 
be a requirement included 
in a site specific policy for 
this allocation if this site 
were to be identified for 
sand and gravel 
extraction.   

 .  
Traffic and Highways issues 

 
17 Routeing Agreements - The Council proposed routeing agreements in its response 

to the Preferred Options 2 consultation in October 2008 stating the following  
 

Traffic routeing agreements are a good way of reducing the impact of traffic 
movements to and from minerals and waste sites on the local community.    The 
MWDP supports such agreements but because routeing agreements are usually 
done as legal agreements then no specific policy has been included in the plan. Such 
agreements will be of particular relevance within South Cambridgeshire as heavy 
lorries carry minerals to the many development sites in the Cambridge Sub-region.  
Given the scale of all the development proposed this is likely to generate a 
considerable amount of traffic that must avoid going through the many villages in the 
District.  In particular the Mepal/ Earith area has been identified in the MWDP as an 
area where there will be large-scale extraction of sand and gravel over the plan 
period and much of this is likely to have to be transported along roads in South 
Cambridgeshire to reach the new development areas in the sub-region.  The Council 
would want the MWCS to include a policy to consider providing a routeing strategy for 
the plan area.  This must be an enforceable routeing strategy that mineral and waste 
traffic must follow.  The Council would wish to see included in this policy an 
identification of those settlements most likely to be affected by minerals and waste 
traffic so that there can be a requirement for bypasses – e.g. Willingham and 
Cottenham.  

 
18 The proposed Submission MWCS does not contain a routeing strategy policy for 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough and therefore the Council must object to this and 
request that the MWCS be revised to include such a policy.  The Council is extremely 
concerned that as a result of the housing and employment growth within the district 
there will be more traffic on the roads.  “Traffic density on Cambridgeshire’s rural 

Page 218



 

trunk ‘A’ roads is 90% higher than the national average and is 38% above average on 
other ‘A’ Roads.  Over the last 10 years there has been a significant growth in the 
number of heavy commercial vehicles with five or more axles. The density of HCV 
traffic on Cambridgeshire’s trunk ‘A’ roads is just under three times the national 
average with non-trunk roads nearly twice the national average” 2.  The on-line 
information provided by the County Council on its consultation pages for the MWDP 
indicates that …’the area around Northstowe is …likely to be affected, where the 
construction of the new settlement will draw material from local quarries such as 
Needingworth via its existing approved quarry HCV route via the A1123, A1096 and 
the A14.’  It is unclear whether the approved quarry HCV route that is mentioned is 
specific to Needingworth. The MWCS should therefore include a policy to provide a 
routeing strategy for the plan area rather than it be left to be devised on an ad hoc 
basis as each planning application is submitted for mineral workings and waste uses.   

 
19 Addressing the transport problems of mineral and waste developments - The 

MWCS considers in paragraph 11.5 the measures that could be sought to address 
the main problems associated with mineral and waste operation related traffic but has 
not incorporated them into a policy to give them increased weight.  These measures 
include strategic signage for mineral and waste lorry movements; backloading (i.e. 
bringing out one type of load and taking back another; highway improvements; private 
haul roads and hours of working.   An addition has been made to Policy CS 32 
Traffic and Highways about the Mineral / Waste Planning Authority entering into 
binding agreements covering some of these measures but this relates only to mineral 
extraction in the Earith/ Mepal area primarily on Block Fen / Langwood Fen.  The 
policy should be revised to consider the whole of the plan area and to incorporate in a 
fuller way the measures that can be used to address the traffic problems associated 
with minerals and waste operations.  A separate policy should be included in the plan 
to consider the Earith / Mepal area.     

 
20 Policy CS32 Traffic and Highways gives three criteria that must be considered before 

permission is given for mineral and waste development – one of which is that  ‘ any 
associated increase in traffic or highway improvements would not cause 
unacceptable harm to the environment, road safety or residential amenity.’   This 
does not recognise that it is not just the increase in traffic but the nature of the 
vehicles associated with these types of development – i.e. large lorries / HCVs.  The 
County Council has recently been out for consultation on a suggested route map for 
HCVs for the County and this should be included within Policy CS32 to assist in 
devising suitable routes for mineral and waste traffic. 

 
Air quality issues 

 
21 South Cambs supports Policy CS 34 Protecting Surrounding Uses since it 

includes consideration of no significant harm to the environment, human health or 
safety …or loss to residential or other amenity and which is linked to CS24 Design of 
sustainable minerals and waste management facilities and CS 32 Traffic & Highways.  
However the Council is concerned that there is no specific mention of air quality in the 
context of National Air Quality Objectives pollutants and impact locally.  Whist this is 
mentioned specifically on page 11 of the MWCS in the Sustainability Appraisal under 
point 5 it is not mentioned elsewhere and is inextricably linked / integrated with to CS 
24 and 32.  Air quality must be included within Policy 34.  

 

                                                
2 Extract from report on Draft Advisory Heavy Commercial Vehicles Route Mao considered by 
Planning and New Communities Portfolio Holders on 26 January 2010.  

Page 219



 

22 In paragraph 8.17 there is a list of matters that would need to be considered in the 
design of minerals and waste facilities. However this should be consistent with the 
related SPD on the Location and Design of Waste Management Facilities.  The 
local and design criteria should be consistent and an obvious omission is any 
reference to national air quality objectives.  

 
WASTE 

 
Spatial strategy 

 
23 South Cambridgeshire District Council has in previous consultation stages of the 

MWCS expressed concerns at the lack of a strategy for waste and this concern was 
partly addressed in the Preferred Options 2 with some reservations about the strategy 
devised for inert waste since sites proposed within South Cambs seemed unsuitable 
for this use.  

 
24 The spatial strategy for municipal waste has largely been determined through 

documents that have not formed part of the consultation process for the MWCS.  In 
October 2008 South Cambs responded as follows  

 
The spatial strategy for municipal waste has largely been determined through the 
Waste Management Strategies that have been prepared by the Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Authorities in their roles as Waste Disposal Authorities.  The County 
adopted a Cambridgeshire Household Recycling Strategy in December 2006 which 
‘sets out the Authority’s strategy for delivering these facilities as a resource to the 
public, and as a critical aid to meeting statutory waste to landfill diversion targets.  
This Strategy has been supplemented by further work which has refined the need and 
best locations for local recycling centres in Cambridgeshire.’ (paragraph 6.45 Page 
96 MWCS3)     These strategies and additional work are not part of this consultation 
and it is regrettable that they have not been included as supporting documents as it 
would have assisted the understanding of the recycling centres strategy.   South 
Cambridgeshire District Council considers that these should have been part of the 
Preferred Options 2 consultation and been subject to a sustainability appraisal.  The 
MWCS identifies Cambridge East; Cambridge North; Cambridge South and 
Northstowe as preferred allocations for household Recycling Centres.  These 
preferred locations appear to have been decided upon through the County’s 
Recycling Strategy- a non-statutory document. 

 
25 These documents have still not been included as supporting ones to the current 

MWCS and the Council remains concerned about this omission.  This omission may 
provide the basis for a legal challenge at the adoption stage of the plan. 

 
26 In paragraph 7.45 of MWCS it states ‘ An essential element of the network of waste 

facilities is waste transfer stations which bulk up and transfer waste of different types 
onwards for treatment and disposal.  They tend to be small scale but are important in 
securing sustainable waste management.  They will therefore be encouraged 
wherever this is appropriate.’  It is intended that these be considered under Policy 
CS18 Waste Management Proposals Outside Allocated Areas’ however if they 
are an essential element then why have they not been included in site allocations 
within the MWDP?  In considering other waste facilities the emphasis has been one 
of flexibility and therefore it would seem more appropriate to include a strategy for this 
type of facility within the plan. 

 

                                                
3 MWCS mentioned here is that of Preferred Option 2, 2008.  

Page 220



 

Planning for waste management in new developments and RECAP Waste Guide 
SPD   

 
27 Policy CS28 Waste Minimisation, Re-use and Resource Recovery is about how 

the Waste Planning Authority will encourage waste reduction, recycling and resource 
recovery in new developments across the plan area.  It is a fundamental one to 
achieving improvements in the management of waste in future residential and 
commercial developments.  Much emphasis is placed upon the RECAP Waste 
Management Design Supplementary Planning Document, which is out for 
consultation alongside the proposed Submission MWDP.   The success in achieving 
the requirements of CS28 will rest on the contents of this SPD and how clearly it 
outlines the requirements for waste management with future developments.  South 
Cambs is concerned that the contents of the SPD are not robust enough to achieve 
this.  This SPD is being considered in a separate report at 2 March Joint Portfolio 
Holders meeting.    

 
28 Policy CS28 states that new developments should contribute to the provision of ‘bring 

sites’ consistent with the RECAP Waste Management Design Guide SPD.  It is not 
made clear that ‘bring sites’ are the responsibility of District Councils or indeed what a 
‘bring site’ is.    If new developments are to contribute to provide bring sites then there 
needs to be more information in the supporting text to Policy CS28.   

    
29 Policy CS16 Household Recycling Centre states that ‘ New developments will 

contribute to the provision of HRCs. Contributions will be consistent with RECAP 
Design Management Guide SPD.’  The Council is concerned that this contribution is 
included in a policy since the provision of HRC is the responsibility of the County 
Council under the Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978 and the MWDP has made 
provision for 9 additional HRCs to meet future demands.  Planning obligations could 
not be used to provide for additional sites if more growth is planned for through the 
Review of the East of England Plan. The MWDP would need to be reviewed to take 
into account this planned growth.  It could have major implications for the whole 
waste strategy and as such should be appropriately planned for. 

 
30 There is also a sentence at the end of Policy CS18 Waste Management Proposals 

Outside Allocated Areas which states that.’ All strategic development will make 
provision for permanent waste management.’  In the supporting text paragraph 7.46 it 
states that this relates to any large-scale development in future plans such as new 
settlements or large extensions to urban areas.  If such proposals are planned in the 
future such as through a review of the Regional Spatial Strategy then if they are of a 
large scale the MWDP would need to be reviewed to make any necessary allocations 
– allocations for minerals and waste developments cannot be made in the District 
Councils Development Plan Documents (DPDs).    

 
Waste Water Treatment Safeguarding Areas   

 
31 In the MWCS it is recognised that wastewater treatment works (WWTW) are likely to 

create odours that may be a nuisance to people living and working nearby and 
therefore a safeguarding area is to be created around all works with a capacity 
exceeding 2000 population equivalent.  Within the safeguarded area ‘ there will be a 
presumption against allowing any new development which involves odour sensitive 
development. Odour sensitive development includes buildings normally occupied by 
people and would include houses, offices, industrial units, sport and recreational 
buildings.’  The safeguarding area will extend to 400 metres around the boundary of 
the site. There is no reasoned justification for this distance and there would appear to 
be no evidence presented to explain why 400 metres and not another arbitrary 

Page 221



 

distance has been identified or why development within the whole circumference of a 
WWTW needs to be blighted in this way. For example the prevailing wind towards 
Cambridge WWTW (Site I) is from the south- west, which results in any odour 
primarily, affecting the area to the north east of the A14 rather than the businesses to 
the west and south.  South Cambs is concerned that there is no evidence base for 
the 400 metres.  

 
Waste site allocations    

 
32 There are no sites within South Cambridgeshire that have been allocated for a 

strategic use for waste however there is a strategic allocation for a hazardous waste 
facility at Addenbrookes Hospital that could have an impact upon this district and 
therefore is considered in this report.   There are however ‘broad locations’ within one 
policy that affects South Cambs – Policy CS16 for Household Recycling Centres.  
Maps showing the location of the sites are included in Appendix 1.  

 
Table 2 
 
Site location (Proposals 
Map number in brackets) 

Nature of waste facility; 
Policy Ref from Core 
Strategy and Site 
Specific Proposals DPD 
and number 

Summary of South 
Cambs comments 

Addenbrookes Hospital, 
Cambridge (Waste) 
 
Map A 3 

Replacement Clinical 
Waste Facility  
 
CS 19 The Location of 
Hazardous Waste 
Facilities – Resources 
Recovery and Landfill  
Type of facility 
Replacement Clinical 
Waste Facility (energy 
from waste)  
 
CS30 Waste Consultation 
area  

Support.  This waste 
management facility is 
based on the Hospital’s 
needs and can be 
supported. 

Cambridge East   
 
(Map inset 41) 

Household Recycling 
Centres 
 
Policy CS 16 Household 
Recycling Centres 
-Broad locations listed in 
policy  
 
Policy SSP W1E  
Site specific allocations for 
waste recycling and 
recovery facilities Potential 
uses include – 
Recycling facility; 
Household Recycling 
Centre; 
Temporary Inert Waste 
Recycling; 

Support the uses being 
proposed for the site.  
Cambridge East will be 
the largest single 
development in the 
Cambridge Sub-Region 
over the next 15 years and 
it is to be planned at high 
densities and therefore the 
location and design of the 
proposed waste 
management facilities 
must have regard to this.  
Support would be subject 
to consideration of the 
matters raised by 
Environmental Health, 
which are that the 

Page 222



 

Site location (Proposals 
Map number in brackets) 

Nature of waste facility; 
Policy Ref from Core 
Strategy and Site 
Specific Proposals DPD 
and number 

Summary of South 
Cambs comments 

Suitable New Waste 
Management 
Technologies; 
Materials Recovery 
Facility  
 
Policy SSP W8H 
Waste Consultation Areas 

proposal should be 
subject to an 
environmental and health 
impact assessment.  
 
The inert recycling facility 
is supported however it 
should be recognised that 
it may be more 
appropriate to have a 
number of smaller sites to 
serve the development of 
Cambridge East.  Support 
would be subject to the 
measures to mitigate the 
matters raised by 
Environmental Health, 
which are that the 
proposal should be 
subject to an 
environmental and health 
impact assessment.   
 
The facilities should not be 
located so that they 
impact upon the existing 
communities within 
Cambridge and the 
villages of Fen Ditton and 
Teversham particularly the 
temporary inert recycling 
facility.  
 
South Cambs request that 
a site – specific policy be 
included for Cambridge 
East to include those 
issues mentioned above 
relating to mitigation 
matters and impact on 
surrounding communities.   

Cambridge Northern 
Fringe 
 
Map inset 42 

Household Recycling 
Centres  
 
Policy CS 16 Household 
Recycling Centres 
-Broad locations listed in 
policy 
 
Policy SSP W1F  

Support in principle the 
use of the site for a 
Recycling Centre and for 
inert waste recycling 
subject to the measures to 
mitigate the matters raised 
by Environmental Health 
and Conservation, which 
are to ensure the 

Page 223



 

Site location (Proposals 
Map number in brackets) 

Nature of waste facility; 
Policy Ref from Core 
Strategy and Site 
Specific Proposals DPD 
and number 

Summary of South 
Cambs comments 

Site specific allocations for 
waste recycling and 
recovery facilities Potential 
uses include – 
Household Recycling 
Centre; 
Inert Waste Recycling; 
Suitable New Waste 
Management 
Technologies; 
 
Policy SSP W8I 
Waste Consultation Areas 

development has a 
minimal environmental 
impact by incorporating 
mitigation measures 
preferably at the design 
stage of the development.   
  
South Cambs request that 
a site-specific policy is 
included for this site and 
that this incorporates all 
the issues mentioned that 
would need to be 
addressed by a planning 
application. 

Northstowe Area 2  
 
Map inset 57 

Household Recycling 
Centres  
 
Policy CS 16 Household 
Recycling Centres 
Broad location listed 
 
Policy SSP W1U  
Site specific allocations for 
waste recycling and 
recovery facilities  
Proposed use is 
Waste Recycling and 
Recovery –a Household 
Recycling Centre  
 
Policy SSP W8AQ 
Waste Consultation Areas 

Support in principle 
subject to the   measures 
to mitigate the matters 
raised by Environmental 
Health, which are that at 
the design stage 
consideration, is given to 
minimise the 
environmental impact of 
the development.  Any 
household-recycling 
centre must also ensure 
that settlements adjoining 
Northstowe are not 
adversely impacted by 
noise or odour.    The 
Northstowe Area Action 
acknowledges the 
suitability of a proposed 
general employment area 
at the northern end of the 
new town site (adjoining 
the proposed Park & Ride 
site).  
 
South Cambs request that 
a site-specific policy be 
included in the MWSSP to 
cover the issues identified 
above relating to the 
impact of the facility on 
adjoining settlements and 
mitigation measures 
needed.   

South of Addenbrookes Household Recycling No objection subject to 

Page 224



 

Site location (Proposals 
Map number in brackets) 

Nature of waste facility; 
Policy Ref from Core 
Strategy and Site 
Specific Proposals DPD 
and number 

Summary of South 
Cambs comments 

Access Road 
 
Map inset 60  

Centres  
 
Policy CS 16 Household 
Recycling Centres 
Broad location listed 
 
Policy SSP W1X  
Site specific allocations for 
waste recycling and 
recovery facilities  
Proposed use is 
Waste Recycling and 
Recovery –a Household 
Recycling Centre  
 
Policy SSP W8AV 
Waste Consultation Areas 

measures to mitigate the 
matters raised by 
Environmental Health.  
These are that appropriate 
buffer zones will be 
required in conjunction 
with careful design / layout 
of site operations and 
specific mitigation / 
abatement measures to 
minimise impact and to 
protect health and 
wellbeing of residents.  As 
this is a new development 
it should be possible to 
ensure minimal 
environmental impact at 
the design stage by 
incorporating intrinsic 
mitigation measures. 
 
The Council supports the 
identification of the site for 
a recycling centre and 
welcomes the additional 
information provided by 
the County as regards 
how the facility will be 
designed to reduce its 
impact on the surrounding 
area.  
 
South Cambs request that 
a site-specific policy be 
included in the MWSSP.  
This policy should include 
both the mitigation 
measures raised by 
Environmental Health and 
the design issues outlined 
by the County to reduce 
the impact of the facility on 
the surrounding area.   

 
MINERALS AND WASTE SITE SPECIFIC PROPOSALS DPD (MWSSP) 

 
33 As a result of the additional consultations carried out in 2009 there are new sites 

within the proposed Submission MWSSP notably a number of engineering clay 
borrow pit sites to serve the improvements to the A14 and additional inert waste sites. 

 

Page 225



 

 Mineral Safeguarding Areas (Policy CS25)  
 
34 Mineral Safeguarding Areas have been included in the MWDP and their purpose is to 

ensure that mineral resources are adequately protected and effectively considered in 
land use planning decisions so like other finite resources they are not needlessly 
sterilized.  Within these areas the Mineral Planning Authority (MPA) must be 
consulted when planning applications are made for major developments4.   These 
areas were included in the previous MWSSP and South Cambs expressed its 
concerns at the extent of the safeguarding areas within this district.  In October 2008 
the Council stated 

 
Within South Cambridgeshire there are proposed very large areas of mineral 
safeguarding for sand and gravel, which surround many settlements... It should be 
emphasized that there is no presumption that the land safeguarded will ever be 
worked for the extraction of minerals. However the policy that accompanies MSAs 
does not emphasis this point and it would be beneficial to add in order to reduce the 
potential confusion by those communities directly affected by these areas.   

 
35 The policy has been revised but not to take into account this request by South Cambs 

and therefore it is necessary to restate this requested amendment to clarify that they 
are areas of potential mineral resource which may be considered in the future but that 
all material planning considerations will be taken into account in any decision whether 
or not to permit extraction.  

 
36 Also in October 2008 the Council was concerned that some of the proposed 

safeguarding areas cover sites that are affected by specific non-minerals related 
development policies.  This related especially to  

o Northstowe 
o Established employment areas including the Cambridge Research Park, 

Landbeach, and Granta Park, Great Abington and  
o Bayer Cropscience at Hauxton.  

 
37 In October 2008 the Council stated the following -   
 

Given that these sites are within adopted DPDs it would seem confusing to suggest 
that the proposed mineral safeguarding areas should continue to be allocated over 
these sites….  the methodology should be revised to take into account existing 
allocations. 

 
38 The revision to the policy now includes a list of criteria a development must 

demonstrate to the MPA before it will be permitted in a MSA.  One of these criteria is 
that the development is allocated in other adopted local development documents.  
The Council therefore welcomes this amendment to the policy however it is still a 
requirement that any development coming forward in these areas must carry out 
consultation with the MPA to ensure consideration is given to the mineral resource.  

 
39 The Council also expressed its concern in October 2008 that 
 

‘…there are extensive areas of sand and gravel identified in MSAs around the 
Shelfords, Grantchester and Newnham areas where it is important to protect the 
landscape character and setting of Cambridge. The MSAs also impact on many 
villages that have conservation areas where the setting of these areas must be 

                                                
4 The definition of major development is that found in the Town and Country Planning (General 
Development Procedure) Order 1995  

Page 226



 

preserved such as Little Shelford; Whittleford; Foxton; Duxford; Horningsea.  Whilst 
the Council can accept that there may be reserves, there are over-riding planning and 
environmental reasons why they should never be worked.  The methodology used for 
identifying MSAs must be flawed if such areas must continue to be included.  
Likewise environmentally sensitive areas such as the Gog Magog Hills/ Wandlebury 
Country Park, Grantchester Meadows and Denny Abbey should be excluded from 
MSAs.  By including such areas to be safeguarded it creates concern amongst the 
local communities surrounded by such areas.  Such reserves cannot ever be 
considered as economic resources because they have too high a value attached to 
them for environmental reasons.   The MSAs boundaries should be revised 
accordingly.  

 
40 The safeguarding areas have not been revised and South Cambs is disappointed that 

the methodology does not take into account the importance of these environmental 
reasons.  

 
Borrow pits for use in the A14 improvements. 

 
41 In the consultation in 2008 Costain and Lafarge who are both working with the 

Highway Authority proposed 13 clay- general borrow pit sites, which are located 
either adjacent to or very close to the route of the current or proposed line of the 
upgraded A14.  The County Council then consulted upon these sites in 2009 and the 
comments submitted by South Cambs are contained within Appendix 5. 

 
42 It should be noted that all of the clay borrow pits identified to serve the A14 

improvements are all within South Cambridgeshire.  Those that had previously been 
identified in other districts in the consultation in 2009 have not been allocated in the 
proposed Submission MWSSP. As part of the consultation there is additional 
information available on the County’s website relating to the A14. This states - The 
A14 scheme will require large quantities of clay as engineering fill. The fill is used to 
construct embankments for the road and whilst some may be sourced from within the 
scheme (from “cut and fill” engineering), the Plan makes provision for 9 general fill 
borrowpits to be constructed alongside the road primarily between Histon and Fen 
Drayton. At the eastern end of the scheme, suitable clay fill may be available from a 
local landfill site. These nine borrowpits are those within South Cambs.  It is unclear 
whether this implies clay would have to be transported out of South Cambs to provide 
for A14 improvements to the north of the district and the traffic implications of this.  
South Cambs would request that if this clay has to be transported this should be done 
along haul roads rather than impact on local roads.   

 
43 The comments relating to borrowpits submitted for the consultation in 2009 still 

remain valid and can be summarized as follows – 
 

1. The Highways Agency (HA) has not indicated what quantities of minerals will 
be required by the A14 works and whether by allocating all the proposed 
borrow pits there will be a surplus. South Cambs would not support some 
sites if other less sensitive locations were available. 

 
2. The timetable for the completion of the MWDP would appear not to coincide 

with that proposed by the HA to upgrade the A14. Is the MWDP the most 
appropriate vehicle for providing borrowpits for the A14 upgrade?  

 
3. Air quality – Concern if all the mineral sites and borrow pits were operating at 

the same time close to the A14 – there may be a significant degradation of air 
quality within the A14 Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) within South 

Page 227



 

Cambridgeshire. There is a statutory duty to consider air quality action plans 
to reduce HCV traffic and bring down pollutant concentrations in the AQMA.  
The collective impact of the A14 borrowpits may have detrimental short-term 
impact on local air quality and SCDC’s AQMA.  Insufficient information has 
been included for the Council to assess the cumulative impact on air quality.  

 
4. Air quality – The impact of borrow pits will be over a limited period and the 

advantages of having them close to construction works could outweigh the 
dis-benefits highlighted by Environmental Health.  

 
44 If the borrowpit allocations are to remain as part of the MWCS the concerns about air 

quality should be included as a separate paragraph in the supporting text to the policy 
about clay borrows pit allocations after paragraph 3.22 MWSSP. 

 
45 The concern about how many borrowpits will be needed by the Highways Agency and 

also whether the MWDP is the most appropriate vehicle is further reaffirmed in the 
information provided on-line by the County during this consultation when it states ‘The 
Highways Agency will clarify how many borrowpits are needed once they have a 
more accurate idea of their requirements. All borrowpits will require a planning 
application, which will include public consultation.’  South Cambs is concerned that 
there is such uncertainty and question whether the borrowpits should be included in 
the MWDP.  If the Highway Authority has been unable to indicate how much clay 
would be needed for the A14 improvements the currently proposed sites may create 
a surplus or not be enough!  South Cambs in its response to the actual allocated sites 
would be in favour of some sites if other less environmentally acceptable ones could 
be rejected.  The following table indicates the hierarchy that South Cambs has 
devised in relation to the borrowpits within the district taking into account planning; 
conservation and environmental health considerations.  Those borrowpits that are 
placed at 1 in the hierarchy should be used first for improvements to the A14 

 
Figure 1 Hierarchy of borrowpits  

 
Borrowpit   Place in hierarchy Comments made on this 

site in Preferred Option 
2 consultation 2009   

New Barns Farm, 
Conington (16) 

3 Supported with 
reservations concerning 
proximity to Connington; 
impact on wintering site 
for golden plovers.  

Brickyard Farm, Boxworth 
(15) 

1 Supported by South 
Cambs  

Boxworth End Farm, North 
of Trinity Foot  
Junction (14) 

1 Supported by South 
Cambs  

South Trinity Foot 
Junction- East (21) 

2 Supported with 
reservations concerning 
proximity to Lolworth  

South Trinity Foot 
Junction - West (22) 

1 Supported by South 
Cambs  

North Bar Hill, Noon Folly 
Farm (17) 

1 Supported by South 
Cambs  

North Dry Drayton 
Junction, Slate Hall Farm 

4 Rejected by South Cambs  

Page 228



 

Borrowpit   Place in hierarchy Comments made on this 
site in Preferred Option 
2 consultation 2009   

(18) 
North Junction 14, Grange 
Farm (19) 

3 Supported with 
reservations concerning 
impact on Beck Brook and 
site is in Green Belt  

South Junction 14 /Girton/ 
Madingley (20) 

2 Supported with 
reservations concerning 
site in Green Belt but 
potential for restoration of 
site for wetland reserve.   

 
Implementation issues  

 
46 For each of the sites included in the MWSSP there is an identical sentence included 

in the implementation issues for each site summary, which states – 
 

‘ Detailed assessment of development impacts and mitigation techniques will be 
required as part of any individual development proposal through the planning 
process. ‘  

 
47 The successful implementation of these minerals and waste sites will be dependent 

on there being detailed information available on the impact of each development and 
the mitigation required to make development of any particular site acceptable.  The 
MWDP must include a list of the information required within the DPD or supporting 
documents. 

 
48 There is also in the supporting text for each site a list of the issues that would need to 

be addressed within a planning application for each site.  These include a range of 
topics such as preferred access routes to sites; noise and dust mitigation required; 
ecological management required to restore site; HCV routeing to be addressed; 
impact on adjoining residents; flood risk assessment; landscape mitigation; potential 
impact on nearby wildlife or archaeological sites.  If these issues are to be adequately 
addressed in planning applications they should be incorporated into a policy for each 
site. This will give them more weight than being in the supporting text and would 
therefore have to be considered by an applicant.   If a more detailed policy were 
included for each site in the MWDP this would address some of the concerns that 
South Cambs has relating to sites within the district particularly relating to access and 
environmental impact matters. 

 
Minerals site allocations   

 
49 The recommended response to the sites allocated in the MWSSP is contained in 

Appendices 2 and 3 and summarised in the table below.  This list also includes those 
sites consulted upon in 2009 but not subsequently included in the plan.  Sites that 
have been identified as either strategic allocations or broad locations within policies in 
the MWCS although they also appear in the MWSSP have not been included in the 
table below since they have been considered earlier in this report.  Maps showing the 
location of the sites are included in Appendix 1.  

 

Page 229



 

Table 3  
 
Site Location  

 
Nature of mineral  
Policy Ref and number in 
2010 /  
Preferred Option 2 
consultation 2009 

Summary of South Cambs 
comments 

Land at Hinxton  
(South of A 505 near 
Whittlesford Bridge)   

Sand and Gravel extraction 
in Preferred option 2 
consultation 2009.  

South Cambs supports the 
non-inclusion of this site in 
the proposed Submission 
MWDP. 

Covell’s Drain, Swavesey  Sand & gravel borrow pit for 
the A14 upgrade in 
Preferred option 2 
consultation 2009.  

South Cambs supports the 
non-inclusion of this 
borrowpit from the proposed 
Submission MWDP. 

Corpus Christi, North of 
Offord Cluny  

Clay borrowpit for A14 
upgrade in Preferred option 
2 consultation 2009. 

South Cambs supports the 
non-inclusion of this 
borrowpit from the proposed 
Submission MWDP. 

New Barns Farm, Conington  
 
Inset map 16 

Engineering clay borrow pits 
CS 12 Engineering Clay 
 
SSP7C The site allocations 
for engineering clay 
borrowpits to serve the A14 
upgrade  

South Cambs would object 
to this site if other 
borrowpits were available in 
more environmentally 
acceptable locations.   
 
It is considered to be level 3 
in the hierarchy of 
borrowpits devised by South 
Cambs.    
 
If the site were used for 
extraction the impact on the 
golden plovers would have 
to be considered and it 
would also be subject to 
measures to mitigate the 
matters raised by 
Environmental Health.  
These are that an 
assessment is needed 
about the impact of the 
noise and dust from the site.  
With an appropriate buffer 
zones in conjunction with 
careful design / layout of 
site operations and specific 
mitigation / abatement 
measures it should be 
possible to control noise 
and dust impact to an 
acceptable level.  There are 
also concerns about air 
quality to be taken into 
account.  
 

Page 230



 

Site Location  
 

Nature of mineral  
Policy Ref and number in 
2010 /  
Preferred Option 2 
consultation 2009 

Summary of South Cambs 
comments 

A site-specific policy for this 
allocation could include a 
requirement for the impact 
on the golden plovers to be 
considered and also the 
matters raised by 
Environmental Health.   

Brickyard Farm, Boxworth  
 
Inset map 15 

Engineering clay borrow pits 
CS 12 Engineering Clay 
 
SSP7B The site allocations 
for engineering clay 
borrowpits to serve the A14 
upgrade 

Support this borrowpit in 
principle but would have to 
be subject to measures to 
mitigate the matters raised 
by Environmental Health. 
These are that an 
assessment is needed 
about the impact of the 
noise and dust from the site.  
With an appropriate buffer 
zones in conjunction with 
careful design / layout of 
site operations and specific 
mitigation / abatement 
measures it should be 
possible to control noise 
and dust impact to an 
acceptable level.  There are 
also concerns about air 
quality to be taken into 
account.  
 
It is considered to be level 1 
in the hierarchy of 
borrowpits devised by South 
Cambs.      
 
A site-specific policy could 
include a requirement to 
consider these matters. 

Boxworth End Farm, North 
of Trinity Foot  
Junction 
 
 Inset map 14 

Engineering clay borrow pits 
CS 12 Engineering Clay 
 
SSP7A The site allocations 
for engineering clay 
borrowpits to serve the A14 
upgrade 

Support this borrowpit in 
principle but would have to 
be subject to measures to 
mitigate the matters raised 
by Environmental Health. 
These are that an 
assessment is needed 
about the impact of the 
noise and dust from the site.  
With an appropriate buffer 
zones in conjunction with 
careful design / layout of 
site operations and specific 

Page 231



 

Site Location  
 

Nature of mineral  
Policy Ref and number in 
2010 /  
Preferred Option 2 
consultation 2009 

Summary of South Cambs 
comments 

mitigation / abatement 
measures it should be 
possible to control noise 
and dust impact to an 
acceptable level.  There are 
also concerns about air 
quality to be taken into 
account.  
   
It is considered to be level 1 
in the hierarchy of 
borrowpits devised by South 
Cambs.    
 
A site-specific policy could 
include a requirement to 
consider these matters. 

South Trinity Foot Junction 
(East) 
 
Inset map 21 

Engineering clay borrow pits 
CS 12 Engineering Clay 
 
SSP7H The site allocations 
for engineering clay 
borrowpits to serve the A14 
upgrade 

South Cambs would not 
support this site if other 
borrowpits were available in 
more environmentally 
acceptable locations 
however if used it would 
have to be subject to 
measures to mitigate the 
matters raised by 
Environmental Health. 
These are that an 
assessment is needed 
about the impact of the 
noise and dust from the site.  
With an appropriate buffer 
zones in conjunction with 
careful design / layout of 
site operations and specific 
mitigation / abatement 
measures it should be 
possible to control noise 
and dust impact to an 
acceptable level.  There are 
also concerns about air 
quality to be taken into 
account.  
  
It is considered to be level 2 
in the hierarchy of 
borrowpits devised by South 
Cambs.     
 
A site-specific policy could 

Page 232



 

Site Location  
 

Nature of mineral  
Policy Ref and number in 
2010 /  
Preferred Option 2 
consultation 2009 

Summary of South Cambs 
comments 

include a requirement to 
consider these matters. 

South Trinity Foot  
Junction (West) 
 
Inset map 22 

 Engineering clay borrow 
pits 
CS 12 Engineering Clay 
 
SSP7I The site allocations 
for engineering clay 
borrowpits to serve the A14 
upgrade 

Support this borrowpit in 
principle but would have to 
be subject to measures to 
mitigate the matters raised 
by Environmental Health.  
These are that an 
assessment is needed 
about the impact of the 
noise and dust from the site.  
With an appropriate buffer 
zones in conjunction with 
careful design / layout of 
site operations and specific 
mitigation / abatement 
measures it should be 
possible to control noise 
and dust impact to an 
acceptable level.  There are 
also concerns about air 
quality to be taken into 
account.  
 
It is considered to be level 1 
in the hierarchy of 
borrowpits devised by South 
Cambs.      
 
A site-specific policy could 
include a requirement to 
consider these matters. 

North Bar Hill, Noon Folly 
Farm 
 
 Inset map 17 

Engineering clay borrow pits 
CS 12 Engineering Clay 
 
SSP7D The site allocations 
for engineering clay 
borrowpits to serve the A14 
upgrade 

Support this borrowpit in 
principle but would have to 
be subject to measures to 
mitigate the matters raised 
by Environmental Health 
and Conservation.  These 
are that an assessment is 
needed about the impact of 
the noise and dust from the 
site.  With an appropriate 
buffer zones in conjunction 
with careful design / layout 
of site operations and 
specific mitigation / 
abatement measures it 
should be possible to 
control noise and dust 
impact to an acceptable 

Page 233



 

Site Location  
 

Nature of mineral  
Policy Ref and number in 
2010 /  
Preferred Option 2 
consultation 2009 

Summary of South Cambs 
comments 

level.  There are also 
concerns about air quality to 
be taken into account.  
Consideration also needs to 
be given to the impact on 
the ecology of the area.  
 
It is considered to be level 1 
in the hierarchy of 
borrowpits devised by South 
Cambs.    
 
A site-specific policy could 
include a requirement to 
consider these matters. 

North Dry Drayton Junction, 
Slate Hall Farm  
 
Inset map 18 

Engineering clay borrow pits 
CS 12 Engineering Clay 
 
SSP7E The site allocations 
for engineering clay 
borrowpits to serve the A14 
upgrade 

Given its proximity to the 
Crematorium and the site 
being within the Green Belt 
South Cambs would not 
support this site if other 
borrowpits were available in 
more environmentally 
acceptable locations.  
 
It is considered to be level 4 
in the hierarchy of 
borrowpits devised by South 
Cambs. 
 
A site-specific policy could 
include a requirement to 
consider these matters 
raised by Environmental 
Health and Conservation. 
These are that an 
assessment is needed 
about the impact of the 
noise and dust from the site.  
With an appropriate buffer 
zones in conjunction with 
careful design / layout of 
site operations and specific 
mitigation / abatement 
measures it should be 
possible to control noise 
and dust impact to an 
acceptable level.  There are 
also concerns about air 
quality to be taken into 
account.  Consideration 

Page 234



 

Site Location  
 

Nature of mineral  
Policy Ref and number in 
2010 /  
Preferred Option 2 
consultation 2009 

Summary of South Cambs 
comments 

needs to be given to the 
biodiversity of the area.   

North Junction 14, Grange 
Farm 
 
 Inset map 19 

Engineering clay borrow pits 
CS 12 Engineering Clay 
 
SSP7F The site allocations 
for engineering clay 
borrowpits to serve the A14 
upgrade 

South Cambs would not 
support this site if other 
borrowpits were available in 
more environmentally 
acceptable locations 
however if used it would 
have to be subject to 
measures to mitigate the 
matters raised by 
Environmental Health.  
These are that an 
assessment is needed 
about the impact of the 
noise and dust from the site.  
With an appropriate buffer 
zones in conjunction with 
careful design / layout of 
site operations and specific 
mitigation / abatement 
measures it should be 
possible to control noise 
and dust impact to an 
acceptable level.  There are 
also concerns about air 
quality to be taken into 
account.  
 
South Cambs is concerned 
at the flood risk implications 
of using this site and the 
subsequent impact on the 
watercourses in this area 
when the land is restored 
afterwards 
 
It is considered to be level 3 
in the hierarchy of 
borrowpits devised by South 
Cambs. 
 
A site-specific policy could 
include a requirement to 
consider these matters. 

South Junction 14  
 
Inset map 20 

Engineering clay borrow pits 
CS 12 Engineering Clay 
 
SSP7G The site allocations 
for engineering clay 

South Cambs would not 
support this site if other 
borrowpits were available in 
more environmentally 
acceptable locations.  

Page 235



 

Site Location  
 

Nature of mineral  
Policy Ref and number in 
2010 /  
Preferred Option 2 
consultation 2009 

Summary of South Cambs 
comments 

borrowpits to serve the A14 
upgrade 

However if used it would 
have to be subject to 
measures to mitigate the 
matters raised by 
Environmental Health.  
These are that an 
assessment is needed 
about the impact of the 
noise and dust from the site.  
With an appropriate buffer 
zones in conjunction with 
careful design / layout of 
site operations and specific 
mitigation / abatement 
measures it should be 
possible to control noise 
and dust impact to an 
acceptable level.  There are 
also concerns about air 
quality to be taken into 
account. 
  
It is considered to be level 2 
in the hierarchy of 
borrowpits devised by South 
Cambs. 
 
A site-specific policy could 
include a requirement to 
consider these matters and 
to include that the 
restoration of this site could 
provide a wetland reserve 
with public access. 

Milton Landfill Site, Milton Clay extraction for the A14 
upgrade– in Preferred 
option 2 consultation 2009. 

South Cambs supports the 
non-inclusion of this site 
from the proposed 
Submission MWDP. 

Barrington Cement Works 
Railhead 
 
Inset map 157 

SSP T2A Transport 
Protection Zone 

No objection to the mineral 
allocation subject to 
measures to mitigate the 
matters raised by 
Environmental Health and 
Conservation. These are 
that full Health and 
Environmental Impact 
Assessments should be 
carried out and that 
consideration needs to be 
given to the impact of the 

Page 236



 

Site Location  
 

Nature of mineral  
Policy Ref and number in 
2010 /  
Preferred Option 2 
consultation 2009 

Summary of South Cambs 
comments 

extension of the quarry on 
the character of the 
landscape.   
 
A site-specific policy could 
include a requirement to 
consider these matters. 

 
Key issues for minerals  

 
50 Needingworth - The site allocated is an extensive area and although the actual 

quarry is in the adjoining district of Huntingdonshire, South Cambs is concerned at 
the proximity of the settlements of Willingham and Over to these proposals and 
particularly concerned about the traffic implications.  Further environmental 
information needs to be provided by the County before this Council can evaluate the 
site and decide if it is an appropriate allocation and the Council remains concerned 
that it is still identified within the current MWDP.  The Council is therefore objecting to 
this allocation until such time as more detailed information is provided on the full 
environmental impact of the site now being identified for extraction. 

 
51 Cottenham – The site being allocated is now smaller than that identified in the earlier 

consultation in 2008 which is to be welcomed.  It is recognized that extraction of this 
reserve would have to be phased to start around 2014. The Council is concerned at 
the potential impact on the local road network at this working and at the impact on the 
nearby communities at Smithy Fen and within Cottenham. Further environmental 
information needs to be provided by the County before this Council can evaluate the 
site and decide if it is an appropriate allocation. The Council is therefore objecting to 
this allocation until such time as more detailed information is provided on the full 
environmental impact of the site now being identified for extraction. 

 
Waste Site Allocations 

 
52 Policy SSP W1 allocates sites specifically for waste recycling and recovery 

facilities and as was the case in earlier versions of the MWSSP there are more sites 
identified for particular uses than the waste strategy indicates it needs for the plan 
period.  This is in accordance with Government guidance for maintaining flexibility so 
a single or a range of uses may take place on different sites including new technology 
if this is appropriate.  South Cambs has stated that this does not result in a very clear 
strategy but recognize that it is following accepted Government advice. 

 
53 The recommended response to the allocated waste sites is contained in Appendix 3 

and summarized in the table below with key issues identified.  Sites that have been 
identified as either strategic allocations or broad locations within policies in the 
MWCS although they also appear in the MWSSP have not been included in the table 
below since they have been considered earlier in this report.  Maps showing the 
locations of the sites are included in Appendix 1. 

 

Page 237



 

Table 4  
 
Site Location and map 
inset number 

Nature of waste facility 
Policy Ref and number in 
2010 / 
Preferred option 2 
consultation 2009 

Summary of South Cambs 
comments 

Brookfield Business Park, 
Cottenham  
 
Map inset 40 

Policy SSP W1D 
Site specific allocations for 
waste recycling and 
recovery facilities – 
Potential uses include – 
Specialist  
Suitable new waste 
management technologies   
 
Policy SSP W8G 
Waste Consultation Areas  

No objection in principle to 
the allocation providing that 
any planning application 
includes a satisfactory 
environmental impact 
assessment.  
 
A site-specific policy should 
be included for this 
allocation in the MWSSP to 
incorporate the need for an 
environmental impact 
assessment. 

Cambridge Northern Fringe 
(Aggregates Railhead) 
 
Map inset 159 
  

Policy SSP T2C 
Sustainable Transport 
Protection Zones  

The Council welcomes the 
safeguarding in the short 
term of the railhead for 
aggregates given the needs 
of the A14 improvements 
but in the longer term such 
a use may not be 
appropriate for this site. 

North of Chesterton Sidings, 
Cambridge 
 
Inset map 156 
 

Policy SSP T1A 
Designated Sustainable 
Transport Zone. 
 
Policy SSP T2E 
Sustainable Transport 
Protection Zones  
 

Object to the allocation until 
such time as the 
significance of impact / 
effect is assessed by 
undertaking Health and 
Environmental Impact 
Assessments respectively. 
  
If the site were to be 
allocated within the plan 
South Cambs request that a 
site-specific policy be 
included for this site and 
that this incorporates all the 
issues mentioned that would 
need to be addressed by a 
planning application. 

Extension of Waste 
Management Park, 
Waterbeach  
 
Inset map 47 

Policy SSP W1K  
Site specific allocations for 
waste recycling and 
recovery facilities Potential 
uses include – 
Material Recovery Facility; 
In Vessel Composting; 
Energy from Waste; 
Inert Waste Recycling; 
Suitable New Waste 

No objection subject to 
measures to mitigate the 
matters raised by 
Environmental Health and 
Conservation.  These are 
that the proposal should be 
subject to an environmental 
and health impact 
assessment and that any 
development must take 

Page 238



 

Site Location and map 
inset number 

Nature of waste facility 
Policy Ref and number in 
2010 / 
Preferred option 2 
consultation 2009 

Summary of South Cambs 
comments 

Management Technologies; 
 
Policy SSP W8K 
Waste Consultation Areas 

account of the proximity of 
Denny Abbey.   
 
The Council supports the 
identification of the site for a 
range of waste 
management facilities. 
 
South Cambs requests that 
a site-specific policy be 
included in the MWSSP to 
include consideration of 
matters raised by 
Environmental Health and 
Conservation. 

Great Wilbraham Quarry, 
Great Wilbraham 
 
Inset map 48 

Policy SSP W1K  
Site specific allocations for 
waste recycling and 
recovery facilities Proposed 
use is 
Waste Recycling and 
Recovery (Inert waste 
recycling)  
 
Policy SSP W8Y 
Waste Consultation Areas 

Object.   The identification 
of this site as preferred for 
inert waste recycling and 
landfill is of concern to the 
Council.  The strategy for 
inert waste facilities must be 
questioned by this Council 
and in particular whether 
this site is the best one to 
serve the Cambridge area.  
Much of the inert waste that 
is likely to be generated will 
arise from development, 
most of which is located in 
and on the edge of 
Cambridge or to the north of 
the city.   
 
Whilst accepting that a 
study has been carried out 
by the County looking for 
suitable additional sites for 
waste facilities this site 
would need to take into 
account the concerns of 
Environmental Health and 
Conservation if it is to be 
allocated as an inert 
recycling and landfill site.  
The concerns of 
Environmental Health are 
that any the development 
should ensure that 
measures are taken to 
protect the groundwater 

Page 239



 

Site Location and map 
inset number 

Nature of waste facility 
Policy Ref and number in 
2010 / 
Preferred option 2 
consultation 2009 

Summary of South Cambs 
comments 

from pollution since the site 
is close to the protection 
zone on the chalk aquifer   
Conservation is concerned 
that the facility would need 
substantial landscaping to 
integrate it into its 
surrounding. 

Needingworth Quarry, 
Needingworth  
 
Inset map 55 

Policy SSP W1S  
Site specific allocations for 
waste recycling and 
recovery facilities Proposed 
use is 
Waste Recycling and 
Recovery (Inert waste 
recycling)  
 
Policy SSP W8O 
Waste Consultation Areas 

Object.   The identification 
of this site for inert waste 
recycling and landfill is of 
concern to the Council.   If 
this site is to be included in 
the MWSSP South Cambs 
request that a site-specific 
policy be included for 
Needingworth to include the 
need for a routeing 
agreement or a Willingham 
bypass and to include 
mitigation to reduce the 
environmental impact of this 
development on the 
surrounding area. 

Northstowe  
 
Inset map 56 

Policy SSP W1T  
Site specific allocations for 
waste recycling and 
recovery facilities Proposed 
use is 
Waste Recycling and 
Recovery (Temporary Inert 
waste recycling)  
 
Policy SSP W8AQ 
Waste Consultation Areas 

Support in principle 
recognising that it may be 
more appropriate to have a 
number of smaller sites to 
serve the development of 
Northstowe and that the 
location of these sites 
should change as phased 
development progresses to 
minimise adverse impact.   
 
Support would be subject to 
the measures to mitigate the 
matters raised by 
Environmental Health.  
These are that noise, odour 
and dust must be assessed 
and appropriate mitigation 
taken to protect existing 
residents in the area and 
the new residents of 
Northstowe, as the phased 
development progresses. 
This may include, 
appropriate buffer zones in 
conjunction with sensitive 

Page 240



 

Site Location and map 
inset number 

Nature of waste facility 
Policy Ref and number in 
2010 / 
Preferred option 2 
consultation 2009 

Summary of South Cambs 
comments 

design and mitigation of site 
operations.   
 
The facility should be 
located so that it does not 
impact upon the existing 
communities of 
Longstanton, Oakington or 
Rampton Drift. 
 
South Cambs request that a 
site specific policy be 
included in the MWSSP to 
include measure to mitigate 
the matters raised by 
Environmental Health and to 
take account of the impact 
to the existing communities 
as mentioned above. 

Cottenham  
 
Inset map 72 

Policy SSP W2B 
Site specific allocation for 
inert waste landfill disposal  
 
Policy SSP W8K 
Waste consultation areas 

Objection until such time as 
the County provides more 
detailed information about 
the site so that this Council 
can evaluate it for the 
proposed additional 
allocation for inert landfill. 
Without details of vulnerable 
receptors and an 
environmental and health 
impact assessment it has 
not been possible to 
evaluate this new allocation.   
 
South Cambs supports the 
non-inclusion of the 
proposal for extracting clay 
at Cottenham from the 
MWDP. 

Waste Water Treatment 
Works Safeguarding Areas 

Policy CS31 and 
Policy SSPW7 
 

Support in principle but 
there should be a reasoned 
justification included in the 
MWDP as to why an 
arbitrary distance of 400 
metres has been included 
as a buffer zone to such 
areas and why areas which 
are upwind of WWTWs are 
included. 
 
Each site for residential 

Page 241



 

Site Location and map 
inset number 

Nature of waste facility 
Policy Ref and number in 
2010 / 
Preferred option 2 
consultation 2009 

Summary of South Cambs 
comments 

should be considered 
having regard to local 
circumstance on a case-by-
case basis and subject to a 
representative odour 
assessment. 

Balsham (77) Policy SSP W7B  Support in principle 
Bassingbourn (78) Policy SSP W7C  Support in principle 
Bourn (80) Policy SSP W7E Support in principle 
Cambridge  (84) Policy SSP W7I Support in principle 
Duxford (87) Policy SSP W7L Support in principle 
Foxton  (90) Policy SSP W7P Support in principle 
Gamlingay (91) Policy SSP W7Q Support in principle 
Haslingfield  (93) Policy SSP W7S Support in principle 
Linton (97) Policy SSP W7W Support in principle 
Melbourn  (101) Policy SSP W7AA Support in principle 
Over (104) Policy SSP W7AD Support in principle 
Papworth Everard (105) Policy SSP W7AE Support in principle 
Royston (108) Policy SSP W7AH Support in principle 
Sawston (109) Policy SSP W7AI Support in principle 
Teversham (117) Policy SSP W7AQ Support in principle 
Uttons Drove (118) Policy SSP W7AR Support in principle 
Waterbeach (119) Policy SSP W7AS Support in principle 
Waste Consultation Areas Policy CS30 

Policy SSP W8 
South Cambs supports the 
use of Waste Consultation 
Areas. 

Cottenham Skips, 
Cottenham (127) 

Policy SSP W8L 
 

South Cambs supports the 
use of Waste Consultation 
Areas. 

Dawson Plant Hire, 
Swavesey (129) 

Policy SSP W8P 
 

South Cambs supports the 
use of Waste Consultation 
Areas. 

Lesanna Farm, Haslingfield 
(138) 

Policy SSP W8AE 
 

South Cambs supports the 
use of Waste Consultation 
Areas. 

Milton (Landfill) (144) Policy SSP W8AM South Cambs supports the 
use of Waste Consultation 
Areas. 

Pet Crematorium. Thriplow, 
A505 (147) 

Policy SSP W8AR 
 

South Cambs supports the 
use of Waste Consultation 
Areas. 

Thriplow HRC (152) Policy SSP W8BD South Cambs supports the 
use of Waste Consultation 
Areas. 

South Of Worsted Lodge, 
A11, Pampisford (149) 

Policy SSP W8AW 
 

South Cambs supports the 
use of Waste Consultation 
Areas. 

Land West of A10, Hauxton  
 

Area of Search for a 
(Household) Recycling 

South Cambs supports the 
non-inclusion of this site 

Page 242



 

Site Location and map 
inset number 

Nature of waste facility 
Policy Ref and number in 
2010 / 
Preferred option 2 
consultation 2009 

Summary of South Cambs 
comments 

 
 

Centre to serve south 
Cambridge and outlying 
villages 
 
PO2 2009 consultation 

from the MWDP. 

Land at Chesterton Fen 
 
 

(Household) Recycling 
Centre for north Cambridge 
and inert waste recycling 
centre  
Site: 7.4 ha 
Access: from Fen Road, 
Chesterton 
 
PO2 2009 consultation 

South Cambs supports the 
non-inclusion of this site 
from the MWDP. 

Waterbeach  
 
 

Relocate aggregate sidings 
from Chesterton and to 
facilitate London waste rail 
transfer 
 
PO2 2009 consultation 

South Cambs supports the 
non-inclusion of this site 
from the MWDP. 

 
Key issues 

 
54 Chesterton Sidings Railhead - This is a new designation. The site is allocated as a 

Sustainable Transport Zone. 
 
55 In the MWSSP it states in paragraph 5.6 that ‘ An opportunity has come forward for a 

new railhead in the Cambridge North Fringe……….In allocating this site it is 
recognised that there is an existing railhead just south of the allocated site. This new 
site could supplement the existing facility or in the event of the existing facility closing, 
replace it.  It is considered vital to have railhead provision in the Cambridge area, 
particularly given the growth that is anticipated in the immediate area.  This includes 
the upgrade of the A14, which will require the import of a substantial amount of hard 
rock by rail.  

 
56 Notwithstanding the fact that there is an existing aggregates railhead it appears that 

the proposals are to accommodate not only local mineral and waste, in addition it 
may also receive residential municipal and commercial  / industrial waste from 
London. It has been agreed in the East of England Plan that this region will import 
London waste and this new railhead could be where this waste is received into this 
area. 

  
57 The site is within the Cambridge WWTW and therefore is in Cambridge City but this 

site forms part of a larger area that expands into South Cambs. The City Council and 
South Cambs intend to jointly prepare a new plan for this area.   The proposed new 
railway station and link to the busway will be considered as part of this new plan and 
according to the County Council ‘. …they would not be compromised by what is being 
suggested in the Minerals and Waste Plan.’   

 

Page 243



 

58 In the online information provided by the County Council it states that ‘…This new 
railhead is allocated on land currently within the Cambridge Waste Water Treatment 
Works site.  …   This allocation will not mean that the Waste Water Treatment Works 
will need to relocate and it will not prejudice any future improvement to the Works.’ 

 
59 South Cambs are concerned that by increasing the railhead capacity at Chesterton 

Sidings there is the potential to have a significant environmental impact in the area 
that may cause serious detriment to amenity.  The cumulative impact may also be 
even greater with the new proposed train station in this location.      

 
60 There can be considerable environmental disruption related to a proposal of this 

nature due to potential incompatibility with existing residential uses in a relatively 
quiet urban location with low background noise levels (in absence of train 
movements) contrary to PPG24: Planning & Noise.  

 
61 As the future number of train / vehicle movements associated with railheads can be 

high, it is therefore essential that the access is good and the surrounding roads are 
capable of accepting high volumes of traffic.   

 
62 However, noise / vibration, dust, odour and possibly bioaerosol generation from 

aggregate sidings /and containerised waste transfer may have an adverse impact. 
 
63 Whilst implementation issues in the MWSSP identifies measures to protect amenity of 

local communities for odour, noise and dust as something to be addressed, in the 
absence of any detailed operational information, hours of use etc the significance of 
impact cannot be quantified.  Due to the close proximity of sensitive receptors It is 
uncertain / unknown if it is practical or even possible to implement mitigation 
measures engineering or otherwise to adequately protect amenity and the health and 
wellbeing of residents. 

 
64 Due to serious concern about significant environmental impact and in particular noise 

impact, a precautionary approach should be taken.   The site should not be allocated 
until significance of impact / effect is assessed by undertaking Health and 
Environmental Impact Assessments, respectively.   

. 
65 Household Recycling Centre to serve Cambridge South - A number of sites were 

considered before the proposed allocation for land to the south of the Addenbrookes 
Access Road, Trumpington within Cambridge.  This recycling centre must be 
convenient to serve the community in the south of Cambridge and the outlying 
villages if the sustainability benefits of recycling are not to be undone by 
unsustainable journey distances. 

 
66 In earlier consultations Glebe Farm and the Bayer CropScience site (West) at 

Hauxton were suggested and South Cambs supports the current site being allocated 
in the proposed Submission MWSSP to serve the area to the south of the district.  

 
67 More detailed comments on the Minerals and Waste Core Strategy DPD and the Site 

Specific Proposals DPD are set out in Appendix 4.   
 

Page 244



 

Implications 
 

Financial None 
Legal The Council will be obliged to show Mineral and Waste 

allocations and safeguarding areas for minerals on its own LDF 
Proposals Map once the Minerals and Waste Development Plan 
is adopted 

Staffing None 
Risk Management There is a risk that the MWDP could include allocations for land 

not acceptable to the Council for example waste management 
issues could prevail over amenity and other planning 
considerations 

68 

Equal Opportunities None 
 

Consultations 
 
69 Consultations have taken place with officers in Environmental Health; Development 

Control and New Communities.  
 

Effect on Strategic Aims 
 
Commitment to being a listening council, providing first class services accessible to all. 
There are some concerns relating to the MWDP that the Council can highlight when 
it responds to the consultation on behalf of the affected communities within the 
district. 
Commitment to ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and healthy place 
for all. 
The Council by responding to the consultation will be able to ensure that the MWDP 
includes policies that can continue to keep the district a safe and healthy place for all 
and by implementing the policies on waste and minerals will in the future endeavour 
to improve the environment.  
Commitment to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
By responding to the consultation the Council will ensure that the most sustainable 
sites are allocated and that in identifying sites the local communities are not 
adversely affected by the subsequent working of the minerals. 
Commitment to assisting provision for local jobs for all. 
By responding to the consultation the Council can ensure that the planning for 
minerals and waste within the district assists the growth agenda and future 
development within the district.   This will ensure that a good economic environment 
is promoted within the district thereby assisting in keeping and creating local jobs 
within South Cambs.   
Commitment to providing a voice for rural life. 

70 

The Council in responding to the consultation will be able to voice the concerns of 
communities that may be affected by the proposals within the MWDP.  

 
Conclusions/Summary 

 
71 South Cambs has responded to each stage in the consultation on the MWDP, which 

has now reached its proposed Submission stage.  This reports highlights the 
particular issues that South Cambs is concerned about relating to both mineral and 
waste matters.  It has also considered each site allocated for a particular use in the 
MWDP and made detailed comments on each where appropriate.  The Council is 
aware that this is the last opportunity to make such comments and for some sites is 

Page 245



 

disappointed that not more information was provided in order to assist in assessing 
the sites suitability for a particular use.    

 
Recommendations 

 
72 The Portfolio holders for Planning and New Communities are recommended to agree 

the responses to the Minerals and Waste Development Plan consultation contained 
within the report and in Appendices 2,3 and 4. 

 
 

Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation 
of this report:  
South Cambs response to Preferred Options Consultation of the Minerals and Waste 
Development Plan – Cabinet Report 14 December 2006 
 
South Cambs response to the Preferred Options 2 Consultation of the Minerals and 
Waste Development Plan. – Cabinet Report 9 October 2008 (September 2008) 
 
South Cambs response to the New Sites proposed during Preferred Options 2 
consultation March 2009. – Joint New Communities and Planning Portfolio report (10 
March 2009) 
 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste Core Strategy DPD 
Submission Plan 2010 
 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste Site Specific Proposals DPD 
Submission Plan 2010. 
 

Contact Officer:  Alison Talkington – Senior Planning Policy Officer 
Telephone: (01954) 713182 
 

Appendices on the website 
 
1 - Maps of the locations of the relevant sites for South Cambs. 
  
2 - Schedule of mineral sites allocated in South Cambridgeshire  
 
3 - Schedule of waste sites allocated in South Cambridgeshire 
 
4- Schedule of detailed comments on the Minerals and Waste Core Strategy DPD and Site 
Specific Proposals DPD 
 
5 - Comments submitted about the borrow pits identified in the Preferred Option 2 
consultation in March 2009 
 

Page 246



Page 1 of 21 

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: New Communities Portfolio Holder  2 March 2010 
AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Operational Services) / Corporate Manager 

(New Communities) 
 

 
COMMUNITY CAPITAL GRANTS PROGRAMME 2009 - 2010 

 
Purpose 

 
1 The PFH for New Communities is asked to consider all applications for community capital 

grants and to make decisions on the level of grants to be awarded from the remaining 
2009/10 budgets. 

 
2 The report combines projects from all three schemes: 
 

Community Facility Grants: Budget 2009/10 £100,000, £26,849 remaining 
Village Sports Facility Grants: Budget 2009/10 £100,000, £78,550 remaining 
Arts Capital Grants:  Budget 2009/10 £40,000,   £32,010 remaining 
 

3  Officers have also identified a small number of un-claimed grants, from previous years, 
which can now be returned to the relevant capital budgets as follows: 
 
Community Facility Grants:  additional £11,900 
Village Sports Facility Grants:  additional £14,870 
Arts Capital Grants:   additional £10,250 
 

This gives Total funds available as:  
 

Community Facility Grants:  £38,749 
Village Sports Facility Grants: £93,420 
Arts Capital Grants:   £42,260 

 
Background 

 
4 In September 2009, the PFH for New Communities made the decision to put on hold all 

decisions on the Council’s Community Capital Grants Programme until March 2010, when 
bids would be considered together, at one meeting. 

 
5 In the past, funding bids have been received throughout the year and grant decisions 

have been made relatively quickly, a customer friendly system which has been very much 
appreciated by applicants. Officers are normally aware of pending projects and have been 
able to manage the budget available to cover all eligible bids. 

 
6 In September 2009, Officers identified the likelihood that the budgets were going to be 

over subscribed, in particular the Village Facilities budget. A number of unexpected village 
hall schemes were being discussed with officers, which had not previously been on the 
“pending projects “ list. 

 
7 In order to be as fair and equitable as possible, the PFH therefore made the decision to 

freeze all capital grant awards until early 2010, when all bids could be considered at the 
same time. It was also agreed that officers would draw up simple criteria for allocating 
what funds were left for 2009/10. 

 

Agenda Item 13Page 247



Page 2 of 21 

8 At that time it was unclear what capital funds might be available in 2010 and beyond, 
however the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) now identifies the same level 
of funding for 2010/11 as was available in 2009/10. The MTFS is expected by be 
approved by Full Council on 25 February 2010. 

 
Considerations 

 
9 It is proposed that each application will be considered within its own category and budget 

(Community facilities, Village Sports facilities and Arts Capital), only viring funds across 
budgets in exceptional circumstances. A maximum award of £30,000 per project is 
proposed. 

 
10 Each schemes has been assessed on the existing approved criteria (available from 

Joseph Minutolo or Jane Thompson on request), plus the following: 
 

a) value for money 
b) how it meets identified local need 
c) how it fits with SCDC priorities 
d) ability to start work in next 9-12 months (January – March 1011) 

 
11 The Local Members and Parish Councils have been consulted as part of the process. 
 

A COMMUNITY FACILITY GRANTS 
 

Fifteen applications have been received in 2009/10 of which the following six have already 
received approval: 

 
Coton Village Hall  New Village Hall Grant awarded £14,651 

(total grant of £25,000 split 
with 2008/9) 

Madingley Village Hall Refurbishment of the Hall Grant awarded £2,000 
(topup grant following 
main grant in £2008/9) 

Hinxton PC Replacement of the flat 
roof area of the Village 
Hall 

Grant awarded £1,000 

Balsham PC Extension and resurfacing 
of Recreation Ground Car 
Park 

Grant awarded £15,000 

Waterbeach PC New Community/Youth 
building 

Grant awarded £40,000 

Quy Village Hall 
Committee 

Damp proofing walls of the 
Village Hall 

Grant awarded £500 

 
The following applications are to be considered by the PFH on 2 March :- 

 
Background Information 

 
Grants are available from this budget for village halls, community centres, youth centres, 
community mini buses and children’s play. In the past grants of up to £50,000 have been 
possible but as the budget has reduced these larger grants are less achievable; hence the 
proposal for a maximum award of £30,000 in paragraph 9 above. 

 
Projects for village halls and community centres tend to be either large requests for major 
refurbishment, replacement, where projects involve considerable levels of external 
funding and loans or smaller schemes. In past years, the Council has identified and 

Page 248



Page 3 of 21 

funded at least one “priority” larger project per year where the Council’s award helps bring 
in considerable external resources to the village. 

 
The smaller schemes provide for minor repairs, small extensions (eg for disabled access 
or toilets), new windows, heating or roofing. 

 
The Council has always supported play facilities for eligible villages of up to a population 
of 2,000, recognising the important impact these grants make on the health and well being 
of children living in more rural areas. 

 
The SCDC Community Facility Audit 2009 considered the quality of village halls and 
identified buildings that are in either an excellent, good, average, poor or very poor 
condition. This assessment has been used to help prioritise funding. 

 
Grant proposals and Recommendations 

 
A1 West Wratting Village Hall Committee have requested grant aid towards 
renovation of the west gable wall that requires work to damaged brickwork due to damp 
ingress. The brickwork will be restored and the entire wall repointed with appropriate lime 
mortar. The total cost of the project is £1,900, with the Parish Council providing the 
majority of the funds. 

 
a) This is very good value for money – for a small cost the hall will be fit for purpose 
b) There is a continued need for a village hall in West Wratting. The Community 

Facilities Audit identified that the building is generally of a “good” standard and this 
small scheme will help ensure this continues. 

c) Maintaining this facility would continue to promote community cohesion and the 
needs of this isolated rural community. 

d) This work will be done immediately 
 

Local Member comments: Cllr Richard Barrett has given his verbal support for this project.  
Cllr Julia Squier is also fully supportive of the project. 

 
Recommendation: To support this project as a medium priority with a grant of £700. 

 
A2 Landbeach Village Hall Committee have submitted an application for grant aid 
towards the building of an extension to the village hall to include an office, additional 
toilets (including those for disabled users), a larger kitchen and a new entrance with 
improved access for disabled users. The existing hall would also be refurbished, with the 
installation of new, larger windows, insulation in the roof space and the installation of data 
points to aid those user groups not currently catered for, such as computing classes and 
networking meetings. 

 
The total project costs are £273,000, with funds already secured to £209,000. The Parish 
Council is fully supportive and are contributing £5,000. Full consultation has been 
undertaken, with a questionnaire to every household, an Energy Audit by Cambridgeshire 
ACRE and discussions with the local Area Conservation and Planning Officers. 

 
a) This project will provide the whole community of Landbeach with a much improved 

and updated facility at the heart of the village and therefore provides value for 
money. 

b) There is a continued need for an enhanced village hall in Landbeach. This is the 
only social space in Landbeach as there is no longer a post office, shop or pub. 
The Community Facilities Audit describes this facility as being generally in “good” 
condition 

c) Improving this facility would continue to promote community cohesion and the 
needs of the whole community. 

Page 249



Page 4 of 21 

a) This project is projected to be underway in the early part of 2010. 
 

Local Member comments: Cllrs James Hockney has yet to comment. 
Peter Johnson has the following comment:- 

 
“I am fully in favour of this application receiving funding to the level approved, of course 
we would all like to see a slightly larger amount given but under the financial 
circumstances I consider this to be a fair decision.” 

 
Recommendation: To support this scheme as a medium priority. This project would 
normally be awarded a larger grant and as such it is proposed to award a grant of 
£10,000 from 2009/10 budget and £15,000 from 2010/11 budgets (subject to approval of 
the MTFS). This would take the overall grant award to £25,000. 

 
A3 Hinxton Village Hall Committee has applied for a grant towards the provision of 
new toilets at the Village Hall. A lot of work has been undertaken over the last few years 
to improve the Village Hall, including schemes with South Cambs grant-aid. The toilets 
remain as the last serious deficiency and would greatly encourage an increase in use if 
they were fully refurbished. 
 
The total project cost is £11,993, with funds of £6,700 already secured. The Parish 
Council has contributed £200 towards the toilets and it is also funding the urgent re-
roofing project at the hall. 

 
a) This project offers good value for money. The toilets are in a very poor state and 

are affecting hire of the hall and therefore the potential to secure income. The 
project will complete the programme of improvements to the village hall and 
ensure that it will last well into the future. 

b) There is a continued need for a village hall in Hinxton. It is central to the social 
activities of the village and hosts numerous village events and private functions. 
The Community facility Audit describes the building as being overall in “average” 
condition. 

c) Improving this facility would continue to promote community cohesion and the 
needs of the whole community. 

d) This project will be underway in the early part of 2010. 
 

Local member comments: Cllr Tony Orgee has yet to comment. 
 
Recommendation: To support this scheme as a high priority with a grant of £3,000. 

 
A4 Little Wilbraham Parish Church Council has applied for a grant towards the 
installation of toilets with disabled access at the St John’s Church. As Little Wilbraham 
does not have any other community buildings, these would be the only public toilets in the 
village, and would greatly improve facilities for meetings, events and local and national 
elections. A site visit with Church faculty members, the architect and English Heritage will 
shortly confirm the viability of the scheme. 

 
The total cost is £27,060, with funds of £9,500 already in place. The Parish Council is due 
to confirm its financial commitment in March 2010. 

 
a) This project would enhance the use of the church as a meeting place for events 

and a wide range of groups in the village. It is the only public building in the village 
and is used by SCDC as a polling station 

b) There is an obvious need for toilet facilities at a venue that is used for public 
meetings and events. The village hall in neighbouring Gt Wilbraham is described in 
the Community Facilities Audit as being in “very poor” condition. 

Page 250



Page 5 of 21 

c) Improving this facility would continue to promote community cohesion and support 
the needs of this rural community. 

d) This project will be underway in 2010. 
 

Local member comments: Cllr Robert Turner has given his verbal support to this project, 
provided that the Parish Council contribute an amount to match the contribution made by 
SCDC. 

 
Recommendation: The Council does not normally fund church facilities, however it has 
done so before in similar circumstances, at Shudy Camps. A small award of £4,000 is 
therefore recommended, subject to the Parish Council also making a contribution. 

 
A5 Cottenham Community Centre is applying for a grant towards the costs of 
creating a new community centre facility through the conversion and renovation of the 
existing but redundant Methodist Church. The facility will include a multi-use community 
space (encompassing high quality children’s play facilities), a community archive with 
information area and a coffee shop. 

 
There will also be incorporated an informal drop-in centre and an area for local arts. The 
facility will be run by a combination of paid staff, trainees supported by Mencap and local 
volunteers, allowing the facility to be open for as many hours as possible each day and 
providing organised activities such as fitness classes, musical tuition, talks and 
entertainment. 

 
Cottenham does not have a village hall and relies on the village college and the 
community/social club, which is located on the recreation ground, plus a number of church 
halls. This facility will compliment existing provision and provide much needed additional 
community space. 

 
The total cost is £210,175, with funds of £64,500 secured including £50,000 from the 
recently promoted Peoples Millions Lottery Scheme. A further £140,000 has been applied 
for from the Methodist Church funding streams. The Parish Council is very supportive and 
is investing a sum of £10,500 in this project. 

 
a) This innovative scheme offers good value for money as it is based on the 

refurbishment of a redundant church building, securing it for continued community 
use into the future. The project is creating an exciting new facility in the heart of the 
village, enabling the development of a vibrant and exciting community scene. The 
building is being re-developed in phases, as funds can be secured.  

b) The need for this facility has been identified through the consultation of residents 
through a survey involving on line submissions and face-to-face discussions. All 
local groups are fully supportive of the proposals.  The Community Facilities Audit 
describes the building as in “poor” condition. 

c) Improving this facility would continue to promote community cohesion and the 
needs of the whole community. It would also give access to services to a wider 
range or community groups and is assessable by foot to most residents.  

d) This project will be underway in 2010, depending on the additional funding being 
brought in from the Methodist Church funds. 

 
Local member comments: Cllr Simon Edwards has given his full support to the proposed 
grant, and Tim Wotherspoon has made the following comment:- “I really don't think it 
would be right for me to comment on this, being a paid up member of the Cottenham  
Community Centre.”  
Cllr Nigel Bolitho has yet to comment. 

 
Recommendation: Support this project as a high priority with a grant of £8,000 as initial 
pump prime funding to help the applicant attract other external grants. They should also 

Page 251



Page 6 of 21 

be invited to return for a further grant towards this project again in the future, subject to 
funds being available. 

 
A6 Fowlmere Parish Council is applying for a grant towards the installation of two 
new sets of swings to the play area. Based on the village population of 1200, this scheme 
is eligible for 25% grant, in accordance with the criteria. The total costs of the project are 
£2,770. 

 
a) This is good value for money – for a small amount of capital the village play area 

will be able to accommodate the increase in the number of families and children in 
Fowlmere. 

b) The need for improving the play area has been identified by local families. The 
Parish Council will maintain the equipment. 

c) Improving this facility would continue to promote active lifestyles in the very young. 
d) This project will be underway in 2010. 

 
Local member comments: Cllr Deborah Roberts has made the following comment :- 

 
“I think I need to actually declare an interest as Fowlmere PC chairman, however I have 
not dealt with this application which has all been done by my colleague Cllr Dorothy 
Woods. 
I do strongly support this application, as there is a real need for extra play facilities in the 
village. 
They give children a chance to not only use and enjoy on a physical level but are very 
good to teach the little ones inter personal skills with their peers. 
If granted the equipment will soon be purchased and in use and thereafter the PC will 
maintain to a high level, including regular safety checks by ROSPA.” 

 
Recommendation: Support this request as a high priority and award a grant of £700  

 
A7 Milton Community Centre Committee has applied for a grant to support its 
project to improve the Community Centre building for all users. The foyer will be increased 
in size, and the main entrance doors will be upgraded. The boiler serving the hot water 
system will be replaced and the electrical system will be upgraded. The access to the 
disabled toilets will be improved and the toilets and changing rooms will be refurbished. 
The office and administration facilities will also be enlarged. 

 
The total cost is £166,865 with funds of £156,685 anticipated (applications to WREN and 
Donarbon are awaiting decision), including a contribution of £70,000 from the Parish 
Council. 

 
a) This is good value for money – for a small amount of capital the village hall would 

be brought up to date in terms of health and safety, access for disabled users and 
energy efficiency. The Parish Council provides an annual grant towards the 
running of the centre, which is a busy and important facility for this large village. 

b) The need for an improved facility has been identified by consultation with all local 
user groups. Over 40 different groups regularly use the facility and it is probably 
the busiest community building in the district. The Community Facilities Audit 
describes it is being in “good” condition. 

c) Improving this facility would continue to promote community cohesion and the 
needs of the most vulnerable in the community. It would also promote a more 
sustainable use of energy resources. This facility has always been managed in a 
self-sufficient way, without asking for SCDC support. 

d) This project will be underway in 2010, depending on funds from WREN and 
Donarbon being confirmed. 

 

Page 252



Page 7 of 21 

Local Member comments: Cllrs Hazel Smith fully supports this award to Milton Community 
Centre. “I have served on the committee for many years and know that it provides very 
well used premises where many clubs meet in the village.” 
Richard Summerfield has made the following comments:- “I am a Milton Parish Councillor 
and a Trustee of Milton Community Centre and am heavily involved in this project 
so thought that I should disclose my interest. 

  
These improvements are long overdue and needed to improve the facilities offered at our 
very busy Community Centre. I only wish that SCDC could offer a larger grant as if we are 
not successful with our Wren application the project is likely to stall. Needless to say the 
grant has my full support.” 

 
Recommendation: To support this scheme as a high priority and award a grant of £8,500   

 
A8 The George Long Charity, Swavesey has applied for a grant to improve and 
update the facilities at the Swavesey Memorial Hall, which has served the community 
since the 1920’s without much major improvements. The proposal is to install a new false 
ceiling, update the heating system and electrics, install a hearing loop and pa system, and 
redecorate throughout.  
The total cost is £67,506 and the PC has pledged £12,000. A further £45,000 will be 
secured when confirmation of grants from WREN and Donarbon have been received. 

 
a) This is good value for money – for a small amount of capital the village hall would 

be brought up to date in terms of health and safety, access for disabled users and 
energy efficiency. 

b) The need has been identified from a consultation to inform the Parish Plan 2008 
and all user groups are fully supportive of the scheme. The Community Facilities 
Audit describes the hall as being in “good” condition. 

c) This is a well used facility which helps promote community cohesion, volunteering 
and activities, which benefit the whole community. People with hearing impairment 
will particularly benefit and the scheme would also promote a more sustainable 
use of energy resources. 

d) This project will be underway in 2010 depending on funds from WREN and 
Donarbon being confirmed. If this does not happen the project will go ahead but 
will be reduced in scope. 

 
Local member comments: Cllr Sue Ellington comments are as follows:- 

 
“I am very happy to support this application to upgrade the Swavesey Memorial Hall. Over 
the last few years the hall has acquired charity status and is now improving its financial 
viability. The Hall has seen a significant increase in its usage by the whole community. 
The improvement created by the replacement windows has reduced the potential for noise 
nuisance but the interior needs significant updating. The lighting, heating, hearing loop 
and decor are vital to create an attractive environment, which will secure the sustainability 
of the building for the community. I sincerely hope this application is accepted for the 
grant.” 

 
Recommendation: To support the scheme as a medium priority with a grant award of 
£9,500. 

 
A9 Whaddon PC has submitted an application for grant aid towards major works at 
the village hall. The proposals are for a refurbishment of the original hall, demolition of the 
existing extension and replace with a new extension, and improvements to the access and 
parking arrangements. The poor state of the hall has been a limiting factor to the 
development of local groups and the community as a whole. 

 

Page 253



Page 8 of 21 

The total cost is £403,630 with a possible saving of £50,000 to be found by modifications 
to the design.  The PC is fully behind this project and has donated £28,000, but no other 
funding has yet been secured, even though applications to a number of grant-aiding 
bodies will be made in the near future. The shortfall is expected to be in the region of 
£200,000 - £220,000. 

 
a) This scheme is ambitious, considering the funds available and the size of the 

village. The estimated costs seem high. 
b) The need for improvements to the hall have long been identified – in 2005 a survey 

for the Parish Plan identified that 68% of villagers wished the village hall to be 
updated in its present form. The Community Facilities Audit identified this building 
as being in “very poor” condition (only three halls described as such).  

c) The condition of this building is restricting use and activities in the village. 
Improving this facility would continue to promote community cohesion and the 
needs of this small village community. It would also promote a more sustainable 
use of energy resources. 

d) It is unlikely that work will start until more technical work has been done by 
architects and structural engineers, and funding has been sought, applied for and 
received. 

Local Member comments: Cllrs Nigel Cathcart fully supports the Whaddon Hall grant 
application. 

  
His comments are:- “The village has put a huge amount of effort and public consultation 
into improving the village hall facilities and has come up with a solution which seems 
sensible and feasible. The proposal is to retain the existing building but to improve and 
extend it to meet modern requirements and to provide sufficient space to cater for the 
wide range of functions, which take place. 

  
The existing building is too out of date and too small to be adequate and the range of 
activities is very wide (receptions, meetings, musical events, keep fit courses, etc) and the 
hall is a vital part of the village and its social and cultural life 

  
The village is embarking on a fund raising programme of which the District Council is a 
vital part; not only for the grant itself but also for the encouragement District Council 
support will give to other grant aiding bodies. For this reason I would hope that a grant 
offer, at least in principle, could be given as soon as possible to assist grant applications 
elsewhere. 

  
Whaddon is a small village and although every effort is being made to provide financial 
support within the village the amount, which is likely to be forthcoming, is likely to be 
limited which is why District Council support is so important. Historically the District 
Council has always been particularly supportive of small villages like Whaddon and I hope 
it will prove the case in this instance.” David McCraith has yet to comment. 

 
Recommendation: To identify the project as a priority for future funding but to hold the 
application until 2010/11 to see what other sources of funding can be secured and until 
there is a clearer timetable for delivery. No grant award in 2009/10. 

 

Page 254



Page 9 of 21 

Grant proposals and recommendations   Total Budget available 
£38,749 

 

       Total  £44,400 
    Budget remaining -£5,651 

It is proposed to vire £5,651 from the Arts capital Budget. 
 
 

Applicant Project Total Cost Other Income Grant 
Recommended 

West Wratting 
Village Hall 
Committee 

Renovation of the 
west gable wall 

£1,900 PC - £190 
The Committee 
will fund the 
project minus 
grant from SCDC 

£700 

Landbeach 
Village Hall 

To extend and 
refurbish the 
Village Hall 

£273,000 PC  - £5,000 
Lynn Landbeach 
Village Trust 
Fund - £144,000 
WREN - £50,000 
Donarbon - 
£10,000 

£10,000 (with a 
further £15,000 to 
be allocated from 
2010/11) 

Hinxton Village 
Hall 

Refurbishment of 
WC’s 

£11,993 Ann Housden 
Trust - £1,000 
PC – £200 
Rental Income - 
£5,500 

£3,000 

Little Wilbraham 
PCC 

Installation of 
public toilets 

£27,060 PC - tbc 
Fundraising - 
£5,500 

£4,000 

Cottenham 
Community 
Centre 

New Community 
Centre – 
conversion and 
renovation of 
existing Methodist 
Church 

£210,175 Big Lottery, 
People’s Millions 
- £50,000 
PC – £10,500 
Fundraising/Mem
bership scheme - 
£4,000 

£8,000 (Top-up in 
future if required 
and subject to 
funds being 
available) 

Fowlmere PC Extension of play 
area 

£2,770 PC will fund the 
project minus any 
grant from SCDC 

£700 

Milton Community 
Centre 

Refurbishment of 
Community 
Centre 

£166,685 PC - £70,000 
WREN - £50,000 
Donarbon - 
£10,000 
Own Funds - 
£26,685 

£8,500 

The George Long 
Charity, 
Swavesey 

Improvements to 
Swavesey 
Memorial Hall 

£67,506 PC - £12,000 
WREN - £30,000 
Donarbon - 
£15,000 

£9,500 

Whaddon PC Improvements to 
the Village Hall 

£353,630 PC - £28,000 
No other funding 
secured 

Defer until 
2010/11 

Page 255



Page 10 of 21 

B VILLAGE SPORTS FACILITY GRANTS 
 
Eight applications have been received in 2009/10 of which the following two have already 
received approval: 
 
Oakington Parish Council Multi Use Games Area Grant awarded £20,000 
Fulbourn Parish Council Extension to skate park Grant awarded £1,450  
 
Six applications are to be considered by the PFH on 2 March. 
 
Background information 
 
There are currently two sets of criteria under the sports capital grants: 

• Village Sports Facility Grants 
• Youth Sports Initiative Grants 

 
All six-grant applications that are to be considered by the PFH have been received in relation to 
the Village Sports Facility grant criteria.  
 
In the past grants have not exceeded 50% of the total project costs or a maximum of £50,000.  
SCDC grants have on many occasions helped local groups access external funding and facilities 
be designed to meet National Governing Body or Sport England technical standards.  
 
Grant applications can be received to either build new sports facilities or improve existing facilities 
and the project must be able to highlight how these facilities will help to improve participation 
levels in sport and physical activity. 
 
Grant proposals and recommendations 
 
B1 Histon and Impington Parish Council has submitted an application with a total project 
cost of £35,131. The request for funding is to support improvements to the recreation ground by 
providing an outdoor gym experience, a perimeter path to enable all year round usage of the 
recreation ground for people walking and running and pitch drainage to cater for the increased 
demand in pitch use and to reduce the amount of postponed football which is approximately 25% 
in anyone season.  
 
The project has already secured £1,396 from the Parish Council and £500 from Community 
Chest. The project has also applied to WREN for £10,000 and the Football Foundation for £6,485 
(50% of the pitch drainage). The project has requested a grant of £16,000 from SCDC.  
 
The aim of the Parish Council and the Recreation Ground Committee is to provide a facility for all 
members of the community and encourage wider usage than those just taking part in club 
activities or organised activities. Through precept funding, the Parish Council will be investing in 
CCTV and improved car park lighting to increase the safety of using the facility. This project will 
take place in 2010/11 to a total cost of £10,000.  
 

a) The Parish Council and Recreation Ground Committee has in the past been very 
successful in receiving funding and continually looks to develops and improve the 
recreation ground for local community use. The FA and Sport England have already 
identified the recreation ground as an example of good practice.  

b) An extensive consultation has been carried out with existing clubs and users to ensure 
the new facilities sit comfortably with existing facilities. In Summer 2009 a community 
consultation was carried out regarding the recreation ground including young people, 
youth workers, the PCSO, the FA and the local health practitioners.  

c) This project provides free facilities and therefore supports the Council’s and the LAA 
priorities around NI8 to increase adult participation levels in sport and physical activity.  

Page 256



Page 11 of 21 

d) This project has potential to start work within the next 6 months if all funding is 
secured.  

 
Local member comments: Cllr Davies has submitted the application as Chair of the Recreation 
Ground Committee and fully supports the project / Cllr Mason fully supports the project (email 
received). 
 
Recommendation: Propose a grant of £15,000. 
 
B2 Gamlingay Parish Council has submitted an application with a total project cost of 
£32,000. This request for funding is to create a new multi-use changing room and a store, that 
can be accessed externally to serve the sports clubs.  It is planned for the changing and 
storeroom to be part of the new ‘Eco Hub’ that will be replacing the old community centre. The 
Eco Hub is a 1.6million project and has already received a grant from SCDC for £50,000.  
 
The Parish Council have produced a funding strategy for the Eco Hub, which includes the request 
of £20,000 towards the changing and storeroom facility from the Football Foundation.  The Parish 
Council has committed £49,684 towards the whole project and has also applied to the Public 
Works Loan Board for £500,000. 

 
a) Sports clubs based on the recreation ground require adequate changing and by 

providing this facility as part of a new build rather than a stand alone pavilion or 
changing block the total cost of the project will be greatly reduced. 

b) The existing Community centre has now been closed due to its condition.  The centre 
provided 2 changing rooms that fell below Sport England technical standards and the 
FA requirements for a designated referees room. The football club provide junior 
development opportunities but are unable to provide changing facilities that meet with 
child protection guidelines. In terms of the store, equipment has to be stored in a 
separate container but this has been vandalised on many occasions adding to the 
costs and the pressures of running a voluntary sports club.  

c) This project will help meet both the Council’s and the LAA priorities around NI8 to 
increase adult participation levels in sport and physical activity. 

d) This project has potential to start work within the next 12 months if all funding is 
secured.  

 
Local member comments: Cllr Smith has submitted the application on behalf of the Parish 
Council and fully supports the project. Cllr Kindersley has expressed his high level of enthusiasm 
for the project. 
 
Recommendation: Propose a grant of £10,000 
 
B3 Castle Camps Parish Council has submitted an application form with a total project cost 
of £111,060. This request for funding is to build a new modern changing room facility to replace 
the current metal framed asbestos building which was built in the early seventies and has now 
deteriorated to the point where it is no longer safe to use.  
 
Without the new facility the tradition of football within the village will have to cease. The recreation 
ground currently provides both informal and formal opportunities to get active but the football club 
provides the main structured activity available as part of their Youth Development programme 
and has outstanding pitches to play on.  
 
The Parish Council have put £11,106 towards the project with a further £3,000 promised by the 
Changing Room committee and the football club. Planning permission has been approved and 
the project group are waiting on the results of a £20,000 grant request from the Football 
Foundation.  
 

Page 257



Page 12 of 21 

The project has requested a grant of £33,100 from SCDC. 
 
a) This facility is required to enable football to continue but the funding strategy has 

highlighted a higher contribution from SCDC and the Football Foundation above the 
maximum allocation. This project is more about sustaining current activity levels rather 
than increasing the numbers of teams and players and I would therefore recommend a 
smaller contribution towards the facility.  

 
b) As detailed above, this facility can no longer be used due to health and safety reasons 

and the football club has been forced to start looking at the use of other pitches to 
ensure that they continue to meet the FA requirements. This will have an impact on 
player retention especially if they cannot find a local facility to use in the interim.  

c) This project will help meet both the Council’s and the LAA priorities around NI8 to 
increase adult participation levels in sport and physical activity. 

d) I am not convinced that the funding will all be secured by the end of 2010 and 
therefore envisage this project starting no earlier than April 2011.  

 
Local member comments: Cllr Richard Barrett has given his verbal approval to the proposed 
grant in 2010/11.  Cllr Julia Squier has yet to comment. 
 
Recommendation: Propose a grant of £20,000 in 2010/11. 
 
B4 Thriplow Cricket Club has submitted an application form with a total project cost of 
£24,575. This request for funding is to install two astro turf practice nets for cricket.  
 
Thriplow Cricket Club Limited has a 30-year lease on the land and although they secured the full 
support of the Parish Council to develop a new facility, they have been unable to receive a 
financial contribution.  
 
Thriplow Cricket Club is a very large club with over 140 junior members. The club is proactive in 
developing opportunities to become coaches or officials and will be running 5 teams during the 
2010 season. The club have already raised £3,575 towards the project and will continue to 
fundraise to cover any on-going maintenance.  
 
This established club has the full backing of Cambs ECB and support has been given by them in 
applying for funds from the ECB Lord Taverners £3,000, Awards for All Lottery £10,000 and 
Cambridgeshire Community Foundation £5,000.  
 
The project is yet to receive planning permission from SCDC but an application has been 
submitted.  
 

a) If all other funding is secured then this project will provide excellent value for money 
due to the extensive role of the Cricket Club in leasing the land, developing facilities 
and the provision of a structured activity for 100 young people.   

b) The need for this facility has been identified by the fact that the current facility is not 
safe and does not meet the ECB safety standards especially for juniors. The young 
people of the club have requested the use of an adequate facility to practice outside of 
club training sessions. Local facilities require a payment to be made to secure regular 
use.    

c) This project will help meet both the Council’s and the LAA priorities around NI8 to 
increase adult participation levels in sport and physical activity. 

d) Due to the high standards of the club it is possible that all funding could  
      be secured by the summer and works could start immediately.   
 

Local member comments: Cllr Peter Topping comments are as follows:- 
 

Page 258



Page 13 of 21 

“I'm very happy to give my strong support for this application. Thriplow has recently set out plans 
to upgrade its footpaths this year linking it to the large estate at Heathfield, and this means there 
will be more young people accessing facilities in Thriplow. Thriplow also has good access links to 
other villages in this part of South Cambs so this application will benefit more than one village.” 
 
Recommendation: Propose a grant of £5,000 with a top-up grant in 2010/11 if other applications 
to other grant bodies are unsuccessful. 
 
B5 Barton Parish Council has submitted an application form with a total project cost of 
£196,000. This request for funding is to build a new pavilion with a social room. The new facility will 
replace two old un-insulated wooden buildings with no hot water supply which has affected both 
tennis and football development as the clubs have been unable to comply with the requirements of 
LTA and FA.  
 
The facilities have meant that teams cannot fulfil fixtures and teams have folded in the past of 
have lost players due to the fact that home games cannot be played locally.  
 
The new building will incorporate solar tube lighting, a ground source heat pump and solar panels 
for hot water, rainwater harvesting for toilet flushing and watering the bowls green.   
 
The Parish Council has committed £10,000 towards the pavilion with a further £5,000 investment 
to provide the mains power supply. An annual £1,000 will cover the cost of the new pavilion and 
any on-going maintenance. 
 
The Barton Recreation Improvement Group has been set up to assist with the management of 
the facility and has already fundraised £19,000. Other grants have been requested from WREN, 
Reaching Communities, Post Code Trust, Sustainable Energy Commission, Football Foundation, 
Low Carbon Building Trust, Donarbon, and Tesco. The total value of these grants comes to 
£145,000.  
 
Other funding secured is £13,400 from the sports clubs and £5,600 sponsorship.  
 

a) If all other funding is secured then this project will provide excellent value for money, 
as the current facilities are unable to be used. The project will provide an eco and 
environmentally friendly facility, setting an example for future projects in other villages. 

b) The need for this facility has been identified through the Parish Plan in 2004 with 
added pressure from the FA and LTA in relation to fulfilling fixtures and clubs folding. 

c) This project will help meet both the Council’s and the LAA priorities around NI8 to 
increase adult participation levels in sport and physical activity. 

d) The building works for this facility could commence within 12 months if all funding is 
secured. 

 
Local member comments: Cllr Francis Burkitt has given the following comments:- 
“Thank you for sending this to me.  I thoroughly support this application, and very much hope that 
it will be approved in full.   
  
Barton Parish Council and Barton Recreation Improvement Group have worked very hard to 
create this project; to design a new pavilion and social room that will meet the needs of the 
community; to create a building that will be admirably "green"; and to undertake so much effective 
fund-raising.  But they have not fully reached their fund-raising target, and support from South 
Cambs DC is vital to the completion of this exciting project.” 
 
Recommendation: Propose a grant of £30,000 
 
 
 

Page 259



Page 14 of 21 

B6 Caldecote Parish Council has submitted an application form with a total project cost of 
£346,414. This request for funding is to build a new pavilion with a social room and a grass 
cricket square. The current land is still owned by Taylor Wimpey but is due to be handed over to 
the Parish Council imminently.  
 
The village of Highfields Caldecote has expanded over the last 10 years with sports facilities and 
funding tied in to a S106 agreement. The grass pitches have been in use for over 2 years with 
both junior football and cricket development taking place. Due to the considerable delay in 
transferring the ownership of the land it was decided by the Parish Council in 2008 to install a 
temporary team changing facility that cost £40,366. This was funded out of the original £172,274 
S106 funding and due to the high usage and other activity on the recreation ground; it will be 
retained as an additional facility especially in light of child protection issues.  
 
The new facility will include a two-team changing room facility with officials/disabled facilities, 
kitchen and social room area. The Parish Council have gained planning permission for the new 
pavilion which has been designed to meet the technical standards for use by sports clubs of all 
types.  
 
The Parish Council currently do not run any community room or hall in Caldecote but have been 
the key driver for this project in consultation with the existing and the new community, clubs and 
National Governing Bodies of Sport.  
 
Funding secured towards this project is the remainder of the S106 funding £131,908. Grant 
applications to the ECB, Football Foundation and Donarbon are all being prepared and will be 
submitted on the transfer of the land. As this is such a large project, SCDC funding is crucial in 
assisting the Parish Council secure larger external grants.  
 

a) If all other funding is secured then this project will provide excellent value for money, 
as the current facilities are desperately inadequate. 

b) The need for this facility has been identified through the steady increase in usage of 
the recreation ground during the growth of the village over the last 10 years. 

c) This project will help meet both the Council’s and the LAA priorities around NI8 to 
increase adult participation levels in sport and physical activity. Improving this facility 
would continue to promote community cohesion and the needs of this increasing 
village community. 

d) The building works for this facility could commence within 12 months if all funding is 
secured. 

 
Local member comments: Cllr Robin Martlew has yet to comment. 
 
Recommendation: Propose a grant of £33,400 with a top-up grant in 2010/11 if required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 260



Page 15 of 21 

Grant proposals and recommendations    Total budget available £93,420 
 

        Total  £93,400 
        Budget Remaining  £20 

 
 

Applicant Project Total Cost Other Income Grant 
Recommended 

Histon and 
Impington 
PC 

Improvements to the 
Recreation Ground 

£35,131 PC - £1,396 
Community Chest - £500 
 
Applications to WREN 
£10,000 and 
Football Foundation £6,485  

£15,000 

Gamlingay 
PC 

New multi-use 
changing room and a 
store as part of the 
Eco-Hub Project 

£32,000 The Parish Council has 
committed £49,684 towards 
the whole project and has 
also applied to the Public 
Works Loan Board for 
£500,000. 
 
£20,000 has also been 
requested from the Football 
Foundation. 

£10,000 
 

Thriplow 
Cricket Club 

Installation of two 
astroturf practice nets 
for cricket. 

£24,575 Club funds - £3,575 
 
Applications to:- 
 
ECB Lord Taverners 
£3,000, 
Awards for All Lottery 
£10,000 and 
Cambridgeshire Community 
Foundation £5,000.  
 

£5,000 

Barton 
Recreation 
Improvement 
Group 

New pavilion £196,000 Own funds - £19,000. 
 
Other grants applied for 
total £145,000. 
 

£30,000 

Caldecote 
PC 

New pavilion £346,414 S106 funding £131,908 
 
Grant applications have 
been submitted to the ECB, 
Football Foundation and 
Donarbon, and funds will be 
submitted on the transfer of 
the land. 
 

£33,400 

Castle 
Camps PC 

New changing-room 
facility 

£111,060 PC -  £11,106 Changing 
Room Cmmtte - £3,000  
 
Application to FF  - £20,000 

Defer until 
2010/11 

Page 261



Page 16 of 21 

C ARTS CAPITAL 
 
Five applications have been received in 2009/10 of which the following two have already received 
approval: 
 
Cambourne All-In Cambourne Stepping Stones 

Project 
Grant awarded £4,000 

District Equipment Bank 
(Cottenham Village College) 

Display Screens and dance 
floor items 

Grant awarded £3,990 

 
Three applications are to be considered by the PFH on 2 March. 
 
Background information 
 
In the past, funds for specialist arts equipment and capital projects, including building works, have 
been awarded to properly constituted community groups that can show the greatest benefit to 
residents. 
 
Arts capital grants very rarely exceed 40% of the total costs of items/projects.  There is one 
exception to this rule, namely the District-wide Equipment Bank Scheme managed by local Arts 
Development Managers (as stART) for the benefit of groups across South Cambridgeshire.  The 
Bank comprises lighting and sound equipment, two mobile cinema kits, cameras, recording and 
computer equipment. 
 
Grant proposals and recommendations 
 
C1 Swavesey Village College have submitted an application for £27,260. This proposal 
forms the second part of an earlier successful request for £22,740 in 2008-9 (bringing the total to 
£50,000) for funds towards the cost of retractable seating; lighting equipment, sound equipment, 
film equipment and drapes for the new £1.8m performing arts centre currently being built. 
 

a) The proposal demonstrates good value for money.  At least 70% of the costs of the 
items listed in the application (£200,000) will be identified from other sources. 

b) The project management group made up of local residents and representatives of 
community-based arts and cultural groups from surrounding villages are committed to 
ensuring the new arts facility meets the needs of the local community. 

c) The proposal meets a number of SCDC priorities 
d) Work has commenced on the construction and completion is anticipated for 

September 2010. 
 
Local member comments: Cllr Sue Ellington has made the following comments:- 
 
“I visited Swavesey Village College yesterday for an update on progress with this project and as a 
result I am delighted to be able to strongly support this application. The Village College is an 
essential part of community life in Swavesey and surrounding villages. The current local facilities 
are inadequate to provide for the needs of the school and the community. This new facility will 
provide good acoustic equipment, specialist lighting and comfortable seating to provide an 
excellent audience experience. The opportunity for visiting choirs, orchestras and drama 
presentations to be staged with supporting dressing rooms and office space is key to developing 
a centre for cultural in the community. 
  
I feel this will provide an excellent asset for the Village College as well as the local Community. I 
strongly recommend this project to receive the grant.” 
 
Recommendation: Propose a grant of £27,260. 
 

Page 262



Page 17 of 21 

C2 Melbourn Village College have submitted an application for a Video Kiosk for community 
consultation totalling £6,904.  The kiosk would become part of the District-wide Equipment Bank 
available, upon training, by organisations across the District. The proposal is to use the kiosk to 
capture young people’s feedback and views. The ADMs also plan to use the video kiosk 
creatively, working with digital artists on specific projects with young people as well as using it as 
a tool for monitoring and evaluation.   
 
The proposal will support aspects of the Youth participation Strategy and the artsMASH 
programme of work with 13-19 year olds (see usage pan below). 
 

a) The grant request is for 100% as the equipment will be available to all groups in 
South Cambridgeshire.  It will also be used to support the case for external funding 
and, as such, represents a sound investment. 

b) Arts Development Managers identified the need for the kiosk based on its success 
in other areas. 

c) The application meets a number of SCDC priorities including “listening to and 
engaging with our local community” and “making SCDC more open and 
accessible”.  It also meets LAA NI 110 (young people participating in positive 
activities) - by providing a local arts venue with increased activities for young 
people and inspiring young people to take part in more positive arts activities. 

d) Young people from around the district at the artsMASH event gave positive 
feedback for the use of a video kiosk. Youth Services felt that having a mobile 
technology would interest and inspire young people taking part in artsMASH and 
the Arts Award programme within their villages. A group of hard to reach year 9 
boys in a youth services referral group at Melbourn Village College were also 
consulted. These young people were enthusiastic about the kiosk and were 
particularly keen on the opportunity to gain the Arts Award without needing written 
work (several had some form of special educational need). 

 
Usage Plan for a Video Kiosk 2010-2011 
 
Date Area – NB video outputs 

can be distributed online to 
a district wide audience 

Project and Groups involved 

2010 
onwards 

District wide Hire by community groups for arts consultation, 
evaluation and monitoring 

April 2010 
onwards 

Melbourn Melbourn Parish Plan consultation 

2010 - 2011 At least 7 other villages  Use for parish plan consultation and parish plan 
reviewing 

2010 - 2012 Cambourne and district wide Cambourne Blocco – recording participants 
experience and feedback from attenders of 
carnival events 

2010 - 2012 District wide Record of cultural Olympiad activities in the 
district 

2010 - 2011 District wide Evaluation and monitoring of Academy, children’s’ 
holiday activities 

2010 - 2012 District wide Artsmash tender – evaluation and monitoring and 
for young people to gain Arts Awards 

March 
2010/2011 

District awards SCDC Chairman’s Awards, responses from 
participants 

2011/2012 District showcase Dance showcase, responses from audience and 
participants 

2010/2011 District wide Poetry recordings, writers groups and schools 
recording short poems to be published as a 
collection 

2010 
onwards 

District wide ADM projects, use written into evaluation and 
monitoring to strengthen future funding bids 

2010 Cambourne Cambourne Art Gang recording members 

Page 263



Page 18 of 21 

onwards responses and work 
March 
2010/2011 

Thriplow Thriplow Daffodil Weekend – feedback from 
attenders and workshop participants 

2010 
onwards 

Melbourn, Sawston, Linton, 
Swavesey 

ADM run Arts Award programmes – young people 
recording feedback for their modules 

April 2010 Comberton CVC 50th anniversary and Comberton Leisure arts 
programming evaluation 

May 2010 Linton Evaluation and Monitoring for Oxford Archaeology 
project 

October 
2010 

Swavesey Recording launch of new arts venue 

June/July 
2010 

Bassingbourn Evaluation and monitoring for Memphis Belle 
intergenerational project 

September 
2010/2011 

Milton Recording attenders views of bandstand 
marathon 

2010 
onwards 

Sawston Evaluation and monitoring of Sawston cinema and 
film clubs 

2010 Waterbeach, Cottenham and 
Impington 

Use in public art consultation 
 
 

2010 
onwards 

Orchard Park Park Art group consultation and evaluation of arts 
projects 

May 2010 – 
2011 

Melbourn Evaluation of Stockbridge Meadows 
environmental public art project 

2010 
onwards 

Meldreth Orchard Manor SCOPE transition service, use 
with young people with complex disabilities to gain 
Arts Award modules without literacy skills 

November 
2010 

Gamlingay Battle of the Bands feedback 

 
 
Local member comments: Cllrs Val Barrett has made the following comment:- “I am happy to 
support Melbourn Village College's application for the proposed grant award towards a Video 
Kiosk for community consultation.” Cllr Janice Guest has yet to comment. 
 
Recommendation: Propose a grant of £6,904. 
 
C3 Inspire – well being through arts submitted an application towards the cost of digital 
Arts Equipment for £2,122.  The beneficiaries will mainly be people who live with mental health 
difficulties such as depression or anxiety in South Cambridgeshire.  The audio-visual and 
computer equipment will enable us to develop people’s skills in filmmaking, animation, web-
design and audio-visual editing.  This work also develops disadvantaged and disabled people’s 
confidence and social integration. The equipment is essential for the content renewal and further 
development of Funky TV – the world’s first disabled-led internet TV station in the world, based in 
South Cambs (Milton).  Any audio-visual work produced by disabled/disadvantaged people can 
be broadcast globally, live or on-demand. The Internet TV work helps to raise the profile of these 
groups, and can promote the place they live. 
 

a) The request represents 40% of the total cost of equipment. 
b) The need is identified by Inspire in consultation with service users (see below). 
c) This proposal fits in with SCDC action to “work with voluntary organisations to 

establish a relationship with hard-to-reach and vulnerable residents.” 
d) The equipment would be used immediately.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 264



Page 19 of 21 

Usage Plan 
 
The kinds of activities that require the equipment are: 

• Training disadvantaged / vulnerable people who to use a film camera and make short 
pieces, either documentary or fiction.  

• Training individuals and groups to use a computer and up-to-date / accessible software to 
edit the footage and turn the material into a good product.  

• Specifically, for example, to learn how to use green screen, to superimpose footage onto 
a different background  

• To learn how to create the lighting required for successful filming  
• To use the equipment to produce animation films  
• To document projects  
• Some people have already had enough training to offer their services around the district 

as a film crew, with professional support, for events and projects that other people would 
like documented.   

• The equipment also plays a part in video art and projections, where film material is mixed 
and projected live at events.  This is another service on offer to event organisers around 
the district, such as theatre performances, sports days, disco’s etc.  

 
The beneficiaries in South Cambs are people disadvantaged through chronic ill health or 
disability, from 11-year-olds to elderly.  In the year ahead our projects expect to serve the 
following numbers of South Cambs residents (keeping in mind that the group sizes have to be 
lower than with mainstream groups, because of the clients’ needs): 
 
Mental health project – 10-12 
Funky Flamingo – 30 
Funky club nights – 200 
Funky Film crew – 20 
Funky TV - 250 
Creative Days, Milton – 6-7 
Creative Days, Weston Colville – 12-15 
Junction partnership project – 10 
Mediabox project – 20 
The web-site is an on-going resource for all disabled people in South Cambs and beyond, plus 
care staff and personal carers, and artists who work in the sector. 
 
Local member comments: This is a district wide facility, however in keeping with policy, the local 
members for Milton have been asked to comment.  
 
Cllrs Hazel Smith has made the following comment:- “I fully support this application. Equipment 
that helps these groups to express themselves is a very suitable use for our Arts Grants.” 
Richard Summerfield has made the following comment:- “I have no knowledge of this 
organisation so can not comment on the application.” 
 
Recommendation: Propose a grant of £2,122. 
 

Page 265



Page 20 of 21 

Grant proposals and recommendations     Budget available: £42,260 

Total  £36,286 
        Budget Remaining  £5,974 

 
It is proposed to vire £5,651 from this budget to meet the shortfall in Community Facility Grants 
leaving £323 in Arts Capital. 
 

Implications 
 
Financial All applications are within the current capital grant budgets. 
Legal All applications will abide by current legislation. 
Staffing Minimal – officer resources to manage application process. 
Risk Management Minimal risk – some negative reaction to grant decisions may 

prompt adverse media comments. 

12 

Equal Opportunities Applications are welcome from all community groups whose 
project fits the criteria. 

 
Consultations 

 
13 All applications have indicated the relevant level of consultation for their particular project. 

 
All local members have been consulted with respect to applications affecting their villages 
and comments have been incorporated in the text above. 

 
Effect on Strategic Aims 
 
Commitment to being a listening council, providing first class services accessible to all. 
Capital grant projects proposed would all increase access to amenities/services. 
 
Commitment to ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and healthy place 
for all. 
All of the projects proposed will improve those amenities and contribute to a healthy 
and safe place for users. 
 
Commitment to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live. 
All of the projects proposed. 
 
Commitment to assisting provision for local jobs for all. 
The increase in use of some of the facilities detailed above may lead to an increase 
in local jobs.  
Commitment to providing a voice for rural life. 

14 

The facilities detailed above would all provide a place for local rural voices to be 
heard. 
 

Applicant Project Total 
Cost 

Other Income Grant 
Recommended 

Swavesey 
Village 
College 

New performing arts centre - 
retractable seating; lighting 
equipment, sound equipment, film 
equipment and drapes. 

£200,000 £140,000 
secured 

£27,260 

Melbourn 
Village 
College 

Video kiosk for community 
consultation (part of the equipment 
bank) 

£6,904 None £6,904 

Inspire Digital arts equipment £5,306 Own funds - 
£3,184 

£2,122 

Page 266



Page 21 of 21 

Recommendations 
 
15 To approve the grants as indicated above for each individual application. This will require 

a virement of £5,651 from Arts Capital Grants to Community Facility Grants  
 
 

Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of 
this report:  

Applications submitted and guidance notes. 
 
Contact Officer:  Jane Thompson – Community Services Manager 

Telephone: (01954) 713348 
Joseph Minutolo – Senior Admin Officer 
Telephone: (01954) 713359 

Page 267



Page 268

This page is left blank intentionally.



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL  
 

  
REPORT TO: Planning Portfolio Holder 2 March 2010 
AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Corporate Services)/Principal Accountant 

(General Fund and Costing) 
 

 
CARRY FORWARD OF UNCOMMITTED GRANT BALANCES TO 2010-11   

 
Purpose 

 
1. To seek the approval of Planning Portfolio Holder to carry forward the uncommitted 

grant balance in respect of Heritage Initiative Grants and the total balance on the 
Historic Buildings Preservation Fund. 

 
Background 

 
2. The current budget and policy framework rules allow that any uncommitted grant 

balance that is unused at the end of a financial year can be carried forward into the 
following year with the approval of the relevant Portfolio Holder. This unused sum 
carried forward is then available in the new financial year in addition to the approved 
budget estimate. Until last year, the balances that were over two years old were 
required to be approved by Cabinet, but as the items still to be considered had 
dwindled to just two, which both related to Conservation, the approval was delegated 
to the Planning Portfolio Holder. 

       
3. It should be appreciated that, in addition to the presented uncommitted grant 

balances, the Council’s reserves also include amounts necessary to meet the 
payment of grant commitments already approved but not yet paid over.  The period 
between approval of grant and final payments can be years in some cases.  These 
amounts will be carried forward except where it is established that the grant is no 
longer required.         
  
Considerations 

 
4. Currently, it is anticipated that the only uncommitted grant balances to be considered 

for carry forward relate to the Conservation and Design Service, on items where there 
is no annual budget available. They are as follows: 

Heritage Initiatives        £29,061 
 Historic Buildings Preservation Fund    £54,622 
It is possible that some other grant balances within the Council could be uncommitted 
at the year-end, if the full budget has not been allocated. In general, however, 
carrying forward uncommitted balances on headings where an annual budget is 
available is not recommended, unless there are exceptional circumstances.  

 
5. Heritage Initiatives (£29,061): This reserve was set up in 1996/97 with a one-off 

contribution of £200,000, for use over a number of years. The balance reduced 
steadily and in 2007, Cabinet decided that the unused £16,320 in the Millennium 
Working Party Grants Reserve be added to this reserve. The reserve has not been 
used over the last two years, due to lack of resources to initiate new schemes. 
However, the Conservation and Design Manager advises that the balance will be 
used to help fund projects contributing to the Cambridgeshire Green Vision. The 
Vision sets out a 20-year plan to create a multi-purpose Green Infrastructure network 

Agenda Item 14Page 269



across the area. It is supported by Cambridgeshire Horizons and all local authorities 
are involved in identifying and supporting schemes. The Vision will help deliver the 
essential green element of growth needed to provide a good quality of life for existing 
and new communities. Therefore, it is recommended that the balance of £29,061 be 
carried forward. 

    
6. Historic Buildings Preservation Fund (£54,622, of which £5,500 is required next year 

to fund works approved by Cabinet): This is not strictly a grants reserve, but 
historically it has been treated in the same way as grants. This was first established in 
1982 to provide the means, in the last resort, to save buildings at risk.  It has enabled 
the Council to use its statutory powers, which could lead to compulsory purchase, 
repair and resale of such property. In 2006, Cabinet approved that a large proportion 
of the reserve be used to carry out work at St. Denis Church, which is owned by the 
Council. Grants were received from English Heritage and Hatley Parish Council 
towards this expenditure. The works consisted of re-roofing and general repair works 
to arrest the deterioration of the former church. In 2008, Cabinet agreed that further 
works be carried out at a total cost of £22,000, with funding being provided by means 
of £16,500 from English Heritage and the remaining £5,500 from this fund. This 
expenditure will now fall in 2010-11. There is no further expenditure planned in the 
capital programme. However, the Conservation and Design Manager considers that 
the remainder of the fund will allow his Section to continue to initiate action to secure 
the future of threatened historic buildings (e.g. by supporting feasibility studies and 
providing match-funding to attract external grants); the fund will help the Council fulfil 
its responsibilities for Listed Buildings at Risk and respond to community led 
initiatives; its retention will make a substantial contribution to both securing the 
historic fabric of the district and saving cherished local landmarks. Therefore, it is 
recommended that the £54,622 balance be carried forward. 

 
Options 

 
7. The decision is simply whether or not to carry forward the balance in each case. The 

current Medium Term Financial Plan assumes that all uncommitted balances are 
carried forward until used for grant expenditure. The recommendation is to carry 
forward the balances. The recommendation follows the wishes of the Conservation 
and Design Manager, whose plans would be compromised by the loss of funds 
needed for future grants or possible action to protect key listed buildings at risk. The 
outstanding balances brought forward could then be reviewed again at any stage in 
the future. 

 
Implications 

 
Financial Balances carried forward overall will have nil effect on Council 

expenditure, in accordance with the Medium Term Financial 
Plan. The balances provide the only means of funding any 
further Heritage Initiatives Grants or expenditure to initiate 
action to secure the future of key listed buildings at risk. Any 
balances not carried forward will result in an under-spending in 
the old year and will add to the overall General Fund Reserve. 

Legal None 
Staffing None 
Risk Management Failure to carry forward grant reserves would have a detrimental 

effect on the plans of the Conservation Service. 

8.  

Equal Opportunities None 
 
 

Page 270



 
Consultations 

 
9. The comments and recommendations of the Conservation and Design Manager have 

been incorporated into the considerations reported above. 
 

Effect on Strategic Aims 
 
Commitment to being a listening council, 
providing first class services accessible to all. 
Commitment to ensuring that South 
Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and 
healthy place for all. 
Commitment to making South 
Cambridgeshire a place in which residents 
can feel proud to live. 
Commitment to assisting provision for local 
jobs for all. 

10. .

Commitment to providing a voice for rural life. 

 
 
 
 
The proposals in the report seek to ensure 
the continued availability of funding to 
support the spending plans of the Council. 

 
Recommendations/Conclusions 

 
11. It is recommended the Planning Portfolio Holder resolve that the following 

uncommitted grant balances be carried forward into the 2010/11 financial year: 
 

  Heritage Initiatives Grants       £29,061  
  Historic Buildings Preservation Fund                 £54,622 
 
 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report: Schedules of Grants 2009/10 
 S.C.D.C. Budget Booklet 2010/11 
 Previous minutes and agenda 
 
Contact Officer:  Peter Harris, Principal Accountant (General Fund and Costing) 

Telephone: (01954) 713073 

Page 271



Page 272

This page is left blank intentionally.



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Planning Portfolio Holder 2 March 2010 
AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Corporate Services)/ Accountant  

 
 

FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT 
 PLANNING PORTFOLIO EXPENDITURE TO 31 JANUARY 2010 

 
Purpose 

 
1. This report compares the actual revenue and capital expenditure to 31 January for 

the Planning Services Portfolio with the revised annual budget for the year ending 31 
March 2010, and seeks comments from the Portfolio Holder and officers. 

 
Background 

 
2. In general, it is intended that financial reports will be presented to portfolio holders 

approximately every three months, depending on meeting dates. This report is the 
second monitoring report to the portfolio holder for the 2009-10 year. In addition, the 
Planning services revised estimates were reported to the Portfolio Holder in January. 

 
3. The reports exclude recharges and other year-end transactions. These recharges are 

calculated for the original estimates in December before the start of the financial year, 
then recalculated for the revised estimates and finalised as soon as possible after the 
year-end. 

 
4. The reported figures are summarised in Appendix A. Appendix B shows the full detail 

of the revenue expenditure. The working budget figures are the revised estimates. 
 
5. Grant expenditure is shown on a commitments basis to 31 January, whereas other 

expenditure is on a payments/receipts basis. 
 

Considerations 
 
Revenue Estimates  

 
6. Development Control: 

The revenue expenditure to 31.01.10 shows £134,681 spent out of a budget of 
£153,670 (88%). The income from planning fees of £633,389 is 78% of the budget of 
£812,000, which equates to a predicted overspend of around £50,000. 

 
7. Building Control Service: 

The income from Building Control fees of £254,248 is 91% of the budget of £280,000. 
It is predicted that there will be an increase in the fees received of about £20,000 to 
£300,000. However, this will be offset at the end of the financial year by reducing the 
amount to be transferred from reserves. 

  
8. Economic Development:  

The revenue expenditure to 31.01.10 shows £27,717 spent out of a budget of 
£70,800 (39%). The remaining budget is expected to be spent. 

 
 

Agenda Item 15Page 273



9. Concessionary Fares:  
The revenue expenditure to 31.01.10 shows £224,420 spent out of a budget of 
£703,180 (32%) mainly due to the County Council not yet submitting an invoice for 
the second half-year contribution to the scheme and the final invoice for 2008/09, 
which was delayed due to a reimbursement dispute with one of the operators. 

 
Capital Estimates 
 

10. There are potential savings for the Conservation Area Enhancement Scheme Grants 
(22% spent) and the Tree/Hedge Partnership Scheme (5% spent). 

 
Implications 

 
Financial None 
Legal None 
Staffing None 
Risk Management None 

11. 

Equal Opportunities None 
 

Consultations 
 
12. The cost centre managers have been informed of the expenditure and grant details 

and budgets. 
 
Effect on Strategic Aims 

 
Commitment to being a listening council, 
providing first class services accessible 
to all. 

None 

Commitment to ensuring that South 
Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe 
and healthy place for all. 

 
None 

Commitment to making South 
Cambridgeshire a place in which 
residents can feel proud to live. 

 
None 

Commitment to assisting provision for 
local jobs for all. 

None 

13. 

Commitment to providing a voice for 
rural life. 

None 

 
Conclusions/Summary 

 
14. The revenue expenditure comments are in paragraphs 6 to 9.  
 
15. Capital grants comments are in paragraph 10. 
 

Recommendations 
 
16. The Planning Portfolio Holder is requested to comment on the report, as appropriate. 

 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report:   Budget files; grant decisions and the financial management system. 
 
Contact Officer:  David Grimster – Accountant  - Telephone: (01954) 713075 

Page 274



������	�
����)���	�
����� �������������

�	
��)�	��)	���	���	���
�)��������
������	��������
�����)������������	��� )	
	����������

����������� �������
� !	" # � "" $	� % �)� �#&'") # ����
���) �#'") # ( $��	��) 

�))'�� �")	%�) ) �)��� *� �#�
���)" �")	%�) � )�+�*% �)" ,���)" �#&'")�  -+ �#	)'� "+ �) )��.'#
 ) �##	)	����
���/��� ������� � )0��
 " �� )0��
 "  -1� )0��
 )��#�) )�%%	)) #� % �)" )��#�) ��! ���	��0��# ��) "�)�

2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 ( 2 .'#
 )

�3�����,��4��543�4

�������	

!��!!���� ��$�34�6����74���43 !�"#��$�� %��"#&�#��' #�#���� �8��9:��� %�#(�&((' � � �;�:98::� &") ��<<9<;<�

#&�&�� =>�3���,�74���43�?��$�7� (*�#&� %�!"�&*�' !*$�&&� ��8/9<:�� %��(�"��' � � ��;:9<�;� $!) ��:9��;�

&���($ ?��������6��,������>6=����, "*��#� %($�*!�' � �/9:�� !(��&� � � �:9�8� &&) :9�;�

#�!�� 4����?��7���,���6����7@���A�@���4� � � � � !�&�� � � �98�� ��98���

#�"#� ����?�4�����������$�? "�*"� %"�*"�' � � � � � � �

&���&! �74�46�7���$�34�6��� !!��*#� %(���#�' � 8�9/�� �&�&!& � � �898�8 #$) :�9�/�

#�#���& 74�7�??�4���A�5���? �(#�*(� %�&�""�' � ;�<9�/� *#��(( � � /�9;:: !") :��9<�<

� 544����@���$��?�4�? �!� %�!�' � � � � � � �

!&��"*� 74�?��$���4� !*��&�� %!$��&��' ���!(� �;9�<� !#�(*� � � ��9:/� *$) �9<8/

#(��$# 6>?�>6? #��$�� %&��' � ��9�;� � #!���� � ��9;�� !�() ��9�;��

#��&&* �4>��?6���������$�? (��#!� %"�!$�' � �:9��� #(�!�� � � �:9��� !��) �

���("�&�& �4��3��4��543�4���$��>�� -)�� )0��
 "� ��""*�($� %#�(&*�"!�' �!(�$!� ���;9���� %"!(��#"' #!���� � �;/�9��<� �*&�*�"

P
age 275



������	�
����)���	�
����� �������������

�	
��)�	��)	���	���	���
�)��������
������	��������
�����)������������	��� )	
	����������

����������� �������
� !	" # �'�)0 � .����) " �#&'") # ����
���) �#'") # (

�))'�� �")	%�) �++��!��"� .��'
0) �")	%�) � )�+�*% �)" ,���)" �#&'")�  -+ �#	)'� "+ �) $��	��) �##	)	����
���/��� ������� �#&'")% �)" ���B��#  -1� )0��
 )��#�) )�%%	)) #� % �)" )��#�) )��.'#
 ) ��) "�)�

2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 ( 2 .'#
 )


��)���

74�?��$���4����������>����
���)"����)�%%	)% �)"�.�"	"9�+��)� �"0	+�")0 % "����+�*% �)�.�"	"�
+���,�-.�������%��
,/�)�0	��)����'���� � 1��

(��#�$ 2���	)�������3)	��4����
	�	���5
�	�	��)���� (��"������� !�($* ((��$* !*��&� %*�$&&' $��$# ��) #(����
� +	)����	�6��������	��%����� 1���1)����)	���.���)�' ��������������� �$��"! �$��"! !���� !���� #) �*��"!
� 5��7	����2�.)
���4����+���	� ��������������� � � �

(�(�� 3)
��	����� (�(��������� (�(�� � (�(��
!��(�� /�����1	�4����
	�	����)���� !���������� !����� ��&�# ��&�# ��) (�&&&
$��!* 8)		 +	��	�9�)��	)�����5
�	�	 !(��������� !(���� &*# &*# �) !#�&!&

!!�"�� 9�)����9�����9�)��	)���� !!�"������� !!�"�� !!�"�� !!�"�� !��) �

&*���$ �4��3�74�?��$���4����������>�� *#�"�� � #����$ !!(�!�$ !��#*# ����$# %*�$&&' �*�"$$ ��) *��("�

4�@����3�����,�7�����3
"(# 628�7	�	����	�� *����� *����� � � �) *�����

&*�"&� �4��3��3�����,��4��543�4�7�����3 !"*�"�� � #����$ ���9�;� !��#*# ����$# %*�$&&' �*�"$$ !() �8�9:<�

:����
	����;
%&&�"*#' 2��������	
	���� %*#�"��' %#����$' %!!(�!�$' %!��#*#' %����$#' *�$&& %�*�"$$' ��) %*��("�'

%#("' +����)�
�-.��������9)	�	)�������:.�� � � � � � �
%"(#' 9��������7	���	)���)��� %*�����' %*�����' � � �) %*�����'

� 4�������+	)����	 � � � �

%&*�"&�' %!"*�"��' � %#����$' ����9�;�� %!��#*#' %����$#' *�$&& ��/9<��� !() ��8�9:<��

+����)�
�-.��������9)	�,:.���%����� 1���1)����)	���.���)�' �(�"������� � �(�"�� � �(�"��

P
age 276



������	
��

�����	
 �)���	���������)	� ��)���� �����	 � ��
�����
�������� ��
�������� ����� �� �)�����!

"��#��$ "��$��� "��$��� "��$���
% % % � %

�������������
����	��������������������� !�"��#$"!�%�$ ��&�$"�� ��'"$ %$�'�( %)

�&'�(�$�! )� �	������
*���)�	 �+��('��! �,�'(+''! +&� ��&&(&,&!

�'"$(#&�! -��	����
*���)�	
.�) ��� �"+#(&'�! �",'(&",! $�� �"'(��,!

""(�&# .�)���
/�����
���
/��0�)��� �#('"� �'("+� ++� '(�,�

�(�"" 1���
.����
��)������
*��))2
3����� � �(+�� ��(+��!

� 4)�����)�
�������� �� � � �


�,(&$� ��������
)� �	������ +�(#�� "+(+�+ �$� '�(�#�


��,(�'" *����������)2
5�)�� ,�&(�#� #�(,'' �&� '�"(&�&


� 5�������
)� �)����� � � �


�"('"� *����) ����� �,(�&� ��('#" #$� �(&+#


��(&"� 6������ ��(�,� ��(,�� ��'� ��(�,�!

�"(#�� 4��)���
�������� �� �'(�"� �'(�"� ���� �


�&�+(#+&! 414�7
/�4
�89�/)�4:;�
 �"$,("��! �,#�(��&! "#+(#"&

��<�	�����
2��)
���
)����)���(
�)����
���
)���) ��!

���	2���
�=
4���	
/��
�<�������)�

#�$($$$ )�)���
*����
>
�<�������)�
����
�=
�)���! #,�(,"� �'&($#+ '�� ,�'(,��
��(',+(#+,! )�)���
*����
>
������
=)��
5���
?
*��)��� ��(�'&(+��! �$��(�"�! #�� �"�&(+�+!

�&�+(#+&! /��
)�)���
*���� �"$,("��! �,#�(��&! "#+(#"&


�(��#('�� ;����)���
=)��
.��==���
?
1 �)����
�������� �('+#(&�� �

��,(,'�! 4)���=�)�
��
;���) �� ��#$(++�!

��&&(�'&! 4)���=�)�
=)��
;���) �� �&'(�'�!
�"�(�'�! @)���� �""(�'�!
�+�(�'$! )�=�))��
*�����	
@)���
 �,�(++�!

��(��"(�,'! ;�61A�
�0� �
2��)
���
�)���������� ��(�,�(,$�!

�&�+(#+&! 414�7
/�4
�89�/)�4:;�
 �"$,("��! �,#�(��&! "#+(#"&

���))���
��
@���)�	
5���
.����)2!

@
�

Page 277



�����	
 ��)���� �����	 � ��
�����
�������� ��
�������� ����� �� �)�����!

"��#��$ "��$��� "��$��� "��$���
% % % � %

����)�������*�����)

�89�/)�4:;�
4)�����)�
;�	����
�<������

� *����
�<������ �,� �'+ $#� �

.���	���
���
.�) ����

3�)��
?
*���)�����
7���	
.�) ����
��&($+� �����	� ,�(��� ',(�$� ##� ,($��


� *����
�B�)���
�������
���
*�����	 $(+�� ��(�,' ��,� �','!
'($,� C������	
;� ��B
*���� �#(#$� �#(##+ ���� �


*���)�����
*����	�����
,(�&� )D*D
��)���	��)�	
���)����	� �(#�� �(�&$ #�� &��


#�(#&� �� ���
��
*�))���
���	�������� "'(��� �#(,"� ++� ,(,++

+(+", E �)�����	��2
�� ���)2
.�) ���
�9)@
=�����! +(+�� E �(#&" E ,�� �(#&#
 9)@
=�����
0�	�B

�'"(�", E )���0���
)�����
*����	����2
�9)@
=�����! �&("�� E �#(�#' E ��"� ��(##'! 9)@
=�����
0�	�B
"(�#� E )�����	
9�����)���2
�9)@
=�����! � E � E �
 9)@
=�����
0�	�B

@)����
���
.�0��)�������
�(&�� 9	��
A������
@)��� �(&�� � �� �(&��


6����		������
�<������
�+(�+� �� �)������ "�(,�� �&(+&, #"� �(+�,


*���)�	(
)���)������	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �<�	����
�2��)
���
��	2!
�'(�$$ *���=
1==���)�
?
3������
5���)�� �,($#�
"(�&+ *�������2
���
*������)
.�) ���� "&(���

"��(&#� *�)��)���
.�) ���� �$"(#��
,"($$+ /�B
*���������� ���(+&�

"(�,�($'# 9	������
.�) ���� "(�'"("$�
�"+('"� 3��	��
?
�� �)�������	
.�) ���� �"&(�$�

�"('#�(#��! ;�61A�
*���)�	(
)����	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �"(&�+(�"�!
*�����	
5��������
*����

,&(++& *�����	
*��)��� "#(�$�
�,&(++&! ;�61A�
*�����	
*��)��� �"#(�$�!

�&$(#'' 414�7
�89�/)�4:;�
0�=�)�
�)���=�)
��
)���) �� �,�(&+� ��'(&#� ##� �#($#$

4)���=�)
��
;���) ��

,&,('$' 3������
?
9	������
)�	� �)2
@)���
;���) � $��(�'�
�,&,('$'! ;�61A�
2��)
���
;���) �� �$��(�'�! �<�	����
�2��)
���
��	2!

�&$(#'' �,�(&+� ��'(&#� �#($#$
�/*16�

��(+#$! .�	��
>
6����		������ ��&�! ��"'! +#� ��&!
�#��! .�	��
>
7���	
9	�� ����! �#'! +&� �"&!

�$($�,! .������
��&
*����
;��� �)�0	� ��"(#��! ���(#&$! ��#� �(�&$

�,('$#! 7���	
*����
;��� �)�0	� ���('��! ���(&",! #+� ��(++,!

�$$'($�"! 5��� �#�"(���! �&��(�#$! +#� ��+#(&��!
� 9)�
���	�������
5��� ��&(&��! ���(��'! &"� �&("&&!

�+,�(�"�! E 9	������
)�	� �)2
@)��� ��(�'&(�"�! E �<�	����
�2��)
���
��	2!
��"#(#��! 4)���=�)
=)��
9	������
)�	� �)2
@)���
;���) �� � !
�+�(�'$! 9	������
)�	� �)2
@)���
>
)�=�))��
*�����	
@)��� �,�(++�! !

� 4)���=�)
=)��
*2�	�B�2�
?
;���
���)� �����
;���) � �&'(�'�! !
$'$($+� ;�61A�
2��)
���
�)����
���
;���) �� �("&�('�� !

��(��"($�,! 414�7
�/*16� �#,,(�+�! �&&$('",! +#� ��#,(&',!

�&'�(�$�! /�4
�89�/)�4:;� �+��('��! �,�'(+''! +&� ��&&(&,&!
��))���
��
9�)�=�	��
�����)2

@
"

Page 278



�����	
 ��)���� �����	 � ��
�����
�������� ��
�������� ����� �� �)�����!

"��#��$ "��$��� "��$��� "��$���
% % % � %

��	)�	���*�����)�����	*�

�89�/)�4:;�
9)������
;�	����
�<�������)�

.�) ����
'(,,� �������)���
*����	�����
5��� �(��� "(&", ##� �+,

&�# 1���)
7���	
�����)����� ,�� �"� "'� �#�

�", 6����		������ � � �


6����		������
�<������
� �� �)������ � � �


��,(,'�! 4)���=�)
����=)��!
;���) �� ��#$(++�! �<�	����
�2��)
���
��	2!
�,(,'� ;�61A�
2��)
���
�)����
���
;���) �� �#$(++�

*���)�	(
)���)������	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �<�	����
�2��)
���
��	2!
�(�#� *���=
1==���)�
?
3������
5���)�� �("$�
,$" *�������2
���
*������)
.�) ���� �"($��

�'(&+� *�)��)���
.�) ���� "�(���
'&'(+�, 9	������
.�) ���� '++('$�
�,��(�,�! ;�61A�
*���)�	(
)����	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �,�&(+#�!

,("#� 414�7
�89�/)�4:;� �(,�� "(+', +#� +,,


�/*16�
�+(�$�! .�	�
�=
9	�������>�������)2
��������� �"(�'�! ��(�""! �'&� $#"


�'"+($,�! .������)2
�
7���	
5��� �"#�(���! �",'("'#! $�� �",(+,"!

�'�,(�'�! 414�7
�/*16� �"#"(�'�! �",+(�+�! $�� �"'(++�!

�'"$(#&�! /�4
�89�/)�4:;� �"+#(&'�! �",'(&",! $�� �"'(��,!
��))���
��
9�)�=�	��
�����)2

@
�

Page 279



�����	
 ��)���� �����	 � ��
�����
�������� ��
�������� ����� �� �)�����!

"��#��$ "��$��� "��$��� "��$���
% % % � %

����������	�������������	��

�89�/)�4:;�
.���	���
���
.�) ����

""(�&# 6���)��	� "�(��� �,(#'# +$� '(�,"

*���)�	(
)���)������	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �<�	����
�2��)
���
��	2!

� *�������2
?
*������)
.�) ���� �&�
'#(�#� *�)��)���
.�) ���� '$(',�
�'#(�#�! ;�61A�
*���)�	(
)����	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �'$(#��!

""(�&# /�4
�89�/)�4:;�
 "�(��� �,(#'# +$� '(�,"


�/*16�
� 5��� ��(,#�! ��(,+#! ���� �"!

""(�&# /�4
�89�/)�4:;� �#('"� �'("+� ++� '(�,�
��))���
��
9�)�=�	��
�����)2

��������*������������*+�����+	����

�89�/)�4:;�
9)������
;�	����
�<������

#(�"" 6����������
�=
@)����� &(�'� �(+�� "#� '(''�
 ���
������
0�	�B
�("�� ���������	
6����������
��
4)���
?
.�)�0� � � �


'� 7���	
*����

$("&" 414�7
�89�/)�4:;� &(�'� �(+�� "#� '(''�


�/*16�
�&(�'�! ����)���
��
-�	����� �&(�'�! � �&(�'�! ���
�<�D
�0� �

�(�"" /�4
�89�/)�4:;� � �(+�� ��(+��!
��))���
��
9�)�=�	��
�����)2

����������	�	�	��	���

�89�/)�4:;�
*���)�	()���)������	
?
.����)�
.�) ���� �<�	����
�2��)
���
��	2!

�(&�" 9	������
.�) ���� &(#&�
��(&�"! ;�61A�
*���)�	(
)����	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �&(#&�!

� 414�7
�89�/)�4:;�
�<�	�����
*�����	
@)���� � � �

��))���
��
9�)�=�	��
.����)2

�*����	*�����)������

�89�/)�4:;�
.�) ����

�(,'� -�������
5�)�� ��($$� �(+'" �,� ��("'#

,(��� ���)� ��
-)������ ��(��� � ��(���


"�(",� ��������
)� �	������
-�������
.�)����2 '�(��� "�(&+� ,"� �$(���
 ���
������
0�	�B
@)����
���
.�0��)�������

,(�,� @)����)
*��0)�������)�
9�)���)���� ,(��� ,(��, ���� �,!
� *���0�)
�=
*����)�� ,�� � ,��


*���)�	(
)���)������	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �<�	����
�2��)
���
��	2!
��(&"" *�������2
���
*������)
.�) ���� �(�,�

+&# *�)��)���
.�) ���� �'�
',(&#" /�B
*���������� �,("��

� 9	������
.�) ���� #+�
�(��$ 3��	��
?
�� �)�������	
.�) ���� "(+&�

�,$(�#�! ;�61A�
*���)�	(
)����	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �'�(���!

�&($'� 414�7
�89�/)�4:;� +�(#�� "+(+�+ �$� '�(�#�


�/*16�
*��0)����
3�)�F���
@)���
>


�"�(",�! )�
��������
)� �	������
-�������
.�)����2 � � �
 ���
�<�
�0� �

�,(&$� 414�7
/�4
�89�/)�4:;� +�(#�� "+(+�+ �$� '�(�#�

��))���
��
9�)�=�	��
.����)2

@
'

Page 280



�����	
 ��)���� �����	 � ��
�����
�������� ��
�������� ����� �� �)�����!

"��#��$ "��$��� "��$��� "��$���
% % % � %

*��*���	�����������

�89�/)�4:;�
���	�2���

��(��" �����2
.��== �("'� �("'" ���� �"!
*�������������
���
���������

"(+�# 9������ +,� ""# ��� ,""

,("�, )���0���
����� � � �


��(��� )���0���
6��������� +(#�� � +(#��

.���	���
���
.�) ����

��� 9���
1==���
5��� � � �

�+(�'& -��
*�)�
9)�������� $(��� '($+� ,,� '(���


� 9)������
?
9�0	����2 � �

'"#($�� *���)�0�����
��
*����2
.����� &#'(�&� "�+($#� �"� '&&(�#�
 ���)���
��	=
2��)	2

*���)�	(
)���)������	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �<�	����
�2��)
���
��	2!
'(��# *�������2
���
*������)
.�) ���� "(,��

"�('$� *�)��)���
.�) ���� ",(�&�
�(�"� 9	������
.�) ���� �

�",(,��! ;�61A�
*���)�	(
)����	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �"+(&&�!

'$+(+�, 414�7
�89�/)�4:;� +��(�#� ""'('"� �"� '+#(+&�


�/*16�
��#"(&+�! .����=��
@� �)�����
@)��� ��#+(���! ��'�(#+&! +,� �'&(�"'!
��+(,'&! 4)���=�)
=)��
;���) �� � ! �<�	����
�2��)
���
��	2!
�+(,'& ;�61A�
2��)
���
�)����
���
;���) �� � !

��#"(&+�! 414�7
�/*16� ��#+(���! ��'�(#+&! +,� �'&(�"'!

��,(�'" /�4
�89�/)�4:;� ,�&(�#� #�(,'' �&� '�"(&�&

��))���
��
9�)�=�	��
�����)2

�������+��	����	���

�89�/)�4:;�
*���)�	(
)���)������	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �<�	����
�2��)
���
��	2!

� 4���	
��) ����
��
�)� ����
0���� ,�� � �

� ;�61A�
*���)�	(
)����	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �,��!

� 414�7
�89�/)�4:;� � � �


�/*16�
� 5��� � � �


� /�4
�89�/)�4:;� � � �

��))���
��
9�)�=�	��
�����)2

@
,

Page 281



�����	
 ��)���� �����	 � ��
�����
�������� ��
�������� ����� �� �)�����!

"��#��$ "��$��� "��$��� "��$���
% % % � %

*��������	��

�89�/)�4:;�
9)������
;�	����
�<������

,(�'� 6����������
�=
-��	�����
?
@)����� �(,�� '("$' �"�� �+$'!
,'" ����)���� ,&� � ,&�


.���	���
���
.�) ����
'(�"� -��	�����	
;���)��
.�) ��� �(�"� �(�"� ���� �

,(#�� -���� �)���2
@)��� ,(#�� ,(#�� ���� �
 ���
��2����

� *����) �����
�B�)��
>
9�0	����2
���D ,�� � ,��

�+, *����	����� �('+� �($�# ,,� �(,,"


6����		������
�<������
*���)�	(
)���)������	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �<�	����
�2��)
���
��	2!

'(+"" *���=
1==���)�
?
3������
5���)�� '($'�
� *�������2
?
*������)
.�) ���� �(+"�

�&(",& *�)��)���
.�) ���� ��(&,�
�&�(��+ 9	������
.�) ���� �+�(���

�(��# 3��	��
?
�� �)�������	
.�) ���� �(�#�
��#�(���! ;�61A�
*���)�	(
)����	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� ��$"(+��!

�&(�#� 414�7
�89�/)�4:;� �&($&� �,(��" #$� �(#"#


�/*16�
�$#,! .�	�� �&��! � �&��!

��("��! 1���)
;��� �)�0	�
*��)����)�<=�)�
*����	! ��("��! ��("��! ���� �

��('+"! 1���)
;��� �)�0	�
*��)��� � �',�! ',�


�"�(�'�! 9	������
)�	� �)2
@)��� �""(�'�! �<�	����
�2��)
���
��	2!
"�(�'� ;�61A�
2��)
���
�)����
���
;���) �� ""(�'�

��(&,+! 414�7
�/*16� ��(#��! ��(&,�! $"� ��,�!

�"('"� 414�7
/�4
�89�/)�4:;� �,(�&� ��('#" #$� �(&+#

��))���
��
9�)�=�	��
.����)2

�������

�89�/)�4:;�
.���	���
���
.�) ����

��(&"� @)���� ��(�,� ��(,�� ��'� ��(�,�!
*���)�	(
)���)������	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �<�	����
�2��)
���
��	2!

'+� 9	������
.�) ���� +,�
�'+�! ;�61A�
*���)�	(
)����	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �+,�!

��(&"� 414�7
�89�/)�4:;� ��(�,� ��(,�� ��'� ��(�,�!
��))���
��
9�)�=�	��
�����)2

����	���	�	�	��	���

�89�/)�4:;�
.���	���
?
.�) ����

@)����
���
.�0��)�������
�"(#�� 4��)���
�������� �� �'(�"� �'(�"� ���� �


*���)�	
)���)������	
���
.����)�
.�) ����
$+, *�)��)���
.�) ���� �("��

� /�B
*���������� '(���
�($$� 9	������
.�) ���� #+�
�"($&#! ;�61A�
*���)�	(
)����	
���
.����)�
.�) ���� �&(�$�!

�"(#�� �'(�"� �'(�"� ���� �


@
&

Page 282



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: New Communities Portfolio Holder 2 March 2010 
AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Corporate Services)/Principal Accountant 

(General Fund and Costing) 
 

 
FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT 

NEW COMMUNITIES PORTFOLIO EXPENDITURE TO 31 JANUARY 2010 
 

Purpose 
 
1. This report compares the actual revenue and capital expenditure to 31 January for 

the New Communities Portfolio with the revised annual budget for the year ending 31 
March 2010, and seeks comments from the Portfolio Holder and officers. 

 
Background 

 
2. In general, it is intended that financial reports will be presented to portfolio holders 

approximately every three months, depending on meeting dates. This report is the 
second monitoring report to the portfolio holder for the 2009-10 year. In addition, the 
New Communities Portfolio revised estimates were reported to the Portfolio Holder in 
January. 

 
3. The reports exclude recharges and other year-end transactions. These recharges are 

calculated for the original estimates in December before the start of the financial year, 
then recalculated for the revised estimates and finalised as soon as possible after the 
year-end. 

 
4. The reported figures are summarised in Appendix A. Appendix B shows the full detail 

of the revenue expenditure. The working budget figures are the revised estimates, as 
there have been no relevant virements since then.  

 
5. Grant expenditure is shown on a commitments basis to 31 January, whereas other 

expenditure is on a payments/receipts basis. 
 

Considerations  
 
6. Total Revenue Expenditure: 

The portfolio net revenue expenditure to 31.01.10 shows £319,007 spent out of a 
budget of £539,440 (59% spent). This leaves £220,433 in hand, of which £101,855 is 
in respect of Planning Policy. 

  
7. Planning Policy Revenue Expenditure: 

The Planning Policy net revenue expenditure to 31.01.10 shows £56,095 spent out of 
a budget of £157,950 (36%), leaving £101,855 still outstanding. An under spend of 
£15,000 on Site Specific Policies and a saving of £54,000 on the Local Development 
Framework budget have now been identified. The Planning Policy Manager will be 
available at the meeting to give further details. 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16Page 283



8. Community/Sports/Arts Development Revenue Expenditure: 
The spending officers are confident that these budgets will be fully spent by the end 
of the financial year. On Sports Development, the Portfolio Holder may be requested 
to carry forward a small balance of unallocated Sports Performer Grants. 

 
9. Sustainability Revenue Expenditure: 

The outstanding balance of £18,391 on Sustainability will be mostly spent by the end 
of the financial year, but a net under spend of £6,500 is anticipated, including £2,500 
in respect of the Climate Change Group. 

   
10. Growth Agenda Revenue Expenditure: 

The outstanding balance of £31,615 on Growth will be only partly spent by the year-
end, leaving an under spend of around £15,000 to £20,000.  

 
11. Capital Grant Expenditure (Sports, Community and Arts grants): 

The capital grant expenditure committed to date is only £102,591 against an available 
estimate of £240,000 (43%), but the full allocation of the remainder of this budget is 
covered in a separate report. A decision was made in September to put the New 
Communities capital grant programme on hold until the last meeting of the financial 
year, after it was recognised that the available budgets would be over-subscribed. 

   
12. Sustainability Capital Expenditure 

 The Sustainability capital expenditure is fully funded by contributions from the Local 
Strategic Partnership. It follows that any unspent balance at the year-end can readily 
be carried forward. The current expenditure is £8,113 against a budget in this year of 
£25,000, but there is a further £175,000 programmed over the following two years.  

 
13. Growth Areas Capital Expenditure: River Cam Project 

The River Cam Project capital expenditure is fully funded by contributions from 
various organisations. The current budget of £87,870 is fully spent.  

  
Implications 

 
Financial None 
Legal None 
Staffing None 
Risk Management None 

14.  

Equal Opportunities None 
 

Consultations 
 
15. The cost centre managers have been informed of the expenditure and grant details 

and budgets. 
 

Effect on Strategic Aims 
 

Commitment to being a listening council, providing first 
class services accessible to all. 

None 

Commitment to ensuring that South Cambridgeshire 
continues to be a safe and healthy place for all. 

 
None 

16. .

Commitment to making South Cambridgeshire a place in 
which residents can feel proud to live. 

 
None 

 Commitment to assisting provision for local jobs for all. None 
 Commitment to providing a voice for rural life. None 

Page 284



 
 

Conclusions/Summary 
 
17. The revenue expenditure comments are in paragraphs 6 to 10.  Savings/underspends 

of £69,000 within Planning Policy, £6,500 in Sustainability and around £15,000 to 
£20,000 on Growth are now anticipated. 

 
18. The capital expenditure comments are in paragraphs 11 to 13. The capital grants 

should be fully allocated before the end of the year.  
 

Recommendations 
 
19. The Portfolio Holder is requested to comment on the report, as appropriate. 

 
 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report:  

Budget files, grant decisions and the financial management system. 
 

Contact Officer:  Peter Harris – Principal Accountant (General Fund and Costing) 
Telephone: (01954) 713073 

Page 285



Page 286

This page is left blank intentionally.



�����	

��)�)����	���	�)	
����� ����������

�	
��)�	��)	���	���	���
�)��������
������	��������
�����)������������	��� )	
	����������

�	��������� ���� ���!"��#���
$�%)��& ���� ')��
���� �&(����& ��� �&����&

�)��*� ���)
*�� )����*� 	�+���,���& ���)
*�� -*,
���� .�*��� �&(��� �/-��&)���� 0 '*�)*�)� �&&)�)	�*�
���1��� ������� ��)+*�2�� ��)+*�2�� �/3��)+*�2� �	�&*�� )	

)���&� 
���� �	�&*�� �-��� �	�4�&2�� �	�����	

5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 4�&2��

��6��"!!7�����8��"$�9":�"

�������	

!"#�$�! �"!!7���;���'�:"�!��� !"��!�� %!�"�&!�' � <<=><� �$�$&� ����� � ��=�?� &"( �<=>@1

!�)�$!! 8�"$�8���'�:"�!��� !*&��"� %�"����' � ���=�>� !�#�""" "�"�� � ��?=>�@ #$( ��=1��

!$��&#" �$�8���'�:"�!��� !&)�)�� %&$�$��' � �1=��� &"���* � � ?@=>�� &#( ��=���

!!���)* 878�����A�:��; !���)�� %*)�"��' %���##�' �>=?�� !"��** � � �@=��� $#( �1=���

*#!�&!# .$"6�#��.���� #$*��*� %!�)"&����' �#*�*"� ?�=��� )!�&!� � � ��=?�> ��( ��=��>

&�#�"�* �:�����.��":��; &"*�&)� %�)&�*)�' !����� �>@=�>� �&��*� � � >?=��> )&( ���=1>>

����"�*!� �"��:��"$�9":�"�$�'��7� ���!)�!!� %����&��!�' �#��)$� >��=<<� )���"�" !)���� � ���=��@ �*( ���=<�� +��,-�.
%	/
�0�����)	
��)�	�������	�)�	����)����
�����'


��)���	������)����

*)��$# 1�����	�2��)���3�
�������)���� !������ � ���=��� �!�$�� ��=<>� �!( @1=>>�

!�&�"�� 4���0�����3�
�����	���)���� !������ � ���=��� ")�!�! @�=�>� ")( �?=1<�

$����� -)���4��������)���� $����� � <�=��� "�**� @=��� ��( ��=���

�$����� �"��:�������:�.$���8 �$����� � � �<�=��� � !����*! � ���=>�� $)( ��@=<�� +��,-�.

� 20���������������4�����	�4����	�%526' ������ � �>=��� #�!!) 1=��� )�( �?=11@

� �)�����-)	��������	)�4���6)�7	
� #"�#"� � 1@=1@� #"�#"� 1@=1@� !��( �

�$����� �"��:�������:���������7$� )���#"� � � �>�=1@� *��*#) !����*! � ��1=>@< �&( �><=��? +��,-�.

P
age 287



������	
��

�����	 ��)�������	�	����������	� 
��)��� �����	��� � ��������
���)���� �������� ����� �����������  �������

!��"��# !��#��� !��#��� !��#���
$ $ $ � $

�����
����	��������������������� !�"��#$"!�%&��$'�($���#$"!�%�$ ��)�$"�� ��� ("��%*

%�������������)������&��)�
'��()�����������*����������)����&��)�

+,-!.���  �����)�*�/���	������ ..-+.�� !#-#,!�� ,0� �.-+0"�

��!-!�#�� 1������/���	������� ��#-�+�� ��,-+!0�� ".� !!-"!���

#0-.+,�� ����� #"-#��� ,0-+�#�� ,"� ��-�#��

!!-+#,�� 1����)��&)	)�* �+-,#��� �0-!##�� ."� �"-�#��

#�-"#��� %��2����)���� ,�-����� ��-,�+�� +�� ��-�#+�

��#-+�#�� 3	���)�)�3�	)�* �+0-#+�� +,-�#+�� �,� ���-"++�

+�"-#���� 454�6�'�4�
�7�'8���93�'/�48
� +�#-..�� ��#-��0�� +#� !!�-.���
�����)������%�����	�:����1�����*�

���	*�)���;�4���	�'����<����)����
+�"-#���� /)����� ���� +�#-..��� ��#-��0�� +#� !!�-.���

!-!,#-�.,�� 
�����)���;����1��;;)�)�����5���������������� !-!+,-�����
�!-!,#-�.,� 
�=57��
�����)���;����1��;;)�)�����5���������� � �!-!+,-����

�!-#��� /�;������ ��)��	�)����� ��)��	� ���)�� ��-.+��
!-#���� 
�=57��/�;������ ��)��	� ���)��� ��)��	� ���)�� �-.+���

�+,#-0�#� %�������2�����������)����>3/%� ��&�>��)?���� �,�!-!#��
+,#-0�#�� 
�=57��%��������������)����>3/%� ��&�>��)?���� ,�!-!#���
!!-+����  ����)&��)������
�����������������@����)����� !�-.����
�!!-+��� 
�=57�� ����)&��)������
������� �!�-.���

+�"-#���� 454�6�'�4�
�7�'8���93�'/�48
� +�#-..�� ��#-��0�� !!�-.���

Page 288



�����	 
��)��� �����	��� � ��������
���)���� �������� ����� �����������

!��"��# !��#��� !��#��� !��#���
$ $ $ � $

������	�����+��������

�93�'/�48
�
1���	)�������1���)���

��-!+���  �����)�*�/���	�������%����� #-0+�� +-+���� +,� .-!+��
��-!""��  �����)�*�/���	�������3��A���� �"-�"�� �,-�,.�� ""� !-!�,�
�!-."+��  ����	����* #-#��� �-"���� �"� "-����
!�-!�0��  �����)�*�:��)	)�)������)� ,-+��� ,-.#"�� ���� !�
�+-����� 1���)�����,� ���� �� ��� �� ���������)�)�)������&�	�2

 �����	-�/����������	�����1�������1���)��� �<�	������*����������	*�
!-�,���  �)�;�5;;)���������>���)�)�:������ !-.0��
�.-0!"��  �����)�*����� ��������1���)��� +���
!�-!+!��  ���������1���)��� #-�.��
0!-�,,�� '�2� �����)�)�� ���-#.��
.-�"+�� 3	���)�)�1���)��� .-+!��
.-��+�� �;;����&	��>���� "-".��
�-!"+�� >��	����������)��������	�1���)��� ��

��!!-!��� 
�=57�� �����	-�/����������	�����1�������1���)��� ��!0-,���

0�-!.��� ..-+.�� !#-#,!�� ,0� �.-+0"�
�' 5=�

��+-���� 1���)�����,� �����
�������&	� �� ��� �� ���������)�)��<�B��&���

+,-!.��� '�4��93�'/�48
������)������ ..-+.�� !#-#,!�� ,0� �.-+0"�
3���;�	)��1�����*

���������+��������

�93�'/�48
�
1���	)�������1���)���

+�-#�0�� /��	�8���5�����)���	�3��A���� ++-�#�� ++-�0,�� ���� �.�
��� 1������3��;�������%����� !�-���� 0-0+��� �#� �!-!+��

+�-!0!�� 1������/���	�������3��A���� ,.-�,�� +�-,���� ".� ��-++#�
 �����	-�/����������	�����1�������1���)��� �<�	������*����������	*�

.�,��  �)�;�5;;)���������>���)�)�:������ .!��
.-�++��  ���������1���)��� +-!+��
.�-#�#�� '�2� �����)�)�� .,-+#��
!-"!"�� 3	���)�)�1���)��� !-""��
�-#,.�� >��	����������)��������	�1���)��� !-�"��
�+�-!�!� 
�=57�� �����	-�/����������	�����1�������1���)��� �+0-!!��

��!-!�# '�4��93�'/�48
������)������ ��#-�+� ��,-+!0 ".� !!-"!�
3���;�	)��1�����*

Page 289



�����	 
��)��� �����	��� � ��������
���)���� �������� ����� �����������

!��"��# !��#��� !��#��� !��#���
$ $ $ � $

�������+��������

�93�'/�48
�
1���	)�������1���)���

!-!���� �����3��������)��1������ ��-"��� ��-"!.�� ���� ,�
�#-��,�� �����/���	�������3��A���� .�-00�� ��-�"��� !+� ��-,"0�
0�-!+��� /��	�8��������3��)����� +"-���� +�-,+��� "#� ,-,+��
+"-�"+�� 1���)�����,� �����3�&	)������ ���� "+-���� 0"-!."�� #!� ,-0+!� ���������)�)�)������&�	�2
+-����� �����1���)���
��)�2 �� ��� ��

 �����	-�/����������	�����1�������1���)��� �<�	������*����������	*�
.�+��  �)�;�5;;)���������>���)�)�:������ .!��

�-"".��  ���������1���)��� .-.#��
.�-#�!�� '�2� �����)�)�� +0-"���

��� 3	���)�)�1���)��� �-0���
�."-!��� 
�=57�� �����	-�/����������	�����1�������1���)��� �,.-.+��

�++-+.��� �#+-#��� �+�-"�+�� 00� ..-�#+�

�' 5=�
�+"-�"+� 1���)�����,� �����
�������&	� �"+-���� �0"-!."� #!� �,-0+!� ���������)�)��<�B��&���

��� 3��������)��:���)�) ��!-���� �,-�."� +�� �+-#+!�

#0-.+,�� '�4��93�'/�48
������)������ #"-#��� ,0-+�#�� ,"� ��-�#��
3���;�	)��1�����*

�����	���	�	��

�93�'/�48
�
1���	)���C�1���)���

0!.  	)����� ���)��%���� �-��� .0# �,� !-+!��
�!-"�! 3��;���)���	����� ����	�)�)�(�6�!� !!-!.� #-��� .�� ��-��#�
0-�!� 3��;���)���	����� ����	�)�)�(�4����	 "-!�� ,-.0# 0#� �-0!��
+0# 6)������ #+� +0# ,�� �0��

�-�,� =)���		�������5���� �-��� ,�� .#� ,,#�
��-��� ��&��*�3��D�/���	��������1B��,� 0"-�,� �"-�,� !�� +#-###� ���������)�)�)������&�	�2

5����
!!-+��  ����)&��)�������������� !�-.��
�!!-+��� 
�=57�������)&��)�����2���������������&��� �!�-.���

 �����	�/����������	�����1�������1���)��� �<�	������*����������	*�
.�,  �)�;�5;;)���������>���)�)�:������ .!�

�-"00  �����)�*����� ��������1���)��� ".�
.-+!#  ���������1���)��� .-�+�
.�-##" '�2� �����)�)�� ,#-!.�
0-.�� 3	���)�)�1���)��� ��-#+�
,-0!! >��	����������)��������	�1���)��� 0-�+�

�,.-#.�� 
�=57�� �����	-�/����������	�����1�������1���)��� �#�-0+��

�!-+#, 454�6��93�'/�48
� ��.-�+� �+-,,� ��� 0"-�#��

�' 5=�
� /�;������ ��)��	�%���� �+!��
� 
�=57��/�;������ ��)��	�%������&��� +!�

���-���� 4����;���;����
���������1B��,� �0"-�,�� ��"-�,�� !�� �+#-###� ���������)�)��<�B��&���

!!-+#, '�4��93�'/�48
������)������ �+-,#� �0-!## ."� �"-�#��
3���;�	)��1�����*

Page 290



�����	 
��)��� �����	��� � ��������
���)���� �������� ����� �����������

!��"��# !��#��� !��#��� !��#���
$ $ $ � $

,��)�-��,����

�93�'/�48
�
1���)���

,�-"#�  ����	����*����A���� ��-��� �-,�+ +� ��-�#+�
0.-,",  ����	����*����A�����;������;����%���� �+-��� ��-0"� ��� !.-!!�� ;������&�	�2

%�����
��-���  ��&�)�)���)���>��)?��� ��-��� ��-��� ���� ��

� 4����;������
������� !+-��� .#-!!� �#0� �!.-!!�� ;������&�	�2
 �����	�/����������	�C�1�������1���)��� �<�	������*����������	*�

.#-!!,  �)�;�5;;)���������>���)�)�:������ �,-#,�
�"-!0.  �����)�*����� ��������1���)��� +-+��
"�-�#�  ���������1���)��� +0-���

�-�,+-..� '�2� �����)�)�� �-�+.-0+�
,#-"," 3	���)�)�1���)��� ,.-,0�
!-""� �;;����&	��>���� �-���
+�-�+! >��	���C����)��������	�1���)��� ++-0��

��-.�,-"�.� 
�=57�� �����	-�/����������	�����1�������1���)��� ��-�0,-�+��
.!-"!0  ��)��	� ���)�� .!-"����
�.!-"!0� 
�=57�� ��)��	� ���)�� �.!-"���

�,+-+00 454�6��93�'/�48
� �!�-��� #�-,�+ 0.� ��-�#+�

�' 5=�
�#�-+0�� 3	���)�)�/�	)���*�%�����(�1�	��)���C�5������ �0"-+,��

� 3	���)�)�/�	)���*�%�����(������;���;������������ �
�.+!-,���  ��&�>��)?����%�����(�1�	��)���C�5������ �+�"-."��
�0.-,",� %�����(�3��A�����C� ����	����� �,�-���� �,�-���� �� �����<���&���

� 8�&���/��))������1��,����)�� � � ��
�.+-0,�� /�;������ ��)��	�%���� �.+-0,��
+""-#�.�� 
�=57��)���������������)����&��� ,�!-"����

#�-"#� '�4��93�'/�48
������)������ ,�-��� ��-,�+ +�� ��-�#+�
3���;�	)��1�����*

�����	�,����	��

�93�'/�48
�
1���)���

��+-��# 6���	�/���	�������:����2��D ���-.+� +�-+#+ �#� "�-"++�
.-+�� >���)�)�=��D������������� .-+�� .-+�� ���� ��
!�-��� 
���)	����������� � � ��

� 1�����))��:	����
)�D����������� !�-��� � �� !�-����
��-��� 
�))���	�3	���)�) � � ��

� E�)���F��D�C�1�������*� ����	���)�� � � ��
 �����	-�/����������	�����1�������1���)��� �<�	������*����������	*�

�-"0.��  �)�;�5;;)���������>���)�)�:������ .-�.��
���  �����)�*����� ��������1���)��� .-,+��

�,-��.��  ���������1���)��� ��-"���
.-�+��� '�2� �����)�)�� ��-�#��

..!-..!�� 3	���)�)�1���)��� .�+-,"��
#-��+�� �;;����&	��>���� "-0���
.#-0!#�� >��	����������)��������	�1���)��� ."-",��
�+.+-0!+� 
�=57�� �����	-�/����������	�����1�������1���)��� �+�,-#���

��#-+�#�� 454�6��93�'/�48
� �+0-#+�� +,-�#+�� ���-"++�

�' 5=�
��� 4����;���;����=)����4��������������
������ �� ��� ��

�!,-+�+� 3	���)�)�/�	)���*�%�������2�����������)�� ��+-!+��
!,-+�+�� 
�=57��)�������2�����������)����&��� �+-!+���

��#-+�#�� '�4�
�7�'8���93�'/�48
������)����� �+0-#+�� +,-�#+�� �,� ���-"++�
3���;�	)��1�����*

Page 291



P
age 292

T
his page is left blank intentionally.



Planning Portfolio - Forward Plan as at 18 February 2010 
 

Financial performance full year report 2009 - 2010    
Performance indicators full year report 2009 - 2010    
Pre-application charging - Update Identify improvements, review charging levels, 

quantify use made of the service by agents, 
consider extension to other applications and to 
New Communities 

Gareth 
Jones 

 

Green Infrastructure Strategy Response to County Council consultation Gareth 
Jones 

David Bevan 

Service plan improvement milestones full year report  
2009 - 2010. 

   

20-May-10 

Economic Development Strategy  Jo Mills Nicole Kritzinger 
Considerate Contractor Scheme  Jo Mills Kirsty Human 
Responding to the Economic Downturn (Jul / Oct / Jan) Quarterly Updates on performance of actions Jo Mills Nicole Kritzinger 
Premier Division: Benchmarking Comparison and 
Comparative Costs 

Monitoring Gareth Jones 

Systems Thinking  Gareth Jones, Jo Mills 

Tree Warden Scheme  Gareth 
Jones 

Ros Richardson 

Linton Conservation Area Appraisal  Gareth 
Jones 

David Bevan 

Cottenham Conservation Area Appraisal  Gareth 
Jones 

David Bevan 

Waterbeach Conservation Area Appraisal  Gareth 
Jones 

David Bevan 

Duxford Airfield Revised Conservation Area Appraisal  Gareth 
Jones 

David Bevan 

Unscheduled 

Stapleford Conservation Area Appraisal  Gareth 
Jones 

David Bevan 

 

A
genda Item

 18
P

age 293



P
age 294

T
his page is left blank intentionally.



New Communities Portfolio  
 
Forward Plan as at 18 February 2010 
 

Financial Performance full year report 2009 - 2010 Monitoring Jo Mills Peter Harris 
Gypsy and Traveller Development Plan Document   Gareth Jones Jonathan Dixon 
Performance indicators full year report 2009 - 2010 Monitoring     
Climate Change Action Plan   Jo Mills Richard Hales 

20-May-10 
  
  
  
  

Service Plan improvement milestones full year report 
2009 - 2010. 

Monitoring     

Unscheduled South Cambs Sustainable Parish Energy Programme For decision following Climate Change WG 
consideration 

Gareth Jones Richard Hales 

 
 
 

P
age 295



P
age 296

T
his page is left blank intentionally.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	3 Procurement Strategy 2010
	AppxF Proposed updated Procurement Strategy 2010

	4 Final Service Plans 2010/11: Corporate Services (Procurement and Efficiency)
	Draft Improvement Plan - Finance Project Team

	5 Final Service Plans 2010/11: Planning
	SP - Planning and sustainable Communities
	SP - Planning Policy

	6 Local Development Scheme
	7 Final Service Plans 2010/11: New Communities
	8 Cambridgeshire Green Infrastructure Strategy
	Appendix A

	9 Supplementary Planning Document:Affordable Housing, Design Guide and Landscape
	10 Local Transport Plan
	11 Supplementary Planning Document: Waste Management
	12 Minerals and Waste Development Plan - proposed submission version
	13 Community Capital Grants Programme 2009/10
	14 Planning Portfolio: Carry Forward of Uncommitted Grant Balances as at 31 March 2010
	15 Financial Monitoring Report: Planning Portfolio
	Appendices

	16 Financial Monitoring Report: New Communities Portfolio
	Appendices.xls

	18 Forward Plans
	Forward Plan - New Communities Portfolio


